
 
1 
 

  
Notice of a meeting of 

Council 
 

Monday, 22 July 2013 
2.30 pm 

Council Chamber, Municipal Offices 
 

Membership 
Councillors: Colin Hay, Wendy Flynn (Chair), Andrew Chard, Garth Barnes, 

Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Chris Coleman, Barbara Driver, 
Bernard Fisher, Jacky Fletcher, Rob Garnham, Les Godwin, Penny Hall, 
Tim Harman, Rowena Hay, Diane Hibbert, Sandra Holliday, 
Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, Andrew Lansley, Paul Massey, 
Helena McCloskey, Andrew McKinlay, Paul McLain, David Prince, 
John Rawson, Anne Regan, Rob Reid, Chris Ryder, Diggory Seacome, 
Duncan Smith, Malcolm Stennett, Charles Stewart, Klara Sudbury, 
Pat Thornton, Jon Walklett, Andrew Wall, Simon Wheeler (Vice-Chair), 
Roger Whyborn and Suzanne Williams 

 
Agenda 

    
1.  APOLOGIES  
   

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
   

3.  MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
24 June 2013 

(Pages 
1 - 10) 

   
4.  COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR  
   

5.  COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL  
   

6.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
These must be received no later than 12 noon on Tuesday 16 July. 

 
   
7.  MEMBER QUESTIONS  
   

8.  THE FUTURE FUNCTION, CULTURE AND STRUCTURE OF THE 
PAID SERVICE WITHIN CHELTENHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 
Report of the Chief Executive 

(Pages 
11 - 42) 

   
9.  REVIEW OF COUNCIL SIZE AND ELECTORAL CYCLE 

Report of the Cabinet Member Corporate Services. 
(Pages 
43 - 56) 

   
10.  SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 



    

 
2 
 

Report of the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny 57 - 92) 
   
11.  FINANCIAL OUTTURN 2012/13 AND QUARTERLY BUDGET 

MONITORING REPORT TO END OF MAY 2013 
Report of the Cabinet Member Finance 

(Pages 
93 - 
154) 

   
12.  IMPERIAL GARDENS-REINSTATEMENT OF HISTORIC RAILINGS 

Report of the Cabinet Member Sustainability 
(Pages 
155 - 
164) 

   
13.  NOTICES OF MOTION 

None received at the time of publication. 
 

   
14.  TO RECEIVE PETITIONS  
   

15.  ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND 
WHICH REQUIRES A DECISION 

 
   

 
Contact Officer:  Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 01242 775153 

Email: democratic.services@cheltenham.gov.uk 
 
 

Andrew North 
Chief Executive 



 
 
 
 

 
- 1 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

Council 
 

Monday, 24th June, 2013 
2.30  - 4.25 pm 

 
Attendees 

Councillors: Wendy Flynn (Chair), Simon Wheeler (Vice-Chair), 
Andrew Chard, Garth Barnes, Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, 
Chris Coleman, Barbara Driver, Bernard Fisher, Rob Garnham, 
Les Godwin, Penny Hall, Tim Harman, Colin Hay, Rowena Hay, 
Sandra Holliday, Peter Jeffries, Steve Jordan, Andrew Lansley, 
Paul Massey, Helena McCloskey, Andrew McKinlay, 
Paul McLain, David Prince, John Rawson, Anne Regan, 
Rob Reid, Chris Ryder, Diggory Seacome, Duncan Smith, 
Malcolm Stennett, Charles Stewart, Klara Sudbury, Pat Thornton, 
Jon Walklett, Roger Whyborn and Suzanne Williams 

 
 

Minutes 
 
 

1. APOLOGIES 
Apologies were given on behalf of Councillors Fletcher, Hibbert, Smith and 
Wall. Councillor Smith subsequently arrived at the meeting at 14.40. 
 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
Councillor Ryder declared a personal interest in agenda item 8 as she has an 
interest in potential development land.  
 
Councillor Garnham declared a personal and prejudicial interest in agenda item 
8 as through his business he is promoting a site for development that is 
identified in the JCS. However, as this is only a Council Performance Report, he 
indicated he would stay in the chamber for the debate. He also declared a 
personal interest in agenda item 10 as both his wife and son are employees of 
the Gloucestershire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.   
  
 

3. MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING 
The minutes of the last meeting had been circulated with the agenda. 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 March 2013 be 
agreed and signed as an accurate record subject to Councillor Reid’s 
apologies being recorded. 
 
 

4. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE MAYOR 
The Mayor thanked members who had attended her charity launch at the 
weekend. She encouraged members to attend the Real Ale Trail to be held on 5 
July in aid of the Mayor's charities and to support the Rotary Club’s Poliomyelitis 
Challenge on 21 September in Montpellier Gardens.  

Agenda Item 3
Page 1



 
 
 

 

 
- 2 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

 
She congratulated Saira Malin from Democratic Services and her husband on 
the recent birth of their son.  
 
The Mayor advised members that she had removed the moment of reflection 
from the Council agenda which she hoped would enable everybody to attend 
from the start of the meeting.  She indicated that the Cambray room would be 
available for half an hour prior to the Council meeting for any members who 
wish to have some quiet time for reflection. 
 
 

5. COMMUNICATIONS BY THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
The Leader encouraged members to attend the Midsummer Fiesta to be held 
on 6 July. This had to be cancelled in 2012 because of bad weather so he 
hoped for a fine day this year. 
 
 

6. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
None received. 
 
 

7. MEMBER QUESTIONS 
1. Question from Councillor Tim Harman to Cabinet Member Corporate 

Services, Councillor Jon Walklett 
  

Will the Cabinet Member include in his deliberations with Forest of Dean 
District Council concerning Members IT facilities, a consideration of the 
far superior services provided by the County Council to its Members? 
 

 Response from Cabinet Member  
 In February 2013, the council agreed £1.3m of funding for the ICT 

infrastructure upgrade strategy. The sequence for this investment is firstly 
to bring our core systems up to date which will then provide the platform 
for supporting iPad’s, iPhones, wifi and more resilient remote access.  
 
We are aware of the ICT provision provided by Gloucestershire County 
council and members at the FOD already use similar technologies.  
 
It is our intention to provide the same level of member ICT support here 
as soon as is possible. 
 
In a supplementary question, Councillor Harman asked for a reminder on 
why the Forest of Dean had been chosen as the council's ICT partner. 
 
The Cabinet Member advised that the original list of 11 options had been 
narrowed down to 3. These were to continue with the current service, 
outsource to a commercial organisation or share the service with another 
council or councils. The Forest of Dean had been through a similar 
process and had some of the most go-ahead systems in the county and 
therefore were in a place where this council aspired to be. The link with 
the Forest meant that ICT resources, including the ICT manager, were 
shared across the two councils.   He hoped that this would provide a 

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 
- 3 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

potential basis for expanding the service in future to other GO partners.   
2. Question from Councillor Rob Garnham to Cabinet Member 

Corporate Services, Councillor Jon Walklett 
  

Does the Cabinet Member agree with me that there are serious and deep 
rooted problems with the ability of this Council to provide a reliable IT 
service both to members of the public and to Councillors.  Can the 
Cabinet Member reassure this Council that his administration is tackling 
this situation as a matter of urgency and that the resources needed to fix 
the problems will be provided? 
 

 Response from Cabinet Member  
 The problems we are currently experiencing are the result of lack in 

investment in ICT. This was identified and addressed in the Infrastructure 
upgrade strategy which formed part of the work undertaken in creating 
the shared ICT service between the CBC and Forest of Dean District 
Councils.  
 
The £1.3m investment programme will address this lack of investment in 
both ICT Staff and infrastructure and will bring our ICT infrastructure and 
systems up to date so that we can provide a reliable, resilient and more 
business focused service to both members and officers. 
 
As a result of recent problems we are looking to accelerate elements of 
this programme to implement improvements sooner and deliver some 
quick fixes.  
 
In a supplementary question, Councillor Garnham asked the Cabinet 
Member whether he considered it satisfactory that one member has to 
catch a bus into the municipal offices to enable her to read her e-mails 
and that some councillors still had council provided laptops whilst others 
did not have this facility. 
 
In response, the Cabinet Member agreed that this was an appalling 
situation. He reminded members that a collective decision had been 
made regarding the provision of laptops in May 2012. It was considered 
that replenishing laptops was unviable and that facilities would be 
available for members to access council systems using their own 
equipment. The option of bringing forward a portion of their members’ 
allowance was available to any member who wished to purchase new 
equipment. He acknowledged that all members were currently very 
frustrated with the Citrix service but steps were being taken to address 
this as part of the improvements to the ICT infrastructure. This 3 year 
project was started in February with a budget of £1.3 M and it was now 
only day 85. On that basis it would be premature to give any dates but he 
encouraged members to attend the ICT member seminar next week so 
they could get a clearer picture of what was being planned. In the mean 
time he would be happy to give a bimonthly update to members either 
verbally or in writing or to the O&S committee. 

 
 
 

Page 3



 
 
 

 

 
- 4 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

 
8. REPORT OF THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE AT END OF 2012-13 

Councillor Jon Walklett, Cabinet Member Corporate Services introduced the 
report which had been circulated with the agenda. The report set out 
information and data taken from the council’s performance management system 
to enable Council to review the corporate performance of the organisation at the 
end of the financial year 2012-13.  
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services explained that the report was a 
realistic appraisal of the corporate strategy performance targets set out at the 
end of previous financial year.  The report tracked 78 milestones which had 
been identified in the 2012-13 action plan. Out of these, 56 (72%) milestones 
were completed at the end of the year, 16 milestones were classed as being 
amber as there are plans for the completion within a reasonable timeframe and 
6 milestones are red as they will not be achieved within a reasonable time 
frame. The six milestones all related to the JCS programme or the Community 
Governance Review.  The 2012-13 action plan also identified 52 key 
performance indicators to track the council’s progress. 32 of these were 
indicators which CBC is directly accountable for and of these 81% had been 
met and there were positive initiatives in place to address the remaining three.  
 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services said that 2012-13 had been a difficult 
year for most local authorities due to ever decreasing funding and he 
congratulated the Cabinet Member Finance for making funding streams 
available for projects in these difficult circumstances. He went on to highlight 
some of the positive achievements of the council including the work of the 
Participation and Engagement team with the police to reduce crime and the 
council’s work with CBH  to address the shortage of affordable and social 
housing.  Finally, he referred members to the update on two further indicators 
which had been circulated at the start of the meeting.  
 
Councillor Garnham, as the leader of the Conservative group, was happy to 
support the report as he felt it shone a light on the weaknesses of the current 
administration and held it to account. He acknowledged that the council had 
performed well in areas of partnership working such as tackling crime and 
affordable housing.   By contrast, he felt the council had failed to meet targets 
on its own services and he highlighted waste and recycling, ICT, the Olympic 
legacy, the democratic accountability of Ubico and NEETs.  He felt these were 
all areas where the council could do better. 
 
Another member asked for reassurance that staffing levels within the new Art 
Gallery and Museum and tourist information centre would still enable the best 
possible services to be delivered. In response, the Cabinet Member Sport and 
Leisure, confirmed that a full restructure was under way at the Art Gallery to 
ensure it was fit for purpose and staffing levels were set at appropriate levels to 
deliver the service required.  In response to the comment about the Olympic 
legacy, she had seen benefits in her local ward and she would be happy to 
supply Councillor Garnham a more detailed note on this matter.  
 
Another member congratulated the council on the very positive work it had 
achieved with partners particularly in the areas of sport, safeguarding and 
supporting people. However he felt the council needed to be looking beyond the 
scope of working with other districts and look ahead to the time when it may no 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 
- 5 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

longer exist as a district council. He was concerned about the axing of the free 
garden waste collection, the number of unused brown bins at the depot and the 
increase in general waste and suggested that the closed bin policy had been 
implemented primarily for financial reasons. 
 
In response, the Cabinet Member Sustainability, acknowledge that the waste 
targets may have been too ambitious but the council’s recycling rates were 
some of the most improved in the country. Resources were overstretched but 
the council continued to look for improvements and extend the range of what 
could be recycled. He considered that ensuring side waste was not left on the 
street was a significant improvement from a health and safety point of view. 
 
The Leader expressed his disappointment at some of the points being made. 
He emphasised that it was the nature of the performance report to highlight 
things which had been unsuccessful and members should not forget the high 
level of achievement on both performance indicators and milestones. The 
council prides itself on its work with partners and he believed the current 
administration had been responsible for huge changes in waste and recycling.  
Other achievements included new business start-ups including shops, the North 
Place and St Paul’s developments and the new Art Gallery & Museum with its 
contribution to the town's tourism offer. The Olympic torch relay had been very 
successful with significant staff effort to set this up and it was not true to say 
that there was no Olympic legacy in the town.  
 
The Cabinet Member Finance highlighted that resources continue to be 
stretched with the current ongoing financial cuts, but the council was still 
maintaining and improving council services. This was at a time when many 
other authorities up and down the country were being forced to close their 
services.  
 
Councillor Massey, as the chair of the Audit Committee, referred to comments 
made by the Head of Audit Cotswold, at their last meeting that he had never 
seen so much change in an organisation in a 12 month period. In that context, 
Councillor Massey considered it was remarkable that the council had continued 
to achieve 81% of its performance indicators and was a credit to the council and 
its officers.  
 
Another member spoke in support of the report and welcomed the fact that in 
this council it came to full Council for a debate. He was concerned that the 
criticism made during the meeting may appear to be more criticism of staff 
running the service rather than the administration.  
 
In his summing up, Councillor Walklett emphasised that the report gave an 
appraisal of how the council had performed in the last financial year and helped 
to formulate plans for the year to come.  
 
Upon the vote it was unanimously 
 
Resolved that the review of annual performance for 2012/3 be approved.   
 
 
 
 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 
- 6 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

9. APPOINTMENT TO THE GLOUCESTERSHIRE HEALTH, COMMUNITY AND 
CARE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
The Cabinet Member Corporate Services introduced the report. He explained 
that Gloucestershire County Council is responsible for setting up a Health, 
Community and Care Overview and Scrutiny Committee and each of the district 
councils is entitled to appoint a member to the committee. At Selection Council 
on 14 May 2012, Council nominated Councillor Klara Sudbury to the committee 
and Councillor Colin Hay as a substitute. Following her election to the County 
Council in May 2013, Councillor Sudbury was now a county councillor member 
of the committee and as she cannot perform two roles, there was a vacancy for 
the district member.  The County Council had confirmed that the district 
nomination can be any member provided they are not a member of the 
authority’s Executive.   Group Leaders were requested to consider their 
nominations by the end of May and Councillor Penny Hall was nominated by 
Councillor Rob Garnham. No other nominations were received and Group 
leaders had indicated their support for this nomination.       
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously 
 
RESOLVED that Councillor Penny Hall be nominated to the 
Gloucestershire Health, Community and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
 

10. NOTICES OF MOTION 
Councillor Sudbury, seconded by Councillor Coleman, proposed the following 
notice of motion. 
 
This Council is dismayed at the decision taken by the NHS community in 
Gloucestershire to permanently divert ambulances overnight between 8pm and 
8am from Cheltenham General Hospital to Gloucestershire Royal Hospital. 
 
We are particularly concerned about the potential for increased mortality rates 
of patients being taken further across the county for emergency care, alongside 
the impact on waiting times at Gloucestershire Royal Hospital and on 
ambulance response times. We are also concerned that measures to mitigate 
access issues for Cheltenham patients being discharged from Gloucester 
remain uncertain. 
 
In the light of the national review of urgent and emergency care, published on 
17th June, this Council agrees to write formally to the Board of the 
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group to ask that the decision to 
downgrade Cheltenham A&E should only be temporary to: 

 
a) allow more time for local and national workforce issues to be 
addressed and 
 
b) allow the impact of the downgrading to be properly understood by the 
health community and the County's Health, Community and Care 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

 
In introducing the motion, Councillor Sudbury, highlighted her concerns with the 
proposals which would result in 16 patients per night being transferred by 

Page 6



 
 
 

 

 
- 7 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

ambulance to Gloucester. She referred to the recent meeting of the 
Gloucestershire Health, Community and Care Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (HOSC) she had attended as a county member and had submitted 
an amendment. After considering the proposals and the results of the 
consultation, the HOSC had given a green light to the NHS proposals. It had 
been suggested that the low number of people responding to the consultation 
was as a result of the public not caring about the A&E service. However she 
argued that the poor response was due to a badly timed consultation and 
confusion caused by the changes being made to the PCT at the time. She had 
been disappointed in the way the HOSC meeting had been managed and felt 
members had been prevented from asking questions of the health professionals 
present at the meeting. She acknowledged that there were difficulties in 
recruiting the necessary consultants to ensure the safety and supervision of 
trainees in A&E. However she felt it would be a mistake to make a permanent 
change whilst trying to resolve these resource issues. Finally she referred to 
research made available by Martin Horwood MP where consultants had 
reported concerns about the potential impact of several minutes delay on cases 
needing the A&E service.  
 
A member acknowledged it was a difficult area. He felt it was appropriate to 
challenge and seek reassurance on the proposed changes and monitor future 
performance. However he suggested that the temporary solution proposed in 
the motion may provide staff with more uncertainty and potentially make 
recruitment more difficult.  For that reason his gut feeling was that the proposal 
for a centre of excellence was the way to go in order to optimise patient care.  
 
Another member felt that more work needed to be done on the wording of the 
motion as it was currently too weak to make any real impact. Another member 
suggested that the phrase "mitigate access issues" needed more clarification. 
 
Several members expressed concerns about the changes being made to A&E 
and applauded the sentiments behind the motion.  
 
Although well-intentioned and picking up concerns from the community, another 
member felt the motion was futile in what it could achieve. Council members 
were not experts and should acknowledge that HOSC had received a detailed 
presentation on this matter and were generally much more informed about 
health issues. He added that he had attended a consultation event and his initial 
dismay at the proposals had been allayed. He had concluded that although the 
proposals were not ideal, they would increase survival rates over the current 
arrangements, not to say that the current arrangements could not be improved. 
He concluded that it would take at least five to seven years to enable the 
shortage of consultants to be addressed and this could not be classed as 
"temporary". A preferable approach for the Council would be to call on the 
ambulance service to make adequate provision to support the new proposals. 
Far more important than the additional eight minutes for an A&E case to be 
taken to Gloucester, was that the patient should be directed to the appropriate 
specialist unit at the hospital when they arrived.   
 
Another member challenged the eight minutes as an underestimate of the time 
it would take, even for an emergency vehicle, to travel between Cheltenham 
and Gloucester. He emphasised that the thrust behind the motion was not to put 
in place a permanent solution whilst workforce issues were still being resolved. 

Page 7



 
 
 

 

 
- 8 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

Changes to A&E should be made on the basis of clinical excellence and not be 
driven by workforce issues. His particular concern was that after treatment, 
patients could be left in Gloucester in the middle of the night without any 
transport home. 
 
Other members spoke in support of the motion and felt it was important that 
they gave voice to the concerns of their constituents. Gloucester A&E did not 
currently appear to have surplus capacity so the outcome of the proposals could 
be that patients transferring to Gloucester end up having a longer wait. 
 
The Leader of the Council felt this was an important debate and certainly not 
futile. Any response was urgent and therefore there was no time to set up a 
working group to look more closely at the issue.   
 
Councillor Hall, had attended the HOSC meeting as the borough council 
representative. She explained that she had worked for 10 years as a nurse in a 
minor injury unit  and as a result she could reassure members that nurses in 
these units were highly trained in emergency techniques. Unfortunately in the 
hospital she had worked in, it had not been viable to maintain those skills and 
therefore the unit had been closed down. With regard to Cheltenham General, 
they would have nurse practitioners in place who are highly training in A&E 
techniques. She described the HOSC meeting as ‘the nastiest meeting’ where 
members of the committee had been “between a rock and hard place”. Although 
no members had wanted to say yes to the proposals, the Hospitals Trust had 
been advised that from August 2013 it would no longer be able to utilise the 
junior doctors to fill the places of the middle grade doctors required on each 
rota. As the NHS had also informed the committee that it would take until 2020 
to fill the additional consultants post, the committee felt they had no choice. For 
that reason members had felt their final resolution with the qualifications they 
added was the best that could be achieved in the circumstances. She was 
disappointed that Councillor Sudbury had not taken this motion asking for a 
temporary closure to the HOSC meeting. She felt she had already voted on 
Councillor’s Sudbury’s proposal at the HOSC meeting that the changes should 
be temporary for one year and on that basis would abstain from voting on the 
matter again. 
 
As seconder of the motion, Councillor Coleman, urged members to keep a 
close eye on the proposals on behalf of their constituents. He repeated the 
figure previously stated that the proposals could mean as many as 6000 cases 
a year would have to travel to Gloucester. He too had attended the HOSC 
meeting and agreed with the sentiments expressed. He had been unhappy that 
important questions had not been answered and no assurances had been given 
by the health professionals that no lives would be lost as a result of proposals or 
that there would be no negative impact on patient care. In his view the 
proposals were not about improving medical care or providing a centre of 
excellence but were about staffing. For this reason and in order to reduce health 
inequalities across the town, he urged members to support the motion. 
 
In her summing up, Councillor Sudbury responded to some of the points made 
by members during the debate. She felt a full calendar year would allow more 
time to recruit staff and address some of the resourcing issues. The “mitigate 
access issues" had been discussed at the HOSC meeting and referred to 
patients being potentially discharged in the middle of the night with no transport 

Page 8



 
 
 

 

 
- 9 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

home. Finally she was concerned that this was the start of a path of further 
specialisation across the two sites which could result in no A&E facilities at all in 
Cheltenham in 10 years time. 
 
Upon a vote on the motion was CARRIED. 
Voting : For 28, Against 1, Abstentions 5. 
 
 

11. TO RECEIVE PETITIONS 
None received. 
 
 

12. ANY OTHER ITEM THE MAYOR DETERMINES AS URGENT AND WHICH 
REQUIRES A DECISION 
ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR OF PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
The Mayor had agreed to an urgent item being considered by Council, namely 
the appointment of a new chair and vice-chair to Planning Committee and 
asked the Cabinet Member Corporate Services to introduce the item. 
 
He explained that at Selection Council on 14 May 2012, Council resolved that 
all nominations for chairs and vice-chairs of committees should be made at that 
Council meeting rather than separate meetings of those committees 
immediately following Council which had been done in previous years.  
Councillor Helena McCloskey was duly elected as chair and Councillor Jacky 
Fletcher as vice-chair.  
At Planning Committee on 20 June, Councillor McCloskey announced her 
intention to stand down as chair and similarly Councillor Fletcher had stood 
down as vice-chair.  Councillor Chris Coleman had indicated he was prepared 
to stand as the chair of Planning Committee and Councillor Penny Hall as the 
vice-chair.  
As these appointments were made by Council it now falls to Council to appoint 
the new chair and vice-chair.    
 
Councillor McCloskey expressed her regret at having to step down as chair of 
Planning Committee but this was necessary because of her new commitments 
outside the council. Council wished to put down on record their thanks for her 
chairmanship.   
 
Upon a vote it was unanimously  
 
RESOLVED that Chris Coleman be appointed as Chair of Planning 
Committee and Councillor Penny Hall as vice-chair. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wendy Flynn 
Chair 

Page 9



 
 
 

 

 
- 10 - 

Draft minutes to be approved at the next meeting on Monday, 22 July 2013. 
 

 

Page 10



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 1 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Council – 22 July 2013 

 
The future function, culture and structure of the paid service within 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Report of the Chief Executive 

 
Accountable member Full Council 
Accountable officer Chief Executive, Andrew North 
Ward(s) affected All indirectly 
Significant Decision Yes 
Executive summary Cheltenham Borough Council has evolved over the last few years to 

become a major commissioner of services - predominantly commissioning 
from shared arrangements set up with other local authorities. The result is 
that the council is now much smaller in terms of directly employed staff and 
has a smaller budget to support those remaining directly provided services. 
In the light of this and having regard to the continuing financial challenges 
facing the council as a consequence of the government’s austerity 
programme, it is appropriate to consider a restructuring of senior 
management. This process should start with consideration of the type of 
organisation we aspire to be in terms of our vision and organisational 
culture. It should follow from a clear view of those services we wish to 
continue providing directly, at least for the present. 
This report seeks to describe for consideration and comment an holistic 
approach to these questions badged as ‘Cheltenham Futures’. It also seeks 
specific approval to formally consult on proposed changes to the structure 
of senior management and authority for the Borough Solicitor to make 
technical changes to the Constitution to facilitate implementation of the new 
structure. 

Recommendations That Council: 
1. Notes the content of the Cheltenham Futures programme as set 

out in appendix 2 and makes comment as appropriate for 
relevant officers (and Cabinet where so identified) to take into 
account in implementation. 

2. Approves the proposed Senior Staff structure and redundancies 
as set out in section 2 of this report so that these proposals can 
be taken forward for formal consultation. 

3. Instructs Appointments and Remuneration Committee to: 
• approve any terms necessary to implement any redundancies 

within the financial parameters set out in this report 
• approve the formal job descriptions of the Deputy Chief 

Executive, Director of Corporate Resources and the Director of 
Environmental and Regulatory Services 

• decide and oversee any process for confirming staff in the 
revised roles 

Agenda Item 8
Page 11



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 2 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

4. Agrees that the Chief Executive take forward any necessary 
changes to the structure proposals arising from the formal 
consultation that do not affect the substantive or financial 
parameters of this report. 

5. Authorises the Borough Solicitor to amend the Council 
Constitution as set out in section 3.3 of this report. 

  
 
Financial implications The proposed structure will deliver savings of circa £220k per annum by 

2016/17 which allows for one-off costs totalling £223k to be funded from 
the revenue saving from earlier years as detailed in appendix 5.  
The MTFS has identified a target saving of £200k from a Senior 
Management team review, with phased savings planned from 2014/15. In 
order to realise the on-going revenue saving at the earliest opportunity, it 
may be prudent to fund the one-off costs from general balances. This 
concept will be discussed and brought forward as part of the 2014/15 
budget setting proposals to Council in February 2014. 
Contact officer: Paul Jones, paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 
775154 

Legal implications In making this report to Council the Chief Executive is exercising his power 
as Head of Paid Service under s4 Local Government and Housing Act 
1989.  
Prior to appointment or dismissal of chief officers the appointor must 
consult with the Leader and Cabinet in accordance with the Employment 
Rules. 
Also see section 3.3 of the report. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 
272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

As contained in the body of this report. The proposals may result in 
compulsory redundancies. The Council will follow the proper process to 
effect any change / redundancies fairly and lawfully, and do all it can to 
mitigate the risk of any compulsory redundancy through the normal 
mechanisms (i.e. alternative work), and provide support to any employee 
placed at risk / facing redundancy.  The Trade Unions will be consulted as 
part of the process. 
In appointing to the revised structure, the Council’s normal policy on ring 
fencing and slotting will apply.  
Contact officer: Amanda Attfield, 
amanda.attfield@cheltenham.gov.uk, 07920 284313 

Key risks As set out in appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The proposals contribute towards the meeting of the Council’s financial 
targets included in its 2013/14 action plan. 
Specifically they fulfil the commitment to propose a new senior 
management structure to Council by December 2013 which delivers a 
saving of £200k per annum. 

Page 12



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 3 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 
 

Property/Asset 
Implications 

There are no property implications arising directly from this report 
Contact officer: David Roberts, david.roberts@cheltenham.gov.uk 

Page 13



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 4 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

1. Background 
1.1 Cheltenham Borough Council is a very different organisation to the council which existed five 

years ago.  Given the extent of change it is now timely to consider our structural and cultural 
arrangements to reflect the new situation. 

 
1.2 A brief history might assist.  In 2008 council officers had explored the possibility of a delivery 

partnership with the private sector to drive efficiency and cost savings in relation to corporate 
support activities.  This study concluded that savings were not available by following this 
particular approach, but shortly after the opportunity arose to form two shared services with 
Tewkesbury Borough Council, one for legal services with Tewkesbury as the lead authority (One 
Legal) and another shared service for building control with Cheltenham as the host. 

 
1.3 At around the same time a shared service with Cotswold District Council for internal audit was 

formed.  The pattern of commissioned services that have been put in place to date is as follows:- 
 

Service Partner(s) Lead organisation Start 
year 

No. of staff 
transferring 
from CBC 

Legal (inc. 
Monitoring Officer) 

Tewkesbury Borough 
Council 

Tewkesbury 
Borough Council 

2009 20.5fte 

Building Control  Tewkesbury Borough 
Council 

Cheltenham 
Borough Council 

2009 10 fte came 
into CBC 

Audit Initially Cotswold District 
Council (extended in 
2012 to include West 
Oxon District Council)  

Cotswold District 
Council 

2009 4 fte 

Waste collection, 
street cleansing, 
parks and garden 
maintenance 

Cotswold District Council Ubico Ltd 
(NB: as a parallel 
project a joint 
committee for waste 
commissioning has 
been put in place 
with 
Gloucestershire 
County Council and 
other district 
councils) 

2012 118 fte 

GO Shared 
Services (finance, 
HR, Procurement 
and systems 
support) 

Cotswold District Council, 
West Oxon District 
Council, Forest of Dean 
District Council, 
Cheltenham Borough 
Homes, Ubico Ltd 

Cotswold District 
Council 

2012 29.42 fte 

ICT Forest of Dean District 
Council 

Forest of Dean 
District Council 

2013 15 fte 

 
1.4 Over the relevant financial years, from the start of 2009/10 through to the end of 2012/13 the 

Page 14



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 5 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

number of staff delivering direct services as employees of the council has reduced from 571 fte to 
343 fte.  The main reason for this is the formation of the shared services mentioned above, but 
there has also been a significant impact in head count through deleting posts (most of them 
through natural wastage) and from other TUPE transfers.  The cost of direct services provided by 
the council has thus, over this period, reduced from £19.5m to around £10m. 

 
1.5 As Members will know we are currently exploring the commissioning options for Leisure and 

Culture.  This initiative may have the impact of reducing directly employed staff numbers by a 
further 83 fte and removing £2.9m from the cost of direct services making our directly employed 
staff numbers around 260 fte and the amount spent on direct services £7.1m. For the purposes of 
the structural proposals in the remainder of this report I have assumed that this commissioning 
initiative will proceed – though the arrangements suggested are flexible enough to accommodate 
a second directly provided service for Leisure and Culture should that be necessary. 

  
1.6 Cheltenham Borough Council has always sought to be efficient in the way in which it spends 

public money, and becoming a commissioning council was intended primarily to increase 
efficiency, effectiveness and value for money.  However since 2008 the financial challenges 
facing the council have increased in intensity and scale such that approximately one third of the 
council’s grant from central government has been cut and it is likely that this proportion will reach 
50% by the end of 2015/16.  This has provided an additional imperative for the council to consider 
its future as a much smaller organisation which manages a set of diverse relationships with a 
range of shared service providers (including the voluntary and community sector), whilst retaining 
some direct delivery. However, the financial impact of any decisions made will be critical to the 
council’s long term sustainability.  The council’s smaller size following the significant 
transformation to date provides opportunities to reduce council overheads in areas such as 
accommodation, the cost of support services and the cost of senior management. 

 
Vision 
1.7 The dramatic changes described above have been implemented against a vision which remains 

as relevant today as it was when first adopted in 2008, namely ‘we want Cheltenham to deliver a 
sustainable quality of life where people, families, their communities and businesses thrive and in a 
way which cherishes cultural and natural heritage, reduces their impact on climate change and 
does not compromise the quality of life of present and future generations’. 

 
1.8 This vision supports an outwardly focussed approach which has involved identifying four 

corporate objectives – enhancing and protecting our environment, strengthening our economy, 
strengthening our community and enhancing the provision of arts and culture; plus a more 
inwardly focussed fifth objective about providing value for money and services that effectively 
meet the needs of our customers.  These objectives are in turn supported by a set of outcomes 
we wish to see for the Cheltenham community. 

 
Role of the council 
1.9 Increasingly we no longer define ourselves by the services we directly provide but by the 

outcomes we achieve either ourselves, or which we support and influence others to achieve.  
Relationship and provider management is therefore critical as we consider organisational needs 
for the future, as is the need to ensure that elected Members have political oversight and 
influence over the contribution and performance of providers in carrying out their commitments. 
The task of the council is to commission from the various shared local authority arrangements, 
from the community and voluntary sector, from the private sector or from directly employed staff, 
the achievement of these outcomes. 

 

Page 15



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 6 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

Cheltenham Futures 
1.10 The change which the council has undergone as a result of its own choices about the future 

direction of service delivery (but against the backdrop of the government’s austerity programme) 
has inevitably had an impact upon the way the remaining council-employed staff carry out their 
jobs.  The council has had to be much more careful about the way in which it manages its more 
limited staff capacity in order to ensure achievement of the desired outcomes for the community 
and the major programmes and projects which are designed to support those outcomes.  Having 
got to this point in the transformation it is now time to pause and consider the impact of this 
change on organisational culture and ask whether the mechanisms that are intended to support a 
high learning, high performance culture in which staff are empowered to make a difference are ‘fit 
for purpose’.  These mechanisms include the system of appraisal, performance management, 
staff progression, grading, reward and recognition processes.  A key work stream of the 
Cheltenham Futures Programme (Workstream 3) is looking at exactly these issues. 

 
1.11 The other two work streams of Cheltenham Futures concern structural change.  Workstream 1 

seeks to take a coherent view of those services which the council continues to provide to the 
public to reach a conclusion on which of those services we should retain in-house (i.e. employing 
the staff directly) and which could more appropriately be provided by commissioning them from 
other organisations, from shared services or – potentially – from mutuals formed by staff working 
in the service (a route favoured by the Cabinet office who provide funding to support the creation 
of mutuals).  The preliminary conclusion of this workstream is that we should retain a single 
division entitled ‘Environmental and Regulatory Services’ which includes the planning and 
licensing function, the very small car parking team which deals with off-street parking enforcement 
and elements of public protection. Workstream 2 involves the ‘right sizing’ of our corporate 
support activities, perhaps commissioning from other providers where a business case exists to 
do so and promoting effective scenario and risk planning to ensure that we are prepared for the 
failure or serious difficulty within any of the provider organisations which we now rely on to carry 
out our functions. 

2. Senior Management Reductions 
2.1 There are three main reasons for an early focus on senior management structures in mapping out 

the council’s future; those are: - 
• Senior management structural change which is made as a genuine response to the need for a 

changing functional role sends out a strong signal to the rest of the organisation that things are 
different and that all of us need to operate differently to deal with the new context. This was a 
particularly relevant factor behind the creation of the current Commissioning Division in 2010 and 
this structural change proved particularly valuable in helping the council to successfully adopt a 
commissioning approach. 

• When asking our own staff and those working closely with us in shared services to accept 
change and budget reductions it is invaluable (in terms of maintaining morale and positive 
relationships with colleagues) to show that higher paid senior managers are bearing their share 
of the burden 

• It is a relatively quick and certain way of delivering sizable financial savings without impacting on 
front line services 
Of course there are also future risks if senior management is cut too far or too fast – or if the 
quality of senior management suffers as a result of the change in that the capacity and capability 
to deliver coherent organisational leadership, relationship management and supervision of 
providers may be impaired. 

Page 16



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 7 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

2.2 Bearing in mind these opportunities and risks, I am presenting a proposed change in senior 
management structures which will, in phased steps, reduce our senior management contingent 
(our top three tiers) by two posts from the current six down to four. In doing so I am proposing 
revised roles for the remaining senior posts which reflect the new organisational context. A profile 
of the key accountabilities for the new roles can be seen in the appendices but essentially the four 
posts are: 

• Chief Executive/Head of Paid Service with overall leadership responsibility together with 
operational responsibility for elections and democracy. 

• Deputy Chief Executive, responsible for maintaining strong and effective relationships with 
partners and stakeholders, managing contracts with providers and sponsoring significant future 
commissioning activities. 

• Director of Corporate Resources, strategic management role controlling central resource 
deployment (whether directly provided or commissioned) across all central service functions such 
as finance, ICT, HR, Revenues and Benefits. 

• Director of Environmental and Regulatory Services who will manage all employed staff within the 
public facing functional areas still directly provided by the council. 

2.3 Such a structure, if approved, could be put in place by removing one Executive Director post in 
March 2014 and a Director post in October 2014 – which at current costs and in accordance with 
Council policy and statutory entitlement would, on an ongoing basis, save nearly £220,000 per 
annum (including on-costs and admin support savings). The one-off costs involved in achieving 
this saving would, it is estimated, pay back within 1.44 years (assuming that the change is 
effected without the need for incidental compulsory redundancies). 

 See indicative timeline for implementation at Appendix 4. 

3. Reasons for recommendations 
3.1 The intention of this report is to give full Council an overview of the Cheltenham Futures 

programme to provide an opportunity to comment on the appropriateness (or otherwise) of its 
content. The reasons for structuring the programme as it is should be adequately explained above 
or be self evident from the programme description at Appendix 2. 

3.2 Formal approval is required to consult on the deletion of two senior council posts with those posts 
being declared redundant. The financial information relevant to this decision is contained in 
Appendix 5. Essentially the aim of this restructuring is to: 

3.2.1 Facilitate the functional, cultural and structure changes developed as part of the Cheltenham 
Futures Programme. The aim is to have a slimmer management structure with a stronger 
concentration on relationship and provider management so as to assist in the delivery of the 
council’s vision, objectives and in ensuring that we commission the outcomes desired for the 
Cheltenham community effectively. It will be an important element of our provider management 
mechanisms that elected Members are able to monitor and influence the performance of 
providers so as to ensure maximum impact on the achievement of desired community outcomes 
and a continuing high quality of service to users. 

3.2.2 Recognise that now so many council services have been commissioned from other providers our 
current structures look ‘top heavy’. In particular it is now difficult to justify maintaining the two 
separate corporate divisions of “Commissioning” and “Resources” which it is recommended can 
be rationalised; and with fewer major new commissioning programmes or projects being needed 
in the future the Executive Director role can now be refocused on relationship and provider 
management and be slimmed down to one post (which I am re-designating ‘Deputy Chief 
Executive’ to reflect the fact that the postholder will deputise for me in the Head of Paid Service 

Page 17



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 8 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

role and other responsibilities). 
3.2.3 Deliver financial savings as set out above. 
3.3 The Council’s Employment Rules currently require appointment and dismissal of chief officers to 

be approved by Council following decision by Committee; there is no legal requirement for such 
except in the case of the Head of Paid Service. In view of this and the fact that Council, through 
this report, is being asked to agree the proposed structure it is recommended that the Constitution 
be amended by the Borough Solicitor to place appointment and dismissal with the Appointments 
and Remuneration Committee without the need to refer to Council for approval. 

4. Alternative options considered 
4.1 The status quo was rejected as an option as it fails to recognise and respond to the changes 

which the council has experienced over the last few years. 
4.2 The deletion of an additional senior post beyond the two proposed in this report was considered 

but rejected on the basis that this would risk reducing leadership capacity to an unreasonably low 
level recognising the major challenges which the council and our local community continue to 
face. 

4.3 Despite being ambitious and far reaching, much of the detail in the Cheltenham Futures 
programme description and in the role descriptions included in the appendices to this report have 
been developed through the involvement of staff and stakeholders concerned and thus are 
proposed as the collectively developed optimum solution and most achievable way forward. 

5. Consultation and feedback 
5.1 Extensive communication and discussion with staff and stakeholders affected by each proposal in 

the Cheltenham Futures programme, staff presentations, discussions with political group leaders 
and a workshop with councillors. 

5.2 Some service commissioning has taken place under the Cheltenham Futures programme and this 
has involved consultation with customers and potential providers of those services. 

6. Performance management – monitoring and review 
6.1 The Cheltenham Futures programme has its own built in monitoring and review arrangements. 
6.2 If the proposals on senior structural change are agreed by council it is suggested that the 

Appointments and Remuneration Committee be asked to take an overview of the implementation 
of any redundancies as well as any HR processes deemed necessary to finalise the proposed 
new structure. 

Report author Contact officer:  Andrew North, andrew.north@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 264100 

Page 18



 

   

$jriendrx.doc Page 9 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Cheltenham Futures Programme description 
3. Role description for the proposed posts of Deputy Chief Executive,  

Director of Corporate Resources and Director of Environmental and 
Regulatory Services 

4. Indicative timeline for proposed restructuring process 
5. Financial Analysis 

Background information Various Cabinet and Council reports accessible on the council’s 
website 

 

Page 19



 

   
$jriendrx.doc Page 10 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

1 If senior 
management 
capacity, 
experience and 
capability is 
reduced by too 
much or too quickly 
there may be an 
adverse impact on 
front-line services 
(either of externally 
commissioned 
services or of 
directly provided 
services) 

Chief 
Executive 

24/06/13 3 4 12 Reduce Ensure that senior 
management 
focus is directed to 
the priority areas 
in which it is 
needed 
Ensure service 
manager roles are 
re-configured, 
where necessary, 
to support senior 
managers. 
Ensure 
‘discretionary’ 
effort throughout 
the council is 
focussed on 
priorities and that 
the initiation of 
change activity 
must be based on 
a business case. 
Ensure that the 
transition period is 
used to identify 
areas in significant 
loss of experience 
and capability is 
possible and that a 
knowledge 
transfer 
programme is put 
in place. 

31/12/14 
 
 
 
 
 
31/10/14 
 
 
 
 
 
31/03/15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/10/14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
Senior 
Leadership 
Team 
 
 
 
Senior 
Leadership 
Team 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

P
age 20



 

   
$jriendrx.doc Page 11 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

Ensure that 
workstream 3 of 
the Futures 
programme is 
focussed on 
introducing a 
performance 
culture which 
supports 
remaining staff 
If the estimated 
savings are fully 
achieved, the 
surplus above the 
Bridging the Gap 
target (i.e. around 
£20K p.a.) will be 
used to address 
any capacity and 
capability gaps. 

31/12/14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
31/10/14 

Strategic 
Director 
(Workstream 3) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Senior 
Leadership 
Team 

2 If, following the 
reduction in senior 
management, 
members are 
unable to get an 
adequate response 
to their questions 
and issues, their 
ability to support 
their constituencies 
may be adversely 
impacted. 

Chief 
Executive 

24/06/13 3 4 12 Reduce Ensure there is 
clarity over 
members’ first 
points of contacts. 
Ensure service 
managers and 
others have the 
skills and capacity 
to deal with 
increased member 
contact. 

31/10/14 
 
 
 
31/12/14 

Senior 
Leadership 
Team 
 
Strategic 
Director 
(Workstream 3) 

 

P
age 21



 

   
$jriendrx.doc Page 12 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

3 If the reduction in 
senior 
management leads 
to a drop in officer 
morale, front-line 
services may be 
impacted. 

Chief 
Executive 

24/06/13 2 3 6 Reduce Ensure the 
rationale for the 
changes is 
explained to all 
officers. 
Ensure officers 
directly impacted 
are able to 
contribute to 
identifying 
changes to their 
roles and changes 
to organisational 
culture  

31/07/13 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
31/10/14 

Chief Executive 
 
 
 
Senior 
Leadership 
Team 

 

4 If senior 
management roles 
are not clear, gaps 
or overlaps may 
occur, leading to 
inefficiencies or 
failures 

Chief 
Executive 

24/06/13 2 4 8 Reduce Ensure senior 
managers develop 
a clear 
understanding of 
their roles 
Ensure senior 
managers review 
any issues created 
by the new roles 
during their 
implementation 

31/10/14 
 
 
 
 
31/03/15 

Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive 

 

P
age 22



 

   
$jriendrx.doc Page 13 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

5 If wide member 
support does not 
exist for the senior 
management 
changes, tensions 
between members 
and senior officers 
may arise. 

Chief 
Executive 

24/06/13 4 2 8 Reduce Ensure the 
rationale for the 
changes are 
explained to all 
members and 
specifically to 
group leaders. 
Ensure members 
have the 
opportunity to 
raise any concerns 
before and during 
implementation 

31/07/13 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
 
 
31/07/13 
and 
ongoing 
 
 

Chief Executive 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Chief Executive 

 

6 If the changes are 
perceived by the 
public or media as 
‘yet another 
restructure’ or their 
costs are perceived 
to be too high or 
the approach to 
filling posts is seen 
as restrictive then 
negative publicity 
may ensue. 

Chief 
Executive 

24/06/13 2 3 6 Reduce Ensure a proactive 
media message is 
put out which 
explains the 
rationale clearly. 
Ensure the overall 
impact on finances 
is explained 
clearly. 
Ensure the 
restructuring 
process is fair and 
accords with 
Council policy. 

31/07/13 
and 
ongoing 
 
 
31/07/13 
and 
ongoing 
 
31/10/14 
 

Communications 
Team Leader 
 
 
 
Finance Director 
 
 
 
Head of HR 
GOSS 

 

7 If there are 
additional 
unforeseen 
compulsory 
redundancies the 
financial case for 
the changes may 
not be delivered. 

Chief 
Executive 

24/06/13 3 2 6 Reduce Return to Council 
with a further 
proposal  
Ensure the 
council’s 
processes for 
offering alternative 
roles are operated. 

31/10/14 Chief Executive  
 
 
Head of HR 
GOSS 

 

P
age 23



 

   
$jriendrx.doc Page 14 of 14 Last updated 08 July 2013 
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred 
to risk 
register 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 24



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 1 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

  Ch
elt

en
ha

m 
Fu

tur
es
 Pr

og
ram

me
  

Ap
pe

nd
ix 
2 

Int
ro
du

cti
on

  
 W
e h

av
e m

ad
e s

ign
ific

an
t p
rog

res
s o

n c
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 se

rvi
ce
s f
rom

 ex
ter

na
l p
rov

ide
rs 
wit

h t
he
 re

su
lt t
ha
t th

e d
ire
ctl
y e

mp
loy

ed
 po

rtio
n o

f th
e 

co
un
cil’
s b

us
ine

ss
 em

plo
ys
 ar

ou
nd
 ha

lf a
s m

an
y p

eo
ple

 as
 th
ree

 ye
ars

 ag
o a

nd
 co

sts
 ro

ug
hly

 ha
lf a

s m
uc
h. 

 In 
an
y c

irc
um

sta
nc
es
 th
is 
wo

uld
 cr
ea
te 
a p

res
su
re 

to 
co
ns
ide

r th
e f
un
cti
on
 an

d f
orm

 of
 th
e r

em
ain

ing
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 – 
bu
t th

is 
is 
mo

re 
cri
tic
all
y t
he
 ca

se
 

in 
the

 co
nti
nu
ing

 cl
im
ate

 of
 au

ste
rity

.  T
hu
s, 
ch
an
ge
 re

ma
ins

 a 
co
ns
tan

t w
ith
 a 
sm

all
er,

 m
ore

 ef
fec

tiv
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
 w
hic

h i
s w

ell
 ad

ap
ted

 to
 th
e n

ee
ds
 

of 
a c

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 co

un
cil,

 th
e a

im
. 

 Tw
o p

rom
ise

s I
 ha

ve
 m
ad
e t
o s

taf
f: 

 
1. 

W
e w

ill k
ee
p o

ur 
pe
op
le 
an
d t
rad

e u
nio

ns
 in
for

me
d o

f w
ha
t w

e a
re 

do
ing

 an
d w

hy
 an

d s
ee
k t
he
ir v

iew
s 

2. 
W
e w

ill t
ry 
– w

he
re 

we
 ca

n –
 to
 ev

olv
e t
he
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 in
to 
the

 ne
w 
mo

de
l ra

the
r th

an
 go

 fo
r ra

dic
al 
res

tru
ctu

rin
gs
 w
hic

h r
isk

 un
ne
ce
ss
ary

 
dis

rup
tio
n a

nd
 lo
w 
sta

ff m
ora

le.
 

 As
 th
e c

ha
ng
es
 de

sc
rib
ed
 in
 th
is 
do
cu
me

nt 
wil
l b
e r

ad
ica

l, t
his

 pr
om

ise
d w

ay
 of
 le
ad
ing

 ch
an
ge
 w
ill c

ha
lle
ng
e s

en
ior
 m
an
ag
ers

, b
ut 
it i
s v

ita
l th

at 
we

 
tak

e o
ur 

sta
ff w

ith
 us

 on
 th
e t
ran

sfo
rm

ati
on
. 

 Th
ere

 is
 an

 as
su
mp

tio
n u

nd
erl
yin

g t
he
 w
ork

 st
rea

ms
 th
at 
fol
low

 th
at 
a L

eis
ure

 an
d C

ult
ure

 Tr
us
t, o

r s
im
ila
r m

od
el,
 is
 fo
rm

ed
 so

 th
at 
the

 st
aff
 w
ith
in 
the

 
are

as
 en

co
mp

as
se
d b

y t
he
 tru

st 
mo

de
l d
o n

ot 
ne
ed
 to
 be

 ac
co
mm

od
ate

d w
ith
in 
an
y n

ew
 st
ruc

tur
e e

nv
isa

ge
d b

y t
his

 pr
og
ram

me
. C

lea
rly
 if 
thi
s 

as
su
mp

tio
n p

rov
es
 in
va
lid
 w
e w

ill n
ee
d t
o r

ev
isit

 re
lev

an
t e
lem

en
ts 
of 
the

 pr
og
ram

me
. 

  An
dre

w 
No

rth
 

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

  Th
is 
do

cu
me

nt 
 Th

is 
do
cu
me

nt 
is 
to 
be
 us

ed
 to
 su

mm
ari
se
 th
e a

cti
on
 pl
an
 an

d t
o t
rac

k t
he
 st
atu

s o
f a
cti
on
s. 
Th

is 
ve
rsi
on
 w
as
 la
st 
up
da
ted

 on
 th
e d

ate
 sh

ow
n b

elo
w.
 

   

Page 25



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 2 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

  WO
RK

ST
RE

AM
 – 
1 D

ire
ct 

Co
un

cil
 Pr

ov
isi
on

 U
nif

ied
 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
 

• 
To

 pr
ov
ide

 fo
r t
he

 m
an
ag

em
en

t o
f s

erv
ice

s c
ur
ren

tly
 pa

rt 
of 

We
llb

ein
g a

nd
 C
ult

ur
e b

ut 
no

t p
art

 of
 th

e L
eis

ur
e a

nd
 C
ult

ur
e r

ev
iew

 
• 

To
 pl

ac
e a

ll d
ire

ct 
pr
ov
isi
on

 un
de

r a
 si
ng

le 
se
nio

r m
an

ag
er 

on
 an

 in
ter

im
 ba

sis
 to

 fa
cil
ita

te 
rat

ion
ali
sa
tio

n a
nd

 re
str

uc
tur

ing
 

• 
To

 de
liv
er 

eff
ici
en

cy
 sa

vin
gs

 in
 20

13
/14

 
• 

To
 es

tab
lis
h a

 pe
rm

an
en
t s

erv
ice

 st
ru
ctu

re 
 Ac

tio
n 

Su
cc
es
s M

ea
su

re 
Pr
op

os
ed

 Pr
oc

es
s 

Tim
es
ca
le 
/ S

tat
us
 

Pu
t a
ll s

erv
ice

s i
n W

ell
be
ing

 an
d C

ult
ure

 D
ivis

ion
 

(ot
he
r th

an
 th
os
e w

hic
h a

re 
pa
rt o

f th
e L

&C
 

Re
vie

w)
 an

d e
nti
re 

Bu
ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt 
Div

isio
n 

un
de
r G

L’s
 di
rec

t m
an
ag
em

en
t 

• 
Eff

ec
tiv
ely

 co
mm

un
ica

ted
 to
 

sta
ff 

• 
Int
eri
m 
str
uc
tur

e a
gre

ed
 

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
de
cis

ion
 

Co
mp

let
e 

Th
rou

gh
 m
an
ag
em

en
t re

str
uc
tur

ing
 an

d o
the

r 
eff
icie

nc
y m

ea
su
res

 to
 id
en
tify

 sh
ort

 te
rm

 sa
vin

gs
 • 

£1
50
k i
n s

av
ing

s f
or 

20
13
/14

 
• 

No
 im

pa
irm

en
t o
f s
erv

ice
 

de
live

ry 
Ac

co
un
tab

ility
 of
 G
L 

co
ns
ult
ing

 as
 ne

ce
ss
ary

 
De

live
ry 
of 
sa
vin

gs
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
14
 (s
ee
 al
so
 ‘re

tai
ne
d c

ar 
pa
rki
ng
’ b
elo

w)
 

Pr
es
en
tat
ion

 of
 a 
str
uc
tur

e f
or 

a n
ew

, d
ire
ctl
y 

pro
vid

ed
 En

vir
on
me

nt 
an
d R

eg
ula

tor
y s

erv
ice

 
he
ad
ed
 by

 M
R 
for

 ap
pro

va
l b
y t
he
 C
ou
nc
il 

• 
Str

uc
tur

e f
or 

eff
icie

nt 
an
d 

joi
ne
d u

p d
eli
ve
ry 
of 
se
rvi
ce
 

• 
Hig

h d
eg
ree

 of
 ‘c
om

me
rci
al’
 

au
ton

om
y f
or 
the

 ne
w 

se
rvi
ce
 

• 
Po

litic
al 
ac
ce
pta

bil
ity
 

Ex
ec
uti
ve
 Bo

ard
 to
 ag

ree
 

pro
po
sa
l fo

r in
co
rpo

rat
ion

 in
 

a S
ec
tio
n 4

 re
po
rt b

y t
he
 

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 to
 C
ou
nc
il 

Dr
aft
 se

cti
on
 4 
rep

ort
 pr

od
uc
ed
 

an
d c

irc
ula

ted
 to
 SL

T 
 Se

cti
on
 4 
rep

ort
 to
 C
ou
nc
il o

n 
22

nd
 Ju

ly 
20
13
  

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f n
ew

 se
rvi
ce
 

to 
be
 co

mp
let
e b

y A
pri
l 2
01
4 

All
 se

rvi
ce
s n

ot 
ide

nti
fie
d a

s f
or 

inc
lus

ion
 in
 th
e 

En
vir
on
me

nt 
an
d R

eg
ula

tor
y S

erv
ice

 to
 be

 
su
bje

ct 
to 
fas

t tr
ac
k c

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w 
an
d/o

r 
tra

ns
fer

red
 to
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 or

 R
es
ou
rce

s 
div

isio
ns
 

• 
All
 se

rvi
ce
s c

om
mi
ss
ion

ed
 

ex
ter

na
lly 

or 
int
eg
rat

ed
 

int
ern

all
y 

• 
Eff

icie
nt 
an
d v

alu
e f
or 
mo

ne
y 

se
rvi
ce
s  

De
pe
nd
ing

 on
 th
e s

ca
le 
an
d 

de
sti
na
tio
n f
or 

the
 se

rvi
ce
 

thi
s c

ou
ld 
be
 by

 C
ab
ine

t 
de
cis

ion
 or

 by
 m
an
ag
em

en
t 

ac
tio
n 

So
lut
ion

s i
mp

lem
en
ted

 by
 

Ma
rch

 20
14
 at
 th
e l
ate

st 

• 
Re

tai
ne
d C

ar 
Pa

rki
ng
 ac

tiv
itie

s 
 

      

Co
mp

let
e 

 Ca
bin

et 
rep

ort
 ag

ree
d (

Ja
n ’
13
) 

Ne
w 
de
live

ry 
me

ch
an
ism

s f
or 

off
 st
ree

t p
ark

ing
 pr

ov
isio

n. 
in 
pla

ce
 (A

pri
l ’1

3).
 Sa

vin
gs
 of
 

Page 26



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 3 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

 

£1
50
k h

av
e b

ee
n i
de
nti
fie
d a

nd
 

fur
the

r w
ork

 be
ing

 ca
rrie

d o
ut 
to 

es
tab

lish
 if 
an
y a

dd
itio

na
l 

sa
vin

gs
 ca

n b
e r

ea
lise

d b
y 

rat
ion

ali
sin

g c
on
tra

cts
 

• 
Gr
ee
n E

nv
iro
nm

en
t 

 
Ro

bu
st 
bu
sin

es
s c

as
e f
or 

Nu
rse

ry 
inv

es
tm
en
t a
nd
 

fut
ure

 op
era

tio
n, 
to 
be
 

dra
fte
d b

y e
nd
 Ju

ly 
20
13
. 

Me
mb

er 
Gr
ou
p h

as
 de

ter
mi
ne
d 

tha
t it
 w
an
ts 
Gr
ee
n S

pa
ce
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
to 
be
 re

tai
ne
d a

s 
a d

ire
ctl
y p

rov
ide

d s
erv

ice
. 

 Ad
dit
ion

al 
inf
orm

ati
on
 no

w 
be
ing

 so
ug
ht 
fol
low

ing
 fir
st 
sig

ht 
of 
the

 nu
rse

ry 
bu
sin

es
s c

as
e. 
  

• 
Ce

me
ter

y a
nd
 C
rem

ato
riu
m 

 
Pr
od
uc
e i
nfo

rm
al 

as
se
ss
me

nt 
of 
alt
ern

ati
ve
s 

Dr
aft
 op

tio
ns
 ap

pra
isa

l in
dic

ate
s 

via
ble

 bu
sin

es
s g

row
th 
is 

ac
hie

va
ble

 w
ith
in 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
mo

de
l. D

ec
isio

n e
xp
ec
ted

 by
 

en
d J

uly
. 

• 
Bu

ild
ing

 C
on
tro

l 
 

A r
an
ge
 of
 al
ter

na
tiv
e 

de
live

ry 
mo

de
ls 
are

 
cu
rre

ntl
y b

ein
g i
nv
es
tig
ate

d 
to 
es
tab

lish
 w
ha
t is

 
ex
ter

na
lly 

av
ail
ab
le.
  

 Fo
rm

al 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 

ex
erc

ise
 w
ill b

e c
om

me
nc
ed
 

by
 th
e e

nd
 of
 20

13
. 

Ra
ng
e o

f in
itia

l o
pti
on
s 

pre
se
nte

d b
y I
ain

 H
ou
sto

n o
n 

21
st
 M
ay
. 

 Ne
xt 
off
ice

r m
ee
tin
g o

n 2
4th
 

Ju
ly 

• 
Ho

us
ing

 O
pti
on
s 

 
On

 Fo
rw
ard

 Pl
an
 – 
fin
an
ce
 

be
ing

 so
rte

d 
Ju
ne
 20

13
 re

po
rt t

o C
ab
ine

t o
n 

pre
fer

red
 op

tio
n 

• 
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r H

ou
sin

g 
 

No
 fu
rth

er 
wo

rk 
as
 ye

t 
Le
ga
l a
dv
ice

 on
 av

ail
ab
le 

op
tio
ns
 be

ing
 ta
ke
n. 

Op
tio
ns
 ap

pra
isa

l to
 fo
llo
w.
 

• 
Ho

us
ing

 & 
Co

mm
un
ity
 

 
No

 fu
rth

er 
wo

rk 
as
 ye

t 
Re

vie
w 
sc
op
e t
o b

e r
e-

ev
alu

ate
d 

• 
Pu

bli
c P

rot
ec
tio
n 

 
Lo
ok
 to
 be

gin
 fo
rm

al 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 by

 O
cto

be
r 

Inf
orm

al 
dis

cu
ss
ion

s w
ith
 ke

y 
off
ice

rs 
reg

ard
ing

 th
eir
 

Page 27



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 4 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

 

20
13
. 

tho
ug
hts

.  W
ill c

om
me

nc
e i
nit
ial
 

dra
ft s

co
pin

g o
f p
ote

nti
al 

op
tio
ns
 ea

rly
 Ju

ly 
 

Page 28



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 5 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

  WO
RK

ST
RE

AM
 – 
2 C

en
tra

l S
erv

ice
s 

 Ob
jec

tiv
es
 

• 
To

 ta
ke
 ea

rly
 st

ep
s t

o ‘
rig

ht 
siz

e’ 
the

 R
es
ou

rce
s a

nd
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 di

vis
ion

s t
o m

ee
t fu

tur
e c

ou
nc

il r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

• 
To

 in
tro

du
ce
 se

rvi
ce
 fa

ilu
re 

sc
en

ari
o a

nd
 ris

k p
lan

nin
g 

• 
To

 pr
ep

are
 fo

r t
he

 am
alg

am
ati

on
 of

 th
e R

es
ou

rce
s a

nd
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 di

vis
ion

s 
 Ac

tio
n 

Su
cc
es
s M

ea
su

re 
Pr
op

os
ed

 Pr
oc

es
s 

Tim
es
ca
le 
/ S

tat
us
 

Co
mp

let
ion

 of
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 w
ork

 on
 

IC
T 

• 
Se

rvi
ce
 co

mm
iss

ion
ed
 ag

ain
st 
a 

so
un
d b

us
ine

ss
 ca

se
 

Ca
bin

et 
de
cis

ion
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 CB
C 
sta

ff T
UP

E’d
 to
 Fo

D 
on
 1s

t  A
pri
l 

20
13
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
a c

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 

str
ate

gy
 fo
r R

ev
en
ue
s a

nd
 Be

ne
fits

 
an
d C

us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

• 
Cle

ar 
pro

gra
mm

e (
wit

h 
tim

eli
ne
s) 
se
ttin

g o
ut 
ho
w 
the

se
 

se
rvi
ce
s w

ill b
e c

om
mi
ss
ion

ed
 

MS
 to
 pr

op
os
e s

tra
teg

ies
 

for
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 by
 Ex

ec
 

Bo
ard

 

Ou
tlin

e o
pti
on
s i
nv
olv

ing
  

• 
Civ

ica
 

• 
Lib

era
ta 
(to

 bu
y/s

ell
 se

rvi
ce
s 

fro
m/
to 
a c

ap
ac
ity
 gr

id)
 

• 
sh
are

d s
erv

ice
 w
ith
 C
ots

wo
ld 

an
d W

es
t O

xfo
rds

hir
e  

are
 at
 an

 ea
rly
 st
ag
e o

f in
ve
sti
ga
tio
n 

an
d d

ev
elo

pm
en
t.  

 Pr
op
os
al 
rec

eiv
ed
 fro

m 
Civ

ica
 an

d 
be
ing

 co
ns
ide

red
. 

 Du
e t
o t
he
 ch

an
ge
s i
n t
he
 se

rvi
ce
 

res
ult
ing

 fro
m 
the

 im
pa
ct 
of 
na
tio
na
l 

be
ne
fit 
ch
an
ge
s, 
the

 op
tio
ns
 fo
r th

e 
(re

sid
ua
l) s

erv
ice

 po
st 
the

 in
tro

du
cti
on
 

of 
un
ive

rsa
l c
red

it, 
wil
l b
e c

on
sid

ere
d i
n 

14
/15

. 
 Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 st
rat

eg
y f
or 

Cu
sto

me
r 

Se
rvi
ce
s t
o b

e p
rop

os
ed
 to
 Ex

ec
 Bo

ard
 

by
 Se

pte
mb

er 
20
13
. D

eta
ils 

of 
cu
rre

nt 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 ac

ros
s t
he
 co

un
ty 
are

 

Page 29



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 6 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

 

be
ing

 co
lla
ted

.  

Co
ns
ide

r o
pp
ort

un
itie

s f
or 

bu
yin

g i
n 

su
pp
ort

 ac
tiv
itie

s f
rom

 co
ns
ult
an
ts 
to 

red
uc
e n

um
be
r o
f e
mp

loy
ed
 st
aff
 

• 
Cle

ar 
un
de
rst
an
din

g o
f w

he
re 

po
sts

 ne
ed
 to
 be

 re
tai
ne
d o

n t
he
 

pa
yro

ll a
nd
 w
he
re 

sk
ills
 ca

n b
es
t 

be
 ‘b
ou
gh
t in

’ a
s n

ee
de
d. 

• 
Su

pp
ort

ing
 an

y s
taf
f ‘a

t ri
sk
’ to

 
ma

na
ge
 th
e i
mp

lica
tio
ns
 of
 th
is 

dif
fer

en
t a
pp
roa

ch
 

Ma
na
ge
me

nt 
rev

iew
 by

 M
S 

an
d J

G,
 co

ns
ult
ing

 as
 

req
uir
ed
 w
ith
 a 
vie

w 
to 

su
bm

iss
ion

 of
 an

 ac
tio
n 

pla
n t
o E

xe
c B

oa
rd.
 

Ac
tio
n p

lan
 to
 be

 ba
se
d o

n t
he
 re

so
urc

e 
req

uir
em

en
ts 
ide

nti
fie
d i
n t
he
 Ja

nu
ary

 
20
13
 an

d s
ub
se
qu
en
t c
orp

ora
te 

pla
nn
ing

 ex
erc

ise
s  

 Ag
ree

d t
ha
t G

IS 
se
rvi
ce
 w
ill b

e b
ou
gh
t 

in 
fro

m 
Fo

D.
 

 Pr
oje

ct 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
tea

m 
va
ca
nc
y h

as
 

be
en
 he

ld 
op
en
 un

til 
the

re 
is 
cla

rity
 on

 
the

 su
pp
ort
 re

qu
ire
d b

y t
he
 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 st
rat

eg
y. 

 Ac
tio
n p

lan
 to
 be

 su
bm

itte
d t
o E

xe
c 

Bo
ard

 by
 en

d o
f A

ug
us
t 2
01
3. 

Co
ns
ide

r w
he
the

r a
ny
 ot
he
r s
erv

ice
 

are
as
 cu

rre
ntl
y w

ith
in 
the

 
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 or
 R
es
ou
rce

s 
Div

isio
ns
 ca

n b
e c

om
mi
ss
ion

ed
 

ex
ter

na
lly 

an
d t
o f
oll
ow

 up
 w
ith
 a 

co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
w 
or 

rev
iew

s 
ac
co
rdi
ng
ly 

• 
Ro

bu
st 
po
sit
ion

 st
ate

me
nt 

ide
nti
fyi
ng
 op

po
rtu

nit
ies

 fo
r 

ex
ten

din
g c

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 (w

ith
 

op
tio
ns
 ap

pra
isa

l) 

Sta
tem

en
t p
rep

are
d b

y M
S 

an
d J

G 
wit

h a
 vi
ew

 to
 

ag
ree

me
nt 
by
 Ex

ec
 Bo

ard
 

an
d p

res
en
tat
ion

 to
 

Ca
bin

et.
 

Ar
ea
s i
n s

co
pe
 to
 be

 su
bm

itte
d t
o E

xe
c 

Bo
ard

 by
 Au

gu
st 
20
13
. 

 Re
vie

w 
to 
be
 co

mp
let
e b

y O
cto

be
r 

20
14
 

Page 30



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 7 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

 De
ve
lop

 sc
en
ari
o p

lan
nin

g t
o 

an
tic
ipa

te 
ac
tio
n t
o b

e t
ak
en
 in
 th
e 

ev
en
t o
f fa

ilu
re 

of 
an
y c

om
mi
ss
ion

ed
 

se
rvi
ce
s -
 id
en
tify

ing
 as

 ac
cu
rat

ely
 as

 
po
ss
ibl
e r

es
ou
rce

 co
ns
eq
ue
nc
es
 

• 
Cr
ea
tio
n o

f a
n e

ffe
cti
ve
 ta
sk
 

gro
up
 ac

co
un
tab

le 
for

 sc
en
ari
o 

pla
nn
ing

 
 • 

Es
tab

lish
 an

d t
he
n m

ain
tai
n 

pla
ns
 fo
r d

ea
lin
g w

ith
 po

ss
ibl
e 

se
rvi
ce
 or

 pr
ov
ide

r fa
ilu
re 

in 
ke
y 

pro
vid

er 
ag
en
cie

s o
r 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

s 

JG
 le
ad
ing

 
• 

Re
se
arc

h i
nto

 ex
it 

ag
ree

me
nts

 fo
r s
erv

ice
s 

alr
ea
dy
 ex

ter
na
lly 

co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 

• 
En

su
rin
g t
ha
t o
ng
oin

g 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 re

vie
ws

 
un
de
rta

ke
 sc

en
ari
o 

pla
nn
ing

 
• 

De
ter

mi
nin

g w
ho
 w
ou
ld 

be
 in
vo
lve

d i
n d

ea
lin
g 

wit
h a

 se
rvi
ce
 fa
ilu
re 

• 
Ide

nti
fyi
ng
 an

d f
illin

g a
ny
 

ga
ps
 in
 pl
an
s 

Dr
aft
 fra

me
wo

rk 
cre

ate
d f
or 

de
ali
ng
 w
ith
 

un
pla

nn
ed
 di
sru

pti
ve
 ev

en
ts 

 Re
se
arc

h i
nto

 ex
ist
ing

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
 

wit
h e

xte
rna

lly 
co
mm

iss
ion

ed
 se

rvi
ce
s 

on
go
ing

. 

Am
alg

am
ate

 th
e c

urr
en
t R

es
ou
rce

s 
an
d C

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 di
vis

ion
s i
nto

 a 
sin

gle
 ‘C

orp
ora

te 
Re

so
urc

es
’  d

ivis
ion

 • 
Eff

ec
tiv
ely

 co
mm

un
ica

ted
 to
 

sta
ff 

• 
Str

uc
tur

e a
gre

ed
 

• 
No

 im
pa
irm

en
t o
f s
erv

ice
 qu

ali
ty 

or 
un
du
e i
nte

rfe
ren

ce
 w
ith
 m
ajo

r 
pro

gra
mm

es
 or

 pr
oje

cts
 

Se
cti
on
 4 
rep

ort
 by

 th
e 

Ch
ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve
 to
 C
ou
nc
il 

Ag
ree

d t
ha
t jo

int
 D
MT

s t
o b

e a
rra

ng
ed
 

to 
tak

e t
his

 fo
rw
ard

. 
 Dr
aft
 se

cti
on
 4 
rep

ort
 pr

od
uc
ed
 an

d 
cir
cu
lat
ed
 to
 SL

T 
 Se

cti
on
 4 
rep

ort
 to
 C
ou
nc
il o

n 2
2nd

 Ju
ly 

20
13
 w
ith
 st
ruc

tur
e a

gre
ed
 by

 en
d o

f 
20
13
. 

 Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n b

y O
cto

be
r 2

01
4 

 

Page 31



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 8 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

   WO
RK

ST
RE

AM
 – 
3 P

erf
or
ma

nc
e a

nd
 O
rg
an
isa

tio
na
l C

ult
ur
e 

W
ork

ing
 to
ge
the

r to
 cr
ea
te 
a g

rea
t fu

tur
e f
or 

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 

Pr
im

ary
 O
bje

cti
ve
: 

To
 su

sta
in 

an
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
cu
ltu

re 
tha

t w
ill 
de

liv
er 

the
 fu

tur
e v

isi
on

 an
d o

utc
om

es
 of

 th
e c

ou
nc

il 
To

 be
 ac

hie
ve
d b

y: 
• 

Im
pr
ov
ing

 th
e e

ffe
cti

ve
ne

ss
 of

 th
e c

ou
nc

il’s
 ap

pr
ais

al 
me

ch
an
ism

s 
• 

Lin
kin

g a
pp

rai
sa
l a
nd

 pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys
tem

s t
o t

he
 co

mm
un

ity
 ou

tco
me

s i
de

nti
fie

d b
y t
he

 co
un

cil
’s 
co
rp
or
ate

 
str

ate
gy
 

• 
To

 re
vis

it t
he
 pr

og
res

sio
n, 

gr
ad
ing

 an
d r

ew
ard

 pr
oc

es
se
s t

o i
nc

en
tiv

ise
 go

od
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 

 Th
is 
wo

rks
tre

am
 is
 th

e c
ata

lys
t to

 ev
olv

e o
ur
 cu

ltu
re 

an
d b

eh
av
iou

rs 
so

 as
 to

 un
de

rp
in 

an
d s

us
tai

n a
 su

cc
es
sfu

l, v
ibr

an
t a

nd
 

ful
fill
ing

 fu
tur

e f
or
 ou

r s
taf

f, p
art

ne
rs 

an
d c

om
mu

nit
ies

. 
 Ac

tio
n 

Su
cc
es
s M

ea
su

re 
Pr
op

os
ed

 Pr
oc

es
s 

Tim
es
ca
le 
/ S

tat
us
 

1. 
Th

e m
od
el 
for

 “g
rea

t 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 an

d p
eo
ple

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt”
 is
 se

t in
 th
e c

on
tex

t 
of 
de
live

rin
g w

ork
-st
rea

ms
 1 
an
d 2

 
an
d t
ak
es
 ac

co
un
t o
f th

e f
ee
db
ac
k 

fro
m 
the

 au
tum

n 2
01
2 e

mp
loy

ee
 

se
ss
ion

s a
nd
 th
e S

LT
/SM

 se
ss
ion

 
on
 19

.10
.12

 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 an

d p
eo
ple

 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
arr

an
ge
me

nts
 

me
et 
the

 re
qu
ire
me

nts
 of
 C
X 

an
d l
ea
d o

ffic
ers

 (s
ee
 no

te 
1 

be
low

) 

Ide
nti
fy 
ke
y p

erf
orm

an
ce
, 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
an
d o

rg 
cu
ltu
re 

att
rib
ute

s t
hro

ug
h s

ho
rt i
nte

rvi
ew

s 
wit

h A
N,
 G
L, 
MS

 an
d J

G 
as
 le
ad
 

off
ice

rs 
for

 th
e p

rog
ram

me
.   

 Ma
int
ain

 cl
os
e l
ink

s w
ith
 w
ork

str
ea
ms

 
1 a

nd
 2 
as
 th
ey
 ev

olv
e. 

 Re
po
rt o

utc
om

e t
o p

roj
ec
t te

am
. 

Int
erv

iew
s c

om
ple

te 
 Att

rib
ute

s i
de
nti
fie
d a

nd
 us

ed
 to
 

inf
orm

 ap
pro

ac
h t
o w

ork
str
ea
m 

 Clo
se
 lin

ks
 w
ith
 w
ork

str
ea
ms

 1 
an
d 2

 be
ing

 m
ain

tai
ne
d. 

Page 32



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 9 
of 
12
 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

 Ac
tio

n 
Su

cc
es
s M

ea
su

re 
Pr
op

os
ed

 Pr
oc

es
s 

Tim
es
ca
le 
/ S

tat
us
 

2. 
An

aly
se
 th
e f
ee
db
ac
k f
rom

 th
e 

em
plo

ye
e a

nd
 SL

T/S
M 
se
ss
ion

s r
e 

(1)
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t (i
nc
l 

ap
pra

isa
ls)
; (2

) d
ev
elo

pm
en
t; (

3) 
ma

na
gin

g b
eh
av
iou

r; (
4) 
pa
y a

nd
 

rew
ard

 (in
clu

din
g c

are
er 

pro
gre

ss
ion

) 

Sta
ff a

nd
 se

rvi
ce
 m
an
ag
ers

 
rec

og
nis

e t
he
ir f
ee
db
ac
k h

as
 

be
en
 lis

ten
ed
 to
 an

d a
cte

d 
up
on
 

 An
y r
ev
ise

d p
erf

orm
an
ce
 an

d 
pe
op
le 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
pro

ce
ss
es
 an

d/o
r 

arr
an
ge
me

nts
 m
ee
t, d

ea
l w

ith
, 

wh
ere

 po
ss
ibl
e t
he
 is
su
es
 

rai
se
d b

y s
taf
f 

Fe
ed
ba
ck
 is
 us

ed
 as

 a 
ba
sis

 fo
r a

cti
on
 

pla
nn
ing

.  R
ep
ort

 ou
tco

me
 to
 pr

oje
ct 

tea
m 
 (s
ee
 no

te 
2 b

elo
w)
 

Co
mp

let
e 

 Fe
ed
ba
ck
 an

aly
se
d a

nd
 us

ed
 to
 

inf
orm

 ap
pro

ac
h t
o w

ork
str
ea
m 

3. 
Inv

es
tig
ate

 
op
po
rtu

nit
y/n

ec
es
sit
y f
or 
ex
ter

na
l 

as
sis

tan
ce
 to
 as

sis
t th

e p
roj
ec
t 

tea
m 
an
d r

es
ea
rch

 ot
he
r 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
’ a
pp
roa

ch
es
. 

Pr
oje

ct 
ou
tco

me
s a

re 
cre

dib
le 

an
d b

as
ed
 on

 so
un
d a

dv
ice

 
an
d s

up
po
rt 

Co
nta

ct 
oth

er 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
 an

d a
gre

e 
as
sis

tan
ce
 

On
go
ing

 
 Ch

as
ing

 re
sp
on
se
 fro

m 
SW

 
Co

un
cils

 fo
llo
win

g t
he
ir o

ffe
r to

 
ac
t a
s c

riti
ca
l fr
ien

d a
nd
 gi
ve
 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 th
eir
 pa

y a
nd
 gr

ad
ing

 
wo

rk 
for

 Br
ist
ol.
 

 Vis
it t
o C

om
me

rci
al 
arr

an
ge
d. 

 Ex
am

ple
s o

f o
the

r 
org

an
isa

tio
ns
’ a
pp
rai
sa
l 

pro
ce
ss
es
 so

urc
ed
. 

 Su
pp
ort

 to
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
of 

wo
rks

tre
am

 ap
pro

ac
h p

rov
ide

d 
by
 Ac

hie
ve
 Br

ea
kth

rou
gh
 

Page 33



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 10

 of
 12

 
Ve

rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

 Ac
tio

n 
Su

cc
es
s M

ea
su

re 
Pr
op

os
ed

 Pr
oc

es
s 

Tim
es
ca
le 
/ S

tat
us
 

4. 
De

cid
e a

pp
roa

ch
 to
 w
ork

str
ea
m 

an
d e

ng
ag
e w

ith
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
 

ac
co
rdi
ng
ly 

W
ork

str
ea
m 
pla

n r
efl
ec
ts 
ou
r 

dri
ve
rs 
an
d p

rio
riti
es
. 

 Pla
n i
s u

nd
ers

too
d a

nd
 

su
pp
ort

ed
 by

 em
plo

ye
es
. 

 Ma
na
ge
rs 
un
de
rst
an
d t
he
ir 

rol
es
 in
 m
ee
tin
g t
he
 ob

jec
tiv
es
 

of 
the

 w
ork

str
ea
m.
 

W
ork

sh
op
 to
 de

ter
mi
ne
 ap

pro
ac
h, 

us
ing

 pr
ev
iou

s f
ee
db
ac
k, 
fol
low

ed
 by

 
en
ga
ge
me

nt 
wit

h e
mp

loy
ee
s 

Pr
oje

ct 
tea

m 
wo

rks
ho
p h

eld
 on

 
5th
 M
arc

h  
 Th

ink
ing

 sh
are

d w
ith
 SL

T a
nd
 

Se
rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
ers

 on
 9t

h  A
pri
l. 

SL
T /

 SM
 re

sp
on
se
 to
 be

 
co
lla
ted

 an
d f
ed
 ba

ck
 to
 SL

T /
 

SM
s b

y 2
6th
 Ap

ril.
 

 Vis
its
 to
 di
vis

ion
al 
me

eti
ng
s i
n 

pro
gre

ss
 

 Cr
ea
tio
n o

f in
tra

ne
t s
ite
 in
 

pro
gre

ss
 

5. 
Re

vie
w 
co
mp

ete
nc
ies

 an
d 

ag
ree

 an
y a

me
nd
me

nts
 

Re
vie

we
d a

nd
 ag

ree
d 

Te
am

 ar
e c

urr
en
tly
 re

vie
win

g e
ac
h 

co
mp

ete
nc
y a

nd
 co

mp
ari
ng
 th
em

 
ag
ain

st 
fee

db
ac
k f
rom

 sl
t a
nd
 se

rvi
ce
 

ma
na
ge
r s
es
sio

n. 
 

Ag
ree

 re
vis

ion
s b

y A
ug
us
t th

en
 

tak
e t
o E

xe
c B

oa
rd 

6. 
Re

vie
w 
pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 

ma
na
ge
me

nt 
ap
pro

ac
h i
nc
lud

ing
 

ap
pra

isa
ls 

Re
vie

we
d a

nd
 ag

ree
d 

 
Ap

pra
isa

l im
pro

ve
me

nts
 by

 Ap
ril 

20
14
 

7. 
Re

vie
w 
tra

ini
ng
 pl
an
 fo
r 2

01
3-

20
14
 an

d a
gre

e a
ny
 

mi
ss
ing

s/c
ha
ng
es
 

Re
vie

we
d a

nd
 ag

ree
d w

ith
 

pro
vis

ion
 m
ad
e f
or 

an
y 

mi
ss
ing

 
 

Pr
oc
es
s u

nd
erw

ay
 

 Ap
pra

isa
l tr
ain

ing
 pu

bli
cis

ed
 an

d 
pro

mo
ted

. 
8. 
Re

vie
w 
sta

ff d
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

sh
ad
ow

ing
, m

en
tor

ing
 an

d 
co
ac
hin

g 
 

 
Pr
oc
es
s u

nd
erw

ay
 

 Br
ief
ing

 on
 IIP

 fo
r e

nd
 of
 Ju

ne
 

Page 34



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 11

 of
 12

 
Ve

rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

 Ac
tio

n 
Su

cc
es
s M

ea
su

re 
Pr
op

os
ed

 Pr
oc

es
s 

Tim
es
ca
le 
/ S

tat
us
 

9. 
Re

se
arc

h b
en
efi
ts 
an
d r

ew
ard

s 
pa
ck
ag
es
 

An
 as

 is
 pe

rso
na
lise

d b
en
efi
ts 

sta
tem

en
t p
rod

uc
ed
 an

d 
op
tio
ns
 fo
r o

the
r c
os
ted

 
Re

se
arc

h o
the

r o
pti
on
s  

Ga
the

r in
for

ma
tio
n f
rom

 So
uth

 w
es
t 

co
un
cils

 an
d o

the
r e

mp
loy

ers
  

RM
cK

 an
d A

A a
tte
nd
ed
 Bu

ck
s  

CC
 se

mi
na
r 

 Br
ief
 fo
r p

ay
 an

d r
ew

ard
 

ele
me

nt 
of 
wo

rks
tre

am
  to

 be
 

co
ns
ide

red
 by

 SL
T o

n 1
8th
 Ju

ne
 

RM
cK

 an
d A

A t
o a

tte
nd
 

 Vis
it a

rra
ng
ed
 w
ith
 LG

A 1
4th
 

Au
gu
st 

 A “
wh

at 
is 
mi
ss
ing

” s
es
sio

n 
sim

ila
r to

 th
e e

xte
nd
ed
 SL

T/ 
Se

rvi
ce
 m
an
ag
er 

on
 cu

ltu
re 

wil
l 

be
 do

ne
 on

 9t
h  J
uly

 on
 Pa

y a
nd
 

rew
ard

 
10
. U

pd
ate

 an
d c

om
mu

nic
ate

 
ap
pra

isa
l p
roc

es
s 

 
Ap

pra
isa

l tr
ain

ing
 pu

bli
cis

ed
 an

d 
pro

mo
ted

 
 

11
. C

om
mu

nic
ati
on
 an

d 
En

ga
ge
me

nt 
Sta

ff u
nd
ers

tan
d w

ha
t is

 
ha
pp
en
ing

 w
he
n a

nd
 w
hy
 

Re
gu
lar
 up

da
tes

 on
 de

dic
ate

d 
Ch

elt
en
ha
m 
fut
ure

 w
eb
 pa

ge
s 

 Re
gu
lar
 at
ten

da
nc
e a

t D
MT

/Te
am

 
me

eti
ng
s  

Lo
go
 an

d b
ran

d a
gre

ed
 , w

eb
 

pa
ge
s c

urr
en
tly
 be

ing
 de

sig
ne
d 

an
d c

on
ten

t w
ritt
en
 

 No
tes

: 
 1. 
To

 as
sis

t M
em

be
rs,
 m
an
ag
ers

 an
d s

taf
f in

 un
de
rst
an
din

g w
ha
t is

 m
ea
nt 
by
 “e

sta
bli

sh
ing

 a 
mo

de
l fo

r g
rea

t p
erf

or
ma

nc
e a

nd
 pe

op
le 

ma
na

ge
me

nt”
 it 
mi
gh
t b
e u

se
ful
 to
 co

ns
ide

r th
e f
oll
ow

ing
 de

sc
rip
tio
ns
 of
 w
ha
t is

 m
ea
nt 
by
 pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 m

an
ag

em
en
t a

nd
 or

ga
nis

ati
on

al 
cu

ltu
re 

as
 th
ey
 ar

e i
ntr

ins
ica

lly 
lin
ke
d. 
Yo

u c
an
no
t h
av
e g

rea
t p
erf

orm
an
ce
 an

d p
eo
ple

 m
an
ag
em

en
t w

ith
ou
t th

e a
pp
rop

ria
te 
cu
ltu
re 

an
d v

ice
 ve

rsa
. 

 
A.
 Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

 Ar
ms

tro
ng
 an

d B
aro

n1  
de
fin
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t a
s 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

1  A
rm

str
on
g a

nd
 Ba

ron
 (2

00
4) 

Ma
na
gin

g p
erf

orm
an
ce
: p
erf

orm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t in

 ac
tio
n. 
Lo
nd
on
: C

ha
rte

red
 In
sti
tut
e o

f P
ers

on
ne
l a
nd
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Page 35



$3
wh

x2
x0
4.d

oc
 

Pa
ge
 12

 of
 12

 
Ve

rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 13
 Ju

ne
 20

13
 

 

 “A
 pr

oc
es
s w

hic
h c

on
trib

ute
s t
o t
he
 ef
fec

tiv
e m

an
ag
em

en
t o
f in

div
idu

als
 an

d t
ea
ms

 in
 or

de
r to

 ac
hie

ve
 hi
gh
 le
ve
ls 
of 
org

an
isa

tio
na
l 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
.  A

s s
uc
h, 
it e

sta
bli
sh
es
 sh

are
d u

nd
ers

tan
din

g a
bo
ut 
wh

at 
is 
to 
be
 ac

hie
ve
d a

nd
 an

 ap
pro

ac
h t
o l
ea
din

g a
nd
 de

ve
lop

ing
 pe

op
le 

wh
ich

 en
su
re 

tha
t it
 is
 ac

hie
ve
d”.

   
 So

, p
erf

orm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t is

 ab
ou
t e
sta

bli
sh
ing

 a 
cu
ltu
re 

in 
wh

ich
 in
div

idu
als

 an
d g

rou
ps
 ta
ke
 re

sp
on
sib

ility
 fo
r c
on
tin
uo
us
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
of 
bu
sin

es
s p

roc
es
se
s a

nd
 of
 th
eir
 ow

n s
kill

s, 
be
ha
vio

ur 
an
d c

on
trib

uti
on
s. 

 Be
ca
us
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t is

 (o
r s
ho
uld

 be
) a

ll-p
erv

as
ive

, it
 ne

ed
s s

tru
ctu

res
 to
 su

pp
ort
 it.
  T

he
se
 sh

ou
ld 
pro

vid
e a

 fra
me

wo
rk 
to 
he
lp 

pe
op
le 
op
era

te,
 an

d t
o h

elp
 th
em

 to
 he

lp 
oth

ers
 to
 op

era
te.
  It
 sh

ou
ld 
no
t b
e a

 rig
id 
sy
ste

m.
  

 Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
ho
uld

 in
co
rpo

rat
e 

 • 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 im

pro
ve
me

nt 
– t
hro

ug
ho
ut 
the

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
, in

 re
sp
ec
t o
f in

div
idu

al,
 te
am

 an
d o

rga
nis

ati
on
al 
eff
ec
tiv
en
es
s 

• 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
– u

nle
ss
 th
ere

 is
 co

nti
nu
ou
s d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f in

div
idu

als
 an

d t
ea
ms

, p
erf

orm
an
ce
 w
ill n

ot 
im
pro

ve
 

• 
Ma

na
gin

g b
eh
av
iou

r –
 en

su
rin
g t
ha
t in

div
idu

als
 ar

e e
nc
ou
rag

ed
 to
 be

ha
ve
 in
 a 
wa

y t
ha
t a
llo
ws

 an
d f
os
ter

s b
ett
er 

wo
rki
ng
 re

lat
ion

sh
ips

 
 B.
 O
rg
an

isa
tio

na
l C

ult
ur
e 

 Of
ten

 ex
tre

me
ly 
dif
fic
ult
 to
 de

fin
e, 
bu
t th

e c
ult
ure

 of
 an

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
 is
 th
e t
yp
ica

l w
ay
 of
 do

ing
 th
ing

s i
n t
he
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
.  I
t p
art

icu
lar
ly 
rel
ate

s 
to 
be
ha
vio

ur 
pa
tte
rns

 an
d r

ela
tio
ns
hip

s. 
 Th

e c
ult
ure

 of
 an

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
 de

ve
lop

s o
ve
r ti
me

.  I
t is

 cr
ea
ted

 by
 th
e p

eo
ple

 th
at 
wo

rk 
for

 th
e 

org
an
isa

tio
n –

 its
 m
an
ag
ers

 an
d w

ork
for

ce
.  A

 “h
igh

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 cu

ltu
re”

 ex
ist
s w

he
n e

ve
ryo

ne
 in
 th
e o

rga
nis

ati
on
 sh

are
s t
he
 sa

me
 vi
sio

n 
an
d w

he
re 

the
y t
rus

t a
nd
 va

lue
 ea

ch
 ot
he
r’s
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
n. 

 2. 
Th

e C
ou
nc
il a

lre
ad
y h

as
 sy

ste
ms

 fo
r m

an
ag
ing

 pe
op
le 
inc

orp
ora

tin
g r

eq
uir
ed
 co

mp
ete

nc
ies

, p
erf
orm

an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t (i
nc
lud

ing
 ap

pra
isa

l), 
lea

rni
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t, p

ay
 an

d r
ew

ard
.  T

he
 in
ten

tio
n o

f th
e w

ork
-st
rea

m 
3 i
s, 
the

ref
ore

, to
 en

su
re 

the
se
 ar

ran
ge
me

nts
 ar

e “
fit 
for

 pu
rpo

se
” in

 th
e 

co
nte

xt 
of 
the

 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Fu
tur

es
 Pr

og
ram

me
. 

 3. 
Th

e t
ea
m 
ha
s m

od
ell
ed
 a 
‘pe

rfe
ct 
cu
ltu
re’
 ba

se
d o

n t
he
 fu
tur

e r
eq
uir
em

en
ts 
of 
the

 or
ga
nis

ati
on
. T

his
 le
d t
o t
he
 id
en
tifi
ca
tio
n o

f c
ert

ain
 pr

ior
ity
 

‘cu
ltu
ral
 at
trib

ute
s’ 
– t
ho
se
 fa
cto

rs 
wh

ich
 w
e f
ee
l a
re 

the
 ar

ea
s w

e m
os
t n
ee
d t
o i
nfl
ue
nc
e -

 an
d d

isc
us
sio

n o
f th

em
 w
ith
 SL

T a
nd
 Se

rvi
ce
 M
an
ag
ers

. 
W
e a

re 
no
w 
loo

kin
g t
o f
oc
us
 on

 el
em

en
ts 
of 
the

 pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 m
an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

 (s
ee
 no

te 
2 a

bo
ve
) a

nd
, w

he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

, m
od
ify
 or

 ex
ten

d t
he
m 

ac
co
rdi
ng
ly.
 

Page 36



$uzkbc4uf.doc Page 1 of 2 Version 6  
Last updated 08 July 2013 

 

Proposed Revised Roles  Appendix 3 
 

Role Role profile/key accountabilities 
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
(currently Executive 
Director) 

In addition to deputising for the Chief Executive, the key 
commissioning and sponsor role maintaining strong and 
effective relationships with partners and stakeholders, 
accountable for effective and efficient delivery of 
• Outcomes and relationships in client / contract 

management (e.g. Ubico Ltd, CBH Ltd), including 
timely and customer focussed decision making on 
client issues 

• Current and future commissioning of services 
• Commissioning and re-commissioning programmes 

and projects 
• Community Strategy and engagement  inc. strategic 

responsibility for economic development and tourism  
• Business transformation and development 
• Programme and project management 
• Communications and customer relations  

Director of Corporate 
Resources 
(currently Director of 
Resources) 
 

A strategic leadership role directing central resource 
deployment and efficiency whether directly provided or 
commissioned. Accountable for the effective and efficient 
delivery of corporate resources including: 
• Financial, Human Resources, Audit, Legal, and ICT 

services (via GOSS, Audit Cotswolds, ICT Shared 
service, One Legal) 

• Governance and risk management arrangements 
• Property and asset management services 
• Customer services 
• Revenues and Benefits service 
• Budget strategy 
 

Director of 
Environmental and 
Regulatory Services  
(currently Director of 
Built Environment) 

A strategic leadership role focussed on public facing 
services directly provided by the council. Accountable for 
the effective and efficient delivery of directly provided 
services, including: 
• Planning  

Page 37



$uzkbc4uf.doc Page 2 of 2 Version 6  
Last updated 08 July 2013 

 

 • Building control  
• Enforcement and Public Protection (inc. Licensing) 
• Green environment 
• Bereavement services  
• Housing  - strategy, housing options, private sector 

housing, communities and enabling services 
• Parking services (inc. Shopmobility) 

 

Page 38



$z
op
tdd

1i.
do
c 

Pa
ge
 1 
of 
2 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 08
 Ju

ly 
20
13
 

 

Ind
ica

tiv
e R

es
tru

ctu
re
 Ti

me
lin

e  
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
4 

 

Fo
rm

al
 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 
  

 
 

 
 

St
ag

e O
ne
 

 
St
art

 D
ate

 
En

d D
ate

 
 

Fo
rm

al 
co
ns
ult
ati
on
 on

 th
e p

rop
os
ed
 st
ruc

tur
e b

eg
ins

  
w/
c 

05
/08

/20
13
 

  
 

Fe
ed
ba
ck
 on

 pr
op
os
als

 fro
m 
Tra

de
 U
nio

ns
 in
vit
ed
  

  
05
/08

/20
13
 

21
/10

/20
13
 

 

Fe
ed
ba
ck
 on

 pr
op
os
als

 fro
m 
em

plo
ye
es
 in
vit
ed
 vi
a T

Us
 

  
05
/08

/20
13
 

21
/10

/20
13
 

 

‘At
 R
isk

’ le
tte
rs 
to 
be
 is
su
ed
 to
 af
fec

ted
 em

plo
ye
es
 

w/
c 

05
/08

/20
13
 

  
 

Le
tte
rs 
to 
be
 is
su
ed
 to
 rin

g f
en
ce
d e

mp
loy

ee
s 

w/
c 

05
/08

/20
13
 

  
 

Ind
ivid

ua
l d
isc

us
sio

ns
 w
ith
 em

plo
ye
es
 in
 af
fec

ted
 ro

les
 ta
ke
 pl
ac
e 

  
05
/08

/20
13
 

21
/10

/20
13
 

 

Co
ns
ult
ati
on
 pe

rio
d o

n t
he
 pr

op
os
ed
 st
ruc

tur
e e

nd
s 

  
  

21
/10

/20
13
 

 

St
ag

e T
wo

 
 

 
 

 

Ac
co
un
t to

 be
 ta
ke
n o

f re
pre

se
nta

tio
ns
 fro

m 
Tra

de
 U
nio

ns
, a
ffe
cte

d e
mp

loy
ee
s a

nd
 

the
 te
am

; a
me

nd
me

nts
/ch

an
ge
s t
o s

tru
ctu

re 
ma

de
 w
he
re 

ne
ce
ss
ary

 to
 

av
oid

/m
itig

ate
 th
e n

ee
d f
or 

red
un
da
nc
y 

w/
c 

25
/10

/20
13
 

  
 

Sta
ff i
nfo

rm
ed
 of
 fin

al 
str
uc
tur

e p
rop

os
al 

w/
c 

04
/11

/20
13
 

  
 

Sta
ff i
ss
ue
d w

ith
 re

vis
ed
 / r

efr
es
he
d j
ob
 de

sc
rip
tio
ns
 

w/
c 

04
/11

/20
13
 

  
 

Page 39



$z
op
tdd

1i.
do
c 

Pa
ge
 2 
of 
2 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 08
 Ju

ly 
20
13
 

 

St
ag

e T
hr
ee
 

 
 

 
 

Ap
po
int
me

nts
 m
ad
e; 
an
y a

t ri
sk
 em

plo
ye
es
 w
ill h

av
e o

pp
ort

un
ity
 to
 ap

ply
 to
 an

y 
rev

ise
d /
 re
fre

sh
ed
 po

sts
 an

d t
o b

e c
on
sid

ere
d f
or 
rol
e/s

 (e
.g.
 w
he
re 

rin
g f
en
cin

g) 
w/
c 

11
/11

/20
13
 

  
 

Em
plo

ye
es
 du

e t
o b

e s
lot
ted

 w
ill b

e c
on
firm

ed
 in
 re

vis
ed
 ro

les
  

w/
c 

11
/11

/20
13
 

  
 

Em
plo

ye
es
 w
ho
 re

ma
in 
‘at
 ris

k’ 
an
d w

he
re 

no
 op

po
rtu

nit
y t
o r

em
ain

 in
 em

plo
ym

en
t 

is 
for

thc
om

ing
, w

ill b
e i
ss
ue
d w

ith
 no

tic
e a

nd
 pl
ac
ed
 on

 C
ou
nc
il’s
 re

de
plo

ym
en
t 

reg
ist
er 

w/
c 

11
/11

/20
13
 

  
 

Jo
b a

dv
ert

s p
lac

ed
 fo
r v
ac
an
cie

s w
he
re 

the
re 

are
 no

 af
fec

ted
 em

plo
ye
es
 an

d/o
r 

wh
ere

 th
ere

 ar
e v

ac
an
cie

s t
ha
t w

ill n
ot 
be
 fil
led

 by
 af
fec

ted
 st
aff
 

w/
c 

11
/11

/20
13
 

  
 

Ha
nd
ov
er 

 
  

01
/02

/20
14
 

31
/03

/20
14
 

Ph
as
e 
1 

Ha
nd
ov
er 

 
  

01
/04

/20
14
 

31
/10

/20
14
 

Ph
as
e 
2 
 

St
ag

e F
ou

r  
  

  
  

  
No

tic
e p

eri
od
s e

nd
ed
, e
mp

loy
ee
s n

ot 
ret

ain
ed
 le
av
e e

mp
loy

me
nt 

  
  

31
/0
3/
20
14
 

Ph
as
e 
1 
 

No
tic
e p

eri
od
s e

nd
ed
, e
mp

loy
ee
s n

ot 
ret

ain
ed
 le
av
e e

mp
loy

me
nt 

  
  

31
/1
0/
20
14
 

Ph
as
e 
2 
 

Pr
oje

ct 
rev

iew
 an

d c
los

e  
  

tba
 

tba
 

  
 

Page 40



$5
vh
jra
ct.
do
c 

Pa
ge
 1 
of 
1 

Ve
rsi
on
 6 
 

La
st 
up
da
ted

 08
 Ju

ly 
20
13
 

 

Fin
an

cia
l A

na
lys

is 
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

5 
 Co

sts
/Sa

vin
gs

 to
 th

e C
ou

nc
il w

ith
 no

 co
mp

uls
or
y r

ed
un

da
nc

ies
 

 Ye
ars

 
20
13
/14

 
20
14
/15

 
20
15
/16

 
20
16
/17

 
20
17
/18

 
20
18
/19

 
 

To
tal

 
 

No
te
 1
 

No
te
 2
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Co
st 
of 
red

un
da
nc
y /
 ea

rly
 re

tire
me

nt 
to 
the

 C
ou
nc
il 

50
,41

2 
17
3,0

80
 

 
 

 
 

 
22
3,4

92
 

Ba
se
 bu

dg
et 
sa
vin

g 
 

-15
6,4

77
 

-21
8,2

61
 

-21
8,2

61
 

-21
8,2

61
 

-21
8,2

61
 
 

-1,
02
9,5

21
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ca
sh
flo
w 

50
,41

2 
16
,60

3 
-21

8,2
61
 

-21
8,2

61
 

-21
8,2

61
 

-21
8,2

61
 
 

-80
6,0

29
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Cu

mu
lat

ive
 ca

sh
flo

w 
50
,41

2 
67
,01

5 
-15

1,2
46
 

-36
9,5

07
 

-58
7,7

68
 

-80
6,0

29
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
yb

ac
k =

  
1.4

43
 
ye
ars

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 No

te 
1 

£5
0,4

12
 eq

ua
tes

 to
 th
e r

ed
un
da
nc
y c

os
ts 
of 
on
e E

xe
cu
tiv
e D

ire
cto

r fr
om

 M
arc

h 2
01
4 

No
te 
2 

£1
73
,08

0 e
qu
ate

s t
o t
he
 re

du
nd
an
cy
 co

sts
 an

d c
os
t to

 th
e p

en
sio

n f
un
d o

f e
arl
y r
eti
rem

en
t o
f th

e p
os
t o
f D

ire
cto

r o
f C

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 an

d o
ne
 

Ad
mi
nis

tra
tiv
e p

os
t fr

om
 O
cto

be
r 2

01
4 

 

Page 41



Page 42
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 1 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Council – 22 July 2013 

Review of council size and electoral cycle 
 

Accountable member Councillor Jon Walklett, Cabinet Member Corporate Services 
Accountable officer Andrew North, Chief Executive 
Ward(s) affected All 
Significant Decision Yes  
Executive summary At the Council meeting on 25 March 2013, Council agreed to set up a 

Cabinet Member working group to review the Council size and electoral 
cycle.  The working group were set the terms of reference, attached at 
Appendix 2 and requested to report their findings to Council on 22 July with 
a draft letter to the Local Government Boundary Commission For England 
(LGBCE) if appropriate. 
Following three meetings of the working group and a member seminar, the 
group have concluded that they do not wish to make any recommendations 
regarding initiating a review of Council size at this stage. This reflects the 
consensus of the working group and their reasons are set out in this report. 
Regarding the future electoral cycle, there were far more mixed views 
expressed across the political groups by members attending the seminar 
and within the working group itself. Therefore, the group concluded that they 
would refer this issue to Council without a recommendation, save that 
Council should be requested to consider moving to a four year electoral 
cycle or retaining the current two year cycle. The working group Chairman, 
in presenting the report to Council, will set out the divergent views of the 
working group on this issue. Only the option to commence the process of 
moving to a four yearly cycle needs to be voted on at Council as the current 
(2 year cycle) position will continue if resolution 3 is not adopted. 

Recommendations Council is asked to resolve: 
1. That a review of council size will not be progressed at this stage. 
2. That the community governance review will not be progressed at  

this time for the reasons set out in paragraph 4.6 of the report  
3.     Whether to commence the process to move to a four year  

electoral cycle 
 

  
 

Agenda Item 9
Page 43



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 2 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Financial implications The financial implications are set out in section 5 of this report and 
Appendix 3. If the Council were to change the electoral cycle to hold 
elections every four years, the average saving per annum would equate to 
£26,000. 
Contact officer: Paul Jones, Head of Finance GO Shared Services  
Paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Legal implications There are prescriptive procedures for dealing with electoral reviews and 
reviews of electoral cycles, arising primarily from the Local Democracy, 
Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 and Local Government 
and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. Whilst the final decision in 
respect of an electoral review rests with the Local Government Boundary 
Commission and is brought in to effect by statutory instrument, the final 
decision in respect of the electoral cycle is made by a special meeting of 
Council (on a majority of at least two thirds of those present). 
Contact officer: peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

Should there be any changes to election cycle the impact on resources will 
need to be considered as highlighted in the report. If different elections are 
run at the same time the demands on key staff may increase significantly. 
This needs to be kept to a manageable level as well as the resilience 
issues being carefully considered. 
Contact officer: Richard.hall@cheltenham.gov.uk, 07801123276 
 

Key risks As outlined in appendix 1 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

The review has been identified within the council’s corporate strategy for 
2013/14.  Effective governance arrangements are a key component for the 
delivery of the council’s corporate objectives. 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None identified 

1. Background 
1.1 At the Council meeting on 8 February the following motion was passed: 

“Therefore we request Cabinet to consider moving to a four yearly cycle of Borough Council 
elections as soon as possible.  We also call on the Cabinet to explore how a reduction of 
councillors can be achieved. In the interests of the Cheltenham tax payers and for the good 
governance of the town we ask that a report be brought back to Council in March outlining the 
issues, challenges and timelines of achieving both changes.” 

1.2 Council considered a further report on 25 March 2013 setting out the various combinations of 
options for reducing the Council size and amending the electoral cycle. They agreed to set up 
a Cabinet Member working group to review the options in more detail following the terms of 
reference set by Council.  They were requested to report their findings to Council on 22 July 
with a draft letter to the Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) if 
appropriate i.e. if they were recommending that a review of the Council size could be initiated. 

Page 44



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 3 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

2. Membership of the working group and method of approach 
2.1 The working group was chaired by the Cabinet Member responsible for democracy, Councillor 

Jon Walklett and was made up of a cross party group of members consisting of the three 
Group leaders Councillors Les Godwin, Rob Garnham, Steve Jordan and Councillors Diggory 
Seacome and Simon Wheeler.  

2.2 The group was supported by the Chief Executive, Andrew North and the director of 
commissioning, Jane Griffiths and Rosalind Reeves and Sam Howe from Democratic Services. 

2.3 The group met for the first time on 23 April 2013 to agree their approach.  They felt it was very 
important to seek the views of as many members as possible so they invited all members to 
participate in a seminar held on 9 May 2013. They were very pleased that 26 members were 
able to attend and 5 officers helped to facilitate the discussions held in smaller round table 
groups. The minutes were circulated to all members after the seminar so that they could 
review what had been discussed and they were invited to add any additional comments. 

2.4 The group met for the final time on 2 July 2013 to finalise their report for Council. Before that 
meeting they had the opportunity to take the draft report to their group meetings to discuss with 
their members and respond to any concerns. During the meeting they acknowledged that they 
had reached consensus on council size but not the electoral cycle. Therefore they agreed that 
they would present both options regarding the electoral cycle for debate at Council .   

3. Results of the member seminar  
3.1 At the member seminar, each table was asked to consider a number of questions relating to 

the role of a councillor and how it had changed as a result of commissioning. They went on to 
consider the issue of council size and electoral cycle. 

3.2 Regarding the role of the member, the general feeling was that the role of the basic councillor 
had not changed significantly with the introduction of commissioning. However, there were 
issues raised about how easy it was for members to contact staff within the commissioned 
services when following up issues raised by their constituents. This is outside the scope of this 
report but is an important issue and will be followed up by officers from the Commissioning 
Division.  Members also felt they were less well-informed about some areas, perhaps because 
in the new scrutiny arrangements they no longer received detailed update reports from service 
areas. This will be followed up as part of the review of the new scrutiny arrangements currently 
under way.   

3.3 Members felt that the role of the councillor as a community representative was increasing and 
was likely to become more prominent as communities are encouraged to do more for 
themselves as public services undergo increasing financial constraints. This could increase 
their workload. 

3.4 Another issue raised by members was the difficulty in finding people who were willing to stand 
as councillors and there was some concern that a reduction in Council size, with a resulting 
increase in workload for individual councillors, could put people off from standing. The working 
group later concluded that this was a matter for the political groups but they would encourage 
the council to take some initiatives in Local Democracy week to encourage a good turnout at 
elections. 

3.5 Members at the seminar highlighted that commissioning was not the only change which was 
impacting the council. The potential increase in new housing development across the borough 
could be even more significant in changing the size of wards and this would not be finalised for 
some time. Therefore it was questioned whether now was the right time to do a review as it 
might have to be revisited in the future. 

Page 45



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 4 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

3.6 Regarding the Council size, there was a general feeling that the current system of having two 
members per ward worked well as they were able to offer help and support to each other and 
provide continuity across elections.  

3.7 Regarding the electoral cycle, there was a range of views expressed with some highlighting 
the benefits of a four-year cycle whilst others preferred the current system. 

4. Conclusions on Council size 
4.1 Following the member seminar, the working group reviewed some case studies of four other 

councils who had gone through a review of their council size carried out by the LGBCE. They 
noted that in every case, the main driver for the review had been a variance between the size 
of electorate between wards of more than 10% of the borough average. The working group 
noted that this was not currently the case in Cheltenham but could well be in the future if there 
was significant new housing development in certain parts of the borough.  As the site and size 
of new housing developments was yet to be finalised, the working group identified this as a 
strong mitigating factor for not initiating a review at this stage. New housing developments 
close to borough boundaries could even necessitate boundary reviews where new housing in 
one borough currently required significant infrastructure in a neighbouring borough. 

4.2 The working group noted that the issue of the potential for the government imposing unitary 
local authorities on Gloucestershire may be raised again after the next general election and 
this could be another factor to be considered before initiating a ward boundary review. 

4.3 In the 2013 county council elections, new divisions had been established in Cheltenham which 
resulted in 10 county councillors being elected to represent the people of Cheltenham within 
the county council.  This had resulted in coterminousity between the county divisions and the 
borough council wards so effectively in each county council division there were now four 
borough councillors (two for each ward). The working group felt that this coterminousity was 
very important and the only option for reducing the Council size whilst maintaining this 
coterminousity, would be to have three councillors per ward with each ward matching the 
county division. The group noted that the new county council divisions had only just been 
introduced and therefore it would be preferable to see how these worked in practice before 
making any changes to borough council wards, especially one which could result in reducing 
the number of councillors by 25%.   

4.4 The working group reflected on the views expressed by members during the seminar. They felt 
that whilst it might be sensible to consider reducing the size of Planning Committee or 
reviewing which matters needed to be considered by the Licensing Committee as opposed to a 
subcommittee, generally the workload of other committees and working groups would continue 
even if the number of councillors was reduced.  Whilst this total workload to be shared 
amongst councillors remained constant, there was also the view expressed by a number of 
members that their community representative role was increasing especially in the current 
financial climate. With the introduction of commissioning, a lot of emphasis has been put on 
resilience of the service and the working group felt that this issue of resilience was equally 
important when considering members capacity to support the democratic process.  

4.5 The group acknowledged that there would be some cost savings associated with reducing the 
number of councillors, but they were minded that their brief from Council was to maximise the 
effectiveness of the democratic process. At this point they could not see that reducing the 
council size would enhance democracy and there was a risk that it could even reduce it. 

4.6 For all these reasons, the working group concluded that it was not the right time to initiate a 
review of Council size and this was the consensus of all the members. This could be initiated 
at some point in the future when the following factors are known: 

Page 46



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 5 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

• new housing development has been quantified so future ward numbers can be predicted 
with some certainty 

• there is proven experience of how the new county council divisions are working in relation 
to the ward councillors     

• there is more certainty regarding whether unitary local government will be imposed by 
central government   

• the role of the councillor as community representative is further developed 
4.7 The working group were also asked to comment on the community governance review.  

Overview and Scrutiny currently have it in their workplan to review the terms of reference for 
this review in September 2013 with an aim to restarting it. Members will recall that a scrutiny 
task group reported to Council via the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in December 2012. In 
the debate at Council, members highlighted that borough council boundaries and parish 
council boundaries could be affected by the results of the Joint Core Strategy work depending 
on where new housing development took place.  Council resolved that the review should be 
deferred to a later date when any recommendations could be implemented ahead of the 2018 
parish elections (these  have since been brought forward to 2016).  The working group 
discussed the matter and felt that any further work on the community governance review 
should be deferred until the new housing development referred to in 4.6 has been quantified. 
At that point it can be agreed how the review will be taken forward and in what timescales.  

5. The options for the electoral cycle 
5.1 Regarding the electoral cycle, as has been said before, there were far more mixed views with 

advantages and disadvantages identified for the current 2 yearly elections and a 4 year cycle. 
The working group considered that considering a potential change was such an important 
decision that Council should be given full details of these pros and cons clearly set out in a  
report.  

5.2 In considering the options, members are reminded again that the driving force behind the 
change should be to optimise the effectiveness of the democratic process whilst 
acknowledging that in the current climate of financial constraint, the potential cost savings will 
be an important secondary factor. 

5.3 The following tables make a comparison between the two options and sets out the advantages 
and disadvantages of each, but first some explanatory notes. 
 
By-elections 

5.4 From time to time, there may be a need for an election outside the borough election timetable.  
In the past 10 years there have been six by-elections in January 2004, July 2009, two in May 
2010, October 2010 and May 2013. In May 2010, these coincided with the borough elections 
and in 2013 with the county council elections.  The recent Warden Hill by-election cost in the 
order of £4,700 so a reasonable estimate of a combined by-election is £4,500. At other times 
when there is a requirement to initiate a stand-alone by-election, the estimated cost is £7,500.  

5.5 Clearly if elections were only held every four years, there is likely to be an increased 
requirement for by-elections and in the cost analysis that follows it is assumed that there will 
be a requirement for a separate by-election once a year.   

5.6 This estimate is supported by both Cotswold district council and Forest of Dean who have four 
yearly elections and have advised that they have a by-election on average once per year. 
Tewkesbury borough council, also on 4 yearly elections, have only had one by-election in the 

Page 47



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 6 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

period 2007 – 2011. 
 
The cycle of other elections and potential for sharing election costs 

5.7 The council has a budget for the borough elections and also runs elections on behalf of 
Parishes, the county council and for the government in the case of parliamentary and 
European elections and the recent Police and Crime Commissioner elections.  When elections 
coincide, there  is usually a reduction in overall costs as aspects of the administration can be 
shared e.g. issuing postal ballot papers or the hiring of polling stations.    

5.8 The borough elections cannot take place in the same year as the county council elections 
which take place every four years with the next due in 2017. As there is no potential for sharing 
costs, the county council elections are not relevant to any analysis of costs of the borough 
elections. 

5.9 The first elections for the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) took place in November 2012 
and are scheduled every four years starting in May 2016. If the borough elections were 
scheduled to coincide with the PCC elections, then there would be options for reducing the 
overall cost of both elections by sharing the administrative costs. Thus if Cheltenham was to 
move to four yearly elections, clearly it would be best to match the election-year with the PCC 
elections.  If Cheltenham was to retain its current two yearly election cycle, then this could still 
be scheduled to coincide with the PCC elections thereby enabling costs to be shared every 
other borough election.  

5.10 The estimated cost of a borough council election with 50% of the members up for election is 
£130,000. This cost would increase to £160,000 if all members were up for election in a 4 
yearly cycle. If this election was combined with the PCC elections, it is estimated that this cost 
would reduce to £85,000 in the case of 2 yearly elections and £100,000 in the 4 year case.   

5.11 Parish council elections take place every four years and must be at the same time as the 
borough elections. Thus the parish benefits from reduced costs of their elections because they 
are held at the same as the borough elections but there is no real cost saving to the borough. 
In Cheltenham there have been no parish council contested elections since 1999.  

5.12 Parliamentary and European elections may coincide with borough elections and if they do 
there is of course the option to share some of the administrative costs. It has been estimated 
that the cost of a full borough election would reduce by £15,000 and if only half the councillors 
were up for election would reduce by £12,250. It should be noted that the proposed dates of 
parliamentary elections could change and could be called at any time so it is not possible to 
schedule the borough elections to always match their dates.  

5.13 Taking all the above into account the election cycle and the comparison of costs is set out in 
Appendix 3.  

 
Analysis of the advantages and disadvantages of 2 yearly and 4 yearly elections 
 
5.14 Four yearly elections – the advantages and disadvantages are set out in the following table 

AREA ADVANTAGES DISADVANTAGES 
For the  Electorate The electorate can form a better 

judgement on how successful an 
administration has been at delivering 

If the electorate are dissatisfied 
with an administration they have to 
wait 4 years before they can have 

Page 48



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 7 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

their manifesto over a 4 year period.  
An election with a potentially more 
dramatic outcome for the town may 
encourage more publicity and a 
potentially higher turnout.   

any impact with their vote. 
A ward could have two new 
inexperienced councillors as a 
result of the elections so there is 
no continuity for constituents of 
that ward. 

For Democracy The run up to elections and the 
following induction period can lead to 
an interruption of the democratic 
process of up to 2 months. This will 
only happen once every four years. 
The borough elections would be 
following the same election cycle as 
parishes, county councils, PCCs and 
many other borough councils.  

All out elections could generate a 
large number of inexperienced 
members which could impact their 
ability to support their constituents 
and effective operation of council 
business e.g Planning and 
Licensing may lack members with 
the necessary in depth 
experience.  
 

For the Administration The administration could agree a 
strong mandate for implementing 
necessary policies which might take 
time to bear fruit .. 
They have a longer period to 
demonstrate to the electorate that 
they have delivered what they said 
they would deliver in their manifesto.  

The administration could become 
complacent during a longer period 
in office. 

For members In 3 years out of 4, a member can 
put themselves forward as Mayor for 
the following year with the certainty 
that they will still be a councillor.  

If they are not successful or want 
to take a break from standing, 
there is only a two-year wait 
before getting another opportunity 
to stand. 
Members lose the opportunity to 
have a mentor in their ward, if both 
members are newly elected. 
 

For officers This election cycle gives officers a 
four-year period of certainty when 
they can focus on implementing the 
policies of the administration.  
The preparation and delivery of a 
member induction process is 
resource intensive and it will only 
have to be done every 4 years and 
will have economies of scale in 
delivering it to more members at a 
time. 

 

Page 49



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 8 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

 
For the elections 
administration   

Potential savings re Temporary staff 
(staffing levels may need to be 
reassessed with the introduction of 
independent electoral registration 
due to be implemented in 2014) 

Likely to incur more by-elections 
which would increase workload 
Increased workload through 
election period dealing with more 
nominations  

For the Council’s budget Compared with 2 yearly elections the 
council would be making a 
budgetary saving in the order of 
£26,000 per annum. 
 

 

 

5.15 Continue with current 2 year cycle 
This would largely be a reverse of the advantages and disadvantages set out in the above table. 

6. Experience of other authorities changing their electoral cycle 
6.1 The Electoral Commission gave us some information regarding councils who were considering 

a change in their electoral cycle.   The councils we looked at gave similar rationale for 
changing their cycle to 4 yearly elections. 

6.2 Bristol City Council is currently reviewing their electoral arrangements by carrying out a public 
engagement exercise. At present, the council runs its elections by thirds. With the intended 
changes, the council would all be elected at the same time. In the current system elections are 
held for 23 or 24 seats each year for three successive years out of four.  As each ward has 2 
councillors, voters go the polls twice over a 4 year period to elect one of the councillors for 
their ward. Under the proposed arrangements all the Council seats would be up for election, 
once every four years. The reasons given for changing the voting system are that four yearly 
elections would allow the council to take a strategic, long term approach to policy and decision 
making. Whole elections would also be simpler and more easily understood for the electorate. 
Another benefit of four yearly elections would be the cost savings associated with a reduction 
in the amount of elections.  

6.3 Weymouth and Portland Borough Council are also currently reviewing their electoral system. 
At present, councillors are elected to the borough council through a ‘thirds system’. A 
consultation exercise ran from March to May in which the public were asked their views on a 
move to four yearly elections. 52% of the public agreed that there should be a move to four 
yearly elections. The arguments for changing the electoral system were as follows – it creates 
greater stability within the council, it costs less to the tax payer, it avoids the situation posed by 
elections by thirds where political control of the council can change and yet some electors in 
single member wards have no opportunity to vote and it gives the electorate the opportunity to 
completely change the political leadership of the council and its direction. The advantages to 
keeping the ‘thirds’ system were as follows – the system is established and understood by the 
electorate, electors in the area are able to participate regularly in the democratic process and 
the current system provides continuity and avoids the potential for a whole new council.   
 
 
 

Page 50



 

   

$yoakoqy5.doc Page 9 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

7. Reasons for recommendations  
7.1 The working group were requested to bring this report to Council to enable a considered 

debate on this important issue for the council.  The reasons for changing the existing election 
cycle and or the size of the council needs to be considered carefully and within the context of 
the strategic direction of the council.   

7.2 This is such an important matter to the council and the people of Cheltenham it requires 
careful consideration and any final recommendations on the way forward ideally should have 
cross party support as it will impact on all current and future councillors. 

8. Alternative options considered 
8.1 The options considered are set out in this report. 

9. Consultation and feedback 
9.1 As outlined in the report, the views of all members were sought in developing this report back 

to Council and working group members were encouraged to initiate discussions within their 
political groups. 

9.2 A report was also taken to the Senior Leadership Team on 18 June 2013 to seek their views. 
9.3 The working group did not carry out any specific public consultation as part of their review but 

they plan to issue a media release with publication of this report with the expectation that it will 
generate some media interest and public discussion. The public will be able to attend the 
Council meeting and listen to the ensuing debate. 

10. Performance management –monitoring and review 
10.1 If Council decides to amend the electoral cycle, officers will bring a further report back to 

Council to make the necessary resolutions and will then initiate the necessary changes from 
2016.   
 
 

Report author Contact officer: Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager ,  
rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 774937 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Terms of reference for Cabinet Member working group 
3. Analysis of costs 

Background information Report to Council 25 March 2013 
 

Page 51



 

   
$yoakoqy5.doc Page 10 of 10 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to risk 
register 

1. If there is no cross party 
consensus to any 
recommendations arising 
from the working group it 
may make it difficult to 
implement changes  

Andrew 
North 

March 
2013 

3 3 9 R Set out the options for 
Council to decide  

July 
2013 

Andrew 
North 

Corporate risk 

If2 If Council decide to 
continue with a review of 
Council size that could be 
significant implications on 
officer resources in taking 
this forward 

Andrew 
North 

March 
2013  

3 3 9 R Workplan and resource 
requirements would 
need to be reassessed 
should Council take 
this decision. 

July 
2013 

Jane 
Griffiths 

Commissioning  

3 If the public do not 
understand what is being 
proposed because the 
council and political parties 
have failed to communicate 
effectively then there is a 
reputation risk to the 
council 

Andrew 
North 

March 
2013 

3 3 9 R Working group to agree 
key messages 
Group leaders to put 
out joint media 
statement 

July  
2013 

Jane 
Griffiths 

Corporate 

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-5 (1 being least impact and 5 being major or critical) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6  
(1 being almost impossible, 2 is very low, 3 is low, 4 significant,  5 high and 6 a very high probability) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 
 

P
age 52



 

REVIEW OF COUNCIL SIZE AND ELECTORAL CYCLE 
CABINET MEMBER WORKING GROUP TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 

 
Broad topic area Review of council size and electoral cycle 
Specific topic area To consider the democratic needs for the council in the future 

within the context that services are delivered by other agencies 
and the growing partnership and collaborative activity across 
partner agencies 

Ambitions for the 
review 

• To identify the community leadership role of councillors 
and the cabinet 

• To consider what impact reduced direct service 
provision has on workloads for councillors and the 
cabinet 

• To consider the council’s approach to neighbourhood 
working and how this might impact on the role of 
councillors or the pattern of ward boundaries 

• To consider how the officer corps will need to support 
councillors in the future 

• To consider whether the current electoral arrangements 
help or hinder the democratic process for the future 
council 

• To consider whether the current council size helps or 
hinders the democratic process for the future council 
and consider what if any changes need to be made 

• To consider the timing of the review options within the 
context of the national and local agendas. 

• To identify the resource implications of the options and 
the impact on the council workplans and budgets 

Outcomes Report to council on the options with recommendations as to 
whether electoral arrangements and council size should be 
changed. 
Draft letter to local government boundary commission setting 
out reasons for requesting review (if this is a recommended 
course of action) 

How long should the 
review take? 

Three months 
Recommendations to 
reported to: 

Council – 22 July 2013 
Membership: Total membership – six councillors: 

� Cabinet member corporate services (chair) =1 
� Group leaders or a nominee = 3 
� 1 liberal democrat = 1 
� 1 conservative = 1 

Officers experts and 
witnesses  

Onelegal 
Electoral registration 
Democratic services 
 

Sponsoring officer Chief Executive 
Facilitator Director commissioning 
Co-optees None 

Page 53



 
Other experts and 
witnesses 

None – although the working group may want to consider 
evidence about what other councils are doing to prepare 
themselves for the future 

Other consultees None 
Background 
information  

LGBCE guidance notes 
Report to council 25 March 2013 

Suggested method of 
approach 

Working group to set timetable and workplan at first meeting 
Member workshops to be held 
Phased approach to the review so that work is kept at a 
proportionate level to the outcomes 

How will we involve 
the public/media? 
Or at what stages 

Working group may want to consider whether there should be 
any public consultation at this stage ie seeking their views on 
their expectations of councillors.  Working group may want to 
liaise with local media to see if they could assist in raising the 
debate in local press. 
Media will be briefed once final report drafted 

Preferred timing for 
meetings 

Unless by agreement with working group members meetings 
will be at 6pm to enable those that work to attend. 

 

Page 54



Ele
cti

on
 cy

cle
 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 
3

Ye
ar

Cu
mu

lat
ive

 co
sts

 
ov

er 
an

 8 
ye
ar 

cy
cle

 
fro

m 
20
16
 to

 20
20

20
04

20
05

20
06

20
07

20
08

20
09

20
10

Oc
t-1

0
20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

20
22

20
23

20
24

Co
un
ty 
Ele

cti
on
s

Ma
y-0

5
B/
E 

Ma
y -

07
 

Ma
y-0

9
Ma

y-1
3

Ma
y-1

7
Ma

y-2
1

Po
lice

 an
d C

rim
e C

om
mi
ss
ion

er 
Ele

cti
on
s

No
v-1

2
Ma

y-1
6

Ma
y-2

0
Ma

y-2
4

Pa
rlia

me
nta

ry 
Ele

cti
on
s

Ma
y-0

5
Ma

y-1
0

Ma
y-1

5
Ma

y-2
0

Eu
rop

ea
n E

lec
tio
ns

Ju
n-0

4
Ju

n-0
9

Ma
y-1

4
Ma

y-1
9

Ma
y-2

4

Bo
rou

gh
 El

ec
tio
ns
 (c
urr

en
t c
yc
le)

Ma
y-0

4
Ma

y-0
6

Ma
y-0

8
Ma

y-1
0

Ma
y-1

2
Ma

y-1
4

Ma
y-1

6
Ma

y-1
8

Ma
y-2

0
Ma

y-2
2

Ma
y-2

4

Pa
ris
h C

ou
nc
il E

lec
tio
ns

Ma
y-0

6
Ma

y-1
0

Ma
y-1

4
Ma

y-1
6

Ma
y-2

0
Ma

y-2
2

By
-el
ec
tio
ns

Ja
n-0

4
Ju
l-0
9

Ma
y-1

0
Oc

t-1
0

Ma
y-1

3
OP

TIO
N 
1 -

 cu
rre

nt 
cy
cle

Co
sts

 of
 Bo

rou
gh
 El

ec
tio
ns

£1
30
,00

0
£1
30
,00

0
£8
5,0

00
£1
30
,00

0
£7
2,2

50
£1
30
,00

0
£8
5,0

00
£4
17
,25

0
Co

sts
 of
 By

-el
ec
tio
ns

£4
,73

8
£7
,50

0
£7
,50

0
£7
,50

0
£1
5,0

00

OP
TIO

N 
2 -

 4 
ye
arl

y e
lec

tio
ns

 fr
om

 20
16

£0
Bo

rou
gh
 El

ec
tio
ns

£1
00
,00

0
£8
5,0

00
£1
00
,00

0
£1
85
,00

0
By

-E
lec

tio
ns
 (p

red
ict
ed
)

£4
,50

0
£7
,50

0
£4
,50

0
£7
,50

0
£7
,50

0
£4
,50

0
£7
,50

0
£7
,50

0
£3
9,0

00

Cu
mu

lat
ive

 sa
vin

gs
 ov

er 
8 y

ea
rs 

fro
m 

Ma
y 2

01
6 t

o A
pr
il 2

02
4

£2
08
,25

0
Av

 sa
vin

g p
er 

an
nu

m 
£2
6,0

31
No

tes
1. 
In 
20
20
 th
e c

os
ts 
for

 a 
ful
l c
ou
nc
il e

lec
tio
n c

om
bin

ed
 w
ith
 a 
PC

C 
ele

cti
on
 ha

ve
 be

en
 re

du
ce
d 

by
 a 
fur

the
r £

15
,00

0 w
he
n t
he
re 

is 
a p

arl
iam

en
tar

y e
lec

tio
n a

t th
e s

am
e t
im
e. 
 

Sim
ila
rly
 th
e c

os
ts 
for

 a 
ha
lf b

oro
ug
h e

lec
tio
n h

av
e b

ee
n r

ed
uc
ed
. 

2. 
Th

ere
 ar

e n
o f
ixe

d d
ate

s f
or 

pa
rlia

me
nta

ry 
ele

cti
on
s b

ut 
the

 cu
rre

nt 
co
ali
tio
n g

ov
ern

me
nt

is 
cu
rre

ntl
y c

om
mi
tte
d t
o a

 fix
ed
 te
rm

 pa
rlia

me
nt 
of 
5 y

ea
rs.

Page 55



Page 56
This page is intentionally left blank



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 1 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Council  

22 July 2013 
Annual Report on Overview and Scrutiny  

 
Accountable member Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Councillor Duncan Smith 
Accountable officers Chief Executive, Andrew North and Democratic Services Manager, 

Rosalind Reeves 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Ward(s) affected All indirectly 
Significant Decision No   
Executive summary In December 2011 Council approved the new arrangements for Overview 

and Scrutiny to be implemented following the elections in May 2012.  Under 
the new arrangements scrutiny was required to produce an annual report 
for Council and this is contained in appendix 1. This report sets out the 
achievements of scrutiny over the last 12 months and in particular highlights 
the outcomes of a range of scrutiny task groups.  
As the arrangements have now been in place for over a year, it is an 
appropriate time to review their operation. A review was initiated with a 
questionnaire to members and officers and this report sets out the results 
together with other feedback received.  
Scrutiny welcomes the opportunity for Council to debate this report and give 
its views on the success or otherwise of the new scrutiny arrangements 
together with any improvements it would like to see.  These can then be 
taken forward and used to enhance the scrutiny process.    

Recommendations The Council is asked to note the Annual Report of Overview and 
Scrutiny and highlight any changes or improvements it would like 
scrutiny to consider. 

 
Financial implications There no financial implications arising from this report.  

Contact officer:  Mark Sheldon,   
mark.sheldon @cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264123 

Agenda Item 10
Page 57



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 2 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

Legal implications The Authority must have at least one Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  
Scrutiny committees may review both executive and non executive 
functions and can make reports and recommendations to the Council or 
the Cabinet on those functions and “on matters which affect the authority’s 
area or the inhabitants of that area”. A scrutiny committee may also take 
the role of the crime and disorder committee under the Police and Justice 
Act 2006.  
Contact officer:  Peter Lewis, peter.lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk, 01684 
272012 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

Officers and members may benefit from further training and development 
in scrutiny as highlighted in the results of the scrutiny review.   
The need for officer support for scrutiny has been endorsed by the 
experience of the first year of the new arrangements. It needs to be noted 
that the council has no dedicated scrutiny officers (as is the case in larger 
authorities) and the need for officer support needs to be factored into 
resource plans. Members involved will need to actively participate in the 
work of the task group.  
Contact officer: Julie McCarthy 
Julie.McCarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk 01242 26 4355 

Key risks The original risk assessment which accompanied the report to Council in 
December 2011 has been attached as appendix 1 with an additional 
column of comments on those risks. 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

An effective overview and scrutiny process can contribute to positive 
outcomes on any of the objectives in the Corporate Strategy. 
Increased public involvement in Overview and Scrutiny will support the 
corporate objective ‘Our residents enjoy a strong sense of community and 
are involved in resolving local issues’.  

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None 

1. Background 
1.1 Cheltenham Borough Council established its scrutiny function in November 2001, with three new 

committees being formed in October 2002 to mirror the new corporate structure at that time. 
These committees were the Economy and Business Improvement (EBI), Environment and Social 
and Community Overview and Scrutiny Committees. 

1.2 In May 2011, the Group Leaders asked the Chief Executive to consider whether the current 
arrangements for scrutiny within the Council would be effective with the move to become a 
commissioning council. They agreed that a review should be carried out to identify what changes 
needed to be made, in time for their implementation following the borough elections in May 2012.  

1.3 The final project brief was agreed in July 2011 with the following objective:  
 
‘To ensure an effective scrutiny process operates in Cheltenham Borough Council which 

Page 58



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 3 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

supports commissioning and achieves positive outcomes for the town’ 
 
An emphasis was made in the brief that the new scrutiny arrangements should focus on outputs 
rather than inputs, that is achieving positive outcomes for the town.   This was in line with the 
council’s philosophy on commissioning. 

1.4 The review reported to Council in December 2011 and the new arrangements were implemented 
following the elections in May 2012. These new arrangements focused on a managing and 
coordinating overview and scrutiny committee with scrutiny task groups carrying out the detailed 
work and reporting back to the main committee.  

1.5 These new arrangements have now been in place for a year and so it is an appropriate time to 
review their operation and identify any improvements. Before reviewing this first year it may be 
helpful to remind Members of the aims of overview and scrutiny so that they can then take a view 
on whether these have been achieved. 

2. The aims of overview and scrutiny 
2.1 Effective Overview and Scrutiny aims to  
• support the Council in achieving its vision and delivery of its Corporate Strategy 
• promote open and transparent decision-making, democratic accountability and to hold the 

Cabinet to account for its actions 
• achieve positive outcomes for the people of Cheltenham by monitoring and challenging service 

delivery to ensure it meets customer needs and encourage innovation and good practice 
 

2.2 It will support the four principles of effective scrutiny advocated by the Centre for Public Scrutiny:  
• Provides “critical friend” challenge to Executive policy makers and decision makers 
• Enables the voice and concerns of the public and its communities 
• Is carried out by ‘independent minded’ governors who lead and own the scrutiny process 
• Drives improvement in public services  

 
2.3 In this report the term “overview and scrutiny” is frequently abbreviated to “scrutiny” and some 

explanation may be helpful.    
2.4 When overview and scrutiny was first introduced, overview was often referred to as policy review. 

It seeks to involve itself before a decision is made, to bring information and ideas to the table to 
help improve decision making. It gave Members a role in policy and decision making far earlier 
than had previously been possible. It also involves monitoring of on-going actions to ensure they 
are delivering the intended and best outcomes. Similarly a definition of scrutiny was defined. The 
scrutiny of decisions takes place after decisions have been made. It is an opportunity to question 
why the course of action was taken, and if necessary propose an alternative. Decisions can be 
monitored over a longer period of time to ensure that the intended outcomes are realised. In its 
strongest form it can stop a decision being implemented until it has been scrutinised using a 
mechanism called “call-in”.  

3. Feedback on Overview and Scrutiny  
 
Scrutiny Questionnaire  

3.1 A questionnaire was circulated in May this year to all members and officers who had been 
involved in the scrutiny process with a request that it be completed and returned to Democratic 
Services who would then collate the results. A number of the questions were identical to those 
asked in a previous survey in 2011 which facilitated some helpful comparisons between the two 
points in time.  

Page 59



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 4 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

3.2 29 Councillors and 10 Officers responded to the questionnaire and the results have been collated 
and analysed.  A pictorial representation of the results is contained in Appendix 2.    

3.3 This report builds on the responses to questionnaires from officers and the following Councillors: 
Steve Jordan, Garth Barnes, Nigel Britter, Andrew Chard, Barbara Driver, Bernard Fisher, Jacky 
Fletcher, Robert Garnham, Penny Hall, Tim Harman, Rowena Hay, Sandra Holliday, Helena 
McCloskey, Andrew McKinlay, Paul McLain, John Rawson, Anne Regan, Rob Reid, Diggory 
Seacome, Duncan Smith, Malcolm Stennett, Klara Sudbury, Jon Walklett, Andy Wall, Simon 
Wheeler, Les Godwin, Charles Stewart, Pat Thornton, Colin Hay and Roger Whyborn.  
 
The following said they did not have enough knowledge of the scrutiny process to respond: 
Councillors Andrew Lansley, David Prince and Suzanne Williams. Councillor Chris Ryder only 
joined the Council in May 2013 so was not in a position to comment on the arrangements. 
 
Is Scrutiny at Cheltenham Borough Council Effective? 

3.4 In 2011 65% of Members responding suggested that scrutiny was less than effective – this figure 
has only marginally reduced in 2013 (to 52%). However, a greater number of Members now 
consider the new system to be effective as opposed to poor. Amongst officers, 89% of 
respondents believe scrutiny to be effective. 

3.5 On the question as to whether the Cabinet are being held to account, 43% of Members feel that 
the Cabinet are being effectively held to account – this is a rise from 35%. However, 46% of 
Members feel Cabinet is rarely held to account. When questioned further, some Members believe 
that the Cabinet are not proactive in their approach to O&S recommendations. Many members 
feel they have lost the opportunity to question Cabinet Members at an O&S committee and would 
like this reintroduced in some form.   

3.6 Members were asked if scrutiny is contributing to new policies and strategies. The majority 
believe that scrutiny is partially fulfilling this role. 25% of Members questioned believe that it is 
fulfilling this role – this is an increase from 5% in 2011. When asked how this could be improved, 
Members gave suggestions such as better leadership of scrutiny task groups but also suggested 
that Cabinet could embrace scrutiny recommendations more positively in some cases. Officers 
also agreed that scrutiny was partially fulfilling the role of contributing to new policies and 
strategies – there was only a marginal difference in results compared with 2011.  There was some 
confusion about the role of Cabinet Member Working groups and how they fitted into the overview 
and scrutiny process. Several members commented on the lack of ‘ overview’ in the new 
arrangements and this appeared to be carried out by the Cabinet Member Working groups. Clarity 
on roles was needed.  

3.7 Members and officers were asked whether scrutiny was achieving positive outcomes for the 
residents of Cheltenham. 33% of Members said that scrutiny was not achieving positive outcomes 
for the residents of Cheltenham. This is in fact an increase from 2011. When asked to qualify their 
responses, Members suggested that at present there was not enough emphasis on the value that 
scrutiny can have to residents or how they can get involved. Members also suggested that with 
commissioned services, residents now have a more distant relationship with these services – 
such as with UBICO.  A page on the council’s website could also keep the public more informed 
about the work of scrutiny. 
 
How do the new scrutiny arrangements compare with the old arrangements? 

3.8 When asked to compare the 2013 arrangements for scrutiny with 2011, 46% of Members agreed 
that there had been some improvements. 29% thought there was no change. Of officers 
questioned, 63% believed that there were some improvements to the scrutiny arrangements and 
38% believed that the changes had been excellent and had seen a great improvement. One 
Member suggested that with a single committee structure there was less likely to be duplication. 
However, some Members suggested there was a lack of focus in the proceedings of scrutiny. The 
officer respondents suggested that the system was now more efficient.  

3.9 Both Members and officers were asked to assess the effectiveness of the O&S Committee. 61% 

Page 60



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 5 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

of Members believed that the committee was ‘ok but needed some improvement’, whilst 78% of 
officers rated the committee as ‘good’. Some Members suggested that the call in process could 
be improved. Another suggestion was made that there should be greater public involvement in the 
committee meetings.  

3.10 Some members felt their knowledge of council activities was less under the new arrangements 
and they were missing the regular updates on service delivery and reports on numbers of 
complaints, the cost effectiveness of services etc. 

3.11 Members were asked to give their own opinion on how the new scrutiny arrangements chould be 
improved. A lot of Members suggested that the public should have a greater role in scrutiny and 
that they should be allowed to suggest topics for review. Scrutiny task groups should look for 
opportunities to involve members of the public in their work and involve partnerships at the 
appropriate time.  Many Members commented that only a handful of Members commit to O&S 
and this had led to an unfair distribution of workload which needed to be addressed.  A lot of 
Members said that they wanted to be able to question Cabinet Members at O&S Committee 
meetings. There were also a few suggestions that there should be a return to the old committee 
system and the Cabinet and Overview and Scrutiny system should be scrapped.  
 
Scrutiny Skills  

3.12 Members were asked whether they thought they had the skills to carry out their scrutiny task. A 
higher percentage (71%) believe they have the right skills to participate in scrutiny. This is an 
increase compared with 2011 when only 55% believed they had the right skills to participate in 
scrutiny. When asked to qualify their answers, Members said that scrutiny training had been 
useful. One Member suggested that it would be useful to know how other councils operated O&S. 
56% of officers said they had the right skills and expertise to support the scrutiny process. Some 
suggested more training would be useful to better support Members in their scrutiny role.  
 
Setting the scrutiny work plan 

3.13 Members were asked how they think the scrutiny work plan should be determined. A number of 
innovative suggestions were received. One Member suggested that an agenda item should be 
included at Council to encourage Members to come up with suggestions for the work plan. 
Another Member suggested that the forward plan from Cabinet should be gone through ‘with a 
fine toothcomb’ to determine topics for scrutiny. A number of Members commented that the public 
should be asked to submit ideas.  Some members suggested that they had not been involved in 
scrutiny because there were no interesting topics. 

3.14 Officers were asked the same question. One officer commented that Cabinet should make 
suggestions to the O&S Committee. Another officer suggested that a review of the Council’s 
Corporate Strategy and identification of issues in the public interest should prompt suitable topics 
for review. 
 
Scrutiny task groups 

3.15 Members were asked to rate the effectiveness of the task groups they had been involved in.  The 
highest proportion, 43%, thought they had been very effective. Officer responses were split 
between effective and very effective. When asked how these task groups could be improved, 
Members said that stronger terms of reference would have helped. They also thought that the 
success of a task group depended on the strength of the chair. 

3.16 Members were asked to rate the support given by officers to scrutiny task goups. In 2011, the 
highest proportion of Members said that officer support was ‘OK’ (50%). In 2013 the satisfaction 
with officer support has increased – 57% rated officer support as ‘Excellent’. Members said that 
they thought officer support had been ‘better than expected’ and that officers were ‘enthusiastic 
and hard working’. Officers were asked whether they thought scrutiny task groups were Member 
led. 50% agreed that they were Member led, whilst 25% suggested that the task groups were 
overly reliant on officers for a steer.  

3.17 Finally, Members and officers were asked to give any additional comments. One Member 

Page 61



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 6 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

suggested naming and shaming Members who do not get involved in O&S. A strong theme which 
came through in the comments was the desire for the public to get more involved in O&S. Some 
Members suggested publicising the work of O&S on the Council website and inviting Members of 
the public to suggest topics.  
 
Conclusions of the survey  

3.18 Overall there have been some marginal improvements in the way O&S operates at Cheltenham 
Borough Council. There are a few common themes that can be picked out of the results from 
Members and officers. Some Members suggest that it is still early days and it may take a while for 
the new system to become effective. One theme which appears a lot in the responses from 
Members is that Cabinet Members should appear at the O&S committee and should be available 
to answer questions from Members. Another common theme running throughout the responses is 
that the public should be given a greater role in scrutiny with many Members suggesting that they 
should be invited to submit topics for scrutiny. One particularly positive result was the high regard 
Members hold for officers who have supported scrutiny task groups. This has seen a great 
improvement from 2011. Overall there have been some improvements to O&S although Members 
and officers believe there is still some way to go before they are the best they can be.  
 
Other feedback on the new arrangements 

3.19 During the Members seminar on Council size and electoral cycle, Members did raise a number of 
issues indirectly related to scrutiny. It was clear that with the abolition of the three former scrutiny 
committees, many members felt they had lost the opportunity to have updates and reports and 
question officers about their service. These would no longer be appropriate for the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee whose focus is to manage and coordinate the scrutiny process and Members 
can always suggest a detailed topic for a scrutiny task group. If Members feel there is a gap this 
needs to be looked at outside the scrutiny process, possibly through member seminars or other 
forms of updates.  

 
4. Roles on scrutiny and effective use of scrutiny resources 

 
Scrutiny budget 

4.1 There continues to be no dedicated budget for scrutiny and officer’s time spent on scrutiny is 
absorbed within the Democratic Services team or by resources in other service areas.   
 
Officer resources 

4.2 Experience has shown that the requirement for officer resources on any particular scrutiny task 
group can vary considerably with the nature of the review. For example the concentrated work 
necessary to support the scrutiny task group on household formation rates was estimated to have 
used 5 days of lead officer time from Pat Pratley, Executive Director in addition to 8 days of officer 
support for administering and facilitating meetings.  

4.3 One of the intentions of the new scrutiny arrangements was to share the workload of supporting 
scrutiny task groups across the council. It is estimated that an average scrutiny task group 
requires on average 5 to 8 days of officer time to facilitate a review In practice 70% of the scrutiny 
task groups have been facilitated by officers from Democratic Services. Experience has shown 
that it is far easier to monitor and track the progress of task groups when they are supported by 
Democratic Services. However it also became clear during the year that the team cannot 
effectively support more than three ad hoc scrutiny task groups at any one time alongside its 
ongoing support for the main committee and the budget scrutiny working group. It is still important 
to give officers across the council experience of supporting scrutiny task groups and this will 
continue to be our aim. 

4.4 As well as the lead officer and facilitating role, a whole range of other officers have given their 
time to supporting scrutiny task groups by providing their specialist expertise and knowledge. This 

Page 62



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 7 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

has been invaluable to the working groups and this work needs to be acknowledged and planned 
for.  
Scrutiny Member resources 

4.5 Under the new scrutiny arrangements, members of the ‘scrutiny pool’ i.e the 33 elected members 
not on the Cabinet have been invited to volunteer to join a scrutiny task group where they have a 
particular interest. 

4.6 Membership of task groups has been concentrated on a smaller group of members. 43% of the 
membership of scrutiny task groups has been made up by members of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 6 Members or 18% of Members eligible have not been on any scrutiny task groups. 
Similarly 7 Members or 21% have been on 3 or 4 scrutiny task groups. It is hoped that going 
forward all members will find a topic that interests them and be able to put themselves forward for 
a scrutiny task group. 
 

Members on scrutiny task groups (excluding Cabinet 
Members) 

One STG
2 STGs
3/4 STGs 
No STGS

  
4.7 Other Members have represented the council on other countywide scrutiny committees. 

Councillor Klara Sudbury represented the council on the Gloucestershire Health and Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee (GHOSC) up until May 2013 and her position has now been taken by 
Councillor Penny Hall. Councillor Helena McCloskey was on the Gloucestershire Crime and 
Disorder Overview and Scrutiny Committee (now disbanded) and the new Police and Crime 
Panel. The O&S committee valued their regular updates to the committee.   
 
 
The Role of Cabinet and its relationship with Overview and Scrutiny 

4.8 Some Cabinet Members have regularly attended meetings of the Overview and scrutiny 
Committee mainly as observers. Cabinet Members have also been invited to attend or contribute 
to a range of scrutiny task groups linked to their portfolio.  This table shows the split of scrutiny 
task groups across the Cabinet portfolios. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 8 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

 
 
Cabinet 
Member 

Leader Corporate 
Services 

Sustain
-ability 

Housing 
and Safety 

Built 
Environment 

Finance Leisure 
& 
Culture 

No of 
scrutiny 
task groups 
related to 
portfolio 

2 1 3 2 0 1 2 

Attendance 
at 9 O&S 
committees 
(Budget 
scrutiny – 4 
meetings) 

4 
 
 
1 

1 
 
 
1 

6 5 0 1 
 
 
4 

1 
 
 
1 

 
 
4.9 Officers met informally with the Cabinet in March this year to get their feedback on the new 

arrangements at a time when a number of scrutiny task groups were bringing their reports to 
Cabinet. A number of issues were highlighted at this meeting: 
• Some Cabinet Members have sometimes found it difficult to dedicate time to scrutiny 

alongside their work in support of their portfolio and questioned the relative priority of some 
scrutiny topics with work that they were doing to support the corporate plan. 

• They were unclear about the process for bringing recommendations to Cabinet and why task 
group reports were going to Council prior to coming to Cabinet. 

• They felt that some scrutiny task groups extended beyond their original remit. 
• There was concern about how the call in had operated 
• The scrutiny workplan should be more aligned to the work of partnerships and the corporate 

strategy/risk register/audit plan   
 

4.10 Experience has shown that the most effective scrutiny task groups involve the Cabinet Member at 
the start, during the process and provide them with the opportunity to comment on the draft report 
at the conclusion of the review. In this way they can develop a deeper understanding of the work 
of the task group and there are no surprises when it comes to the final report and 
recommendations.  

4.11 Recently the Overview and Scrutiny Committee have raised some questions about the role of 
Cabinet Member Working Groups in relation to overview and scrutiny. They felt that in some 
instances when areas for scrutiny work had been suggested, it had been advised that an issue 
was already being looked at by a Cabinet Member Working Group and therefore it would be 
duplication if scrutiny looked at it as well. The role of such a working group is to assist the Cabinet 
Member in developing or reviewing policy and provides a cross party view. In contrast to scrutiny 
task groups these are led by the Cabinet Member and do not make any formal recommendations 
but informs the report that the Cabinet Member takes to Cabinet. When this was discussed at a 
recent chair’s briefing for O&S it was suggested that in many cases these working groups were 
effectively carrying out the ‘overview’ role of Overview and Scrutiny. This needs to be reviewed 
and we should look to other councils for their experiences in this area. 
 
Co-optees 

4.12 Scrutiny task groups were encouraged to consider co-opting individuals to participate in the work 
of the committee when carrying out scrutiny of a particular topic where they have a particular 

Page 64



 

   

$4ht52ypd.doc Page 9 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

knowledge or expertise in the topic being considered. The JCS task group brought in two co-
optees from Gloucester City and Tewkesbury Borough and the Community Governance Review 
had three parish councillors on its group. Apart from that the use of co-optees has been limited 
and this is something we would encourage all task groups to consider when deciding their method 
of approach.   
 

5. Next Steps 
5.1 The chair and vice-chair of Overview and Scrutiny will work with Democratic Services to develop 

and enhance the scrutiny arrangements taking on board the feedback set out in this report. An  
action plan will be drawn up in liaison with the Cabinet and the Senior Management team. If any 
changes to the Council’s Constitution are required these will be forwarded to the Constitution 
working group for initial consideration and any changes would need to be approved by Council.  

6. Alternative options considered 
6.1 Not applicable.   
7. Consultation and feedback 

7.1 All members and officers were invited to participate in the review and a wide range of feedback 
was received and incorporated into the conclusions.   

8. Performance management –monitoring and review 
8.1 The progress of the new arrangements for overview and scrutiny will continue to be monitored by 

Democratic Services, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Cabinet Member Corporate 
Services, Councillor Jon Walklett. 
 

Report author Contact officer: Rosalind.Reeves, Democratic Services Manager, 
Rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk,  
01242 77 4937 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Results of the scrutiny survey 
3. Annual Report 

Background information Report to Council 12 December 2001 on the new arrangements for  
Overview and Scrutiny 

 

Page 65



 

   
$4ht52ypd.doc Page 10 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-4 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Comments as at July 2013 

 If any new 
arrangements are 
not supported by a 
change in culture 
across members 
and officers they 
may not be 
successful in 
delivering the 
outcomes required, 
 

Director 
Commissioning 

27/9/11 3 3 9 Reduce Get members and 
officers buy in 
during the review 
by seeking their 
views and ideas. 
Seek advice on 
cultural change 
during the next 
phase. 

There is now a much better 
understanding of the new scrutiny 
arrangements by officers and members 
who have been involved in scrutiny task 
groups. However some culture changes 
are still needed and the relationship 
between Cabinet and scrutiny needs to 
be developed. 

 If the council 
cannot appoint 
dedicated scrutiny 
officers to support 
the new 
arrangements they 
will not be fully 
effective. 

Director 
Commissioning 

1/12/11 3 3 9 Reduce Optimise the use 
of existing 
resources in the 
new 
arrangements   

The role of officers on scrutiny task 
groups has been clearly defined and the 
use of existing resources has been 
optimised. In the current financial 
constraints many councils are moving 
away from having dedicated scrutiny 
officers preferring instead to utilise their 
democratic services staff in multiple 
roles.  

 If the task groups 
operate outside of 
the democratic 
process, then 
scrutiny could 
become disjointed 
and progress 
difficult to control 

Director 
Commissioning 

1/12/11 3 3 9 Accept Guidance to 
officers 
supporting task  
groups on 
keeping 
documentation 
and reporting 
back to 

Scrutiny task groups have been well 
organised with agendas and notes of 
meetings being kept. Task groups 
facilitated by officers outside democratic 
services have been more difficult to track 
progress but officers have been 
encouraged to adopt standard  
procedures and good practice. This has 

P
age 66



 

   
$4ht52ypd.doc Page 11 of 11 Last updated 15 July 2013 
 

and track.  Democratic 
services.    

been assisted by the production of a 
scrutiny guide available on the intranet.  

 If members do not 
put themselves 
forward for task 
groups the 
workload could be 
unevenly shared 
across members 
and be a source of 
potential conflict or 
result in task 
groups not having 
the right skill mix.  

Groups 
Leaders 

1/12/11 3 3 9 Reduce Utilise the skills 
audit 
Group Leaders to 
manage, monitor 
and encourage 
participation 
 
Task groups to 
maintain records 
of attendance 

This has been an issue as has been 
demonstrated by the statistics in this 
report. There needs to be a better 
understanding of why some members 
are not engaging in the scrutiny process. 

 If scrutiny does not 
have any dedicated 
budget it will be 
difficult to promote 
public involvement 
and engagement  

Council  1/12/11 2 3 6 Reduce Utilise relevant 
project budgets 
Consider 
allocating small 
budget to O&S as 
part of budget 
round 

Scrutiny does not have a dedicated 
budget but this has not been a 
significant issue. Some limited 
underspend in the Democratic Services 
budget for 2012/3 has been carried 
forward to 2013/14 for the purposes of 
engaging the public e.g some public 
consultation may be appropriate.   

Explanatory notes 
Impact – an assessment of the impact if the risk occurs on a scale of 1-4 (4 being the greatest impact) 
Likelihood – how likely is it that the risk will occur on a scale of 1-6 (6 being most likely) 
Control - Either: Reduce / Accept / Transfer to 3rd party / Close 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 67



Page 68
This page is intentionally left blank



Ho
w 
do

 yo
u t

hin
k s

cru
tin

y i
s o

pe
rat

ing
 at

 C
BC

 at
 th

e m
om

en
t? 

If y
ou

 ha
ve
 be

en
 in

vo
lve

d i
n a

 sc
ru
tin

y t
as
k g

ro
up

 ho
w 
wo

uld
 yo

u r
ate

 its
 ef

fec
tiv

en
es
s?

Ve
ry 
Eff

ec
tiv
eEff
ec
tiv
e

Le
ss
 th
an
 ef
fec

tiv
e

Po
or

Ve
ry 

eff
ec
tiv
e

Eff
ec
tiv
e 

bu
t c
ou
ld 

be
 

im
pro

ve
d

Le
ss
 th
an
 

eff
ec
tiv
e

Po
or

Me
mb

ers
 20

13
0%

44
%

52
%

4%
Me

mb
ers

 20
13

43
%

39
%

9%
9%

Me
mb

ers
 20

11
0%

20
%

65
%

15
%

Ho
w 
wo

uld
 yo

u r
ate

 th
e o

ffic
er 

su
pp

or
t fo

r t
he

 ta
sk
 gr

ou
ps

 yo
u h

av
e b

ee
n i

nv
olv

ed
 in

?
Is 
ca
bin

et 
be

ing
 ef

fec
tiv

ely
 he

ld 
to 

ac
co

un
t?

Ex
ce
lle
nt

Go
od

OK
Po

or
Eff

ec
tiv
ely

 
he
ld 
to 

ac
co
un
t

Eff
ec
tiv
ely

 he
ld 
to 

ac
co
un
t b
ut 
co
uld

 
be
 im

pro
ve
d

Ra
rel
y 

he
ld 
to 

ac
co
un
t

Do
n't
 kn

ow
Me

mb
ers

 20
13

57
%

22
%

9%
4%

Me
mb

ers
 20

13
4%

43
%

46
%

7%
Me

mb
ers

 20
11

5%
25
%

50
%

20
%

Me
mb

ers
 20

11
5%

35
%

55
%

5%
If y

ou
 ha

vn
't b

ee
n i

nv
olv

ed
 in

 a 
sc
ru
tin

y t
as
k g

ro
up

 w
ha

t a
re 

yo
u r

ea
so

ns
?

No
 

La
ck
 of
 

Do
n't
 fe
el 

sc
rut

iny
 

Is 
sc
ru
tin

y c
on

tri
bu

tin
g t

o t
he

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
ne

w 
po

lic
ies

 an
d s

tra
teg

ies
?

Tim
e o

f 
me

eti
ng
s

No
 

int
ere

st 
in 

top
ics

La
ck
 of
 

tim
e t
o g

et 
inv

olv
ed

sc
rut

iny
 

ca
n m

ak
e 

a 
Ye

s
No

Pa
rtia

lly
No

t s
ure

Me
mb

ers
 20

13
13
%

25
%

50
%

13
%

Me
mb

ers
 20

13
25
%

18
%

36
%

21
%

Me
mb

ers
 20

11
5%

10
%

75
%

10
%

Ye
s

Pa
rtia

lly
No

I d
on
't 

un
de
rst
an
d h

ow
 

the
y w

ill b
e h

eld
 

to 
ac
co
un
t

Me
mb

ers
 20

13
15
%

33
%

30
%

22
%

Is 
sc
ru
tin

y a
ch

iev
ing

 po
ss
itiv

e o
utc

om
es
 fo

r t
he

 re
sid

en
ts 

of 
Ch

elt
en

ha
m?

Ye
s

No
Pa

rtia
lly

No
t s
ure

Do
 yo

u f
ee
l th

at 
the

 m
ec
ha

nis
ms

 an
d p

ro
ce
ss
es
 ar

e i
n p

lac
e f

or
 ef

fec
tiv

e s
cru

tin
y o

f 

00.10.20.30.40.50.60.7

Ef
fec

tiv
e

Po
or

Ho
w 
do

 yo
u t

hin
k s

cru
tin

y i
s o

pe
rat

ing
 at
 

CB
C 
at 

the
 m

om
en

t?

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
3

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
1

00.10.20.30.40.50.6

Ye
s

No
Pa

rtia
lly

No
t s
ure

Is 
sc
ru
tin

y a
ch

ev
ing

 po
sit

ive
 ou

tco
me

s f
or
 th

e 
res

ide
nts

 of
 C
he

lte
nh

am
?

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
3

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
1

Ye
s

No
Pa

rtia
lly

No
t s
ure

Me
mb

ers
 20

13
15
%

33
%

30
%

22
%

Me
mb

ers
 20

11
10
%

25
%

55
%

5%

Ex
ce
lle
nt 
- 

a g
rea

t 
im
pro

ve
m

me
nt

Go
od
- S

om
e 

im
pro

ve
me

nts

Ab
ou
t th

e 
sa
me

 - n
o 

ch
an
ge

Po
or 

- a
 

ba
ck
wa

rd 
ste

p
Me

mb
ers

 20
13

8%
46
%

29
%

17
%

Ex
ce
lle
nt

Go
od

OK
 bu

t 
ne
ed
s 

im
pro

ve
m

en
t

Po
or

Ov
era

ll h
ow

 do
 yo

u r
ate

 th
e n

ew
 sc

ru
tin

y a
rra

ng
em

en
ts 

co
mp

are
d w

ith
 th

e f
or
me

r 

Th
e n

ew
 O
ve
rvi

ew
 an

d S
cru

tin
y C

om
mi

tte
e w

as
 se

t u
p a

s a
 m

an
ag

ing
 an

d c
o-o

rd
ina

tin
g 

Ef
fec

tiv
e

Po
or

00.10.20.30.40.50.6

Ef
fec

tiv
ely

 he
ld 

to 
ac
co
un
t b
ut 

co
uld

 be
 

im
pro

ve
d

Do
n't
 kn

ow

Is 
ca
bin

et 
be

ing
 ef
fec

tiv
ely

 he
ld 

to 
ac
co

un
t?

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
3

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
1

00.20.40.60.8

Ye
s

No
Pa

rtia
lly

No
t s
ure

Is 
sc
ru
tin

y c
on

tri
bu

tin
g t

o t
he

 de
ve
lop

me
nt 

of 
ne

w 
po

lic
ies

 an
d s

tra
teg

ies
?

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
3

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
1

Ye
s

No
Pa

rtia
lly

No
t s
ure

Do
 yo

u f
ee
l y
ou

 ha
ve
 th

e s
kil
ls 
an

d 
ex
pe

rti
se
 to

 ca
rry

 ou
t y
ou

r s
cru

tin
y r

ole
?

Ho
w 
wo

uld
 yo

u r
ate

 th
e o

ffic
er 

su
pp

or
t fo

r t
he

 
tas

k g
ro
up

s y
ou

 ha
ve
 be

en
 in

vo
lve

d i
n?

Ex
ce
lle
nt

Go
od

en
t

Po
or

Me
mb

ers
 20

13
0%

17
%

61
%

22
%

Do
 yo

u f
ee
l y
ou

 ha
ve
 th

e s
kil
ls 
an

d e
xp

ert
ise

 to
 ca

rry
 ou

t y
ou

r s
cru

tin
y r

ole
?

Ye
s

No
Pa

rtia
lly

Do
n't
 kn

ow
Me

mb
ers

 20
13

71
%

0%
24
%

5%
Me

mb
ers

 20
11

55
%

0%
25
%

0%
00.10.20.30.40.50.60.70.8

Ye
s

No
Pa

rtia
lly

Do
n't
 kn

ow

Do
 yo

u f
ee
l y
ou

 ha
ve
 th

e s
kil
ls 
an

d 
ex
pe

rti
se
 to

 ca
rry

 ou
t y
ou

r s
cru

tin
y r

ole
?

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
3

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
1

00.10.20.30.40.50.6

Ex
ce
lle
nt

Go
od

OK
Po

or

Ho
w 
wo

uld
 yo

u r
ate

 th
e o

ffic
er 

su
pp

or
t fo

r t
he

 
tas

k g
ro
up

s y
ou

 ha
ve
 be

en
 in

vo
lve

d i
n? M

em
be
rs
 2
01
3

M
em

be
rs
 2
01
1

Page 69



Page 70
This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Annual Report 2012- 2013 

Page 71



 1 Foreword 

 2 Scrutiny Structure 

 3 Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

 4 Scrutiny Task Groups 

 5 Contacts 

 7 Scrutiny Registration Form for new topics  

Contents  

Page 72



As Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, I am pleased to present the 
annual report for 2012/2013, the first year of our new scrutiny arrangements.  

We have changed the way that the council approaches scrutiny and I hope that the 
result is something more transparent, more effective and more reflective of the concerns 
of local people. 

Scrutiny should fulfil the role of the "critical friend" to the decision makers within the 
council. So far we have focussed on the scrutiny and review of decisions taken and the 
operational delivery of those decisions.  

We have two key challenges in the coming year: 

! to engage with the Cabinet & develop the Overview and Scrutiny Committee role 
in strategic policy development 

! to encourage elected Members to bring forward scrutiny topics that address 
issues in their local communities 

We would welcome suggestions and involvement from the wider community to make 
sure that our work remains current and relevant to the local residents that we serve. 

What we have achieved in our first year is a great step forward and I would like to thank 
those councillors who have worked so hard to bring clear and meaningful 
recommendations before Council and Cabinet. 

1. Foreword
Councillor Duncan Smith 
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee

1. Foreword 
Councillor Duncan Smith 
Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Page 73



Effective Overview and Scrutiny is a vital part of local democracy as it plays a key role in 
holding the Cabinet, officers and the wider council to account. It is important therefore 
to reflect on how well it has done this, as well as what difference it has made to the 
community at large. I personally welcomed the opportunity to be the lead officer for 
Overview and Scrutiny for the first few months in its new format and believe that our 
new arrangements offer great potential for further improving the quality of what we do 
and thereby making even more of a positive difference to Cheltenham people. 

Overview and Scrutiny has brought together cross party working groups on a range of 
different topics from the Sex trade in Cheltenham to allotments and ICT. These groups 
have each met over a series of months with a lead officer and facilitating officer 
supporting them at every stage.  We have seen very positive comments from members 
of working groups on the level of officer support they have received. The different task 
groups have engaged a number of people who have a close understanding of what is 
happening in our local community. The groups have compiled evidence from these 
witnesses, collected statistics, looked into reports prepared by other councils and 
deliberated over options for improvement. They have been able to scope out the 
problems and come up with suggested solutions to the issues which face our 
communities to create a comprehensive report to Cabinet. 

Some recommendations have been taken forward – for example the task groups on 
Grass Cutting and Allotments respectively made recommendations which Cabinet agreed 
in full. For other task groups the Cabinet has forwarded a report to outside bodies or has 
initiated further consideration internally. It may be that the timeliness and thoroughness 
of consideration of the recommendations by Cabinet (and subsequent follow up) could 
benefit from further improvement. There must be a well defined process so that 
expectations are clearly understood by all parties.  

2. My experience of scrutiny in the first year of the new 
arrangements
Andrew North  
Chief Executive 

Page 74



The replacement of three Overview and Scrutiny Committees with one is still a relatively 
recent development. The arrangements have undoubtedly had their problems and the 
challenge is to improve satisfaction with the new structure amongst councillors and 
council officers. However, I believe that with wholehearted commitment, Overview and 
Scrutiny will become a highly valued process in the work of the council. 

We might consider the potential to increase the scope of Overview and Scrutiny by 
asking the public what topics they think should be considered. This is a suggestion 
which has been widely proposed in a recent survey. This could significantly improve the 
council’s accountability to the public.  

I hope you will agree with me that Overview and Scrutiny at Cheltenham Borough 
Council has made some strong steps following its recent changes and I hope that it can 
build upon the strengths to make the council even more effective, transparent and 
accountable. 
!

Page 75



Officer Support

Member Seminars and 
Briefings

Member Training

Budget 
Scrutiny 
Working 
Group

Rep on 
County 
Health, 

Community & 
Care O&S 
Committee

Rep on Glos
Police and 

Crime Panel

(Advisory)
Commissioning 
working groups

Standing and 
ad-hoc 

Scrutiny Task 
Groups

Council

Appoints O&S Chairman and Members
Receives annual report

(Advisory)
AMWG/TMP

Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

Commissions O&S work through scrutiny task 
groups, joint work with other authorities or itself

Cabinet

Receives recommendations 
from and refers matters to O&S

Audit 
Committee

3. Overview and Scrutiny Structure 

Page 76



The committee is responsible for managing and coordinating the overview and scrutiny 
activity within the Council. It commissions scrutiny task groups to carry out the detailed 
work ensuring that they have clear terms of reference. It is also responsible for receiving 
and determining how any call-ins of Cabinet decisions should be dealt with.  

Key achievements 
! Set up and maintained a scrutiny workplan 
! Dealt with a call-in of the rickshaw decision made by Cabinet in December 2012 
! Set up an ongoing group for scrutiny of the budget 
! Scrutiny task groups- final reports with recommendations were published for: 

o ICT
o Events 
o Grass verge cutting 
o Allotments 
o Sex Trade in Cheltenham 
o Ubico 
o JCS and Planning and Liaison 
o Community Governance Review 

! Initiated a review of the new scrutiny arrangements starting with a questionnaire 
sent to councillors and officers and reported the results to Council in July. 

4. Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Chairman: Councillor Duncan Smith 

Committee membership: 
Councillors Ian Bickerton, Nigel Britter, Barbara Driver, Colin Hay, 
Diane Hibbert, Helena McCloskey, Chris Ryder and  
Klara Sudbury (Vice-Chair).  

Officer contact: 
Rosalind Reeves, Democratic Services Manager 
rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk
01242 774937 

Page 77



The budget scrutiny working group formed a permanent part of the new scrutiny 
arrangements set up by Council in May 2012.  The idea behind setting it up as a 
standing group was that the budget was such a complex area that it could no longer be 
scrutinised effectively as a one-off exercise. Members needed to be build up their 
expertise and understanding of financial matters so that they could review the budget 
strategy, the bridging the gap programme and be in a position to respond to the budget 
proposals as well as scrutinising the business cases of major projects within the 
commissioning framework.  

Key Findings and recommendations: 

During the year the budget scrutiny working group scrutinised the following:  

! The annual budget setting report (including Section 151 Officer report) and 
financial outturn report and made recommendations on simplifying the format to 
more appropriately meet members needs for future years 

! Review of the strategy for the New Homes Bonus 
! The business case for the ICT commissioning review 
! The financial aspects of the leisure and culture commissioning review 
! In January they reviewed the interim budget proposals for 2013/14 but did not 

choose to make any recommendations to Cabinet 

Has it made a difference? 

The working group are now in a much better position to be able to contribute to budget 
scrutiny going forward. They have recognised there are some substantial savings 
identified in the Medium Term Financial Strategy where they can scrutinise the relevant 
business cases delivering those savings.   

As the new chair of the group, Councillor Rob Garnham said recently;      
“The focus of the budget scrutiny working group should be to scrutinise what the council 
had said they were going to do and not what we would like them to do in terms of the 
budget and at the same time ensure financial risks are being appropriately managed.” 

5.0 Budget Scrutiny Working Group  
Chair : Councillor Andrew Wall (2012) and Councillor Rob 
Garnham from June 2013

Task group members: 
Councillors Chris Coleman, Tim Harman, Dianne Hibbert, Paul 
Massey and Klara Sudbury.   
Officer support : Mark Sheldon and Rosalind Reeves  

Page 78



The task group was set up by the Council following concerns raised in the media that 
Cheltenham might be a potential "hotspot" of activity for the illegal trade of sexually 
exploited young or vulnerable people.  It was felt that stories like this could damage the 
reputation of the town.  

“What I want to do is either put the whole thing to bed and find that Cheltenham 
doesn't have a problem or, if there is a problem, discover what we can do about it,” said 
Councillor Barbara Driver in proposing the review.    

Key Findings and recommendations: 

After talking to senior police officers and representatives from a range of agencies, the 
task group were pleased to establish that sex trafficking was not a significant issue for 
the town and the level of sexual exploitation of vulnerable children and adults was no 
more prevalent than in other similar towns. However all agencies were aware that "the 
stone remains unturned" and there were no room for complacency. 

When Cabinet received the task group report on the 16 April 2013, they felt that the 
issue needed a multi agency approach and referred all the recommendations to the 
Positive Lives Partnership with a request that they report back to Cabinet.  

Has it made a difference? 

The Cabinet Member Councillor Peter Jeffries reports that the multi agency Positive Lives 
Partnership is following up all the recommendations and will be reporting back to 
Cabinet in September 2013.  In the meantime scrutiny members have received a 
briefing note updating them on some very positive actions already underway prompted 
by the scrutiny task group recommendations.  These include: 

! A task group has been set up to scope the need for emergency housing 
provision for the vulnerable in Cheltenham 

5.1 Sex Trade in Cheltenham Scrutiny Task Group  
Chair : Councillor Barbara Driver  

Task group members: 
Councillors Andrew Chard, Paul Massey, Anne Regan and Diggory 
Seacome  
Officer support: Andrew North; Rosalind Reeves and Sidgoree 
Nelson (County Council) 

Page 79



! A series of safeguarding events and awareness raising sessions are being 
planned with one prior to race week 

! Partnerships are working with the police to understand the issue of safeguarding 
children at risk of abuse through child exploitation in Cheltenham and 
Gloucestershire 

The Police and Crime Commissioner also received a copy of their report. He had found it 
very helpful and said he would discuss the report with the Chief Constable and ask her 
to consider how best to address this important issue. He also encouraged O&S to revisit 
the subject in due course. 

The task group was set up in July 2012 to assess whether the  current ICT service was 
resilient and fit for purpose and to help define the outcomes for the ICT commissioning 
exercise which was about to start. 

In November they reconvened to review the aftermath of the ICT virus and satisfy 
themselves that all the necessary actions had been put in place. 

Key Findings and recommendations: 

The group supported many of the findings of the ICT review carried out in 2011 but 
through their recommendations highlighted a number of areas which needed to be 
addressed. These included: 

! difficulties with resources and staff morale and the task group recommended 
that the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) ensure the necessary strategic lead is 
given to the service and its staff 

! disaster recovery must be reviewed to ensure the best long-term option is 
adopted 

! councillors ICT facilities must be addressed as part of the ICT review 

5.2 ICT Scrutiny Task Group  
Chair : Councillor Colin Hay  

Task group members: 
Councillors Andrew Chard, Simon Wheeler and Andy Wall 
(although he was not able to attend any of the meetings)  
Officer support: Mark Sheldon, Matt Thomas and Rosalind 
Reeves

Page 80



All the recommendations of the task group were accepted by Cabinet and input into the 
outcomes of the ICT commissioning review. 

Has it made a difference? 

ICT Services are now shared with Forest of Dean where there is a shared ICT manager. 
The director of resources, Mark Sheldon, is the client officer for the service so can report 
directly to SLT and raise any issues with the service provider.  

The rollout of remote working facilities for members was accelerated and all councillors 
now have the option of Citrix remote working. An action plan has been produced for 
improving councillors ICT facilities and the importance of this is now more widely 
acknowledged.

There are still ongoing issues with the ICT service but the task group raised members 
understanding and awareness of the issues through the scrutiny review. 

Page 81



The task group was set up in July 2012 following a petition submitted to Council against 
a preliminary proposal for the development of an allotment site on part of Weavers Field 
in the borough. This petition had raised various issues, not least the process for 
identifying the need for allotment sites in Cheltenham. In addition the council had 
received a number of queries from the public on unattended allotments and it was 
agreed that the council’s allotment strategy needed to be reviewed.   

Key Findings and recommendations: 

Having spoken to the allotments officer and green space manager, the Cheltenham and 
District allotments association, transition town Cheltenham and the Cabinet Member 
responsible for allotments and having visited two allotment sites managed by the council 
and a potential new allotment site, the task group came up with 11 recommendations to 
Cabinet.  

These included: 
! Maintaining dialogues with parish councils in terms of their responsibilities for 

addressing allotment waiting lists 
! reviewing the enforcement of uncultivated plots to alleviate pressure on waiting 

lists
! pursuing the development of council owned land at Priors Farm in the north of 

the borough into allotments 
! reviewing current lines of communication with allotment stakeholders and 

council officers 
! ensuring consideration is given to allotment provision in the emerging 

Cheltenham Local Plan 
! investigating opportunities to work in partnership with organisations such as  

Cheltenham Borough Homes, Gloucestershire Association for Voluntary and 
Community Action and Cheltenham Community Projects, to facilitate a scheme 
to distribute surplus produce to those in most need in the town.  

Chair of the task group, Councillor Anne Regan said “We hope these recommendations 
will lead to a more effective and enhanced service within the borough council”.  

5.3 Allotments Scrutiny Task Group   
Chair : Councillor Anne Regan   

Task group members: 
Councillors Nigel Britter, Colin Hay, Helena McCloskey, Charlie 
Stewart and Duncan Smith  

Officer support: Beverly Thomas, Emma Burton and Adam 
Reynolds  

Page 82



Upon receipt of the task group’s report the Cabinet Member Sustainability Roger 
Whyborn welcomed its “constructive recommendations”. The majority of 
recommendations of the task group were accepted by Cabinet subject to feasibility and 
resources. 

Has it made a difference? 
As far as progress to date on these recommendations is concerned, communications are 
becoming well established with the parish councils both at officer level and Cabinet 
Member level. Consultation with regard to developing land into allotments at Priors Farm 
will take place by the Autumn. Local feeling will be an important element in the decision 
making process and it is hoped that the results can feed into a formal decision later this 
year.  

A new tenancy agreement, set to be in place by 1 January 2014 for all allotment 
holders, should assist in tackling uncultivated plots as too will the leaflet jointly written 
by the Allotment Officer and the Allotment Association regarding the level of 
commitment involved in having an allotment. The Allotment Officer is now being more 
proactive in visiting sites and is adopting new technology to assist her greatly in the 
administration surrounding allotments. Twice yearly meetings have now been 
established between the council and the Allotment Association and quarterly site warden 
meetings continue.  

With regard to partnership working to distribute surplus produce to the most needy in 
the town, conversations have taken place but there are some issues regarding logistics 
and the collection of produce. 

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee is scheduled to undertake a review early 2014 to 
ascertain what action has been taken on its recommendations but it would appear 
already that positive steps are being taken. 

Page 83



This scrutiny task group was one of the first to be set up under the new arrangements 
following some dissatisfaction with the way some grass verges in the town had been 
maintained during the summer months. Their terms of reference asked them to look at 
the policies and service level agreements between the council and Gloucester County 
Council who carried out the work. They also wanted to understand how customer 
service issues are handled and make any recommendations for improvement.  

Over four meetings they spoke to a range of people and examined a variety of evidence.  

Findings and Recommendations 

At the conclusion of the review, the task group recognised that the weather was a big 
factor with the summer of 2012 being one of the wettest on record.  They came up with 
10 wide ranging recommendations which included: 

! continuing to cut grass in wet weather whenever feasible 
! regular contract management meetings 
! the current frequency of cutting should continue but officers from CBC/Ubico and 

Gloucestershire County Council should meet to consider the biodiversity 
opportunities for verges within the town 

! including grass verges in the green space strategy 
! encourage the county council to take action on illegal parking on verges 
! the website should be updated as a matter of urgency to ensure that service 

standards are specified and that the website is updated daily during service 
disruption 

! quality audits 

The task group report was considered by Cabinet in December 2012. The Cabinet 
Member Sustainability, Councillor Roger Whyborn welcomed the report and said “that 
the review had been thorough and he recommended that Cabinet accept all the 
recommendations. He looked forward to increased liaison with Gloucestershire Highways 
and Ubico via monthly meetings”. 

5.4 Grass verge cutting Scrutiny Task Group  
Chair : Councillor Penny Hall  

Task group members: 
Councillors Nigel Britter and Jacky Fletcher     
Officer support : Jane Griffiths, John Rees, Tony McNamara and 
Chris Riley (County Council) 

Page 84



Has it made a difference? 

O&S are due to have a formal follow-up of the recommendations in September 2013.  In 
the meantime regular officer meetings are being held with the county council and 
consideration is being given to biodiversity issues.  GCC have confirmed that the new on 
street parking contract, which commenced on 1 April, specifies that enforcement can 
take place and tickets issued where the verges are adjacent to roads with restricted 
double yellow line parking and will be happy to deal with any hot spot areas if brought 
to their attention.  The website now has details of what the public can expect in relation 
to the grass cutting of verges and quality audits are undertaken.  The green space 
strategy is still under review but officers recognise that verges form a significant part in 
the development of green corridors across the town which help wildlife and biodiversity. 
Officers who attend the regular monthly meetings with the county council have said that 
the meetings are beneficial as it enables everyone to share plans and issues and have a 
better understanding of what is happening in the area and therefore they are really 
worthwhile.   

Page 85



The task group was set up in July 2012 to engage with elected members on the joint 
core strategy and other strategic development issues in light of the changes to the 
planning framework.  

In October they were set a very specific task by Council to evaluate the alternative 
methods of assessing household formation rates over the period of the JCS plan and 
feedback their conclusions and recommendations to the JCS Member Steering Group on 
31 January 2013.  They worked to a very tight timescale in order not to delay the 
progress on the Joint Core Strategy work across the three councils and had six meetings 
over two months. They were supported by the Planning Advisory Service and the 
technical work was carried out by the Cambridge Centre for Housing and Planning 
Research who produced a very detailed report for the working group.  

Key Findings and recommendations: 

The group concluded that the JCS should continue to plan on the basis of the projected 
household formation rates that had been proposed but with the need for ongoing review 
as more information became available.  Their recommendations were reported directly 
to the Joint Core Strategy member steering group via the O&S Committee.  

Has it made a difference? 

The speedy conclusion of the working group enabled the JCS to continue with its 
planned timetable. It also provided Cheltenham Councillors with a greater understanding 
of household formation rates and some reassurance about the figures being used in the 
JCS going forward.  

The working group have now returned to their original terms of reference. Supported by 
Tracey Crews and Judith Baker, they are now playing an important role as a sounding 
board, feeding members views into the programme moving forward. 

5.5 JCS and Planning and Liaison Scrutiny Task Group
Chair : Councillor Tim Harman  

Task group members: 
Councillors Ian Bickerton, Les Godwin, Helena McCloskey and 
Andrew Wall with co-optees Councillor Derek Davies (TBC) and 
Councillor Chris Chatterton (Glos City)   
Officer support : Pat Pratley, Jennie Williams, Rosalind Reeves, 
David Halkyard and Mike Redman.  

Page 86



How do councillors and the public find out about and have their say on major events 
being planned in the town which could have a potential impact on communities or the 
town's reputation if not managed correctly? 

That was the question posed to the Events scrutiny task group which was set up last 
year. They wanted to understand the current requirements for events organisers and 
how the whole process could be improved.   

The task group were supported by a range of officers across the council representing 
community protection, licensing, parks and gardens, environmental health, transport 
and legal.

Key Findings and recommendations: 

Many other councils had established some form of multi-agency Safety Advisory Group 
as a tool in planning the safety of community and other public events and they were 
recognised nationally as good practice.  The working group were very keen that 
councillors should be involved and have their say on proposed events and therefore they 
went one step further and recommended the establishment of an Events Consultative 
Group (ECG).  

The Cabinet received the report of the task group in February 2013 but did not feel able 
to support the recommendations until further work had been done by officers to assess 
the full implications of implementing them. A report was taken to Cabinet in July 2013 
recommending that the Events Consultative Groups should be set up together with a 
Cheltenham Safety Advisory Group. A good result for Overview and Scrutiny.  

Has it made a difference? 

Since the publication of the task group report, despite the recommendations not being 
formally agreed, Events Consultative Groups have been happening and have considered 
events such as The Half Marathon in September and Cheltenham Motor Sports Expo 

5.6 Events Scrutiny Task Group  
Chair : Councillor Penny Hall  

Task group members: 
Councillors Anne Regan, Nigel Britter, Dianne Hibbert, Diggory 
Seacome and Klara Sudbury.   
Officer support : Saira Malin, Rosalind Reeves, Louis Krog and 
Sarah Clark.

Page 87



2013 in September. Licensing Officers have advised that up to 3rd July, 67 event 
applications had been received this year and processed with one in four leading to an 
ECG.

Councillor Penny Hall has been involved in one of these pilot groups and has discussed 
the ECG's with other councillors who had taken part said, “this time last year there was 
no process by which councillors would even be informed that these events were 
proposed let alone take part in consultation discussions with the proposed Event 
Organisers”

The newly commissioned waste service from Ubico came into operation on 1 April 2012 
and six months on the task group was set up to review the service level agreements and 
whether the benefits were being realised. They also wanted to examine the service from 
the customer's point of view and understand how the service was being monitored. 

They held Q and A sessions with a range of officers (from both Ubico and the council) 
and met with the councillor who holds an observer position on the Ubico board. The 
working group visited the depots in both Cheltenham and Cotswold to gain an 
understanding of the scale of the operations and talked to a number of the operatives.  
In addition they examined performance and complaints data and they sent out a 
questionnaire in relation to the trade waste service. The working group were also keen 
to consider the service disruption due to the snow in January 2013 and held a special 
meeting where they questioned officers and the Cabinet Member.  

5.7 Ubico Scrutiny Task Group  
Chair : Councillor Andrew Chard    

Task group members: 
Councillors Tim Harman, Jacky Fletcher, Charlie Stewart, Pat 
Thornton and Suzanne Williams    
Officer support: Jane Griffiths and Saira Malin  

Page 88



Key Findings and recommendations: 

Given the importance to the public of the service disruption the working group reported 
their finding on this matter to the O&S committee in February and members thanked the 
working group for their report. They concluded that no councillors would feel 
comfortable about the events that had taken place and therefore it was important for 
the Cabinet Member Working group on Waste and Recycling to be given time to carry 
out a full review and put in place the necessary improvements.   

The scrutiny task group presented their final report and recommendations to Cabinet on 
16 April 2013. Although some of the recommendations related to Ubico, many of their 
findings related to the way in which the council was managing the service contract.  
They made a number of practical recommendations regarding customer service, 
communications strategy, waste and recycling literature and they also challenged the 
decision not to nominate any borough councillors as voting members of the Ubico Board.  
They identified lessons to be learnt from the service disruption in January, highlighting 
the needs for clear accountability and responsibility in a commissioner/provider 
environment and effective communication with the public and members.   

Has it made a difference? 

This was the first time a commissioned service had been subject to scrutiny so it was a 
learning vehicle for everybody setting a model for future scrutiny.  One of the issues the 
council needs to be mindful of in similar reviews in future relates to the communications 
and media messages.  Many of the recommendations related to CBC activity but were 
reported in the media as Ubico issues and we need to ensure that in future we have 
more clarity in our recommendations as to where responsibility lies to take action. 

In response to the review the Cabinet Member Sustainability thanked the scrutiny task 
group for its in-depth work.  In terms of the service disruption the Cabinet Member 
acknowledged that what was most important for the future was for the council to have 
robust continuity plans in place and that communications to the public are clear.  A 
briefing note setting out how the lessons learnt will be applied was set out at Cabinet in 
April 2013 and is also being picked up via the Gloucestershire Joint Waste Committee. 

Work is ongoing with the other recommendations and a report will be brought back to 
the O&S Committee later in the year.  A joint Systems Thinking review between Ubico 
and CBC has been undertaken looking at the end to end customer services process and 
a number of processes are now being redesigned.  Work is also ongoing to review trade 
waste looking at opportunities for the service. 

Page 89



The council has the power to carry out a community governance review (CGR) which is 
a review of the whole or part of the council’s area which could result in creating parish 
councils, changing existing boundaries or abolishing them. A review was requested by 
three of Cheltenham's parish councils and the scrutiny task group was set up in June 
2012 to set out terms of reference for such a review for Council approval. Council 
requested that these terms of reference should specify the areas under review and how 
the review would be carried out including plans for consultation. 

Parish council input was considered essential so the task group invited all parish 
councillors to be represented on the task group which resulted in three members from 
Leckhampton with Warden Hill, Charlton Kings and Up Hatherley Parish Council being 
co-opted to the task group.   

The group met on several occasions but did not adopt the normal procedure for task 
groups in electing a member to chair the task group. Consequently although the task 
group was very well supported by officers and the parish councils, it lacked the strong 
member leadership necessary for successful scrutiny. 

Findings and recommendations  

The task group’s proposals would extend the parish council boundaries for Leckhampton 
with Warden Hill, Charlton Kings and Up Hatherley Parish Council and they proposed 
that public consultation would be carried out in these expanded areas excluding the 
residents already within the existing parish council boundaries.  Their report included an 
estimated cost of £3600, a proposal for how the results would be analysed and a 
proposed 12 month timescale competing in May 2014. 

When the task group brought its report to O&S in November 2012, it took the form of a 
series of questions to the scrutiny committee on its suggested approach rather than 
specific recommendations.  This was a difficult challenge for O&S as the normal role for 
the committee is to satisfy themselves that the task group has met their terms of 
reference and the task group report is of satisfactory quality before forwarding the 
recommendations, in this case to Council.  O&S did not feel they were in a position to 
endorse the recommendations and Council subsequently deferred the review, asking for 
it to be completed in time for the next parish council elections, at that time planned for 
2018. 

5.8 Community Governance Review Scrutiny Task Group  
Chair: no Councillor appointed to chair  

Task group members: 
Councillors Barbara Driver and Klara Sudbury and 3 co-opted parish council members   
Officer support: Helen Down  

Page 90



Rosalind Reeves 
Democratic Services Manager 
rosalind.reeves@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 774937 

Saira Malin 
Democracy Officer 
saira.malin@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 775153 

Beverly Thomas 
Democracy Officer 
beverly.thomas@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 775049 

Rachael Sanderson/Sam Howe 
Democracy Assistants 
rachael.sanderson@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 264130 
sam.howe@cheltenham.gov.uk 
01242 775153 

Postal address 
Democratic Services 
Cheltenham Borough Council 
Municipal Offices 
The Promenade 
Cheltenham 
GL50 9SA 

6. Contacts

Page 91



SCRUTINY TOPIC REGISTRATION 

Do YOU have a topic that you think Cheltenham Borough 
Council should scrutinise? Please fill out the following form 
and return to Democratic Services. 

Date:

Name of person proposing topic: 

Contact details: email and telephone 
no:
Suggested title of topic: 

    

What is the issue that scrutiny needs to address?  

What do you feel could be achieved by a scrutiny review (outcomes) 

If there a strict time constraint?  
Is the topic important to the people of 
Cheltenham?   
Does the topic involve a poorly 
performing service or high public 
dissatisfaction with a service?  
Is it related to the Council’s corporate 
objectives?
Any other comments: 

Page 92



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 1 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 16 July 2013 
Council – 22 July 2013 

Financial outturn 2012/13 and budget monitoring to May 2013 
Accountable member Councillor John Rawson, Cabinet Member for Finance 
Accountable officer Mark Sheldon, Director Resources 
Accountable scrutiny 
committee 

All 

Ward(s) affected All 
Key Decision No 
Executive summary In accordance with financial rule A11.3, the Section 151 Officer is 

responsible for providing regular reports to the Cabinet on the Council’s 
finances and financial performance. This report highlights the Council’s 
financial performance for the previous year which sets out the General Fund 
and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue and capital outturn position 
for 2012/13. The information contained within this report has been used to 
prepare the Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2012/13. 
 
Financial rule B10.1 states that carry forward of planned underspend of 
revenue budgets into the following financial year will only be allowed with 
the agreement of the Section 151 Officer, in order to meet the needs of 
approved service delivery. Financial rule B10.3 states that all other carry 
forward requests, including budget underspends that have been carried 
forward in previous financial years, will be subject to full Council approval at 
the financial outturn meeting held after the year end. 
 
The Council’s Treasury Management Policy requires the Section 151 Officer 
to report to members annually, by the 30th September, on the treasury 
management activities and prudential indicators for the previous financial 
year. This report also seeks to meet this requirement. 

Recommendations We therefore recommend that Cabinet approve the following 
recommendations to Council: 

1. That Council receive the financial outturn performance position 
for the General Fund, summarised at Appendix 2, and note that 
services have been delivered within the revised budget for 
2012/13 resulting in a saving (after carry forward requests) of 
£201,801.   

2. That furthermore Council: 
     2.1  Approve £216,400 of carry forward requests (requiring member 

approval) at Appendix 6. 
     2.2  Approve the transfer of the budget saving of £201,801 to 

general fund balances. 
3. Note the updated MTFS and budget strategy at Appendix 4. 

Agenda Item 11
Page 93



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 2 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

4. Note the treasury management outturn at Appendix 8 and 
approve the actual 2012/13 prudential and treasury indicators. 

5. Approve the revision to the Treasury Management policy to 
reflect the revised borrowing facility to support the airport 
(Appendix 9). 

6. Approve the amendments to financial rule I9 in respect of write-
off limits as set out in appendix 15 (section 7). 

7. Approve the High Street Innovation Fund reallocation (section 
8). 

8. Note the capital programme outturn position as detailed in 
Appendix 11 and approve the carry forward of unspent budgets 
into 2013/14 (section 10). 

9. Note the position in respect of section 106 agreements and 
partnership funding agreements at Appendix 12 (section 11). 

10. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for 
council tax and non domestic rates for 2012/13 in Appendix 13 
(section 12). 

11. Note the outturn position in respect of collection rates for 
sundry debts for 2012/13 in Appendix 14 (section 13). 

12. Receive the financial outturn performance position for the 
Housing Revenue Account for 2012/13 in Appendices 16 to 17 
(section 14). 

13. Note the budget monitoring position to the end of May 2013 
(section 15). 

 
Financial implications As detailed throughout this report. 

Contact officer: Paul Jones,  paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk,     
01242 775154 

Legal implications None directly arising from this report, apart from amendment of the 
Financial Rules further to recommendation 6 which will require the 
Constitution to be updated. 
Contact officer: Peter Lewis,   Peter.Lewis@tewkesbury.gov.uk,     
01684 272695 

HR implications 
(including learning and 
organisational 
development)  

None directly arising from this report.    
Contact officer:   Julie McCarthy ,   
 Julie.mccarthy@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 264355 

Key risks As outlined in Appendix 1. 
Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

Key elements of the budget are aimed at delivering the corporate 
objectives in the Corporate Business Plan. 

Page 94



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 3 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

None. 

 
1. Background 
1.1 This report draws together the financial outturn position for 2012/13 for the General Fund and 

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) revenue and capital budgets, details reserve movements, 
summarises requests for carry forward of budgets approved by the Section 151 Officer under 
delegated powers and those requiring member approval and makes recommendations in respect 
of the use of the underspend.  

1.2 In accordance with financial rule A11.3, the Section 151 Officer is responsible for providing 
regular reports to the Cabinet on the Council’s finances and financial performance. 

1.3 A summary of the actual General Fund outturn position by service is contained in Appendix 2.  
1.4 A summary of the outturn position by cost centre within each service is contained in Appendix 3. 

Information is presented both in the format normally used in cabinet and council papers and also 
in Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP) format used in the preparation of the final 
accounts which requires under / overspends on support services cost centres to be charged to 
end user cost centres. 

2. General Fund Revenue Outturn 2012/13 
2.1 The budget monitoring report to the end of August 2012 projected an overspend for the year of 

£281,000. As a result of that projection, Cabinet approved a recommendation to continue a freeze 
on supplies and services expenditure, where possible, for the remainder of the financial year. 

2.2 This measure enabled the Council to address the potential in year budget deficit and deliver a 
revised balanced budget which did not require a contribution from general balances. 

2.3 At a meeting of Cabinet on 16th April 2013, members noted the provisional revenue outturn 
position for 2012/13 which highlighted a number of areas of potential budget savings. Projections 
at the time suggested that, after allowing for expected carry forwards, services were likely to be 
delivered within budget, resulting in a potential net budget saving of £212,100 against the revised 
budget for 2012/13. 

2.4 It is pleasing to report that despite an exceptionally difficult economic climate, the Council has 
delivered services within the resources available, resulting in a budget saving, after carry forward 
request, of £201,801.  This figure represents roughly quarter of one percent of the Council’s total 
gross budget, showing how robust the Council’s financial management is. This saving has been 
transferred to the general fund balance pending decisions over its use in 2013/14.   

2.5 A number of savings are the result of delays or slippage in carrying out particular tasks which are 
still necessary and will need to be completed in the 2013/14 financial year. Where this applies, 
requests for carry forwards are documented in Appendix 6 to this report 

2.6 A full explanation of all variances that exceed £50,000 is contained within Appendix 5. 

3. Making use of revenue budget savings 
Comprehensive Spending Review 

3.1 The Chancellor delivered his spending review on 26th June 2013 with the focus relating almost 

Page 95



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 4 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

exclusively to 2015/16. The headline amount of a 10% cut in real terms would equate to a 
reduction in government funding for this Council of £540k in 2015/16 although confusion 
surrounding funding for NHS, affordable housing and social care could well mean that actual cut 
is closer to 14%. 

3.2 An updated version of the MTFS and budget strategy is shown at Appendix 4 which takes into 
account the limited detail that came out of the spending review. This update assumes an increase 
in council tax of 2% per annum from 2014/15 but needs to be taken into context of the council tax 
freeze grant being offered as detailed below. 
Council tax freeze grant 

3.3 In addition to the cuts announced, the Chancellor proposed a further council tax freeze grant offer 
for 2014/15 and 2015/16. Authorities that freeze or reduce their council tax in 2014/15 will receive 
a one-off payment equivalent to 1% of their tax. The same scheme will apply in for 2015/16. 

3.4 The cumulative effect of freezing council tax for a further 2 years will reduce the Council’s 
spending power by a further £290k by 2015/16, which is in addition to the real terms cut 
highlighted in 3.1. 

3.5 The council tax referendum limit will also be set at 2% in both 2014/15 and 2015/16, which will 
require councils to consult with the electorate if it wished to raise council tax above 2% in either of 
those years. 
Strengthening general fund balances 

3.6 In his budget statement, delivered to the Council last February, the Cabinet Member for Finance 
said that if possible he would propose a strengthening of general fund balances in the outturn 
report.  In the light of the proposals that have come out of the spending review, the case for doing 
this is even stronger and it is therefore recommended that the 2012/13 budget saving of £201,801 
be transferred to general fund balances. 

3.7 This will give the Council more flexibility in being able to pump prime projects and initiatives which 
will deliver future savings at a time when we are facing such severe and ongoing cuts to our 
spending power. 

4. Budget carry forward requests 
4.1 At the year end, a number of budget holders requested ‘carry forward’ of unspent budgets. 

Requests fall into two categories and have been dealt with as follows: 
4.2 Some requests are in respect of goods and services ordered but not received by 31st March 

2013. Some relate to items of expenditure not yet incurred due to slippage in work programmes 
but still planned to be spent in line with the original intention of the budget. Others are amounts of 
grant funding which have been allocated but not yet been taken up by their intended 
beneficiaries. In line with previous practice, these have been reviewed by the Senior Leadership 
Team (SLT) and approved by the Section 151 Officer, under delegated powers (financial rule 
B10.1). A list of the approved carry forward of budgets totalling £1,014,200, for which expenditure 
is in line with the original approved purpose, is contained in Appendix 6. In accordance with the 
Service Reporting Code of Practice (SeRCOP), a transfer was made to a ‘carry forward’ reserve 
in 2012/13 (Appendix 8) and transfers will be made from the ‘carry forward’ reserve in 2013/14 to 
the appropriate cost centres in order that members and officers have a clear indication of the total 
budget, including carry forwards, available for 2013/14.  

4.3 Some requests have been made to carry forward an underspend to be used in a different way to 
that for which the budget was originally intended. Since this falls outside the budget set by 
Council in February 2012, their alternative use requires council approval (financial rule B10.3). 
The list contained in Appendix 6, totalling £216,400, has been reviewed and supported by the 

Page 96



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 5 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Senior Leadership Team and now requires council approval. 

5. Treasury Management / Prudential Indicators 
5.1 Treasury Management in Local Government is governed by the CIPFA Code of Practice on 

Treasury Management in the Public Services and this Council has adopted the code and 
complies with its requirements, one of which is the receipt by Cabinet and Council of an Annual 
Review Report after the financial year end. 

5.2 The detailed treasury report, including the current assessment of the implications of the Council’s 
exposure to Icelandic banks, as approved by the Treasury Management Panel at its meeting on 
10th June 2013, is attached at Appendix 8. 

5.3 The prudential indicators have been monitored regularly and there were no material departures 
from the indicators arising during the year. The outturn indicators are reported to Cabinet and 
Council as part of the capital and treasury management outturn in accordance with the 
arrangements determined at the February 2012 council meeting. 

6. Gloucestershire Airport Ltd 
6.1 Gloucestershire Airport Ltd, of which Gloucester City Council and Cheltenham Borough Council 

are equal shareholders, is in the final stages of completing the runway safety project (RSP). The 
project required funding of £1.2m of Public Works Loan Board and £350k of temporary borrowing 
from each shareholder council which was agreed by this council in December 2010. The start of 
the project was delayed, adding cost to the project. The Airport also incurred additional operating 
costs as a result of having to increase staffing levels to support the airport post RSP which was 
not initially offset by increased business. In addition, the aviation industry has been affected by 
the economic downturn and the margin on airport business activity has reduced since the 
business plan was approved.  

6.2 As a result the temporary lending facility of £350k per council cannot be repaid in line with the 
original timeline. The Airport Company have requested that both councils extend the borrowing 
facility for a further 5 years but on a reducing scale i.e. the Airport will phase the repayment of the 
temporary borrowing facility in equal instalments over the period of the extension. 

6.3 Council officers and the chair of Cheltenham’s member working group have met the Airport’s 
Managing Director and have considered the request. The cash flow modelled a number of options 
but the option which sees a reduction in the level of temporary borrowing sooner is the option 
which is recommended for the Council to support. The consequence of this proposal is an 
amendment to the Treasury Management Policy counter party lending list, which is attached at 
Appendix 9. The current policy allows for the borrowing for a period of 3 years, but the proposed 
revised policy permits the drawdown of the Public Works Loan Board borrowing for a period of ten 
years. It also allows flexibility within the overall limits to accommodate the current request and any 
future variations, which will be managed within the approved parameters by the Section 151 
Officer under delegated powers. This was supported by the Council’s Treasury Management 
Panel at a meeting on 9th July 2013. 

7. Business Rates Retention (BRR) Scheme provision and write-offs 
7.1 The Local Government Finance Act 2012 introduced a business rates retention scheme that 

enables local authorities to retain a proportion of the business rates generated in their area. The 
new arrangements for the retention of business rates came into effect on 1st April 2013. 

7.2 From this date, local authorities assumed the liability for refunding ratepayers who have 
successfully appealed against the rateable value of their properties on the rating list. 

7.3 This will include amounts that were paid over (to Central Government) in respect of 2012/13 and 
prior years. 

Page 97



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 6 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

7.4 Under the scheme councils can keep 50% of business rates collected (the local share), with the 
remaining 50% (the central share) retained by government and paid into a central pool which will 
be redirected to local government through other grants.  Of the 50% local share, the District share 
has been set at 80%, with the County authority share being 20%. 

7.5 Some local authorities, including Cheltenham, collect more business rates than they currently 
receive in formula grant (which is based on relative need and resources) while the business rates 
collected by other authorities are lower than their current funding level. TheGovernment therefore 
intends to rebalance resources at the outset of the scheme through a system of tariffs and top-
ups.  

7.6 For Cheltenham, the business rates baseline figure is £20.851m which represents 40% of the 
estimated net rate yield. Because this is in excess of the £2.482m received in formula grant, 
Cheltenham will be required to pay a tariff of £18.369m over to the Government for redistribution. 

7.7 Under the regulations, ‘safety net thresholds’ were set to provide local authorities with protection 
against significant decreases in their business rates income. The safety net exposure for 
Cheltenham amounts to £186k in 2013/14 which effectively means that Cheltenham can not be 
any worse off than this amount. 

7.8 As indicated above, the business rates baseline figure in 2013/14 is £20.851m. The equivalent 
figure provided in the NNDR 1 return (estimate of what will be collected in the year) was 
£20.596m, a difference of £255k.  

7.9 The main reason for this difference is in respect of Cheltenham’s estimate of successful appeals 
in 2013/14 which comprise those appeals relating to 2013/14 plus the estimated total sum to be 
repaid to ratepayers in respect of successful appeals for the years before 2013/14 if all appeals 
were resolved. 

7.10 As a consequence of the above, a provision of £186k has been put through the accounts to cover 
the safety net threshold in the event that the estimated level of appeals is successful. 
Write-offs 

7.11 The write off of irrecoverable debt is a proper and recognised accounting practice. The Council’s 
financial rules require that any debts written off which are not within the set authorisation limits i.e. 
over £5k, must be approved by Cabinet. 

7.12 It is proposed that financial rule I9 be amended to give the Section 151 Officer appropriate 
flexibility for the writing off of individual debts in the circumstances as set out in Appendix 15. This 
better reflects the delegation arrangements under the previous version of the Constitution. 

8. High Street Innovation Fund 
8.1 Members will remember that in March 2012 Cheltenham Borough Council was awarded £100,000 

from the Government’s High Street Innovation Fund.  The purpose of this Fund was to help revive 
town centres across the country, although it was acknowledged that Cheltenham already had a 
relatively vibrant and successful town centre. 

8.2 In the 2011/12 outturn report, £65,000 of this money was allocated to funding business rate 
discounts for new start-up businesses taking on empty properties.  The discounts, which could be 
up to 100% depending on the rateable value of the property, were targeted on the town centre 
and other key areas that could benefit from support, including Montpellier Street and Coronation 
Square.   

8.3 The balance of the money as allocated to: £20,000 for skills training to help new and existing 
businesses; £6,000 for design work for new signage for the town; and £9,000 for cameras to 
measure footfall in different parts of the town centre, a project supported by the local business 

Page 98



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 7 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

community. 
8.4 While the impact of the Innovation Fund money has undoubtedly been beneficial, and the skills 

training well received, the take-up of the business rates discounts was not as great as anticipated, 
leaving a balance of £58,200 at the end of the financial year.  As a result the Cabinet Member for 
Finance now proposes that the unspent balance should be allocated as follows: 
£10,200 to continue the business rates discount scheme for another year, with additional 
efforts being made to publicise it.   It is not felt that altering the details of the scheme, such as 
the rate of discount or the area in which it is offered, would make much difference to the take-up.   
 
£15,000 to fund consultation with the business community about the possibility of setting 
up a Business Improvement District (BID) in Cheltenham.  A BID is a partnership between a 
local authority and the local business community to develop projects and services that will benefit 
the trading environment within the boundary of a clearly defined commercial area. 
 
A number of BIDs exist up and down the country and there is no doubt that they have brought 
economic benefits to their localities.  However, businesses in a BID area are expected to pay 
additional charges for enhanced services.  For this reason, Borough Council’s view has always 
been that a BID would only be possible if it was enthusiastically supported by the business 
community.   
 
Interest in creating a BID has recently been expressed in the Cheltenham Business Partnership, 
and the money allocated would allow proper, in-depth consultation to take place to assess 
whether the necessary support exists to take this forward. 
  
£24,000 to purchase new equipment suitable for cleaning the slabs and bonded gravel in 
and around the Promenade.  The cleaning vehicles currently in use for street cleaning is 
unsuitable in this area of the town, as we cannot put a heavy vehicle on these surfaces and there 
is a limit to how much force we can use to jet them.  The result is that both the slabs and the resin 
bonded areas are showing signs of staining, which naturally does not help the appearance of what 
needs to be a clean, inviting and attractive area. 

 
The proposal is to buy a pedestrian controlled suction sweeper which runs on diesel and a 
scrubber drier which will require recharging daily. These two pieces of equipment have already 
been trialled in the town centre with good results.  It is envisaged that one operative can alternate 
between the two units, using the sweeper in the morning and the scrubber drier in the afternoon. 

 
£5,000 towards the costs of the Top of the Shops Awards.  This is the awards scheme run by 
The Gloucestershire Echo to promote retail excellence in the town.  Last year it was grant-aided 
from the Promoting Cheltenham Fund. 

 
£5,000 as a one-off grant to the Jet Age Museum at Gloucestershire Airport.  The trustees of 
the Museum are appealing for support to complete phase 1 of their project, which will allow them 
to open to the public.  A number of other councils have already contributed substantial amounts.  
It is anticipated that this Museum will support the economy of the county by creating a major 
visitor attraction on Cheltenham’s doorstep.  The trustees have offered to work with the 
Cheltenham Art Gallery and Museum to undertake joint promotions, possibly linked to local 
festivals. 

9. Reserves 
9.1 The Section 151 Officer has, under delegated powers (financial rule B11.4), authority to make 

transfers to and from these operational reserves in accordance with the intention of the reserve as 
determined by the Council’s Reserves Policy and Protocol. The transfers approved by the Section 
151 Officer for 2012/13 are set out in the Use of Reserves and Balances schedule at Appendix 7. 

Page 99



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 8 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

9.2 Appendix 10 details the reserves held by the Council, states their purpose and indicates the 
balance at 31st March 2013. In setting the budget for 2013/14 a review of reserves was 
undertaken with a view to assessing whether the levels were appropriate, in line with the policy for 
reserves and balances, and taking into account the needs and risks of the organisation and the 
prevailing economic conditions. At the year end this process has been repeated.  

9.3 An assessment of the Council’s other earmarked reserves has been made in line with the 
fiduciary duty of the Section 151 Officer at the year end. Accepting that there are still some areas 
of uncertainty, the level of reserves appears adequate at this point in time and no other changes 
are currently recommended. 

9.4 The level of maximum individual reserve balances were reviewed in February 2013, as part of the 
budget setting process. At 31st March 2013, most reserves are within these specific maximum 
levels. 

9.5 It is important to understand and consider that there is an opportunity cost in maintaining 
reserves. Members will be aware that reserves exist for specific ‘earmarked’ and valid purposes 
which are regularly reviewed. Over time, it is anticipated that these reserves will be used for the 
purpose for which they were set aside. Hence the opportunity cost of holding these reserves at 
existing or slightly above existing levels is either justified or insignificant.  

9.6 At the year end, the General Fund Balance stands at £2.021m and therefore remains above the 
minimum range of £1.5m to £2m recommended by the Section 151 Officer. Given the continued 
prevailing economic conditions and the pressure on the current and future year’s revenue 
budgets, it is recommended that this should not be reduced. 

10. Capital Outturn 2011/12 
10.1 The outturn position in respect of General Fund capital is contained in Appendix 11. Members are 

asked to note the outturn position and, where there is slippage, approve the carry forwards into 
2013/14 requested by officers. 

11. Section 106 receipts 
11.1 A position statement in respect of the activity of Section 106 receipts is contained in Appendix 12.  
11.2 The following summarises the activity in respect of Section 106 for 2012/13, compared to 

2011/12. 
31/3/12 £        31/3/13 £ 

Balance of unused Section 106 receipts     289,316                  530,641 
Net additional receipts in year              274,833                  131,325 
Receipts used to finance projects in year                (33,508)                (117,763) 
Balance outstanding at year end      530,641                 544,203 

12. Council tax and business rates collection 
12.1 The monitoring report for the collection of council tax and business rates (NNDR) income is 

shown in Appendix 13. This shows the position at the end of March 2013. 
 
 

 

Page 100



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 9 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

13. Sundry debt collection 
13.1 The monitoring report for the collection of sundry debt income is shown in Appendix 14. This 

shows the position at the end of March 2013. 
14. Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 
14.1 HRA income and expenditure  

The revised estimates for the HRA anticipated a surplus for the year of £1.408m. After using the 
revenue reserve to repay a proportion (£1.392m.) of PWLB loan due to mature in the year, the 
balance of reserve to be carried forward at 31st March 2013 was estimated at £3.113m. 

14.2 The outturn statement at Appendix 16 shows a surplus for the year of £1.857m, a net positive 
variance of £449,000, leaving the revenue reserve at £3.561m at year end. 
The variance arose primarily from:- 

Cost Category £’000 

Savings in estate management  - grounds maintenance, gas & 
electricity costs 

93 

Reduced spend on repairs & maintenance 68 

Reduction in the need to provide for bad debts – no significant 
increase in arrears despite rent increase 

134 

No requirement for revenue funding of capital expenditure – 
reduced capital spend (see paragraph ?.? below) 

360 

Impairment of non-dwelling assets – now chargeable against HRA 
following introduction of self financing framework 

-102 

Reversal on non-dwelling asset depreciation – no longer available 
after self financing   

-94 

Other net variances -10 

Total Variance 449 

 

14.3 Major Repairs Reserve (Appendix 17) 
In accordance with regulations this reserve is funded by sums equivalent to the depreciation 
provision and can be used to finance HRA capital expenditure. Reduced capital expenditure in the 
year has left a balance of £399,000 in the reserve which can be carried forward to finance 
expenditure in 2013/14.  

14.4 HRA Capital Programme (Appendix 17) 
Appendix 17 shows actual spend of £4.742m. compared to the revised estimate of £5.492m, a 
reduction of £750,000. This arose primarily from delays to a number of projects due to adverse 
weather conditions (£603,000) and a reduced demand for disabled adaptations (£85,000). The 

Page 101



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 10 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

delayed projects will all be completed in 2013/14 and the funding set aside for this expenditure is 
also carried forward in the revenue reserve and the major repairs reserve. 

15. 2013/14 Revenue and Capital budget monitoring to May 2013  
15.1 Due to the pressures of the year end process a detailed monitoring exercise has not been 

undertaken at this point in the year. However, no significant variances have been identified by 
service managers at this stage.  

16. Section 151 Officer advice 
16.1 The Government expects councils to make a significant contribution to reducing the national 

budget deficit and the Council will continue to face an unprecedented public sector funding 
squeeze over the next few years. Future budgets are likely to contain some difficult decisions and 
may require some sources of ‘one off’ finance to enable savings to be delivered through efficiency 
savings and cost / staffing reductions. In this situation, any opportunity to fund future investment 
requirements from one off sources rather than impacting on future year’s budgets should be 
taken. 

16.2 In agreeing the recommendations, members need to be mindful of the prevailing challenging 
financial climate and in view of the budget pressures already potentially facing the Council in the 
current year, to ensure that any carry forwards recommended for approval (even those for which 
the Section 151 Officer has the delegation to approve) are the most effective use of scarce 
resources. 

17. Conclusion 
17.1 The outturn position for 2012/13 demonstrates that, despite another challenging year, the Council 

managed to turn a projected overspend of £281k into a modest underspend, which demonstrates 
that we continue to maintain a strong and consistent track record of managing services within 
budgets. There are no significant unexpected overspends or under spends in 2012/13 which 
demonstrates that budget monitoring arrangements remain strong. 

17.2 If approved, some of the carry forward requests will assist in the delivery of corporate objectives, 
help to complete projects started in 2012/13 and support initiatives which help to bridge the 
medium term funding gap.  

17.3 Members should note that the outturn position has been used to prepare the Statement of 
Accounts for approval by the Audit Committee. 

18. Consultation 
18.1 Appropriate members and officers were consulted in the process of preparing the outturn position 

and associated reports and accounts. 

Report author Contact officer: Paul Jones, GOSS Head of Finance     
paul.jones@cheltenham.gov.uk, 01242 775154 

Page 102



 

Financial outturn 2012/13 Page 11 of 12 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Appendices 1. Risk assessment 
2. Summary outturn performance position - General Fund 
3. Service level outturn performance position - General Fund 
4. Updated MTFS / Budget strategy 
5. Significant variances 
6. Carry forward requests 
7. Use of balances and reserves 
8. Treasury outturn 
9. Counter Party lending list 
10. Movement on earmarked reserves and general balances 
11. Capital programme - General Fund 
12. Section 106 receipts statement 
13. Council tax and NNDR collection 
14. Sundry debt collection 
15. Amended Financial Rule I9 
16. HRA Operating account 
17. HRA Capital programme and Major Repairs Reserve 

Background information 1. Section 25 Report – Council 10th February 2012  
2. Final Budget Proposals for 2012/13 – Council 10h February 2012 

 

Page 103



 

$10hdv34o.doc Page 
12 of 
12 

Last 
updated 
11 July 
2013 

 

Risk Assessment                  Appendix 1  
 

The risk Original risk score 
(impact x 
likelihood) 

Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date raised I L Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

1.. Historically, the Council 
has used in-year 
savings to fund one-off 
growth / new initiatives. 
As a result of budgets 
getting tighter, there 
may be a reduced 
likelihood of in- year 
savings being delivered 
resulting in potentially 
increased pressure on 
the General Reserve to 
fund growth / new 
initiatives over the 
period of the MTFS. 

Director 
Resources 

December 
2010 

4 3 12 Reduce Future capital 
receipts may be 
needed to increase 
the size of the 
General Reserve. 

on-going Director 
Resources 
(working 
with SLT) 

 

 

P
age 104



AP
PE

ND
IX
 2

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
RE

VE
NU

E 
OU

TT
UR

N 
20
12
/13

A
B

C
D

E
F

G
H

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

ov
er
sp
en
d /

 
C/
F r

eq
ue
sts

Va
ria

nc
e

C/
F r

eq
ue
sts

Va
ria

nc
e

GR
OU

P
Or
igi
na
l

Re
vis

ed
Ou

ttu
rn

(u
nd

er
sp
en
d)

Tr
f t
o /
 (f
ro
m)

ap
pr
ov
ed
 by

ne
t o

f S
15
1

to 
be
 ap

pr
ov
ed
 

ne
t o

f a
ll 

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

pe
r L

ed
ge
r

be
for

e a
dju

stm
en
ts

Re
se
rv
es

S1
51
 O
ffic

er
c/f
 ap

pr
ov
als

Me
mb

er
s

c/f
 re

qu
es
ts

Ap
pe
nd

ix 
7

Ap
pe
nd

ix 
7

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

St
rat
eg
ic 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt
2,9

19
,90

0
3,0

54
,60

0
2,6

50
,52

8
(40

4,0
72
)

19
0,7

10
58
,40

0
(15

4,9
62
)

5,0
00

(14
9,9

62
)

Co
mm

iss
ion

ing
5,5

57
,75

0
5,8

75
,70

0
4,9

09
,91

1
(96

5,7
89
)

(17
,47

9)
53
7,0

00
(44

6,2
68
)

20
1,4

00
(24

4,8
68
)

Bu
ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt
30
0,4

50
70
2,6

50
26
5,9

61
(43

6,6
89
)

17
6,1

78
28
7,3

00
26
,78

9
26
,78

9
Re

so
urc

es
2,7

06
,32

5
3,2

82
,77

5
3,0

25
,11

2
(25

7,6
63
)

14
9,1

16
16
9,2

00
60
,65

3
60
,65

3
W
ell
be
ing

 an
d C

ult
ure

4,7
55
,85

0
4,7

02
,95

0
4,3

78
,68

8
(32

4,2
62
)

22
8,7

79
52
,30

0
(43

,18
3)

10
,00

0
(33

,18
3)

Ta
rge

t s
av
ing

s
(48

0,0
00
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
Ba

d d
eb
t p
rov

isi
on

40
,00

0
40
,00

0
21
,84

2
(18

,15
8)

0
0

(18
,15

8)
(18

,15
8)

0
0

15
,80

0,2
75

17
,65

8,6
75

15
,25

2,0
42

(2,
40
6,6

33
)

72
7,3

03
1,1

04
,20

0
(57

5,1
29
)

21
6,4

00
(35

8,7
29
)

Ca
pit
al 
Ch

arg
es

(1,
91
3,3

00
)

(1,
15
2,6

00
)

(92
5,4

05
)

22
7,1

95
22
7,1

95
22
7,1

95
Int
ere

st 
an
d I
nv
es
tm
en
t In

co
me

37
3,9

00
33
4,5

00
90
,03

8
(24

4,4
62
)

(33
,17

0)
(33

,17
0)

Us
e o

f b
ala

nc
es
 an

d r
es
erv

es
(95

,95
5)

(2,
28
9,9

55
)

(67
,15

1)
2,2

22
,80

4
(36

,39
1)

(36
,39

1)
Ne

w 
Ho

me
s B

on
us

(25
0,0

00
)

(53
5,7

00
)

(53
6,2

68
)

(56
8)

(56
8)

(56
8)

Co
un
cil
 Ta

x F
ree

ze
 G
ran

t
(19

9,0
00
)

(39
6,9

87
)

(19
9,1

37
)

19
7,8

50
19
7,8

50
Ot
he
r G

ov
ern

me
nt 
Gr
an
ts

0
(10

0,0
00
)

(10
0,0

00
)

Ne
t u
nd
ers

pe
nd

20
1,8

01
NE

T 
BU

DG
ET

13
,71

5,9
20

13
,51

7,9
33

13
,71

5,9
20

De
du
ct:

Re
ve
nu
e S

up
po
rt G

ran
t

(10
8,7

05
)

(10
8,7

05
)

(10
8,7

05
)

0
0

0
Na

tio
na
l N

on
-D
om

es
tic
 R
ate

(5,
60
7,7

41
)

(5,
40
9,7

54
)

(5,
60
7,7

41
)

(19
7,9

87
)

(19
7,9

87
)

(19
7,9

87
)

Co
lle
cti
on
 Fu

nd
 C
on
trib

uti
on

(34
,00

0)
(34

,00
0)

(34
,00

0)
0

0
0

NE
T 
SP

EN
D 
FU

ND
ED

 B
Y 
CO

UN
CI
L T

AX
(7,
96
5,4

74
)

(7,
96
5,4

74
)

(7,
96
5,4

74
)

0
0

0
TO

TA
L I
NC

OM
E

(13
,71

5,9
20
)
(13

,51
7,9

33
)
(13

,71
5,9

20
)

To
tal
 bu

dg
et 
un

de
rs
pe
nd

(61
6,0

51
)

(20
1,8

01
)

KE
Y

A 
- O

rig
ina

l b
ud
ge
t fo

r 2
01
2/1

3 a
pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
ou
nc
il -
 Fe

bru
ary

 20
12

B 
- R

ev
ise

d b
ud
ge
t fo

r 2
01
2/1

3 -
 in
clu

din
g b

ud
ge
t re

vis
ion

s a
pp
rov

ed
 by

 C
ou
nc
il d

uri
ng
 20

12
/13

 an
d a

pp
rov

ed
 ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

s f
rom

 20
11
/12

C 
- O

utt
urn

 ne
t e
xp
en
dit
ure

 be
for
e y

ea
r e
nd
 ad

jus
tm
en
ts

D 
- O

pe
rat
ion

al 
tra
ns
fer
s t
o /
 (fr

om
) r
es
erv

es
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y t
he
 C
hie

f F
ina

nc
e O

ffic
er 
un
de
r d
ele

ga
ted

 po
we

rs 
E 
- C

arr
y f
orw

ard
 re
qu
es
ts 
ap
pro

ve
d b

y t
he
 C
hie

f F
ina

nc
e O

ffic
er 
un
de
r d
ele

ga
ted

 po
we

rs 
F -

 N
et 
va
ria
nc
e a

fte
r a
dju

stm
en
ts 
in 
co
lum

ns
 D
 to
 E

G 
- C

arr
y f
orw

ard
 re
qu
es
ts 
req

uir
ing

 M
em

be
r a
pp
rov

al 
H 
- N

et 
va
ria
nc
e o

n c
os
t c
en
tre
s t
ak
ing

 in
to 
ac
co
un
t a
ll c

arr
y f
orw

ard
 re
qu
es
ts 
- s
ee
 de

tai
l a
t A

pp
en
dix

 3

Page 105



Page 106
This page is intentionally left blank



SE
RV

IC
E 
LE

VE
L 
OU

TT
UR

N 
PE

RF
OR

M
AN

CE
 P
OS

IT
IO
N 
20
12
-1
3

AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs 

to 
Ad

jus
ted

Ov
ers

pe
nd

IA
S1

9
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E O

UT
TU

RN
 20

12
/13

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 12
/13

Bu
dg

et 
12
/13

20
12
/13

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

CO
R0

02
Ch

ief
 Ex

ec
uti
ve

(9,
10
0)

14
,00

0
11
,16

6
(2,

83
4)

(2,
83
4)

(2,
83
4)

(29
,33

6)
18
,17

0
(14

,00
0)

CC
M0

01
Ce

me
ter

y, 
Cr
em

ato
riu
m 
an
d C

hu
rch

ya
rds

(76
0,2

00
)

(64
1,2

00
)

(59
0,7

86
)

50
,41

4
(1,

78
3)

48
,63

1
50
,41

4
(45

,53
4)

16
,40

0
21
,28

0
EN

F1
02

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
En

vir
on
me

nta
l F
un
d- 

Pa
rks

0
10
8,4

00
67
,18

8
(41

,21
2)

42
,40

0
1,1

88
(41

,21
2)

(41
,21

2)
OP

S0
01

Pa
rks

 & 
Ga

rde
ns
 O
pe
rat

ion
s

89
3,2

50
1,2

04
,45

0
1,0

24
,65

2
(17

9,7
98
)

45
,40

0
(13

4,3
98
)

(17
9,7

98
)

(30
,09

8)
(23

,15
0)

(23
3,0

47
)

OP
S0

02
Sp

ort
s &

 O
pe
n S

pa
ce
s O

pe
rat

ion
s

1,2
27
,40

0
98
2,3

00
88
0,8

41
(10

1,4
59
)

(45
1)

(10
1,9

10
)

(10
1,4

59
)

7,7
02

(93
,75

7)
OP

S0
04

All
otm

en
ts

88
,40

0
29
,10

0
47
,40

2
18
,30

2
18
,30

2
18
,30

2
(6,

42
6)

(40
0)

11
,47

7
OP

S1
01

Ar
le 
Ro

ad
 N
urs

ery
 O
pe
rat

ion
s

0
(99

,80
0)

(49
,76

4)
50
,03

6
50
,03

6
50
,03

6
50
,03

6
OP

S1
02

GC
C 
Sc

ho
ols

0
(45

,20
0)

(28
,50

5)
16
,69

5
16
,69

5
16
,69

5
16
,69

5
CC

R0
01

Co
mm

un
ity
 Sa

fet
y (
Cr
im
e R

ed
uc
tio
n)

27
6,0

00
17
9,4

00
17
5,5

74
(3,

82
6)

(3,
82
6)

(3,
82
6)

(25
,40

0)
(29

,22
6)

CC
T0

01
CC

TV
13
4,6

00
12
7,2

00
12
8,3

44
1,1

44
1,1

44
1,1

44
(1,

90
0)

(75
6)

RE
G0

01
En

vir
on
me

nta
l H

ea
lth
 G
en
era

l
7,6

00
(5,

10
0)

(23
,50

9)
(18

,40
9)

(18
,40

9)
(18

,40
9)

(18
5,9

30
)

20
9,4

39
5,1

00
RE

G0
02

Lic
en
sin

g
0

21
,00

0
9,8

03
(11

,19
7)

11
,20

0
3

(11
,19

7)
(59

,56
9)

(70
,76

6)
RE

G0
03

An
im
al 
Co

ntr
ol

56
,30

0
25
,50

0
23
,59

2
(1,

90
8)

(1,
90
8)

(1,
90
8)

(1,
80
0)

(3,
70
8)

RE
G0

12
Air

 Q
ua
lity

39
,40

0
34
,90

0
18
,62

3
(16

,27
7)

(16
,27

7)
(16

,27
7)

(3,
80
0)

(20
,07

7)
RE

G0
13

Po
lut
ion

 C
on
tro

l
13
9,0

00
11
4,5

00
11
6,0

46
1,5

46
1,5

46
1,5

46
(21

,90
0)

(20
,35

4)
RE

G0
14

Co
nta

mi
na
ted

 La
nd

29
,90

0
31
,80

0
27
,80

7
(3,

99
3)

(3,
99
3)

(3,
99
3)

(4,
30
0)

(8,
29
3)

RE
G0

16
Fo

od
 Sa

fet
y

11
6,3

00
18
4,0

00
18
4,0

01
1

1
1

(30
,32

0)
(30

,31
9)

RE
G0

17
He

alt
h &

 Sa
fet
y A

t W
ork

79
,80

0
16
3,2

00
16
3,2

00
0

0
0

(28
,20

0)
(28

,20
0)

RE
G0

18
Pe

st 
Co

ntr
ol

80
,70

0
58
,40

0
53
,72

0
(4,

68
0)

5,0
00

32
0

(4,
68
0)

(14
,20

0)
(18

,88
0)

RE
G0

20
W
ate

r S
am

pli
ng

50
0

50
0

0
(50

0)
(50

0)
(50

0)
(50

0)
ST

C0
11

Ab
an
do
ne
d V

eh
icle

s
21
,70

0
8,8

00
10
,81

2
2,0

12
2,0

12
2,0

12
(1,

60
0)

41
2

SU
P0

39
Ca

llo
uts

0
0

(3,
24
8)

(3,
24
8)

(3,
24
8)

(3,
24
8)

3,2
48

0
EM

P0
01

Em
erg

en
cy
 Pl

an
nin

g
15
5,0

50
15
4,5

50
11
2,1

97
(42

,35
3)

32
,81

5
7,0

00
(2,

53
9)

(42
,35

3)
(5,

35
0)

(47
,70

3)
PL

P1
02

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Ta

sk
 Fo

rce
34
3,3

00
40
3,9

00
29
1,3

71
(11

2,5
29
)

10
3,5

29
9,0

00
0

(11
2,5

29
)

(16
,23

3)
(40

,50
0)

(16
9,2

61
)

St
rat

eg
ic 
Di
rec

tor
s

2,9
19
,90

0
3,0

54
,60

0
2,6

50
,52

8
(40

4,0
72
)

19
0,7

10
63
,40

0
(14

9,9
62
)

(40
4,0

72
)

0
(31

3,5
57
)

(7,
43
0)

(72
5,0

58
)

BU
C0

01
Bu

ild
ing

 C
on
tro

l - 
Fe

e E
arn

ing
 W

ork
26
,15

0
54
,45

0
38
,73

4
(15

,71
6)

(15
,71

6)
(15

,71
6)

(54
,51

3)
(21

,10
0)

(91
,32

9)
BU

C0
02

Bu
ild
ing

 C
on
tro

l - 
No

n F
ee
 Ea

rni
ng
 W

ork
0

15
,70

0
15
,70

0
0

0
0

(10
0)

(10
0)

DE
V0

01
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
Co

ntr
ol 
- A

pp
lica

tio
ns

57
7,6

00
77
5,9

00
75
5,8

14
(20

,08
6)

8,0
00

(12
,08

6)
(20

,08
6)

(38
,49

1)
(50

4,4
39
)

(56
3,0

17
)

DE
V0

03
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
Co

ntr
ol 
- E

nfo
rce

me
nt

0
56
,90

0
40
,65

8
(16

,24
2)

(16
,24

2)
(16

,24
2)

(5,
41
2)

(21
,65

3)
DE

V0
04

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
Ad

vic
e

0
0

(14
,26

6)
(14

,26
6)

(14
,26

6)
(14

,26
6)

(14
,26

6)
EN

A0
01

Ho
us
ing

 En
ab
lin
g

63
,50

0
6,7

00
(30

,01
3)

(36
,71

3)
36
,70

0
(13

)
(36

,71
3)

(1,
95
0)

(38
,66

3)
PL

P0
01

Pla
nn
ing

 Po
licy

17
3,3

00
23
2,6

00
25
8,7

72
26
,17

2
26
,17

2
26
,17

2
(22

,49
1)

(15
,15

0)
(11

,46
9)

PL
P0

03
Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n

78
,90

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
PL

P1
01

Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y

7,3
00

26
7,4

00
14
5,2

96
(12

2,1
04
)

12
2,1

04
0

(12
2,1

04
)

(22
,75

0)
(14

4,8
54
)

HO
S0

04
Ho

us
ing

 St
an
da
rds

24
2,7

00
67
1,0

00
65
5,0

42
(15

,95
8)

(15
,95

8)
(15

,95
8)

(59
,41

5)
(19

1,5
50
)

(26
6,9

23
)

PS
H0

01
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r H

ou
sin

g G
ran

ts
10
0,0

00
85
,60

0
81
,24

7
(4,

35
3)

(4,
35
3)

(4,
35
3)

15
4,1

55
(12

,70
0)

13
7,1

01
PS

H0
03

Dis
ab
led

 Fa
cili

tie
s G

ran
ts

64
,30

0
81
,00

0
81
,00

0
0

0
0

10
7,3

54
(49

,80
0)

57
,55

4
SP

P0
02

Co
mm

un
ity
 Al

arm
s

(44
,60

0)
(6,

00
0)

(11
,06

4)
(5,

06
4)

(5,
06
4)

(5,
06
4)

(4,
06
5)

(45
,60

0)
(54

,72
8)

BU
C0

04
La
nd
 C
ha
rge

s
(67

,25
0)

(31
,35

0)
(51

,48
0)

(20
,13

0)
34
,40

0
14
,27

0
(20

,13
0)

(2,
78
9)

(42
,55

0)
(65

,46
9)

SU
P0

40
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on
me

nt
(39

3,5
00
)

(1,
11
1,4

00
)

(1,
06
6,3

05
)

45
,09

5
45
,09

5
45
,09

5
(61

,31
7)

1,1
27
,62

2
1,1

11
,40

0
EC

D0
01

Ec
on
om

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt

85
,90

0
35
7,4

00
22
2,2

59
(13

5,1
41
)

11
8,9

00
(16

,24
1)

(13
5,1

41
)

(26
2)

(5,
25
0)

(14
0,6

53
)

EN
F1

01
Ch

elt
en
ha
m 
En

vir
on
me

nta
l F
un
d- 

To
wn

sc
ap
e

0
37
,20

0
14
,94

1
(22

,25
9)

22
,20

0
(59

)
(22

,25
9)

(22
,25

9)
EN

F1
06

Co
mm

un
ity
 Pr

ide
 Fu

nd
0

20
,00

0
0

(20
,00

0)
38
,50

0
18
,50

0
(20

,00
0)

(20
,00

0)
FL

D0
01

Flo
od
 D
efe

nc
e a

nd
 La

nd
 D
rai
na
ge

15
1,6

00
24
5,1

00
24
3,8

34
(1,

26
6)

(1,
26
6)

(1,
26
6)

(14
,84

4)
(36

,60
0)

(52
,71

0)
PL

P0
04

Co
ns
erv

ati
on

99
,00

0
16
0,7

00
14
6,1

59
(14

,54
1)

(14
,54

1)
(14

,54
1)

(8,
26
2)

(53
,10

0)
(75

,90
3)

PL
P0

06
Tre

es
70
,30

0
15
0,5

00
15
1,8

12
1,3

12
1,3

12
1,3

12
(9,

07
8)

(25
,70

0)
(33

,46
7)

PU
B1

01
Pu

bli
c A

rt
0

0
25

25
25

25
25

UR
B1

01
Ur
ba
n D

es
ign

0
6,0

00
14
,44

1
8,4

41
10
,40

0
18
,84

1
8,4

41
8,4

41
CP

K0
01

Ca
r P

ark
s -
 O
ff S

tre
et 
Op

era
tio
ns

(1,
26
9,3

00
)

(1,
72
8,3

00
)

(1,
68
0,4

68
)

47
,83

2
19
,67

4
17
,70

0
85
,20

6
47
,83

2
(10

,68
3)

(69
,97

6)
(32

,82
7)

CP
K0

11
On

 St
ree

t C
ivil

 Pa
rki
ng
 En

for
ce
me

nt
(10

0)
0

0
0

0
0

(23
,10

0)
23
,10

0
0

CP
K0

12
On

 St
ree

t C
ar 

Pa
rki
ng

(10
0)

0
0

0
0

0
(10

,54
3)

10
,54

3
0

CP
K0

21
Re

sid
en
ts 
Pa

rki
ng
 Sc

he
me

s
(10

0)
0

0
0

0
0

(8,
28
1)

8,2
81

0
CP

K1
02

Br
ew

ery
 C
ar 

Pa
rk

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
CP

K1
03

Sa
nd
for

d L
ido

 ca
r p

ark
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

EN
F1

03
Ch

elt
en
ha
m 
En

vir
on
me

nta
l F
un
d- 

Tra
ns
po
rt

0
12
,50

0
3,0

65
(9,

43
5)

9,4
00

(35
)

(9,
43
5)

(9,
43
5)

EN
F1

05
Ch

elt
en
ha
m 
En

vir
on
me

nta
l F
un
d- 

Pu
bli
c P

rot
ec
tio
n

0
15
,00

0
72
3

(14
,27

7)
14
,60

0
32
3

(14
,27

7)
(14

,27
7)

ES
R0

01
Hig

hw
ay
s A

ge
nc
y V

erg
es
 & 

Tre
es

10
9,5

00
12
5,2

00
70
,88

4
(54

,31
6)

(54
,31

6)
(54

,31
6)

(50
0)

(54
,81

6)
PU

T0
01

Co
nc
es
sio

na
ry 
Tra

ve
l

26
,30

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
PU

T1
01

Ro
ya
l W

ell
 Bu

s N
od
e

13
,40

0
17
,20

0
18
,13

9
93
9

93
9

93
9

30
0

1,2
39

Pa
ge
 1 
of 
3

Page 107



SE
RV

IC
E 
LE

VE
L 
OU

TT
UR

N 
PE

RF
OR

M
AN

CE
 P
OS

IT
IO
N 
20
12
-1
3

AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs 

to 
Ad

jus
ted

Ov
ers

pe
nd

IA
S1

9
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E O

UT
TU

RN
 20

12
/13

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 12
/13

Bu
dg

et 
12
/13

20
12
/13

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

PU
T1

02
Sh

op
mo

bil
ity

87
,85

0
79
,25

0
74
,81

7
(4,

43
3)

(4,
43
3)

(4,
43
3)

(6,
49
0)

(10
0)

(11
,02

3)
TM

R1
01

CB
C 
Hig

hw
ay
s w

ork
s

97
,80

0
10
6,4

00
86
,19

6
(20

,20
4)

10
,90

0
(9,

30
4)

(20
,20

4)
15
7,1

27
(3,

47
7)

(2,
70
0)

13
0,7

47
Bu

ilt 
En

vir
on

me
nt

30
0,4

50
70
2,6

50
26
5,9

61
(43

6,6
89
)

17
6,1

78
28
7,3

00
26
,78

9
(43

6,6
89
)

41
8,6

36
(34

3,5
12
)

68
,23

1
(29

3,3
35
)

EC
D0

02
Ma

rke
ts

6,3
50

(1,
00
0)

(2,
98
4)

(1,
98
4)

(1,
98
4)

(1,
98
4)

(1,
98
4)

SU
P0

17
Bu

sin
es
s I
mp

rov
em

en
t/T

ran
sfo

rm
ati
on

13
7,3

00
13
2,1

00
34
,29

4
(97

,80
6)

17
,00

0
60
,60

0
(20

,20
6)

(97
,80

6)
(17

,44
8)

(42
,67

5)
(15

7,9
29
)

CC
C0

01
Cli

ma
te 
Ch

an
ge
/Ag

en
da
 21

23
,10

0
52
,70

0
52
,70

0
0

0
0

(60
0)

(60
0)

CO
M0

01
Co

mm
un
ity
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t

13
5,3

00
2,0

00
(54

,37
9)

(56
,37

9)
56
,40

0
21

(56
,37

9)
(20

0)
(56

,57
9)

CO
R0

03
Co

rpo
rat

e P
oli
cy
 M
ak
ing

(29
,50

0)
(32

,10
0)

(57
,19

3)
(25

,09
3)

21
,80

0
(3,

29
3)

(25
,09

3)
(22

,82
3)

81
,11

4
33
,19

8
CO

R1
01

Fo
rm

er 
Em

plo
ye
e D

isp
ute

0
26
,00

0
34
,54

1
8,5

41
8,5

41
8,5

41
8,5

41
DR

M0
11

Tw
inn

ing
 Ex

pe
ns
es

43
,30

0
41
,80

0
39
,65

7
(2,

14
3)

(2,
14
3)

(2,
14
3)

(2,
27
0)

(2,
21
0)

(6,
62
3)

GB
D0

01
Co

mm
un
ity
 W

elf
are

 G
ran

ts
23
8,9

50
43
4,3

50
31
5,4

85
(11

8,8
65
)

10
9,0

00
(9,

86
5)

(11
8,8

65
)

(18
,80

0)
(13

7,6
65
)

GB
D1

03
SL

A S
ing

le 
Ad

vic
e C

on
tra

ct
17
6,1

00
11
2,6

00
11
2,3

10
(29

0)
(29

0)
(29

0)
(29

0)
GB

D1
04

Cit
ize

ns
 Ad

vic
e B

ure
au

37
,40

0
30
,00

0
30
,00

0
0

0
0

0
PL

P1
03

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Str

ate
gic

 pa
rtn

ers
hip

10
,20

0
13
7,9

00
12
2,0

03
(15

,89
7)

7,9
00

(7,
99
7)

(15
,89

7)
(17

,41
4)

(33
,31

2)
SU

P0
18

Pr
es
s &

 PR
/C
om

mu
nic

ati
on
s

82
,80

0
(31

,20
0)

(33
,04

5)
(1,

84
5)

(1,
84
5)

(1,
84
5)

(15
,82

1)
48
,86

6
31
,20

0
SU

P0
37

Eq
ua
l O

pp
ort

un
itie

s
1,7

00
2,5

00
20
0

(2,
30
0)

(2,
30
0)

(2,
30
0)

(20
0)

(2,
50
0)

DR
M0

01
De

mo
cra

tic
 R
ep
res

en
tat
ion

 an
d M

an
ag
em

en
t

51
2,8

50
63
6,3

50
61
1,5

34
(24

,81
6)

7,0
00

(17
,81

6)
(24

,81
6)

(38
,41

0)
(63

,22
6)

DR
M0

06
Ca

bin
et 
Ex

pe
nd
itu
re

82
,80

0
38
,60

0
38
,60

0
0

0
0

(1,
71
0)

(1,
71
0)

DR
M0

07
O 
& S

 C
om

mi
tte
es

64
,90

0
69
,80

0
69
,80

0
0

0
0

14
0

14
0

DR
M0

09
Civ

ic 
Ex

pe
ns
es

60
,60

0
31
,60

0
29
,87

6
(1,

72
4)

(1,
72
4)

(1,
72
4)

(1,
72
4)

DR
M0

10
Civ

ic 
Ca

r
32
,90

0
24
,30

0
21
,24

9
(3,

05
1)

(3,
05
1)

(3,
05
1)

(3,
05
1)

DR
M0

12
Civ

ic 
Ev

en
ts

30
,60

0
63
,40

0
53
,80

1
(9,

59
9)

(9,
59
9)

(9,
59
9)

(9,
59
9)

SU
P0

07
Co

mm
itte

e S
erv

ice
s

(2,
70
0)

(80
0)

(52
0)

28
0

28
0

28
0

(16
,17

0)
16
,69

0
80
0

DR
M0

08
Co

rpo
rat

e S
ub
sc
rip
tio
ns

23
,70

0
22
,80

0
19
,35

9
(3,

44
1)

(3,
44
1)

(3,
44
1)

(3,
44
1)

EM
P0

02
Em

erg
en
cie

s
0

0
2,2

38
2,2

38
2,2

38
2,2

38
2,2

38
RE

G0
19

Pu
bli
c C

on
ve
nie

nc
es

16
2,6

00
13
1,1

00
15
6,7

89
25
,68

9
30

25
,71

9
25
,68

9
5,4

50
31
,13

9
RY

C0
02

Gr
ee
n W

as
te

(42
,70

0)
(3,

50
0)

(11
8,3

74
)

(11
4,8

74
)

(11
4,8

74
)

(11
4,8

74
)

(4,
60
0)

(11
9,4

74
)

RY
C0

04
Re

cy
clin

g C
en
tre

s
24
9,7

00
54
0,1

00
40
8,4

92
(13

1,6
08
)

(21
,93

5)
(15

3,5
43
)

(13
1,6

08
)

4,6
00

(12
7,0

08
)

RY
C0

05
Br
ing

 Si
tes

74
,70

0
50
,70

0
(1,

02
9)

(51
,72

9)
(51

,72
9)

(51
,72

9)
(10

0)
(51

,82
9)

RY
C0

06
Re

cy
clin

g C
oll
ec
tio
n S

ch
em

es
34
8,3

50
50
5,1

50
65
0,1

80
14
5,0

30
11
,90

0
15
6,9

30
14
5,0

30
(80

0)
14
4,2

30
SR

M0
01

Gr
as
s V

erg
es

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
ST

C0
01

Str
ee
t C

lea
nin

g
83
2,9

00
87
3,4

00
78
6,6

63
(86

,73
7)

(86
,73

7)
(86

,73
7)

(10
0)

(86
,83

7)
SU

P0
04

Le
ga
l

(26
,60

0)
(10

,00
0)

(28
,11

9)
(18

,11
9)

15
,50

0
(2,

61
9)

(18
,11

9)
28
,11

9
10
,00

0
SU

P0
34

Fle
et 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt
0

(28
,80

0)
11
,41

0
40
,21

0
40
,21

0
40
,21

0
40
,21

0
SU

P1
02

So
urc

ing
 St

rat
eg
ies

11
7,7

00
37
,00

0
0

(37
,00

0)
(37

,00
0)

(37
,00

0)
(37

,00
0)

SU
P1

04
L &

 C
 Tr

us
t s
et 
up
 co

sts
0

0
12
,57

4
12
,57

4
(12

,57
4)

0
12
,57

4
12
,57

4
TR

W
00
1

Tra
de
 W

as
te

0
3,6

00
(21

0,2
66
)

(21
3,8

66
)

14
,50

0
(19

9,3
66
)

(21
3,8

66
)

(21
3,8

66
)

W
ST

00
1

Ho
us
eh
old

 W
as
te

97
6,9

00
1,1

94
,00

0
1,2

51
,27

3
57
,27

3
51
,80

0
10
9,0

73
57
,27

3
(14

,82
4)

42
,44

8
EL

E0
01

Re
gis

tra
tio
n o

f E
lec

tor
s

18
3,0

00
14
8,2

50
16
0,3

12
12
,06

2
12
,06

2
12
,06

2
(14

,10
6)

(2,
04
4)

EL
E0

02
Dis

tric
t E

lec
tio
ns

20
4,8

00
23
7,5

00
23
3,9

84
(3,

51
6)

(3,
51
6)

(3,
51
6)

(18
1)

(12
,70

6)
(16

,40
3)

EL
E0

03
Ele

cti
on
s S

up
po
rt/O

ve
rhe

ad
s

(1,
35
0)

(9,
10
0)

(12
,55

1)
(3,

45
1)

(3,
45
1)

(3,
45
1)

(10
,81

2)
23
,36

3
9,1

00
EL

E0
05

Pa
ris
h E

lec
tio
ns

0
4,0

00
4,0

10
10

10
10

(59
6)

(58
6)

EL
E0

08
Po

lice
 & 

Cr
im
e C

om
mi
ss
ion

er 
Ele

cti
on
s

0
0

(2,
99
8)

(2,
99
8)

(2,
99
8)

(2,
99
8)

(2,
99
8)

HO
M0

01
Ho

me
les

sn
es
s

58
5,2

00
31
4,5

00
95
,09

1
(21

9,4
09
)

19
0,0

00
(29

,40
9)

(21
9,4

09
)

(32
,62

3)
(10

0)
(25

2,1
31
)

HO
S0

01
Ho

us
ing

 St
rat

eg
y

20
,30

0
43
,10

0
43
,10

0
0

0
0

(6,
00
0)

(6,
00
0)

HO
S0

02
Ho

us
ing

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

s
0

0
19
4

19
4

19
4

19
4

19
4

SP
P0

01
Su

pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le

15
,90

0
96
,10

0
96
,10

0
0

0
0

(47
,90

0)
(47

,90
0)

SU
P0

36
Pr
oje

ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt
18
7,7

00
(45

,10
0)

(66
,44

9)
(21

,34
9)

22
,00

0
65
1

(21
,34

9)
(22

,22
5)

88
,67

5
45
,10

0
Ub

ico
0

17
0,0

00
17
0,0

00
0

0
Co

mm
iss

ion
ing

5,5
57
,75

0
5,8

75
,70

0
4,9

09
,91

1
(96

5,7
89
)

(17
,47

9)
73
8,4

00
(24

4,8
68
)

(96
5,7

89
)

0
(14

0,9
70
)

73
,56

1
(1,

03
3,1

98
)

SU
P0

10
Int
ern

al 
Au

dit
16
,95

0
0

8,9
23

8,9
23

8,9
23

8,9
23

(8,
92
3)

0
AD

B1
02

Cu
sto

dia
ns

(7,
10
0)

0
(7,

95
3)

(7,
95
3)

(7,
95
3)

(7,
95
3)

(5,
34
8)

13
,30

1
0

CP
K0

02
Ca

r P
ark

 In
co
me

 C
oll
ec
tio
n

1,5
00

(10
,00

0)
(12

,91
0)

(2,
91
0)

(2,
91
0)

(2,
91
0)

(8,
84
2)

21
,75

2
10
,00

0
SU

P0
08

Re
ce
pti
on
/C
us
tom

er 
Se

rvi
ce
s

(68
,70

0)
26
,80

0
(3,

00
6)

(29
,80

6)
(29

,80
6)

(29
,80

6)
(30

,51
8)

33
,52

4
(26

,80
0)

SU
P0

14
Ca

sh
ier
s

(5,
00
0)

0
(67

8)
(67

8)
(67

8)
(67

8)
(11

,40
7)

12
,08

5
0

SU
P0

24
Po

sta
l S

erv
ice

s
(3,

20
0)

0
(3,

22
3)

(3,
22
3)

(3,
22
3)

(3,
22
3)

(7,
23
1)

10
,45

4
0

AIR
10
1

Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
 Ai

rpo
rt

22
,20

0
(2,

70
0)

(2,
26
4)

43
6

43
6

43
6

20
0

63
6

CO
R0

01
Co

rpo
rat

e M
an
ag
em

en
t (e

xc
l b
ad
 de

bt 
pro

v R
89
10
)

96
0,5

50
1,1

15
,45

0
1,0

81
,62

1
(33

,82
9)

(33
,82

9)
(33

,82
9)

(23
,07

4)
(65

,90
0)

(18
0,0

23
)

(30
2,8

26
)

CO
R0

06
Tre

as
ury

 M
an
ag
em

en
t

72
,80

0
78
,60

0
88
,31

0
9,7

10
9,7

10
9,7

10
9,7

10

Pa
ge
 2 
of 
3

Page 108



SE
RV

IC
E 
LE

VE
L 
OU

TT
UR

N 
PE

RF
OR

M
AN

CE
 P
OS

IT
IO
N 
20
12
-1
3

AP
PE

ND
IX 

3
(U
nd

er)
 /

(U
nd

er)
 /

SO
A 
-C
od

e
Ov

ers
pe

nd
Tr
an

sfe
rs 

to 
Ad

jus
ted

Ov
ers

pe
nd

IA
S1

9
Ad

jus
ted

RE
VE

NU
E O

UT
TU

RN
 20

12
/13

Bu
dg

et
Re

vis
ed

Ac
tua

l
be

for
e S

eR
CO

P
to 

(fr
om

)
Ca

rry
(U
nd

er)
 /

be
for

e S
eR

CO
P

Co
de

 / I
FR

S
Pe

ns
ion

Se
RC

OP
(U
nd

er)
 /

Bo
ok

 12
/13

Bu
dg

et 
12
/13

20
12
/13

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
res

erv
es

Fo
rw

ard
s

Ov
ers

pe
nd

Ad
jus

tm
en

t
Ad

jus
tm

en
ts

Ad
jus

tm
en

ts
Ad

jus
tm

en
t

Ov
ers

pe
nd

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

HA
V0

01
Ho

us
ing

 Ad
va
nc
es

0
0

21
1

21
1

21
1

21
1

21
1

SU
P0

09
Ac

co
un
tan

cy
61
,15

0
47
,30

0
10
,16

1
(37

,13
9)

15
,00

0
(22

,13
9)

(37
,13

9)
(10

,16
1)

(47
,30

0)
SU

P0
11

Cr
ed
ito
rs

0
(16

,20
0)

(1,
62
8)

14
,57

2
14
,57

2
14
,57

2
1,6

28
16
,20

0
SU

P0
12

De
bto

rs
48
,40

0
(31

,20
0)

(39
,81

6)
(8,

61
6)

(8,
61
6)

(8,
61
6)

39
,81

6
31
,20

0
SU

P0
33

Ce
ntr

al 
Pu

rch
as
ing

8,6
50

(1,
20
0)

(20
,54

3)
(19

,34
3)

(19
,34

3)
(19

,34
3)

20
,54

3
1,2

00
SU

P0
35

Ins
ura

nc
es

(4,
10
0)

(2,
30
0)

(12
,78

3)
(10

,48
3)

(10
,48

3)
(10

,48
3)

12
,78

3
2,3

00
SU

P0
38

Pe
ns
ion

s B
ac
kfu

nd
ing

1,4
70
,60

0
1,4

72
,00

0
1,4

73
,10

8
1,1

08
1,1

08
1,1

08
36
4,0

00
36
5,1

08
SU

P0
03

Hu
ma

n R
es
ou
rce

s
(1,

30
0)

10
,50

0
(11

,28
1)

(21
,78

1)
30
,00

0
8,2

19
(21

,78
1)

(1,
30
1)

12
,58

1
(10

,50
0)

SU
P0

13
Pa

yro
ll

0
(18

,80
0)

5,1
66

23
,96

6
23
,96

6
23
,96

6
(5,

16
6)

18
,80

0
SU

P0
19

He
alt
h &

 Sa
fet
y

2,0
00

7,7
00

(5,
48
2)

(13
,18

2)
(13

,18
2)

(13
,18

2)
5,4

82
(7,

70
0)

SU
P0

20
Tra

ini
ng
 & 

De
ve
lop

me
nt

(23
,80

0)
92
,50

0
67
,57

0
(24

,93
0)

5,0
00

(19
,93

0)
(24

,93
0)

(67
,57

0)
(92

,50
0)

HB
A0

01
Ho

us
ing

 Be
ne
fit 
Ad

mi
n

99
,20

0
21
,10

0
23
,19

0
2,0

90
2,0

90
2,0

90
(67

,01
4)

(6,
55
0)

(71
,47

4)
HB

P0
01

Re
nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s

(47
,10

0)
(46

,90
0)

30
,99

2
77
,89

2
77
,89

2
77
,89

2
77
,89

2
HB

P0
02

Re
nt 
Re

ba
tes

(99
,00

0)
(10

5,7
00
)

(16
2,5

50
)

(56
,85

0)
(56

,85
0)

(56
,85

0)
(56

,85
0)

HB
P0

03
Lo
ca
l H

ou
sin

g A
llo
wa

nc
e

(70
,50

0)
(70

,50
0)

(70
,50

0)
0

0
0

0
LT

C0
02

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x B

en
efi
t

(33
2,8

00
)

(26
,00

0)
(44

,75
4)

(18
,75

4)
(18

,75
4)

(18
,75

4)
(18

,75
4)

SU
P0

05
IC
T

(27
6,1

50
)

75
,75

0
14
,34

3
(61

,40
7)

61
,20

0
(20

7)
(61

,40
7)

(55
,95

8)
41
,61

5
(75

,75
0)

SU
P0

06
Te

lep
ho
ne
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
SU

P0
22

Pr
int
ing

 Se
rvi
ce
s

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
SU

P1
01

GO
 IC

T C
en
tre

 of
 Ex

ce
lle
nc
e

26
3,6

25
46
,92

5
32
,84

1
(14

,08
4)

(14
,08

4)
(14

,08
4)

(14
,08

4)
AD

B1
01

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Mu

nic
ipa

l O
ffic

es
26
,50

0
6,8

00
(34

,50
2)

(41
,30

2)
43
3

(40
,86

9)
(41

,30
2)

(5,
45
0)

39
,95

2
(6,

80
0)

AD
B1

03
Ch

elt
en
ha
m 
De

po
t

(17
,20

0)
(30

,80
0)

19
,35

7
50
,15

7
4,2

43
54
,40

0
50
,15

7
(12

,18
5)

37
,97

2
CU

L0
02

W
ar 

Me
mo

ria
ls

12
,30

0
18
,90

0
4,1

65
(14

,73
5)

14
,90

0
16
5

(14
,73

5)
(14

,73
5)

EC
D1

01
Xm

as
 in
 C
he
lte
nh
am

41
,70

0
50
,40

0
54
,72

4
4,3

24
47

4,3
71

4,3
24

4,3
24

EN
F1

04
Ch

elt
en
ha
m 
En

vir
on
me

nta
l F
un
d- 

Pr
op
ert

y
0

63
,00

0
(40

0)
(63

,40
0)

60
,00

0
(3,

40
0)

(63
,40

0)
40
0

(63
,00

0)
FIE

04
0

Inc
om

e a
nd
 Ex

pe
nd
itu
re 

on
 In
ve
stm

en
t P

rop
ert

ies
 an

d C
ha
ng
es
 in
 Th

eir
 Fa

ir V
alu

e
(36

4,8
00
)

(33
9,8

50
)

(51
5,5

52
)

(17
5,7

02
)

14
8,9

11
(26

,79
1)

(17
5,7

02
)

14
6,2

15
(29

,48
6)

SU
P0

25
Pr
op
ert

y S
erv

ice
s

60
,35

0
21
9,9

00
33
5,4

74
11
5,5

74
(80

,61
8)

34
,95

6
11
5,5

74
(48

,43
0)

(26
0,9

15
)

(19
3,7

71
)

LT
C0

01
Co

un
cil 

Ta
x

96
5,8

00
62
6,4

00
59
4,3

53
(32

,04
7)

(32
,04

7)
(32

,04
7)

(45
,55

7)
(11

,00
9)

(88
,61

3)
LT

C0
03

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x L

ea
fle
t

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
LT

C0
11

NN
DR

(11
9,3

00
)

(72
,20

0)
11
2,5

70
18
4,7

70
18
4,7

70
18
4,7

70
(5,

57
5)

(1,
95
0)

17
7,2

45
LT

C0
12

NN
DR

 R
eli
ef

12
,10

0
77
,10

0
17
,85

6
(59

,24
4)

59
,20

0
(44

)
(59

,24
4)

(59
,24

4)
Re

so
ur
ce
s

2,7
06
,32

5
3,2

82
,77

5
3,0

25
,11

2
(25

7,6
63
)

14
9,1

16
16
9,2

00
60
,65

3
(25

7,6
63
)

(23
,07

4)
5,4

70
(15

2,1
22
)

(42
7,3

89
)

CU
L0
01

Ar
ts 
De

ve
lop

me
nt

18
6,0

00
24
,70

0
22
,33

8
(2,

36
2)

1,5
00

(86
2)

(2,
36
2)

(2,
36
2)

CU
L1
06

Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 gr
an
t fu

nd
ed
 pr

oje
cts

0
6,2

00
(22

,09
3)

(28
,29

3)
(5,

83
1)

33
,10

0
(1,

02
4)

(28
,29

3)
(28

,29
3)

CU
L1
07

Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 O
pe
rat

ion
s

1,0
76
,10

0
1,1

60
,70

0
99
5,2

99
(16

5,4
01
)

22
7,4

00
4,7

00
66
,69

9
(16

5,4
01
)

(67
,61

1)
3,5

74
(22

9,4
38
)

CU
L1
08

Ev
ery

ma
n T

he
atr

e
14
4,6

00
14
4,2

00
13
9,8

94
(4,

30
6)

(4,
30
6)

(4,
30
6)

(4,
30
6)

CU
L1
09

Pla
yh
ou
se
 Th

ea
tre

24
,10

0
8,8

00
8,8

10
10

10
10

10
TA

C1
01

AG
M 
Tra

din
g A

cc
ou
nt

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
TO

U0
02

To
uri
st/
Vis

ito
r In

for
ma

tio
n C

en
tre

88
,45

0
86
,25

0
74
,26

6
(11

,98
4)

(11
,98

4)
(11

,98
4)

(3,
65
0)

(15
,63

4)
CU

L1
02

To
wn

 H
all
 O
pe
rat

ion
s

69
3,8

00
82
9,2

00
79
6,3

26
(32

,87
4)

(10
,72

0)
23
,00

0
(20

,59
4)

(32
,87

4)
(73

,54
2)

5,9
23

(10
0,4

93
)

CU
L1
03

Pit
tvi
lle
 Pu

mp
 R
oo
m 
Op

era
tio
ns

27
6,4

00
18
4,3

00
16
1,8

11
(22

,48
9)

9,1
94

(13
,29

5)
(22

,48
9)

44
0

(22
,04

9)
CU

L1
10

En
ter

tai
nm

en
t E

ve
nts

 - d
eta

il c
od
ed

(45
,90

0)
(73

,10
0)

(96
,75

8)
(23

,65
8)

(23
,65

8)
(23

,65
8)

(23
,65

8)
CU

L1
12

To
wn

 H
all
 R
ep
air
s &

 M
ain

ten
an
ce

0
0

5
5

5
5

5
RE

C1
01

Re
cre

ati
on
 C
en
tre

 O
pe
rat

ion
s

1,7
39
,10

0
1,6

63
,10

0
1,6

11
,40

7
(51

,69
3)

1,4
60

(50
,23

3)
(51

,69
3)

(85
,23

8)
9,1

83
(12

7,7
48
)

RE
C1

02
Pr
inc

e o
f W

ale
s S

tad
ium

16
2,5

00
16
2,4

00
16
2,3

96
(4)

7,2
77

7,2
72

(4)
(4)

RE
C0

01
Sp

ort
s D

ev
elo

pm
en
t

91
,00

0
99
,90

0
10
0,1

48
24
8

24
8

24
8

(4,
20
0)

(80
0)

(4,
75
2)

RE
C0

05
Ac

tiv
e L

ife
sty

les
55
,50

0
65
,10

0
64
,44

6
(65

4)
(65

4)
(65

4)
(2,

72
4)

(2,
11
4)

(5,
49
2)

RE
C0

07
Ho

lid
ay
 R
ec
rea

tio
n P

rog
ram

me
11
1,7

00
10
0,8

00
10
1,2

30
43
0

43
0

43
0

(30
0)

13
0

RE
C0

08
Su

pp
ort

 To
 Ex

ter
na
l S

po
rts
 O
rga

nis
ati
on
s

4,0
00

8,3
00

8,3
00

0
0

0
(1,

25
0)

(1,
25
0)

CS
M0

01
Cu

ltu
ral
 - S

erv
ice

 M
an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 Su

pp
ort

 Se
rvi
ce
s

12
,00

0
(4,

40
0)

14
,36

3
18
,76

3
18
,76

3
18
,76

3
(21

,11
7)

6,7
54

4,4
00

CU
L1
11

Ch
elt
en
ha
m 
Fe

sti
va
ls

13
6,5

00
23
6,5

00
23
6,5

00
0

0
0

0
We

llb
ein

g &
 C
ult

ur
e

4,7
55
,85

0
4,7

02
,95

0
4,3

78
,68

8
(32

4,2
62
)

22
8,7

79
62
,30

0
(33

,18
3)

(32
4,2

62
)

0
(25

4,4
31
)

17
,76

0
(56

0,9
33
)

CO
R0

01
Ba

d D
eb

t 
40
,00

0
40
,00

0
21
,84

2
(18

,15
8)

0
0

(18
,15

8)
(18

,15
8)

0
0

0
(18

,15
8)

CO
R0

01
Ta

rg
et 

Sa
vin

gs
(48

0,0
00
)

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

TO
TA

L A
LL

 SE
RV

IC
ES

15
,80

0,2
75

17
,65

8,6
75

15
,25

2,0
42

(2,
40
6,6

33
)

72
7,3

03
1,3

20
,60

0
(35

8,7
29
)

(2,
40
6,6

33
)

39
5,5

62
(1,

04
7,0

00
)

(0)
(3,

05
8,0

71
)

Pa
ge
 3 
of 
3

Page 109



Page 110
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

3

PL
AN

NE
D 
M
AI
NT

EN
AN

CE
 P
RO

G
RA

M
M
E 
20
12
/1
3

Co
de

Sc
he

me
 

De
sc

rip
tio

n
Bu

dg
et

Re
vis

ed
Ou

ttu
rn

Un
de

r/(
Ov

er)
Co

mm
en

ts
Bo

ok
Bu

dg
et

 
sp

en
d o

n
 

 
20

12
/13

20
12

/13
20

12
/13

Pr
oje

cts
 

RE
VE

NU
E

AD
B1

01
Mu

nic
ipa

l O
ffic

es
Ge

ne
ral
 re

pa
irs
.

28
,00

0
15

,00
0

14
,56

7
43

3

AD
B1

03
Ce

ntr
al 
De

po
t

Re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 
roo

f c
ov
eri
ng

s,w
irin

gs
 an

d e
lec

tric
 wa

ter
 he

ate
rs.

8,0
00

8,0
00

3,7
57

4,2
43

Ele
ctr
ic h

ea
ter

s w
ill b

e r
ep

lac
ed

 in
 th
e n

ew
 fin

an
cia

l ye
ar 

- £
5,0

00
.

CC
M0

01
Ce

me
ter

y &
 C
rem

ato
riu
m

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o
f p
ub

lic 
co
nv
en

ien
ce
s, 
gra

ve
 / m

em
ori
al 
ma

int
en

an
ce
, 

ge
ne

ral
 re

pa
irs
 to
 m
ac
ad

am
 dr

ive
s /
 pa

ths
.

38
,00

0
38

,00
0

39
,78

3
(1,

78
3)

CP
K0

01
Ca

r P
ark

s -
 O
ff S

tre
et

Re
me

dia
l re

pa
irs
 to
 bo

un
da

ry 
wa

ll, s
tru

ctu
ral
 co

nc
ret

e r
ep

air
s, 
str
uc
tur

al 
ins

pe
ctio

ns
, re

ne
w b

olla
rd 

pro
tec

tio
n a

t R
oy
al 
W
ell 

Bu
s S

tat
ion

.
24

5,0
00

25
,00

0
5,3

26
19

,67
4W

ork
s a

t R
oy
al 
W
ell 

Bu
s S

tat
ion

 wi
ll b

e c
om

ple
ted

 in
 13

/14
 - £

7,0
00

.

CU
L0

02
W
ar 

me
mo

ria
ls

Re
-et

ch
 na

me
s o

n c
en

tra
l m

em
ori
als

, g
en

era
l cl

ea
nin

g /
 m
ino

r re
pa

ir w
ork

.
5,0

00
18

,90
0

4,0
00

14
,90

0R
e-e

tch
 on

 ce
ntr

al 
me

mo
ria
l w

ill b
e c

om
ple

ted
 in
 13

/14
 - £

11
,80

0

CU
L1

02
To

wn
 H
all

Re
fur

bis
hm

en
t o
f p
ub

lic 
co
nv
en

ien
ce
s, 
rep

lac
em

en
t o
f fl
oo

r fi
nis

he
s, 

ref
urb

ish
me

nt 
of 
wo

od
en

 flo
ori
ng

.
50

,00
0

50
,00

0
60

,72
0

(10
,72

0)

CU
L1

03
Pit

tvi
lle 

Pu
mp

 R
oo

m
Re

fur
bis

hm
en

t o
f c
ha

nd
elie

rs,
 re

su
rfa

cin
g o

f b
allr

oo
m 
flo
ori
ng

, re
fur

bis
hm

en
t 

of 
pu

blic
 co

nv
en

ien
ce
s.

43
,50

0
43

,50
0

34
,30

6
9,1

94

CU
L1

07
Ar
t G

alle
ry 
& M

us
eu

m
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
ma

in 
bo

iler
s, 
ins

tal
lat
ion

 of
 co

ld 
fus

ion
 m
em

bra
ne

 to
 fla

t ro
ofs

, 
se
cu
rity

 / f
ire
 al
arm

 in
ter

fac
e t
o n

ew
 bu

ildi
ng

 up
gra

de
, re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
flo
or 

fin
ish

es
, re

de
co
rat

ion
s t
o o

ffic
e a

rea
s a

nd
 pu

blic
 ar

ea
s.

17
1,0

00
17

4,9
00

1,0
00

17
3,9

00
£1

69
,00

0 h
as
 be

en
 tra

ns
fer

red
 to
 th
e A

G&
M 
Re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
Re

se
rve

.

EC
D1

01
Xm

as
 in
 C
he

lte
nh

am
Ch

ris
tm
as
 illu

mi
na

tio
ns

0
8,0

00
7,9

54
47

FIE
04

0
Inc

om
e &

 Ex
pe

nd
itu
re 

on
 In
ve
stm

en
t 

Pr
op

ert
ies

Po
we

r p
erf

ec
tor

s, 
ele

ctr
ica

l te
stin

g, 
Be

rkl
ey
 M
ew

s c
om

mu
na

l re
de

co
rat

ion
, 5
 

ye
ar 

sta
te 
& c

on
dit
ion

 su
rve

ys,
 va

rio
us
 ot
he

r g
en

era
l re

pa
irs
.

10
1,5

00
17

6,8
00

27
,88

9
14

8,9
11

To
 be

 co
mp

let
ed

 in
 20

13
/14

: 5
 ye

ar 
sta

te 
& c

on
dit
ion

 su
rve

ys 
(£4

8,0
00

) a
nd

 
Po

we
r P

erf
ec
tor

s (
£7

5,9
00

).

OP
S0

01
Pa

rks
 & 

Ga
rde

ns
Re

pa
irs
 to
 C
en

tra
l N

urs
ery

86
,00

0
0

(40
0)

    
    
    
    

40
0

OP
S0

02
Sp

ort
s &

 O
pe

n S
pa

ce
s

Re
de

co
rat

ion
 to
 de

co
rat

ive
 ca

no
py
 m
eta

lwo
rk,
 re

de
co
rat

ion
 to
 do

ors
 / 

se
rve

ry.
0

4,0
00

4,4
51

(45
1)

RE
C1

01
Re

cre
ati
on

 C
en

tre
Su

rfa
ce
 m
ark

ing
 re

-lin
ing

 to
 ca

r p
ark

, re
pla

ce
me

nt 
of 
sh
ee

t s
tee

l ro
of 
de

ck
, 

ref
urb

ish
me

nt 
of 
wo

od
en

 sp
run

g f
loo

r, b
ird
 co

ntr
ol 
me

as
ure

s, 
rep

lac
em

en
t o
f 

ligh
tin
g l
am

ps
 to
 m
ain

 & 
lea

rni
ng

 po
ol 
ha

lls.

89
,00

0
75

,00
0

28
,54

0
46

,46
0T

he
 re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
sh
ee

t s
tee

l ro
of 
de

ck
 (£

45
,00

0) 
wil
l b
e c

om
ple

ted
 in
 

20
13

/14
.

RE
C1

02
Pr
inc

e o
f W

ale
s S

tad
ium

Re
su
rfa

cin
g a

nd
 re

lini
ng

 of
 ru

nn
ing

 tra
ck
 su

rfa
ce
, a
nn

ua
l m

ain
ten

an
ce
 of
 tra

ck
 

hig
h l
igh

tin
g, 
irri
ga

tio
n p

um
p h

ou
se
 & 

eq
uip

me
nt 
ma

int
en

an
ce
.

18
9,0

00
14

9,0
00

14
1,7

23
7,2

77

RE
G0

19
Pu

blic
 C
on

ve
nie

nc
es

Ge
ne

ral
 ru

nn
ing

 re
pa

irs
 an

d r
ed

ec
ora

tio
ns
.

5,0
00

5,0
00

4,9
70

30

RY
C0

04
Re

cyc
ling

 C
en

tre
s

Re
ne

w d
rai
na

ge
 pr

ov
isio

n t
o s

po
ttin

g c
om

po
un

d.
20

,00
0

0
21

,93
5

(21
,93

5)
Bu

dg
et 
sh
ou

ld 
ha

ve
 be

en
 ca

rrie
d f
orw

ard
 fro

m 
20

11
/12

.

SU
P0

25
Pr
op

ert
y S

erv
ice

s
Gr
os
ve
no

r T
err

ac
e C

ar 
Pa

rk:
 D
ec
k r
es
urf

ac
ing

 to
 le
ve
ls 8

 & 
9, 
co
nc
ret

e 
rep

air
s t
o l
ow

er 
de

ck
s, 
rep

air
s t
o d

ec
k s

urf
ac
es
.

0
22

0,0
00

22
3,5

00
(3,

50
0)

TO
TA

L P
RO

GR
AM

ME
D 

MA
IN
TE

NA
NC

E
1,0

79
,00

0
1,0

11
,10

0
62

4,0
21

38
7,0

79

* T
he

 va
ria
nc
e, 
aft
er 

ca
rry

 fo
rw
ard

 re
qu

es
ts,
 wi

ll b
e r

eta
ine

d i
n t
he

 Pr
og

ram
me

 M
ain

ten
an

ce
 R
es
erv

e a
nd

 al
loc

ate
d t
o f
utu

re 
ye
ars

 pr
og

ram
me

s.

Pa
ge
 4

Page 111



Page 112
This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 4 MTFS Strategy - Bridging the Gap

Approved 
Savings 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Total

MTFS Gap 1,244,800 963,118 693,455 447,948 294,756 3,644,077
Total Current MTFS Funding Deficit 1,244,800 963,118 693,455 447,948 294,756 3,644,077
Organisational changes
Staff restructures
- Public Protection 35,000 35,000
- Parks & Gardens (reduction of p/t post) 10,000 10,000
- Building Control (offset by inflation on income - see Appendix 3) 9,800 9,800
Built Environment Management Restructure 52,700 52,700
Economic Development Restructure 20,000 20,000
Revenues & Benefits Service Review 88,000 88,000
Car park retained organisation savings post GCC - car park income collectors 23,000 23,000
Retained organisation savings post GCC - target 150,000 150,000
Senior Management Team review 100,000 50,000 50,000 200,000
Shared Services
Establishing Ubico with Cotswold District Council * 91,700 91,700
Additional waste target 45,400 45,400
GO shared services
- staff savings * 221,800 221,800
- licensing savings * 32,600 32,600
- ICT support and hosting costs * (53,200) (53,200)
- retained organisation saving * 30,000 30,000
- procurement savings

1. Treasury management * 4,500 4,500
2. CIPFA Publications * 1,000 1,000

3. Audit fee * 35,000 35,000
Shared Project Management with Forest of Dean 19,600 19,600
Shared GIS with Forest of Dean 30,000 30,000
Commissioning
L&C Review - AGM savings * 50,000 50,000
L&C Review - trust savings 40,000 175,600 174,100 111,700 131,800 633,200
L&C Review - reduction in retained organisation 33,900 33,800 67,700
ICT Review - per business case to Cabinet 11/12/12 159,500 159,500
Trade Waste service review 50,000 50,000
Review of Arle Nursery 50,000 50,000
Revenues & Benefits Review 50,000 50,000
Joint Management Unit for Waste 100,000 100,000
Income
Planning fee income rise 15% 60,000 60,000
Townscape/Conservation planning advice 5,000 5,000
Fees & Charges Review inc. concessions 30,000 30,000
Provision of mortgages - interest 20,000 20,000
Asset Management
Remove annual increase contribution to Programme Maintenance Reserve ** 200,000 200,000
Rationalisation of asset portfolio 30,000 30,000 60,000
Accomodation Strategy 100,000 100,000 200,000
Other
Supplies & services savings

1. Corporate training budget * 2,000 2,000 4,000
2. LGA - reduced membership costs * 300 300 600

3. Building Control 6,000 6,000
4. Target saving 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 40,000

Additional recharge to HRA / CBH post HRA reform & revision to SLAs 69,000 69,000
Single Advice Contract tender saving 22,000 22,000
Reduction in Everyman Grant * 5,000 5,000 10,000
Reduction in grant to Oakley & Hesters Way Regeneration Partnerships * 4,000 4,000 4,000 12,000
Community Development - reduction in operational budget 15,000 15,000
Additional allotment sites * 5,000 5,000
Reduction in grants 30,000 30,000
Efficiency savings Target yet to be identified 586,118 116,655 122,448 -177,044 648,177
Total Savings/Income over MTFS 1,244,800 963,118 693,455 447,948 294,756 3,644,077
shortfall / (surplus)  against MTFS Funding Gap 0 0 0 0 0 0

* Denotes savings previously approved. NB: traffic lights denote risk associated with delivery
** Make one-off contributions to Programme Maintenance reserve from New Homes Bonus

Summary of Savings
Approved savings * 1,244,800 41,000 9,300 0 0 1,295,100
Savings to be approved 336,000 567,500 325,500 471,800 1,700,800
Savings target yet to be identified 586,118 116,655 122,448 -177,044 648,177

1,244,800 963,118 693,455 447,948 294,756 3,644,077

BRIDGING THE GAP STRATEGY 

Page 113



Page 114
This page is intentionally left blank



                                                                                                       APPENDIX 5 

1 

 
      SIGNIFICANT VARIANCES IN REVENUE OUTTURN FOR 2012/13 
                                     (OVER £50,000) BY SERVICE 
 
STRATEGIC DIRECTORS 
There is a net underspend of £150k within the Strategic Directors Directorate for 
2012/13 including the following significant variances:- 
 
There is a net underspend of £186k in the parks and gardens and schools contract 
services, mainly as a result of an underspend in operations carried out by Ubico Ltd 
on behalf of the council as detailed below. 
 
BUILT ENVIRONMENT 
There is a net underspend of £27k within the Built Environment Directorate for 
2012/13 including the following significant variances:- 
 
Off Street Car Parking 
There is a net overspend of £85k within Off Street Car Parking for 2012/13.  This has 
arisen from a continued drop in car parking income over the later end of the financial 
end, totalling £47k short of target. This was further exacerbated by overspend on 
supplies and services totalling £38K.  This was partly to do with a renegotiation of the 
service charges paid for Regent Arcade Car Park which resulted in additional cost of 
around £16k being incurred in year.  Further to this, increased credit card charges 
from increased take-up of credit / debit card payments have added to the cost of 
service. 
 
Highways Agency Verges & Trees was £54k underspend following the final review of 
the cost of service delivery from Ubico Ltd which resulted in a saving being passed 
back to the council at year-end.   
 
 
COMMISSIONING 
There is a net underspend of £245k within the Commissioning Directorate for 
2012/13 including the following significant variances:- 
 
The net Ubico Ltd position on all commissioning areas, including parks & gardens, 
schools contract services and highways agency, is an underspend of £224k. This is 
partly due to the bad weather over the winter, which disrupted service provision 
particularly on grass cutting and refuse collection, but also due to efficiency savings 
by Ubico Ltd across the board during its first year of operation.  
 
 
 
WELLBEING & CULTURE 
There is a net underspend of £33k within the Wellbeing & Culture Directorate for 
2012/13 including the following significant variances:- 
 
There is an underspend in the Entertainments service of £57,547.  This is due to an 
increase in sales for promoted events and agency tickets during the final two 
quarters and prudent management of budgets. 

Page 115



Page 116
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

6

20
12
/1
3 
CA

RR
Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (

i)
A (

ii)
B

Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

Co
de

Co
st 
Ce

ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr

y f
orw

ard
Ba

se
 Bu

dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA

T)
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

  
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic

er
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic

er
for

 m
em

be
r

un
de
r d

ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d

ele
ga
ted

ap
pro

va
l

po
we

rs
po
we

rs

1
    
 

10
,00

0
    
    
  

R4
40
0-C

UL
10
2

 To
wn

 H
all
 op

era
tio
ns
 

To
wn

 H
all
 Fe

as
ab
ility

 st
ud
y -
 ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

 to
 fu
nd
 a 
Qu

an
tity

 Su
rve

yo
r to

 ve
rify

 th
e c

os
ts 

of 
the

 ca
pit
al 
inv

es
tm
en
t p
roj
ec
t, a

n a
rtis

ts 
im
pre

ss
ion

 of
 w
ha
t th

e p
os
sib

le 
fut
ure

 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
an
d c

on
tra

ct 
bu
dg
et 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
tra

ini
ng
 fo
r s
taf
f. 

10
,00

0

2
    
 

13
,00

0
    
    
  

R1
00
3-C

UL
10
2

 To
wn

 H
all
 op

era
tio
ns
 

To
wn

 H
all
 - T

o s
up
ple

me
nt 
sic

kn
es
s b

ac
kfi
ll f
or 

Op
era

tio
ns
 D
ep
art

me
nt.

13
,00

0

3
    
 

23
,20

0
    
    
  

R9
06
1-C

UL
10
6-A

GM
00
2

 AG
&M

  fu
nd
ed
 pr

oje
cts

 
Ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 Ar

ts 
Co

un
cil 

fun
din

g r
ec
eiv

ed
 to
 fu
nd
 IT

 an
d m

ob
ile
 ap

pli
ca
tio
ns
 - p

roj
ec
t 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

to 
be
 co

mp
let
ed
 20

13
/14

.
23
,20

0

4
    
 

1,7
00

    
    
    

R9
06
1-C

UL
10
6-A

GM
00
7

 AG
&M

  fu
nd
ed
 pr

oje
cts

 

Ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 fu
nd
ing

 re
ce
ive

d t
o f
un
d J

on
ath

on
 R
uff
er 

ed
uc
ati
on
 pr

oje
ct 
ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

(in
 pa

rtn
ers

hip
 w
ith
 Br

ist
ol 
Mu

se
um

 an
d A

rch
ive

s) 
on
 po

ten
tia
l lin

ks
 to
wa

rds
 an

 ex
hib

itio
n 

on
 ou

r c
hin

es
e c

oll
ec
tio
n -

 to
 be

 sp
en
t in

 13
/14

.
1,7

00

5
    
 

5,5
00

    
    
    

R9
06
1-C

UL
10
6-A

GM
01
0

 AG
&M

  fu
nd
ed
 pr

oje
cts

 
Ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 ba

lan
ce
 of
 fu
nd
ing

 re
ce
ive

d t
o f
un
d "

yo
ur 

fut
ure

" p
roj
ec
t e
xp
en
dit
ure

 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 di
sa
dv
an
tag

ed
 fa
mi
lie
s t
o i
nc
rea

se
 ac

ce
ss
 to
 cu

ltu
re 

- to
 be

 sp
en
t in

 13
/14

.
5,5

00

6
    
 

2,3
00

    
    
    

R9
06
1-C

UL
10
6-A

GM
00
3

 AG
&M

  fu
nd
ed
 pr

oje
cts

 

Ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 fu
nd
ing

 re
ce
ive

d t
o f
un
d "

ne
w 
ex
pre

ss
ion

s" 
ed
uc
ati
on
al 
pro

jec
t 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

(fu
nd
ed
 by

 ne
w 
ex
pre

ss
ion

s) 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 an

 ar
tis
t o
n t
he
 Ed

wa
rd 

W
ilso

n 
co
lle
cti
on
 cr
ea
tin
g a

n p
iec

e o
f a
rt t

o b
e i
nc
lud

ed
 in
 th
e c

oll
ec
tio
n -

 to
 be

 sp
en
t in

 13
/14

.
2,3

00

7
    
 

40
0

    
    
    
   

R9
06
1-C

UL
10
6-A

GM
00
1

 AG
&M

  fu
nd
ed
 pr

oje
cts

 
Ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
  b
ala

nc
e o

f fu
nd
ing

 re
ce
ive

d t
o f
un
d e

du
ca
tio
na
l "f
ilm

 st
ud
ios

" p
roj
ec
t 

ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

- to
 be

 sp
en
t in

 13
/14

.
40
0

8
    
 

4,7
00

    
    
    

R4
00
0-C

UL
10
7-A

GM
00
9

 AG
&M

 O
pe
rat

ion
s 

Ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 eq

uip
me

nt,
 di
sp
lay

s a
nd
 ex

hib
itio

n b
ud
ge
ts 
for

 C
as
tin
g B

rill
ian

ce
 

ex
hib

itio
n 2

01
3/1

4 w
hic

h i
s t
he
 m
ajo

r o
pe
nin

g s
ho
w 
for

 th
e r

e-o
pe
nin

g o
f th

e n
ew

 ga
lle
rie
s 

on
 5t
h O

cto
be
r 2

01
3. 
Th

e e
xh
ibi
tio
n h

as
 be

en
 pa

rt-f
un
de
d b

y t
he
 Ar

ts 
Co

un
cil 

- a
nd
 th
is 

ele
me

nt 
of 
the

 AG
&M

's 
ex
hib

itio
ns
 bu

dg
et 
wa

s m
atc

h-f
un
din

g t
ow

ard
s t
he
 Ar

ts 
Co

un
cil 

gra
nt.
 Th

e c
arr

y-o
ve
r re

qu
es
t re

qu
ire
d d

ue
 to
 a 
de
lay

 in
 bu

ild
ing

 / m
ak
ing

 th
e d

isp
lay

 
pli
nth

s a
nd
 ca

se
s w

hic
h a

re 
no
w 
in 
pro

du
cti
on
 an

d w
ill b

e i
ns
tal
led

 on
 si
te 
so
on
.

4,7
00

9
    
 

1,5
00

    
    
    

R6
28
0-C

UL
00
1-G

RA
02
1

 Ar
ts 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 ar

ts 
de
ve
lop

me
nt 
gra

nt 
co
mm

itte
d e

xp
en
dit
ure

 - t
o b

e s
pe
nt 
in 
20
13
/14

. 
Th

is 
ele

me
nt 
of 
the

 Ar
ts 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
bu
dg
et 
wa

s a
llo
ca
ted

 to
wa

rds
 a 
ba
nn
er 

pro
jec

t in
 

pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith
 th
e J

az
z F

es
tiv
al 
- p

rom
oti
ng
 th
e r

e-o
pe
nin

g o
f th

e A
rt G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 
in 
Oc

tob
er.

 Th
e o

rde
r h

ow
ev
er 

wa
s d

ela
ye
d, 
du
e t
o w

ait
ing

 fo
r c
on
firm

ati
on
 on

 th
e 

an
no
un
ce
me

nt 
of 
the

 re
-op

en
ing

 da
tes

. T
he
 ba

nn
ers

 ha
ve
 su

bs
eq
ue
ntl
y b

ee
n m

ad
e a

nd
 

ins
tal
led

 at
 th
is 
ye
ar'
s J

az
z F

es
tiv
al 
an
d w

ill b
e u

se
d o

n t
he
 ho

ard
ing

s a
rou

nd
 th
e A

G&
M 

co
ns
tru

cti
on
 si
te 
an
d /
 or

 w
ith
in 
the

 ne
w 
ga
lle
ry 
win

do
ws

1,5
00

10   
62
,30

0
 To

tal
 W

ell
be

ing
 &
 C
ult

ur
e 

19
,20

0
33
,10

0
10
,00

0

11   
5,0

00
    
    
    

R4
53
1-D

RM
00
1-N

A
 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

Re
lat
ed
 to
 IC

T s
tra

teg
y f
or 

me
mb

ers
. T

his
 is
 to
 un

de
rta

ke
 a 
ne
ed
s a

na
lys

is 
wit

h m
em

be
rs 

& p
ilo
t n
ew

 eq
uip

me
nt 
ari
sin

g f
rom

 th
e r

ev
iew

. A
 de

cis
ion

 ca
n t
he
n b

e m
ad
e a

s p
art

 of
 th
e 

20
14
-15

 bu
dg
et 
for

 th
e f
utu

re 
pro

vis
ion

 of
 IC

T f
or 

me
mb

ers
.

5,0
00

Pa
ge
 1

Page 117



AP
PE

ND
IX 

6

20
12
/1
3 
CA

RR
Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (

i)
A (

ii)
B

Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

Co
de

Co
st 
Ce

ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr

y f
orw

ard
Ba

se
 Bu

dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA

T)
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

  
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic

er
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic

er
for

 m
em

be
r

un
de
r d

ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d

ele
ga
ted

ap
pro

va
l

po
we

rs
po
we

rs

12   
2,0

00
    
    
    

R4
40
1-D

RM
00
1-N

A
 D
em

oc
rat

ic 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

To
 su

pp
ort

 th
e m

em
be
rs 
in 
en
ha
nc
ing

 th
e n

ew
 sc

rut
iny

 ar
ran

ge
me

nts
, to

 en
ga
ge
 th
e 

pu
bli
c b

y f
ac
ilita

tin
g m

ee
tin
gs
 in
 ex

ter
na
l v
en
ue
s, 
ho
ldi
ng
 en

qu
iry
 da

ys
, p
ub
lici
tity

 an
d 

pro
du
cin

g p
rod

uc
ing

 ne
w 
gu
ide

s f
or 

me
mb

ers
, o
ffic

ers
 an

d c
o-o

pte
es
 in
vo
lve

d i
n t
he
 

pro
ce
ss
.

2,0
00

13   
20
,00

0
    
    
  

R4
40
0-S

UP
01
7-B

US
00
1

 Bu
sin

es
s 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt/
Tr
an
sfo

rm
ati
on
 To

 be
 us

ed
 to
 su

pp
ort

 th
e a

pp
oin

tm
en
t o
f tw

o b
us
ine

ss
 ad

mi
nis

tra
tio
n a

pp
ren

tic
es
 fo
r 1

2 
mo

nth
s. 
 Th

es
e a

pp
oin

tm
en
ts 
wil
l e
na
ble

 tw
o y

ou
ng
 pe

op
le 
to 
ha
ve
 th
e o

pp
ort

un
ity
 to
 ga

in 
ne
w 
sk
ills
 an

d d
ev
elo

p t
he
ir c

are
er 

po
ten

tia
l, w

hil
st 
at 
the

 sa
me

 tim
e r

ele
as
ing

 ca
pa
cit
y f
or 

off
ice

rs 
wit

hin
 th
e c

om
mi
ss
ion

ing
 di
vis

ion
 to
 su

pp
ort

 th
e o

ng
oin

g c
om

mi
ss
ion

g w
ork

, 
co
mm

un
ity
 en

ga
ge
me

nt 
an
d c

ult
ure

 ch
an
ge
. 

20
,00

0

14   
40
,60

0
    
    
  

R4
40
0-S

UP
01
7-B

US
00
3

 Bu
sin

es
s 

Im
pro

ve
me

nt/
Tr
an
sfo

rm
ati
on
 Th

e s
et 
up
 co

sts
 fo
r U

bic
o  
we

re 
joi
ntl
y f
un
de
d w

ith
 C
DC

.  I
t is

 pr
op
os
ed
 th
at 
the

 ba
lan

ce
 

wil
l b
e c

arr
ied

 fo
rw
ard

 to
 fu
nd
 w
ork

 w
hic

h w
ill i
de
nti
fy 
po
ten

tia
l a
dd
itio

na
l s
av
ing

s f
oll
ow

ing
 

the
 es

tab
lish

me
nt 
of 
Ub

ico
 in
clu

din
g a

 pi
ec
e o

f w
ork

 on
 ve

hic
le 
as
se
t o
wn

ers
hip

.
40
,60

0

15   
22
,00

0
    
    
  

R4
40
0-S

UP
03
6-N

A
 Pr

oje
ct 
Ma

na
ge
me

nt 

To
 su

pp
ort

 th
e d

em
an
d f
or 

pro
gra

mm
e a

nd
 pr

oje
ct 
ma

ng
em

en
t o
f C

BC
 pr

oje
cts

, in
clu

din
g 

on
go
ing

 pr
oje

cts
, u
pc
om

ing
 co

mm
iss

ion
ing

 pr
oje

cts
 an

d e
sp
ec
ial
ly 
the

 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 

str
ate

gy
.

22
,00

0

16   
26
,00

0
    
    
  

R6
28
0-H

OM
00
1-H

GR
01
2
 H
om

ele
ss
ne
ss
 

Us
ed
 as

 a 
loa

n s
ch
em

e f
or 

Su
pp
ort

ing
 Pe

op
le,
 so

 is
 re

cy
cla

ble
. It
 is
 a 
on
e-o

ff g
ran

t a
nd
 

the
 ai
m 
is 
to 
ke
ep
 th
e m

on
ey
 ru

nn
ing

 fo
r a

s l
on
g a

s p
os
sib

le.
 Is
 an

tic
ipa

ted
 th
at 
thi
s 

fun
din

g w
ill r

un
 ou

t to
wa

rds
 th
e e

nd
 of
 20

13
-14

.
26
,00

0

17   
30
,00

0
    
    
  

R6
28
0-H

OM
00
1-H

GR
01
3
 H
om

ele
ss
ne
ss
 

30
,00

0

18   
27
,00

0
    
    
  

R6
28
0-H

OM
00
1-H

GR
02
0
 H
om

ele
ss
ne
ss
 

27
,00

0

19   
24
,00

0
    
    
  

R6
28
0-H

OM
00
1-H

GR
01
5
 H
om

ele
ss
ne
ss
 

Yo
uth

 H
om

ele
ss
ne
ss
 Pr

ev
en
tio
n F

un
d -

 a 
co
nd
itio

na
l o
ffe
r o

f g
ran

t is
 no

w 
in 
pla

ce
, w

ith
 

the
 fin

al 
tra

nc
he
 du

e t
o b

e p
aid

 in
 th
e A

utu
mn

.
24
,00

0

20   
83
,00

0
    
    
  

R6
28
0-H

OM
00
1-H

GR
01
6
 H
om

ele
ss
ne
ss
 

CL
G 
Ho

me
les

sn
es
s P

rev
en
tio
n F

un
d -

 w
e a

re 
loo

kin
g t
o m

ak
e s

om
e i
nv
es
tm
en
ts 
in 
a 

so
cia

l le
ttin

gs
 ag

en
cy
 /s
erv

ice
 an

d a
nti
cip

ate
 th
is 
ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 to
 re

du
ce
 in
 fu
tur

e y
ea
rs 

be
ca
us
e o

f th
is.
 W

e a
re 

als
o r

ea
ch
ing

 a 
sta

ge
 w
he
reb

y w
e a

re 
loo

kin
g t
o i
mp

rov
e t
he
 

se
rvi
ce
 pr

ov
ide

d. 
W
e w

ill t
he
ref

ore
 be

 sp
en
din

g s
om

e t
im
e t
his

 ye
ar 

rev
iew

ing
 ex

ist
ing

 
an
d d

ev
elo

pin
g n

ew
 sp

en
din

g p
rio
riti
es
. 

83
,00

0

21   
12
,00

0
    
    
  

R4
00
0-W

ST
00
1-N

A
 H
ou
se
ho
ld 
W
as
te 

Th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
18
0L
 pl
as
tic
 gr

ee
n w

he
ele

d b
ins

, a
lth
ou
gh
 or

de
red

 in
 Fe

bru
ary

, w
ere

 no
t 

de
live

red
 pr

ior
 to
 th
e f
ina

nc
ial
 ye

ar 
en
d h

en
ce
 th
is 
ne
ed
s t
o b

e c
arr

ied
 fo
rw
ard

 in
to 
20
13
-

14
.

12
,00

0

22   
14
,30

0
    
    
  

R4
00
0-W

ST
00
1-N

A
 H
ou
se
ho
ld 
W
as
te 

Th
e d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
36
0L
 pl
as
tic
 co

mm
un
al 
wh

ee
led

 bi
ns
, o
rde

red
 in
 M
arc

h f
or 

de
live

ry 
in 
Ma

y 
ne
ed
s t
o b

e c
arr

ied
 fo
rw
ard

 in
to 
20
13
-14

.
14
,30

0

23   
51
,90

0
    
    
  

R4
00
0-R

YC
00
6 /
 

TR
W
00
1-R

40
00
 / 

W
ST

00
1-R

40
00

 R
ec
yc
lin
g C

oll
ec
tio
n 

Sc
he
me

s /
 Tr

ad
e W

as
te 
/ 

Ho
us
eh
old

 W
as
te 

An
 an

aly
sis

 ha
s b

ee
n u

nd
ert

ak
en
 to
 ca

ptu
re 

fut
ure

 de
ma

nd
 fo
r re

cy
clin

g b
ins

 in
clu

din
g 

tho
se
 in
 co

mm
un
al 
pro

pe
rtie

s a
nd
 th
e u

nd
ers

pe
nd
 w
ill b

e u
se
d t
o m

ee
t th

is 
de
ma

nd
 in
 

20
13
/14

 w
hic

h w
ill h

elp
 dr

ive
 up

 th
e r

ec
yc
lin
g l
ev
els

 an
d m

ini
mi
se
 re

cy
clin

g c
on
tam

ina
tio
n.

51
,90

0

Mo
rtg

ag
e R

es
cu
e (

HG
R0

13
) a

nd
 Pr

ev
en
tin
g R

ep
os
se
ss
ion

 (H
GR

02
0):

- T
he
se
 ar

e o
ne
-of

f 
gra

nt 
po
ts,
 an

d a
ga
in 
are

 in
ten

de
d t
o b

e r
ec
yc
led

 so
 th
at 
the

y g
o a

s f
ar,

 an
d l
as
t, a

s l
on
g 

as
 po

ss
ibl
e. 
W
e a

re 
us
ing

 th
es
e a

s r
ep
ay
ab
le 
loa

ns
 an

d i
nte

nd
 to
 co

nti
nu
e t
o r

ing
 fe
nc
e 

the
se
 fo
r a

rre
ars

 ca
se
s f
or 

as
 lo
ng
 as

 th
e e

co
no
my

 re
ma

ins
 pr

ec
ari
ou
s. 
In 
pa
rtic

ula
r, t

he
 

pre
ve
nti
ng
 re

po
ss
es
sio

n m
on
ey
 co

uld
 be

 ex
ten

de
d t
o s

up
po
rt t

ho
se
 hi
t b
y t
he
 ne

w 
be
dro

om
 ta
x, 
in 
ap
pro

pri
ate

 ca
se
s.

Pa
ge
 2

Page 118



AP
PE

ND
IX 

6

20
12
/1
3 
CA

RR
Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (

i)
A (

ii)
B

Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

Co
de

Co
st 
Ce

ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr

y f
orw

ard
Ba

se
 Bu

dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA

T)
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

  
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic

er
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic

er
for

 m
em

be
r

un
de
r d

ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d

ele
ga
ted

ap
pro

va
l

po
we

rs
po
we

rs

24   
8,5

00
    
    
    

R9
06
0-C

OM
00
1-N

A
 C
om

mu
nit
y D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t g
ran

t fu
nd
ing

 fo
r C

om
mu

nit
y R

igh
t to

 C
ha
lle
ng
e, 
to 
be
 sp

en
t in

 20
13
-14

.
8,5

00

25   
47
,90

0
    
    
  

R9
10
0-C

OM
00
1-C

PN
00
1

 C
om

mu
nit
y D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Go
ve
rnm

en
t g
ran

t fu
nd
ing

 fo
r C

hil
dre

n &
 Yo

un
g P

eo
ple

's 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 an

d H
ea
lth
 & 

W
ell
be
ing

 Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
hic

h a
re 

ma
na
ge
d b

y C
BC

. T
he
 gr

an
t fu

nd
ing

 w
ill b

e s
pe
nt 
in 

20
13
-14

.
47
,90

0

26   
8,9

00
    
    
    

R1
00
0-C

OR
00
3

 C
orp

ora
te 
Po

licy
 M
ak
ing

 
GI
S p

roj
ec
t o
ffic

er 
sa
lar
y, 
to 
su
pp
ort

 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
e n

ew
 st
atm

ap
 G
IS 

pla
tfo
rm
 

in 
CB

C.
 N
B -

 th
e b

ud
ge
t w

as
 re

du
ce
d i
n 2

01
2-1

3 r
ev
ise

d.
8,9

00

27   
12
,90

0
    
    
  

R4
53
1-C

OR
00
3-N

A
 C
orp

ora
te 
Po

licy
 M
ak
ing

 
IT 

pu
rch

as
e o

f s
oft
wa

re:
 G
IS 

an
d T

EN
, to

 su
pp
ort

 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 th
e n

ew
 st
atm

ap
 

GI
S p

lat
for

m 
in 
CB

C.
12
,90

0

28   
4,6

00
    
    
    

R6
28
0-G

BD
00
1-C

PN
00
3

 C
om

mu
nit
y W

elf
are

 G
ran

ts 
To

 su
pp
ort

 co
mm

un
ity
 pr

ide
 gr

an
ts 
co
mm

itte
d i
n 2

01
2-1

3.
4,6

00

29   
3,2

00
    
    
    

R6
28
0-G

BD
00
1-C

PN
01
0

 C
om

mu
nit
y W

elf
are

 G
ran

ts 
Ha

te 
Cr
im
e -

 to
 cr
ea
te 
a b

ud
ge
t fo

r th
e C

he
lte
nh
am

 AS
B w

ork
ing

 gr
ou
p t
o r

es
po
nd
 to
 

iss
ue
s o

f h
ate

 cr
im
e.

3,2
00

30   
7,3

00
    
    
    

R6
28
0-G

BD
00
1-C

PN
01
1

 C
om

mu
nit
y W

elf
are

 G
ran

ts 
To

 co
nti
nu
e t
o s

up
po
rt n

eig
hb
ou
rho

od
 m
an
ag
em

en
t in

 C
he
lte
nh
am

.
7,3

00

31   
13
,20

0
    
    
  

R6
28
0-G

BD
00
1-G

RA
00
3

 C
om

mu
nit
y W

elf
are

 G
ran

ts 
Co

mm
un
ity
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t S

tra
teg

y (
Fie

sta
) - 

to 
fun

d c
om

mu
nit
y p

rid
e g

ran
ts 
plu

s 
Mi
ds
um

me
r F

ies
ta.

13
,20

0

32   
10
,00

0
    
    
  

R6
28
0-G

BD
00
1-G

RA
00
5

 C
om

mu
nit
y W

elf
are

 G
ran

ts 
Re

so
urc

e C
en
tre

: to
 fu
nd
 th
e l
as
t y
ea
r o

f a
dd
itio

na
l fu

nd
ing

 fo
r G

AV
CA

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 
co
mm

iss
ion

ing
 ad

vic
e a

nd
 su

pp
ort

 to
 C
BC

.
10
,00

0

33   
67
,10

0
    
    
  

R6
28
0-G

BD
00
1-G

RA
00
7

 C
om

mu
nit
y W

elf
are

 G
ran

ts 
Yo

uth
 Af

fai
rs:
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e r

em
ain

ing
 co

ntr
ac
t w

ith
 C
CP

 an
d p

os
itiv

e a
cti
vit
y g

ran
ts.

67
,10

0

34   
3,6

00
    
    
    

R4
61
7-G

BD
00
1-N

A
 C
om

mu
nit
y W

elf
are

 G
ran

ts 
To

 fu
nd
 M
ids

um
me

r F
ies

ta 
20
13
.

3,6
00

35   
7,9

00
    
    
    

R6
28
0-P

LP
10
3-C

PN
00
7

 C
he
lte
nh
am

 St
rat

eg
ic 

Pa
rtn

ers
hip

 
Re

ma
ind

er 
of 
gra

nt 
fun

din
g f
rom

 G
CC

 al
loc

ate
d t
o s

up
po
rt d

eli
ve
ry 
of 
the

 In
sp
irin

g 
Fa

mi
lie
s p

roj
ec
t

7,9
00

36   
15
,50

0
    
    
  

R4
40
0-S

UP
00
4

 O
ne
 Le

ga
l 

To
 en

ab
le 
im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f M
icr
os
oft
 20

10
 an

d t
hin

 cl
ien

t re
po
rtin

g m
od
ule

 fo
r O

ne
 

Le
ga
l M

an
ag
em

en
t a
nd
 cl
ien

t re
po
rtin

g a
nd
 ad

dit
ion

al 
rem

ote
 ac

ce
ss
 fo
r s
taf
f; C

PD
 fo
r 

leg
al 
sta

ff; 
an
d m

ate
rni
ty 
co
ve
r fo

r s
en
ior
 so

lici
tor

 (p
lan

nin
g) 

an
d i
nte

rim
 co

ve
r fo

r s
oli
cit
or 

(ge
ne
ral
) re

cru
itm

en
t a
nd
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

 of
 ex

pa
ns
ion

 op
po
rtu

nit
ies

.
15
,50

0
37   

56
8,4

00
 To

tal
 C
om

mi
ss
ion

ing
 

98
,40

0
43
8,6

00
31
,40

0

38   
8,0

00
    
    
    

DE
V0

01
-R
44
00

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t M

an
ag
em

en
t 

To
 su

pp
ort

 th
e r

es
ou
rci
ng
 of
 th
e C

on
se
rva

tio
n t
ea
m 
aft
er 

a b
ac
k l
og
 of
 w
ork

 ha
s b

uil
t u
p 

fol
low

ing
 st
aff
 ab

se
nc
es
, w

hic
h i
s i
mp

ac
tin
g u

po
n t
he
 pl
an
nin

g p
roc

es
s.

8,0
00

39   
10
,40

0
    
    
  

R1
00
0-U

RB
10
1

 U
rba

n D
es
ign

 
To

 fu
nd
 te
mp

ora
ry 
lan

ds
ca
pe
 as

sis
tan

t to
 de

live
r C

he
lte
nh
am

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t T

as
k F

orc
e 

pro
jec

ts 
- p

rim
ari
ly 
on
 la
nd
sc
ap
e r

ela
ted

 pr
oje

cts
, p
art

icu
lar
ly 
St.

 M
ary

s.
10
,40

0

40   
36
,70

0
    
    
  

EN
A0

01
-R
44
00

 H
ou
sin

g E
na
bli
ng
 

To
 co

nti
nu
e t
o s

up
po
rt g

ran
t fu

nd
ed
 w
ork

s i
n r

es
pe
ct 
of 
Tr
av
ell
ers

 N
ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt 
an
d H

ou
sin

g N
ee
ds
 As

se
ss
me

nt
36
,70

0

41   
16
,20

0
    
    
  

EC
D0

01
-R
44
00
-H
SI0

01
 H
igh

 St
ree

t In
no
va
tio
n F

un
d 

- E
co
no
mi
c D

ev
elo

pm
en
t 

To
 pr

ov
ide

 sk
ills
 tra

ini
ng
 to
 he

lp 
ne
w 
an
d e

xis
tin
g b

us
ine

ss
es
, b
y p

rov
idi
ng
 Sk

ills
ma

rt 
ret

ail
 w
ork

sh
op
s -
 fu
nd
s t
o b

e s
pe
nt 
in 
20
13
/14

.
16
,20

0

Pa
ge
 3

Page 119



AP
PE

ND
IX 

6

20
12
/1
3 
CA

RR
Y 
FO

RW
AR

D 
RE

QU
ES

TS
A (

i)
A (

ii)
B

Re
f

Am
ou
nt 
£ 

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

Co
de

Co
st 
Ce

ntr
e

Re
as
on
 fo
r c
arr

y f
orw

ard
Ba

se
 Bu

dg
ets

On
e-O

ff B
ud
ge
ts

(N
et 
of 
VA

T)
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

 ag
ree

d
Am

ou
nts

  
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic

er
by
 S1

51
 O
ffic

er
for

 m
em

be
r

un
de
r d

ele
ga
ted

un
de
r d

ele
ga
ted

ap
pro

va
l

po
we

rs
po
we

rs

42   
10
,90

0
    
    
  

TM
R1

01
-R
44
00

 St
aff
 C
ar 

Pa
rki
ng
 - G

ree
n 

Tr
av
el 
Ini
tia
tiv
es
 

20
11
/12

 fu
nd
ing

 to
wa

rds
 G
ree

n T
rav

el 
Ini
tia
tiv
es
 as

 ag
ree

d w
ith
 U
nio

ns
10
,90

0

43   
17
,70

0
    
    
  

CP
K0

01
-R
93
52
-C
AR

00
0

 St
aff
 C
ar 

Pa
rki
ng
 - G

ree
n 

Tr
av
el 
Ini
tia
tiv
es
 

20
12
/13

 in
co
me

 in
 ex

ce
ss
 of
 bu

dg
et 
- a

gre
em

en
t to

 ca
rry
 fo
rw
ard

 to
 su

pp
ort

 G
ree

n T
rav

el 
Ini
tia
tiv
es

17
,70

0
44   

99
,90

0
 To

tal
 B
uil

t E
nv

iro
nm

en
t 

18
,90

0
81
,00

0
0

45   
15
,00

0
    
    
  

SU
P0

09
-R
44
00
-G
OS

S0
1 G

OS
S F

ina
nc
e &

 
Pr
oc
ure

me
nt 

To
 fu
nd
 C
BC

's 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
ow

ard
s U

NI
T4

 tim
e s

up
po
rtin

g i
mp

rov
em

en
ts 
to 
Ag

res
so
, a
s 

ag
ree

d b
y C

lie
nt 
Of
fic
er 

Gr
ou
p.

15
,00

0

46   
30
,00

0
    
    
  

SU
P0

03
-R
44
00
-G
OS

S0
1 

GO
SS

 H
R 
& P

ay
rol
l 

To
 su

pp
ort

 th
e i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 Ag

res
so
 H
R 
Se

lf S
erv

ice
 (to

 in
clu

de
 an

nu
al 
lea

ve
, 

ex
pe
ns
e c

lai
ms

, s
ick

ne
ss
 ab

se
nc
e r

ec
ord

ing
).

30
,00

0

47   
5,0

00
    
    
    

SU
P0

20
-R
16
50
-B
US

00
1

 G
OS

S T
rai
nin

g &
 

De
ve
lop

me
nt 

To
 su

pp
ort

 tra
ini
ng
 an

d d
ev
elo

pm
en
t n
ee
ds
 fo
llo
win

g i
mp

lem
en
tat
ion

 of
 Ag

res
so
 an

d 
oth

er 
org

an
isa

tio
na
l a
nd
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
wo

rk.
5,0

00

48   
59
,20

0
    
    
  

LT
C0

12
-R
62
60
-H
SI0

01

 C
ou
nc
il T

ax
 D
isc

ret
ion

ary
 

Ra
te 
Re

lie
f - 

Hig
h S

tre
et 

Inn
ov
ati
on
 Fu

nd
 

Un
sp
en
t fu

nd
ing

 al
loc

ate
d f
or 

Co
un
cil 

Ta
x D

isc
ret

ion
ary

 R
ate

 R
eli
ef 
fro

m 
Hig

h S
tre

et 
Inn

ov
ati
on
 Fu

nd
, to

 be
 ut
ilis
ed
 as

 se
t o
ut 
in 
se
cti
on
 8 
of 
the

 re
po
rt.

59
,20

0
49   

10
9,2

00
 To

tal
 R
es
ou

rce
s 

50
,00

0
59
,20

0
0

50   
7,0

00
    
    
    

 EM
P0

01
-R
50
01
-E
ME

R0
2 

/ E
ME

R0
3 /
 EM

ER
06
 

 Em
erg

en
cy
 Pl

an
nin

g 
To

 co
nti
nu
e p

lan
ne
d w

ork
s i
n r

es
pe
ct 
of 
Em

erg
en
cy
 Pl

an
nin

g f
un
de
d f
rom

 Fl
oo
d 

All
ev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
7,0

00

51   
5,0

00
    
    
    

R4
40
0-R

EG
01
8

 Pe
st 
Co

ntr
ol 

To
 su

pp
ort

 th
e e

gg
 oi
lin
g p

rog
ram

me
 fo
r th

e r
ed
uc
tio
n o

f u
rba

n g
ull
s -
 tra

ini
ng
 an

d 
aw

are
ne
ss
 w
ork

, fo
cu
s g

rou
p m

ee
tin
gs
 an

d a
 pu

bli
c-l
ed
 du

mm
y e

gg
 tri
al 
of 
15
0 

pro
pe
rtie

s. 
5,0

00
52   

12
,00

0
 To

tal
 St

rat
eg

ic 
Di
rec

tor
s 

0
7,0

00
5,0

00

53   
10
2,7

00
    
    

EC
D0

01
-R
62
80
-C
PN

01
2
 Pr

om
oti
ng
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 
Fu

nd
 20

11
 & 

20
12
 

 To
 fu
nd
 or

ga
nis

ati
on
s b

idd
ing

 in
to 
the

 Pr
om

oti
ng
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Fu
nd
 - t

he
re 

are
 tim

ing
 

dif
fer

en
ce
s b

etw
ee
n b

idd
ing

 pr
oc
es
s a

nd
 fu
nd
s b

ein
g r

ele
as
ed
 to
 th
e s

uc
ce
ss
ful
 

org
an
isa

tio
ns
. 

10
2,7

00

54   
9,0

00
    
    
    

PL
P1

02
-R
40
00
-H
SI0

01

 H
igh

 St
ree

t In
no
va
tio
n F

un
d 

- C
he
lte
nh
am

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t 

Ta
sk
 Fo

rce
 

 To
 fu
nd
 to
 pr

ov
ide

 ca
me

ras
 to
 m
ea
su
re 

foo
tfa
ll in

 di
ffe
ren

t p
art

s o
f th

e t
ow

n c
en
tre

 - 
fun

ds
 to
 be

 sp
en
t in

 20
13
/14

 
9,0

00
55   

11
1,7

00
    
    

 Pr
om

oti
ng

 C
he

lte
nh

am
 Fu

nd
 

0
11
1,7

00
0

56   
18
7,1

00
    
    

Va
rio
us

 C
he
lte
nh
am

 En
vir
on
me

nta
l 

Fu
nd
 

Fu
nd
ing

 ha
s b

ee
n a

llo
ca
ted

 bu
t th

e p
roj
ec
ts 
wil
l b
e c

om
ple

ted
 ov

er 
for

thc
om

ing
 m
on
ths

 
req

uir
ing

 th
e b

ud
ge
t to

 be
 m
ad
e a

va
ila
ble

 in
 th
e n

ex
t fi
na
nc
ial
 ye

ar.
18
7,1

00
57   

18
7,1

00
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 En

vir
on

me
nta

l F
un

d 
0

18
7,1

00
0

58   
17
0,0

00
    
    

Va
rio
us

 U
bic

o L
td 

Se
e a

tta
ch
ed
 no

te
17
0,0

00
59   

17
0,0

00
 C
he

lte
nh

am
 En

vir
on

me
nta

l F
un

d 
0

0
17
0,0

00
60   

1,3
20
,60

0
 To

tal
 C
arr

y F
or
wa

rd
 R
eq

ue
sts

 
18
6,5

00
91
7,7

00
21
6,4

00

Pa
ge
 4

Page 120



APPENDIX 6 
 
Note: Ubico – use of carry forward request £170,000 
 
Purchase of new vehicles 
 
In some services, scheduled vehicle replacements were not undertaken according to 
the planned vehicle replacement programme. This was for two reasons, either the 
asset could continue to be efficiently and economically utilised beyond it’s 
replacement date therefore delivering a short-term saving, or because the impact of 
upcoming service changes could not be fully understood until implemented, therefore 
it was not felt prudent to purchase an expensive asset which may not be fit for 
purpose in the longer term. 
 
Round Rationalisation and In-Cab Technology 
 
It is anticipated that significant improvements in communication between front-line 
staff and office / customer services staff could be delivered with the use of in-cab 
technology. This is due to the ability to send and receive real-time information to the 
front-line staff which would reduce waste which currently exist within the system. This 
was highlighted as a recommendation following the recent Systems Thinking Review 
of CBC’s Customer Services and Ubico’s Waste and Recycling Division.  
 
Round rationalisation across all front line services could also deliver significant 
efficiencies, potential additional financial savings and better customer service, 
however investment in both officer time and software are needed to further develop 
the options.  
 
Technology and Equipment 
 
Some investment is needed in small pieces of equipment, such as office equipment 
(new digital cameras, a stand-alone PC, a further networked PC, shelving, up to date 
wall maps), welfare facilities for staff (lockers, drying facilities etc) and the 
replacement of old pieces of plant and equipment for H&S reasons (e.g. strimmers, 
hedge cutters, blowers). 
 
 

Management Training 
 

The Company would like to review its membership of professional organisations to 
ensure its officers have access to the best and most up-to-date guidance and 
support. 
 
As the Company is responsible for grounds maintenance at the Cemetery & 
Crematorium in Bouncers Lane, consideration needs to be given to membership of 
the Institute for which membership may benefit the Company in terms of training and 
knowledge. 
 
The Ubico MD together with other relevant staff members also need formal training 
regarding their new roles and responsibilities which they now undertake and perform 
at and for the Board. This item has been identified in the Company risk register. 
. 

Page 121



Page 122
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

7

Us
e 
of
 B
al
an
ce
s 
an
d 
Re

se
rv
es

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E M
OV

EM
EN

TS
RS

VE
BU

DG
ET

BO
OK

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
RE

F:
20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

NO
TE

£
£

£
£

US
E O

F B
AL

AN
CE

S &
 R
ES

ER
VE

S -
 SU

MM
AR

Y

73
01

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to
 re

se
rve

s -
 se

e d
eta

il b
elo

w*
1,7

01
,07

0
89
6,6

47
2,6

94
,92

1
1,7

98
,27

4
82
40

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
res

erv
es
 - s

ee
 de

tai
l b
elo

w 
**

(1,
79
7,0

25
)

(3,
18
6,6

02
)

(2,
72
5,9

81
)

46
0,6

21

82
48

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 fro

m 
res

erv
es
 to
 fu
nd
 on

e o
ff r

ev
en
ue
 - 

se
e d

eta
il b

elo
w*
**

0
0

-36
,09

1
-36

,09
1

(95
,95

5)
(2,

28
9,9

55
)

(67
,15

1)
2,2

22
,80

4

*  C
ON

TR
IB
UT

IO
NS

 TO
 R
ES

ER
VE

S
RE

S0
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00
15
0,0

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 pe

ns
ion

 re
se
rve

 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e p
en
sio

n a
nd
 au

gm
en
tat
ion

 co
sts

 
RE

S0
08

Ho
us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
7,5

00
7,5

00
7,5

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
wa

rds
 su

rve
y e

ve
ry 
3 y

ea
rs

RE
S1

04
Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n

0
21
1,2

92
21
1,2

92
Ice

lan
dic

 ba
nk
s

RE
S0

11
Ar
t G

all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
0

22
0,0

00
22
0,0

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d A

rt G
all
ery

 & 
Mu

se
um

 ca
pit
al 
sc
he
me

RE
S1

02
Pla

nn
ing

 Ap
pe
als

 R
es
erv

e
62
,27

7
62
,27

7
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 Pl

an
nin

g r
es
erv

e t
o f
un
d f
utu

re 
flu
ctu

ati
on
s i
n s

erv
ice

 le
ve
ls

RE
S0

19
La
nd
 C
ha
rge

s R
es
erv

e
0

34
,40

0
34
,40

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 La

nd
 C
ha
rge

s r
es
erv

e t
o f
un
d f
utu

re 
flu
ctu

ati
on
s i
n s

erv
ice

 le
ve
ls

RE
S1

03
Lic

en
sin

g f
ee
s e

qu
ali
sa
tio
n r

es
erv

e
0

11
,20

0
11
,20

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 Li
ce
ns
ing

 re
se
rve

 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e l
ice

ns
ing

 re
lat
ed
 ac

tiv
ity

RE
S1

05
Lo
ca
l P

lan
 Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n r

es
erv

e
12
7,2

00
12
7,2

00
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 Lo

ca
l P

lan
 re

se
rve

 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e c
os
ts

RE
S0

16
Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y

12
0,0

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d J

oin
t C

ore
 St

rat
eg
y c

os
ts 
20
12
/13

 to
 20

15
/16

RE
S1

01
Re

nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
29
,30

0
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d f
utu

re 
co
sts

 Iin
 lie

u o
f a
dd
itio

na
l a
dm

ini
str
ati
on
 gr

an
t

RE
S2

05
Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
69
3,0

00
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d P

lan
ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 pr

og
ram

me
RE

S2
04

IT 
Re

pa
irs
 & 

Re
ne
wa

ls 
Re

se
rve

21
8,1

00
29
6,3

00
78
,20

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 IT
 in
fra

str
uc
tur

e

RE
S3

01
Ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

 re
qu
es
ts 
ap
pro

ve
d b

y C
FO

 un
de
r 

de
leg

ate
d p

ow
ers

1,1
04
,20

0
1,1

04
,20

0C
arr

y f
orw

ard
 of
 bu

dg
ets

 to
 fu
nd
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
lin
e w

ith
 or

igi
na
l b
ud
ge
t - 

Ap
pe
nd
ix 
6

RE
S3

01
Ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

 re
qu
es
ts 
ap
pro

ve
d b

y M
em

be
rs

21
6,4

00
21
6,4

00
Ca

rry
 fo
rw
ard

 of
 bu

dg
ets

 to
 fu
nd
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re 

to 
be
 ap

pro
ve
d b

y m
em

be
rs 
- A

pp
en
dix

 6
RE

S4
02

Re
ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 C
ap
ita
l O

utl
ay
 (R

CC
O)

70
0,0

00
33
0,3

00
25
2,8

83
(77

,41
8)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o c

ap
ita
l re

se
rve

 (s
ub
jec

t to
 fu
tur

e r
ev
iew

 of
 ca

pit
al 
fin
an
cin

g s
tra

teg
y)

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
1,2

70
1,2

70
1,2

70
0T

ran
sfe

r to
 G
en
era

l B
ala

nc
es

1,7
01
,07

0
89
6,6

47
2,6

94
,92

1
1,7

98
,27

4
 

** 
CO

NT
RI
BU

TIO
NS

 FR
OM

 R
ES

ER
VE

S
RE

S0
02

Pe
ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(50

,00
0)

(50
,00

0)
(50

,00
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 in
cre

as
ed
 pe

ns
ion

 co
sts

 as
 a 
res

ult
 of
 th
e 2

00
4 t
rie
nn
ial
 re

va
lua

tio
n

RE
S0

07
Bu

sin
es
s G

row
th 
Inc

en
tiv
e S

ch
em

e (
LA

BG
I) R

es
erv

e
(10

,00
0)

(10
,00

0)
(10

,00
0)

0Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d e

co
no
mi
c a

nd
 cu

ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop

me
nt 
as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il in

 pr
ev
iou

s 
fin
an
cia

l y
ea
ras

RE
S0

09
Tw

inn
ing

 re
se
rve

(10
,00

0)
(10

,00
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e t
win

nin
g c

os
ts

RE
S0

10
Flo

od
 Al

lev
iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
(50

,00
0)

(50
,00

0)
(17

,18
6)

32
,81

5C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 flo

od
 al
lev

iat
ion

 w
ork

s
RE

S0
12

Pu
mp

 R
oo
m 
Ins

ura
nc
e R

es
erv

e
0

(3,
33
1)

(3,
33
1)

Ins
ura

nc
e r

es
erv

e f
or 

sto
len

 je
we

lle
ry

RE
S0

14
GF

 In
su
ran

ce
 R
es
erv

e
(42

,00
0)

(42
,00

0)
0T

o f
un
d r

isk
 m
an
ag
em

en
t in

itia
tiv
es
 / e

xc
es
s /
 pr

em
ium

 in
cre

as
es

RE
S2

01
Co

mm
ute

d M
ain

ten
an
ce
 

(39
,00

0)
(39

,00
0)

(39
,00

0)
0U

se
 of
 de

ve
lop

ers
 co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 to
 fu
nd
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 co

sts
RE

S0
06

Cu
ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
(15

,00
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d P

lay
ho
us
e T

he
atr

e d
ev
elo

pm
en
t

RE
S1

01
Re

nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
(68

,40
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d i
nc
rea

se
d n

et 
co
st 
co
mp

are
d t
o b

ud
ge
t

RE
S2

04
IT 
Re

pa
irs
 & 

Re
ne
wa

ls 
Re

se
rve

(6,
30
0)

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o f
un
d I
T i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re

RE
S0

18
Civ

ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
(26

1,9
00
)

(26
1,9

00
)

(15
8,3

71
)

10
3,5

29
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d P

roj
ec
t M

an
ag
er

RE
S1

01
Re

nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n R

es
erv

e
(26

,00
0)

(26
,00

0)
0C

on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 in
cre

as
ed
 ne

t c
os
t c
om

pa
red

 to
 bu

dg
et

RE
S0

16
Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y r
es
erv

e
(30

,00
0)

(18
3,0

00
)

(60
,89

6)
12
2,1

04
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d J

CS
 co

sts
 20

12
/13

 to
 20

15
/16

RE
S1

06
Ele

cti
on
s R

es
erv

e
(72

,70
0)

(72
,70

0)
(72

,70
0)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e e
lec

tio
n c

os
ts

RE
S1

04
Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n

(70
0,0

00
)

(70
0,0

00
)

0To
 co

ve
r a

ny
 ad

dit
ion

al 
los

se
s a

ris
ing

 in
 th
e v

alu
e o

f Ic
ela

nd
ic 
de
po
sit
s a

nd
/or

 to
 re

du
ce
 th
e 

bo
rro

win
g a

ris
ing

 fro
m 
the

 ca
pit
ali
sa
tio
n o

f th
e l
os
se
s

RE
S2

05
Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
(1,

07
9,0

00
)

(30
8,8

00
)

(90
,72

1)
21
8,0

79
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
n t
o f
un
d P

rog
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

Ge
ne
ral
 R
es
erv

e
(11

4,7
25
)

(36
9,7

25
)

(36
9,7

25
)

0C
on
trib

uti
on
 to
 fu
nd
 th
e o

ne
 of
f s
taf
fin
g c

os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e 2

01
0/1

1 b
ud
ge
t p
rop

os
als

RE
S3

01
20
10
/11

 ca
rry

 fo
rw
ard

 re
se
rve

s c
rea

ted
 at
 31

.3.
11

(1,
06
3,4

77
)

(1,
07
6,0

51
)

(12
,57

4)
Ap

pro
ve
d c

arr
y f
orw

ard
s 

(1,
79
7,0

25
)

(3,
18
6,6

02
)

(2,
72
5,9

81
)

46
0,6

21

***
 C
ON

TR
IB
UT

IO
NS

 FR
OM

 R
ES

ER
VE

S T
O 
FU

ND
 O
NE

 O
FF

 R
EV

EN
UE

RE
S4

02
Ca

pit
al 
Re

se
rve

(36
,09

1)
(36

,09
1)

Ca
pit
al 
res

erv
e t
o f
un
d r

ev
en
ue
 ex

pe
nd
itu
re

Pa
ge
 1

Page 123



AP
PE

ND
IX 

7

DE
TA

ILE
D 
RE

SE
RV

E M
OV

EM
EN

TS
RS

VE
BU

DG
ET

BO
OK

RE
VIS

ED
AC

TU
AL

VA
RI
AN

CE
RE

F:
20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

NO
TE

£
£

£
£

0
0

(36
,09

1)
(36

,09
1)

Pa
ge
 2

Page 124



                                                                                                                                                                 APPENDIX 8 

Treasury Outturn Report for 2012/13 

 
 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Treasury Outturn Report for 2012/13 
Report of the Director, Resources 

 
Purpose 
 
This Council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act 2003 to 
produce an annual treasury management review of activities and the actual prudential and 
treasury indicators for 2012/13. This report meets the requirements of both the CIPFA Code of 
Practice on Treasury Management (the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital 
Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code).  
 
During 2012/13 the minimum reporting requirements were that the full Council should receive 
the following reports: 
• an annual treasury strategy in advance of the year (Council 10/02/2012) 
• a mid-year (minimum) treasury update report (Council 17/12/2012) 
• an annual review following the end of the year describing the activity compared to the 

strategy (this report)  
 
The regulatory environment places responsibility on members for the review and scrutiny of 
treasury management policy and activities.  This report is, therefore, important in that respect, 
as it provides details of the outturn position for treasury activities and highlights compliance with 
the Council’s policies previously approved by members.   
 
This Council confirms that it has complied with the requirement under the Code to give prior 
scrutiny to all of the above treasury management reports by the Treasury Management Panel 
and Cabinet before they were reported to the full Council. 

Page 125



 2 

Executive Summary 
During 2012/13, the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory requirements.  The key 
actual prudential and treasury indicators detailing the impact of capital expenditure activities 
during the year, with comparators, are as follows: 
 
Prudential and treasury 
indicators 
 

2011/12 
Actual 
£000 

2012/13 
Original 
£000 

 
2012/13 
Actual 
£000 

Capital Expenditure:  
• General Fund 
• HRA  
• Total 

 

  7,094 
  4,740 
11,834 

  8,943 
  5,492 
14,435 

 6,883 
 4,742 
11,625 

 
Capital Financing Requirement: 
• General Fund 
• HRA  
• Total 
 

 
28,302 
46,142 
74,444 

 
28,522 
44,750 
73,272 

 
28,732 
44,750   
73,482 

Net borrowing 72,472 69,077 64,424 
External debt 61,809 58,577 58,702 
 
Investments 
• Longer than 1 year 
• Under 1 year 
• Total 
 

 
3,927 
5,810 
9,737 

 
2,655 
5,570 
8,225 

 
 
2,985 
6,184 
9,169 
 

 
Other prudential and treasury indicators are to be found in the main body of this report.  The 
Director of Resources also confirms that borrowing was only undertaken for a capital purpose 
and the statutory borrowing limit (the authorised limit) was not breached. 
 
The financial year 2012/13 continued the challenging investment environment of previous 
years, namely low investment returns. 
 
 
 
Recommendations 
The Council is recommended to: 
1. Approve the actual 2012/13 prudential and treasury indicators in this report 
2. Note the annual treasury management outturn report for 2012/13 

Page 126



 3 

Introduction and Background 
This report summarises the following:-  
• Capital activity during the year; 
• Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital Financing 

Requirement); 
• The actual prudential and treasury indicators; 
• Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has borrowed in relation to this 

indebtedness, and the impact on investment balances; 
• Summary of interest rate movements in the year; 
• Detailed debt activity; and 
• Detailed investment activity. 

 
1. The Council’s Capital Expenditure and Financing 2012/13 
The Council undertakes capital expenditure on long-term assets.  These activities may either 
be: 
• Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources (capital 

receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no resultant impact on the 
Council’s borrowing need; or 

• If insufficient financing is available, or a decision is taken not to apply resources, the capital 
expenditure will give rise to a borrowing need.   

The actual capital expenditure forms one of the required prudential indicators.  The table below 
shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed. 
£m  General Fund 2011/12 

Actual 
2012/13 
Estimate 

2012/13 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 7,094 8,943 6,883 
Financed in year 7,094 8,943 6,883 
Unfinanced capital expenditure  0 0 0 
 

£m  HRA 2011/12 
Actual 

2012/13 
Estimate 

2012/13 
Actual 

Capital expenditure 4,740 5,492 4,742 
Financed in year 4,740 5,492 4,742 
Unfinanced capital expenditure  0 0 0 

Page 127



 4 

2. The Council’s Overall Borrowing Need 
The Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital expenditure is termed the Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR).  This figure is a gauge of the Council’s debt position.  The CFR results 
from the capital activity of the Council and what resources have been used to pay for the 
capital spend.  It represents the 2012/13 unfinanced capital expenditure (see above table), and 
prior years’ net or unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been paid for by revenue or 
other resources.   
 
Part of the Council’s treasury activities is to address the funding requirements for this borrowing 
need.  Depending on the capital expenditure programme, the treasury service organises the 
Council’s cash position to ensure that sufficient cash is available to meet the capital plans and 
cash flow requirements.  This may be sourced through borrowing from external bodies (such 
as the Government, through the Public Works Loan Board [PWLB] or the money markets), or 
utilising temporary cash resources within the Council. 
 
Reducing the CFR – the Council’s (non HRA) underlying borrowing need (CFR) is not allowed 
to rise indefinitely.  Statutory controls are in place to ensure that capital assets are broadly 
charged to revenue over the life of the asset.  The Council is required to make an annual 
revenue charge, called the Minimum Revenue Provision – MRP, to reduce the CFR.  This is 
effectively a repayment of the non-Housing Revenue Account (HRA) borrowing need (there is 
no statutory requirement to reduce the HRA CFR). This differs from the treasury management 
arrangements which ensure that cash is available to meet capital commitments.  External debt 
can also be borrowed or repaid at any time, but this does not change the CFR. 
 
The total CFR can also be reduced by: 
• the application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied capital receipts); 

or  
• charging more than the statutory revenue charge (MRP) each year through a Voluntary 

Revenue Provision (VRP).  
The Council’s 2012/13 MRP Policy (as required by CLG Guidance) was approved as part of 
the Treasury Management Strategy Report for 2012/13 on 10/02/2012. 
  
The Council’s CFR for the year is shown below, and represents a key prudential indicator.  It 
includes PFI and leasing schemes on the balance sheet, which increase the Council’s 
borrowing need.   
 
 
 
Net borrowing and the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) 
 
In order to ensure that borrowing levels are prudent over the medium term, the Council’s 
external borrowing, net of investments, must only be for a capital purpose. This essentially 
means that the Council is not borrowing to support revenue expenditure.  Net borrowing should 
not therefore, except in the short term, have exceeded the CFR for 2012/13 plus the expected 
changes to the CFR over 2013/14 and 2014/15 from financing the capital programme.  This 
indicator allows the Council some flexibility to borrow in advance of its immediate capital needs 
in 2012/13.  The table below highlights the Council’s net borrowing position against the CFR.  
The Council has complied with this prudential indicator. 
 

Page 128



 5 

It should be noted that this indicator is changing to compare gross borrowing to the CFR with 
effect from 2013/14; this is expected to provide a more appropriate indicator. 
 

 31 March 2012 
Actual 

31 March 2013 
Budget 

31 March 2013 
Actual 

Net borrowing position £62.735m £60.852m £55.267m 
CFR £74.444m £73.272m £73.482m 
 
The authorised limit - the authorised limit is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by s3 of the 
Local Government Act 2003.  The Council does not have the power to borrow above this level.  
The table below demonstrates that during 2012/13 the Council has maintained gross borrowing 
within its authorised limit.  
 
The operational boundary – the operational boundary is the expected borrowing position of the 
Council during the year.  Periods where the actual position is either below or over the boundary 
is acceptable subject to the authorised limit not being breached.  
 
Actual financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream - this indicator identifies the trend 
in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of investment income) 
against the net revenue stream. 
 

 2012/13 
Authorised limit £109m 
Maximum gross borrowing position  £64,424m 
Operational boundary £96m 
Average gross borrowing position  £58.283m 
Financing costs as a proportion of net revenue stream 4.06% 

 
 
 

3. Treasury Position  as at 31 March 2013  
The Council’s debt and investment position is organised by the treasury management team in 
order to ensure adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities, security for investments 
and to manage risks within all treasury management activities. Procedures and controls to 
achieve these objectives are well established both through member reporting detailed in the 
summary, and through officer activity detailed in the Council’s Treasury Management 
Practices. At the beginning and the end of 2012/13 the Council‘s treasury   position was as 
follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 129



 6 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. The Strategy for 2012/13 
The expectation for interest rates within the strategy for 2012/13 anticipated low but rising Bank 
Rate (starting in quarter 4 of 2014), with similar gradual rises in medium and longer term fixed 
borrowing rates over 2012/13.  Variable or short-term rates were expected to be the cheaper 
form of borrowing over the period.  Continued uncertainty in the aftermath of the 2008 financial 
crisis promoted a cautious approach, whereby investments would continue to be dominated by 
low counterparty risk considerations, resulting in relatively low returns compared to borrowing 
rates. 
 
The actual movement in gilt yields meant that PWLB rates fell during the first quarter of the 
year to historically low levels. This was caused by a flight to quality into UK gilts from EU 
sovereign debt, and from shares, as investors became concerned about the potential for a 
Lehman’s type crisis of financial markets, if the Greek debt crisis were to develop into a 
precipitous default and exit from the Euro. During the second and third quarters, rates rose 
gradually and agreement of a second bail out for Greece in December saw the flight to 
quality into gilts reverse somewhat, as confidence rose that the Eurozone crisis was finally 
subsiding.  However, gilt yields then fell back again during February and March as 
Eurozone concerns returned, with the focus now shifting to Cyprus, and flight to quality 
flows into gilts resumed.  This was a volatile year for PWLB rates, driven by events in the 
Eurozone which oscillated between crises and remedies. 
 
 

5. The Economy and Interest Rates   
 
Sovereign debt crisis  
The EU sovereign debt crisis was an ongoing saga during the year.  However, the ECB 
statement in July that it would do “whatever it takes” to support struggling Eurozone countries 
provided a major boost in confidence that the Eurozone was (at last) beginning to get on top of 
its problems.  This was followed by the establishment of the Outright Monetary Transactions 
Scheme in September.  During the summer, a €100bn package of support was given to 
Spanish banks. The crisis over Greece blew up again as it became apparent that the first 
bailout package was insufficient.  An eventual very protracted agreement of a second bailout 
for Greece in December was then followed by a second major crisis, this time over Cyprus, 

 
TABLE 1 

31 March 2012 
Principal Rate/ Return 31 March 2013 

Principal Rate/ Return 

Fixed rate funding:      
 -PWLB £40.81m 3.83% £40.78m 3.81% 
 -Market £15.90m 4.00% £15.90m 4.00% 
      -Temporary £5.10m 0.35% £2.00m 0.30% 
Total debt £61.81m 3.59% £58.68m 3.74% 
CFR £74.444m  £73.482  
Over / (under) borrowing (£12.634m)  (£14.802m)  
Investments:     
 - in house £5.81m 0.51% £3.84m 0.75% 
Total investments £5.81m 0.51% £3.84m 0.75% 

Page 130



 7 

towards the end of the year.  In addition, the Italian general election in February resulted in the 
new Five Star anti-austerity party gaining a 25% blocking vote; this has the potential to make 
Italy almost ungovernable if the grand coalition formed in April proves unable to agree on 
individual policies.  This could then cause a second general election – but one which could 
yield an equally ‘unsatisfactory’ result!  This result emphasises the dangers of a Eurozone 
approach heavily focused on imposing austerity, rather than promoting economic growth, 
reducing unemployment, and addressing the need to win voter support in democracies subject 
to periodic general elections.  This weakness leaves continuing concerns that this approach 
has merely postponed the ultimate debt crisis, rather than provide a conclusive solution. These 
problems will, in turn, also affect the financial strength of many already weakened EU banks 
during the expected economic downturn in the EU.  There are also major questions as to 
whether the Greek Government will be able to deliver on its promises of cuts in expenditure 
and increasing tax collection rates, given the hostility of much of the population.   
 
The UK coalition Government maintained its tight fiscal policy stance against a background of 
warnings from two credit rating agencies that the UK could lose its AAA credit rating. Moody’s 
followed up this warning by actually downgrading the rating to AA+ in February 2013 and Fitch 
then placed their rating on negative watch, after the Budget statement in March. Key to 
retaining the AAA rating from Fitch and S&P will be a return to strong economic growth in order 
to reduce the national debt burden to a sustainable level, within a reasonable timeframe.   
 
UK growth 
2012/13 started the first quarter with negative growth of -0.4%.  This was followed by an 
Olympics boosted +0.9% in the next quarter, then by a return to negative growth of -0.3% in 
the third quarter and finally a positive figure of +0.3% in the last quarter. This weak UK growth 
resulted in the Monetary Policy Committee increasing quantitative easing (QE) by £50bn in 
July to a total of £375bn on concerns of a downturn in growth and a forecast for inflation to fall 
below the 2% target. QE was targeted at further gilt purchases.  In the March 2013 Budget, the 
Office of Budget Responsibility yet again slashed its previously over optimistic growth 
forecasts, for both calendar years 2013 and 2014, to 0.6% and 1.8% respectively.   
 
UK CPI inflation 
It has remained stubbornly high and above the 2% target, starting the year at 3.0% and still 
being at 2.8% in March; however, it is forecast to fall to 2% in three years time. The MPC has 
continued its stance of looking through temporary spikes in inflation by placing more 
importance on the need to promote economic growth.  
 
Gilt yields oscillated during the year as events in the ongoing Eurozone debt crisis ebbed and 
flowed, causing corresponding fluctuations in safe haven flows into / out of UK gilts.  This, 
together with a further £50bn of QE in July and widely expected further QE still to come, 
combined to keep PWLB rates depressed for much of the year at historically low levels.  
 
Bank Rate 
Was unchanged at 0.5% throughout the year, while expectations of when the first increase 
would occur were pushed back to quarter 1 2015 at the earliest.   
 
Deposit rates 
The Funding for Lending Scheme, announced in July, resulted in a flood of cheap credit being 
made available to banks and this has resulted in money market investment rates falling sharply 
in the second half of the year. However, perceptions of counterparty risk have improved after 
the ECB statement in July that it would do “whatever it takes” to support struggling Eurozone 

Page 131



 8 

countries.  This has resulted in some return of confidence to move away from only very short 
term investing.   
 
 
6.  Borrowing Outturn for 2012/13 
For 2012/13 the Council’s actual debt management costs (borrowing) were £2,131,018 
compared to a revised budget of £2,130,300, a deficit of £718. The weighted average rate on 
all loans for 2012/13 was 3.77% (2011/12 3.25%) against a revised estimated rate of 3.33%.  
 
The HRA repaid the General Fund £1.737m interest for the use of debt balances it holds since 
the HRA reforms at the start of this financial year began. 
 
Loans were drawn down in 2012/13 from the PWLB for £2m to fund capital expenditure for 
Cheltenham Borough Homes. This loan was taken on an annuity basis in which CBH are 
repaying back in full to the Council based on the loan term taken with the PWLB, ensuring the 
GF is cost neutral. 
 
 
 
The loans drawn were:   
 
Lender Principal Type Interest    Rate Maturity 

PWLB £2m Fixed interest rate 3.91% 40 years 

 
No rescheduling was done during the year as the average 1% differential between PWLB new 
borrowing rates and premature repayment rates made rescheduling unviable. 
 
 
Repayments 
On 13/02/2013 the Council repaid a PWLB £2m loan at an average rate of 4.35%. This was 
funded by using internal resources. 
 
7. Investment Rates in 2012/13 
Bank Rate remained at its historic low of 0.5% throughout the year; it has now remained 
unchanged for four years.  Market expectations of the start of monetary tightening were pushed 
back during the year to early 2015 at the earliest.  The Funding for Lending Scheme resulted in 
a sharp fall in deposit rates in the second half of the year. 
 
 
8. Investment Outturn for 2012/13 
Investment Policy – the Council’s investment policy is governed by CLG guidance, which has 
been implemented in the annual investment strategy approved by the Council on 10/02/2013.  
This policy sets out the approach for choosing investment counterparties, and is based on 
credit ratings provided by the three main credit rating agencies, supplemented by additional 
market data (such as rating outlooks, credit default swaps, bank share prices etc) 

Page 132



 9 

The investment activity during the year conformed to the approved strategy, and the Council 
had no liquidity difficulties.  
 
The Council maintained an average balance of £6.98m of internally managed funds. The 
internally managed funds earned an average rate of return of 1.05%.The comparable 
performance indicator is the average 7-day LIBID rate, which was 0.39%. This compares with a 
budget assumption of £3.2m of investment balances at an average rate of 1.13%.  
 
The Council budgeted for £58,400 investment interest for 2012/13 but made an actual return of 
£74,128 a surplus of £15,728.  
 
 
9. Icelandic Bank Deposits 
The Council had £11m deposited with three Icelandic Banks when the banking system in 
Iceland collapsed in October 2008. 
 
The Icelandic Government has stated its intention to honour all of its commitments as a result 
of their banks being placed into receivership.  The U.K. Government, Administrators and other 
agencies continue to work with the Icelandic Government to help bring this about.  The Local 
Government Association is co-ordinating the efforts of all UK councils with Icelandic 
investments.   
 
At the current time, the process of recovering assets is still ongoing with the administrators.  In 
the case of Kaupthing, Singer and Friedlander Ltd, the administrators have made a number of 
dividend payments to date, with further payments and updates anticipated during 2013/14. To 
date 76p in the pound has been recovered. It is estimated that total dividends will be between 
84p to 86.5p in the pound.  
 
Investments outstanding with the two Iceland – domiciled banks (Glitnir Bank hf and 
Landsbanki Islands hf) have been subject to decisions of the Icelandic Courts. Following the 
successful outcome of legal test cases in the Icelandic Supreme Court in late-2011, the 
Administrators have now commenced the process of dividend payments in respect of both of 
these banks. Members will be periodically updated on the latest developments on these 
efforts.  It is expected that 100% will be recovered from these two banks over the coming 
years. 
 
 
The table below shows the detailed repayments in respect of the specific Icelandic investments 
held in administration: 
 
Icelandic Deposits Held Original Deposits Amount Received to 

date 
Amount Outstanding 

 £ £ £ 
Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander  2,000,000  1,520,000    480,000 
Kaupthing Singer & Friedlander  1,000,000     760,000    240,000 
Glitnir  3,000,000  2,427,600    572,400 
Landsbanki  2,000,000     973,684 1,026,316 
Landsbanki  2,000,000     973,826 1,026,174 
Landsbanki  1,000,000     502,468    497,532 
TOTAL 11,000,000  7,157,578 3,842,422 
 

Page 133



 10

 
 
10.   Treasury Management Advisors 
 
At the start of 2012/13 financial year the Council were advised by Arlinglose Ltd which had the 
contract until 30th November 2012. The Council tendered in October 2012 with the GO Shared 
Service Councils and Gloucestershire County Council to try to drive out savings. The contract 
was awarded to Sector for three years saving Cheltenham Borough Council £13,500 over the 
next three years. 
 
 

Page 134



 11

Appendix 1: Prudential and treasury indicators 

1.  PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2011/12 2012/13 2012/13 
Extract from budget and rent setting report actual original actual 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Capital Expenditure    
    Non - HRA £7,094 £8,943 £6,883 
    HRA  £4,740 £5,492 £4,742 
    TOTAL £11,834 £14,435 £11,625 
      
Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream     
    Non - HRA % % % 
    HRA  % % % 
      
Net borrowing requirement      
    brought forward 1 April £ £62,735 £62,735 
    carried forward 31 March £62,735 £60,852 £55,267 
    in year borrowing requirement (£ (£1,883) (£7,468) 
      
  
 
Net debt 
 
CFR 

 
£ 
 

 
£ 
 

 
£ 
 

    Non – HRA £28,302 £28,522 £28,732 
    HRA  £46,142 £44,750 £44,750 
    TOTAL £74,444 £73,272 £73,482 
    
Incremental impact of capital investment 
decisions  £    £    £   
    Increase in council tax (band D) per annum  * £nil £nil £nil 
    Increase in average housing rent per week ** 
     £nil £nil £nil 
*  Council Tax Freeze for 2012/13 
 
 
** Decisions on annual rent increases are 
subject to rent restructuring guidelines set by 
Central Government. As a consequence rent 
levels will only rise by RPI Index plus 0.5% and 
this should cover all additional capital 
expenditure. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 135



 12

 
2.  TREASURY MANAGEMENT  
INDICATORS  

2011/12 2012/13 2012/13 

 actual original actual 
 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Authorised Limit for external debt -      
    borrowing £109,000 £109,000 £109,000 
    other long term liabilities £0 £0 £0 
     TOTAL £109,000 £109,000 £109,000 
      
Operational Boundary for external debt -      
     borrowing £99,000 £96,000 £96,000 
     other long term liabilities £0 £0 £0 
     TOTAL £99,000 £96,000 £96,000 
      
Actual external debt £61,809 £58,577 £58,702 
    
Upper limit for fixed interest rate exposure     
          
Net principal re fixed rate borrowing / 
investments :- 0-100 % 0-100 % 0-100 % 
      
Upper limit for variable rate exposure     
    
Net principal re variable rate borrowing / 
investments :- 0-100 % 0-100 % 0-100 % 
 
 
Maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing during 
2012/13 upper limit lower limit 
under 12 months  50% 0% 
12 months and within 24 months 50% 0% 
24 months and within 5 years 100% 0% 
5 years and within 10 years 100% 0% 
10 years and above 100% 0% 
 

Page 136



APPENDIX 9

Counterparty Country
/Domicile

Max CP 
Limit 
£m

Max Group 
Limit 
£m

Max 
Duration

Fitch Long-
Term Rating

UK Financial Institutions:
UK Bank of New York Mellon (International) Ltd 7.0 - 12 months AA-

UK Barclays Bank Plc 7.0 - 3 months A

UK Credit Suisse International 7.0 - 6 months A

UK HSBC Bank Plc
(HSBC Group) 7.0 - 12 months AA-

UK MBNA Europe Bank 7.0 - 6 months A

UK Santander 7.0 - 3  months A

UK Standard Chartered Bank 7.0 - 12 months AA-

UK Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation Europe Ltd 7.0 - 3 months A-

UK UBS Ltd 7.0 - 6 months A

UK Nationwide Building Society 7.0 - 3 months A+

UK Bank of Scotland
(Lloyds Banking Group) 7.0 7.0 12 months A

UK Lloyds TSB Bank
(Lloyds Banking Group) 7.0 7.0 12 months A

UK Nat West Bank
(RBS Group) 7.0 7.0 12 months A

UK Royal Bank of Scotland
(RBS Group) 7.0 7.0 12 months A

UK Ulster Bank Ltd
(RBS Group) 7.0 7.0 12 months A-

All the above banks are UK based and are authorised by the FSA

Others:
UK Local Authorities 7.0 - Non-Specified -

Money Market Funds 
(MMFs)

10% total 
Investment - 1 year AAA

Policy Investments:

UK Cheltenham Festivals Ltd 0.1 12 months -

UK The Gloucestershire Everyman Theatre 0.1 12 months -

UK Ubico Ltd  (wholly owned LA company - 50/50 CBC 
& Cotswold DC) 0.5 - 1 year -

UK Cheltenham Borough Homes 5 Non-Specified -

UK Gloucestershire Airport Ltd - 50/50 CBC & Glos 
City Council 1.55 10 Years -

Investments:
Specified Maximum maturity of one year
Non-Specified Over one year

COUNTERPARTY LIST as at 2nd July 2013 (now with Sector, TM advisors):Page 137



Page 138
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

RE
SE

RV
ES

 A
T 3

1S
T M

AR
CH

 20
13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

Pu
rp
os
e o

f R
es
erv

e
31
/3/
12

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
31
/3/
13

Re
ve
nu

e
Re

ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

Ca
pit

al
Ou

t
IN

IN
Ou

t
EA

RM
AR

KE
D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

Ot
he
r

RE
S0

02
Pe

ns
ion

 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e p
en
sio

n l
iab

ility
-78

,37
3

50
,00

0
-15

0,0
00

-17
8,3

73
RE

S0
03

Ec
on
om

ic 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
Re

se
rve

To
 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e e
co
no
mi
c s

tud
ies

-14
,20

0
-14

,20
0

RE
S0

04
IBS

 Li
ce
ns
e R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 co

st 
of 
IBS

 lic
en
se
 pa

id 
up
 fro

nt
-14

8,7
00

-14
8,7

00
RE

S0
05

Ke
ep
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Ti
dy
 R
es
erv

e
Ke

ep
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 Ti
dy
 ca

mp
aig

n -
 sc

he
me

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns

-62
6

-62
6

RE
S0

06
Cu

ltu
ral
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e a
rts
 fa
cili
tie
s/a

cti
vit
y

-22
,36

1
-22

,36
1

RE
S0

07
LA

BG
I R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 fu
tur

e e
co
no
mi
c /
 cu

ltu
ral
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

-10
,00

0
10
,00

0
0

RE
S0

08
Ho

us
e S

urv
ey
 R
es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 cy

clic
al 
ho
us
ing

 st
oc
k c

on
dit
ion

 su
rve

ys
-80

,52
5

-7,
50
0

-88
,02

5
RE

S0
09

Tw
inn

ing
 R
es
erv

e
Tw

inn
ing

 to
wn

s c
ivi
c v

isi
ts 
to 
Ch

elt
en
ha
m

-17
,40

0
10
,00

0
-7,

40
0

RE
S0

10
Flo

od
 Al
lev

iat
ion

 R
es
erv

e
wo

rki
ng
 gr

ou
p f
or 

allo
ca
tio
n

-24
6,5

85
71
,93

5
-48

,39
9

-22
3,0

48
RE

S0
11

Ar
t G

alle
ry 
& M

us
eu
m 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
Re

se
rve

To
 fu
nd
 ca

pit
al 
sc
he
me

-1,
97
6,7

21
-22

0,0
00

1,5
78
,48

9
-61

8,2
32

RE
S0

12
Pu

mp
 R
oo
m 
Ins

ura
nc
e R

es
erv

e
Ins

ura
nc
e r

es
erv

e f
or 

sto
len

 je
we

ller
y

-17
,06

6
5,8

31
-2,

50
0

-13
,73

5
RE

S0
13

TIC
 Sh

op
 R
es
erv

e
Ac
cu
mu

lat
ed
 pr

ofi
ts 
he
ld 
for

 TI
C 
sh
op
 im

pro
ve
me

nts
-29

-29
RE

S0
14

GF
 In
su
ran

ce
 R
es
erv

e
inc

rea
se
s

-12
1,3

71
42
,00

0
-79

,37
1

RE
S0

15
Ve

hic
le 
Le
as
ing

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n R

es
erv

e
Pu

rch
as
e o

f v
eh
icle

s a
nd
 eq

uip
me

nt
-11

6,0
85

-11
6,0

85
RE

S0
16

Jo
int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 Jo

int
 C
ore

 St
rat

eg
y

-23
8,2

47
19
8,5

84
-23

4,6
33

-27
4,2

95
RE

S0
18

Civ
ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
To

 pu
mp

 pr
im
e c

ivi
c p

rid
e i
nit
iat
ive

 / m
atc

h f
un
din

g
-93

6,5
98

27
0,9

00
13
9,0

00
-52

6,6
98

RE
S0

19
La
nd
 C
ha
rge

s R
es
erv

e
Cu

sh
ion

 im
pa
ct 
of 
flu
ctu

ati
ng
 ac

tiv
ity
 le
ve
ls

0
-34

,40
0

-34
,40

0
-4,

02
4,8

87
65
9,2

50
-69

7,4
31

1,7
17
,48

9
-2,

34
5,5

80
Re

pa
irs

 &
 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

es
RE

S2
01

Co
mm

ute
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
De

ve
lop

er 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
 to
 fu
nd
 m
ain

ten
an
ce

-22
4,6

29
39
,00

0
-18

5,6
29

RE
S2

02
Hig

hw
ay
s I
ns
ura

nc
e R

es
erv

e
Co

un
ty 
hig

hw
ay
s -
 in
su
ran

ce
 ex

ce
ss
es

-15
,00

0
-15

,00
0

RE
S2

03
Re

vs
 & 

Be
ne
fits

 IT
 R
es
erv

e
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
fun

d t
o c

ov
er 

so
ftw

are
 re

lea
se
s

-30
,00

0
-30

,00
0

RE
S2

04
I.T

. R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
fun

d
-53

,66
5

6,3
00

-30
2,6

00
-34

9,9
65

RE
S2

05
Pr
op
ert

y R
ep
air
s &

 R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
20
 ye

ar 
ma

int
en
an
ce
 fu
nd

-71
3,9

77
1,0

20
,00

8
-95

0,2
25

11
0,1

51
-53

4,0
43

-1,
03
7,2

71
1,0

65
,30

8
-1,

25
2,8

25
11
0,1

51
-1,

11
4,6

37 Pa
ge

 1

Page 139



AP
PE

ND
IX 

10

RE
SE

RV
ES

 A
T 3

1S
T M

AR
CH

 20
13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

Pu
rp
os
e o

f R
es
erv

e
31
/3/
12

Mo
ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
Mo

ve
me

nt
31
/3/
13

Re
ve
nu

e
Re

ve
nu

e
Ca

pit
al

Ca
pit

al
Ou

t
IN

IN
Ou

t
EA

RM
AR

KE
D 
RE

SE
RV

ES
£

£
£

£
£

Eq
ua
lis
ati

on
 R
es
erv

es
RE

S1
01

Re
nt 
All
ow

an
ce
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Cu
sh
ion

 im
pa
ct 
of 
flu
ctu

ati
ng
 ac

tiv
ity
 le
ve
ls

-15
9,2

56
68
,40

0
-42

,40
0

-13
3,2

56
RE

S1
02

Pla
nn
ing

 Ap
pe
als

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n

Fu
nd
ing

 fo
r o

ne
 of
f a
pe
als

 co
st 
in 
ex
ce
ss
 of
 re

ve
nu
e b

ud
ge
t

-38
,95

5
-62

,27
7

-10
1,2

32
RE

S1
03

Lic
en
sin

g F
ee
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Pa
st 
inc

om
e s

urp
lus

es
 to
 cu

sh
ion

 im
pa
ct 
of 
rev

ise
d l
eg
isla

tio
n

-11
,35

5
-11

,20
0

-22
,55

5
RE

S1
04

Int
ere

st 
Eq

ua
lisa

tio
n

de
po
sit
s a

nd
/or

 to
 re

du
ce
 th
e b

orr
ow

ing
 ar

isi
ng
 fro

m 
the

 
-91

2,7
20

71
4,0

50
-22

5,3
42

-42
4,0

12
RE

S1
05

Lo
ca
l P
lan

 Eq
ua
lisa

tio
n

Fu
nd
 cy

clic
al 
co
st 
of 
loc

al 
pla

n i
nq
uir
y

-30
30
,00

0
-15

7,2
00

-12
7,2

30
RE

S1
06

Ele
cti
on
s E

qu
ali
sa
tio
n

Fu
nd
 cy

clic
al 
co
st 
of 
loc

al 
ele

cti
on
s

-72
,70

0
72
,70

0
0

-1,
19
5,0

15
88
5,1

50
-49

8,4
19

-80
8,2

84
Re

se
rve

s f
or
 co

mm
itm

en
ts

RE
S3

01
Ca

rry
 Fo

rw
ard

s R
es
erv

e
Ap

pro
ve
d b

ud
ge
t c
arr

y f
orw

ard
s

-1,
36
7,5

77
1,3

36
,55

1
-1,

58
1,1

00
-1,

61
2,1

26

CA
PIT

AL
RE

S4
01

Ho
us
ing

 C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 H
ou
sin

g G
en
era

l F
un
d c

ap
ita
l e
xp
en
dit
ure

-90
2,4

76
-90

2,4
76

RE
S4

02
Ca

pit
al 
Re

se
rve

 - G
F

To
 fu
nd
 G
en
era

l F
un
d c

ap
ita
l e
xp
en
dit
ure

 
-1,

27
0,7

58
48
2,2

11
-70

0,0
00

12
3,8

72
-1,

36
4,6

74
-2,

17
3,2

34
48
2,2

11
-70

0,0
00

12
3,8

72
-2,

26
7,1

50

TO
TA

L E
AR

MA
RK

ED
 R
ES

ER
VE

S
-9,

79
7,9

85
4,4

28
,47

1
-4,

72
9,7

75
1,9

51
,51

2
-8,

14
7,7

77

GE
NE

RA
L F

UN
D 
BA

LA
NC

E
B8

00
0 -

B8
24
0

Ge
ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
 - R

R
Ge

ne
ral
 ba

lan
ce

-2,
25
3,0

37
-1,

22
4,8

35
2,0

83
,33

8
-62

6,5
89

-2,
02
1,1

23
-2,

25
3,0

37
-1,

22
4,8

35
2,0

83
,33

8
-62

6,5
89

-2,
02
1,1

23

TO
TA

L G
EN

ER
AL

 FU
ND

 R
ES

ER
VE

S A
ND

 B
AL

AN
CE

S
-12

,05
1,0

22
3,2

03
,63

6
-2,

64
6,4

37
1,3

24
,92

3
-10

,16
8,8

99

CA
PIT

AL
 R
EC

EIP
TS

B8
70
0 -

 
B8

74
0

Ca
pit
al 
Re

ce
ipt
s R

es
erv

e
To

 fu
nd
 G
en
era

l F
un
d c

ap
ita
l e
xp
en
dit
ure

 
-1,

19
0,5

00
-1,

75
5,8

99
49
8,5

16
-2,

44
7,8

83 Pa
ge

 2

Page 140



AP
PE

ND
IX 

11
GE

NE
RA

L F
UN

D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he

me
 

Sc
he

me
 D
es
cri

pt
ion

Or
igi

na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis

ed
Un

de
rsp

en
d/

Ap
pr
ov

ed
Re

vis
ed

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he

me
to

Bu
dg

et
Ou

ttu
rn

(O
ve
rsp

en
d)

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03

/12
20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
13
/14

£
£

£
£

£
£

£

RE
SO

UR
CE

S
Pr
op

ert
y S

erv
ice

s
CA

P0
01

C/
R

Pr
og
ram

me
d M

ain
ten

an
ce

Ne
w 
cre

ma
tor

s
65
5,0

00
51
7,5

52
13
7,5

00
11
0,1

51
27
,34

9
27
,30

0

Fin
an
cia

l S
erv

ice
s

CA
P0

10
C

GO
 E
RP

De
ve
lop

me
nt 
of 
ER

P 
sy
ste

m 
wi
thi
n t
he
 G
O 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
42
1,7

00
37
6,7

13
80
,00

0
65
,26

0
14
,74

0
14
,70

0

CA
P0

11
C

Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
 A
irp
ort

Co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
ow

ard
s t
he
 re

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
pro

jec
t - 

£1
.2m

 lo
an

1,2
00
,00

0
1,1

90
,58

5
9,4

15
3,2

55
6,1

60
6,1

00
IC
T

CA
P0

24
C

IT 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re

Up
gra

de
 of
 M
icr
os
oft
 O
ffic

e r
eq
uir
ed
 as

 ve
rsi
on
 cu

rre
ntl
y u

se
d i
s a

n e
nd
 of
 

life
 pr

od
uc
t a
nd
 no

 lo
ng
er 

su
pp
ort

ed
 by

 M
icr
os
oft
 - m

ov
ed
 to
 5 
ye
ar 

IC
T 

inf
ras

tru
ctu

re 
str
ate

gy
.  

CA
P0

25
C

IT 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re
Vir

tua
l e
-m

ail
 ap

pli
an
ce
 lic

en
ce
 -s
ett
ing

 up
 of
 e-

ma
il c

on
ne
cti
on
 be

tw
ee
n 

all
 G
O 
Pa

rtn
er 

au
tho

riti
es
.

22
,00

0
22
,00

0
22
,00

0

CA
P0

12
C

IT 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re
Up

gra
de
 of
 C
ivi
ca
 sy

ste
m 
to 
en
su
re 

PC
I c
om

pli
an
cy
.

15
6,0

00
15
6,7

85
(78

5)

CA
P0

26
C

IT 
Inf
ras

tru
ctu

re
5 y

ea
r IC

T i
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re 

str
ate

gy
40
9,5

00
40
9,5

00

Re
ve
nu

es

CA
P0

13
G

Lo
ca
lis
ati
on
 of
 B
us
ine

ss
 R
ate

s
So

ftw
are

 ch
an
ge
s r
eq
uir
ed
 in
 or

de
r to

 in
tro

du
ce
 th
e L

oc
ali
sa
tio
n o

f 
Bu

sin
es
s R

ate
s a

s r
eq
uir
ed
 by

 le
gis

lat
ion

 an
d f
un
de
d b

y g
ran

t
35
,00

0
35
,00

0
35
,00

0
35
,00

0

WE
LL

BE
IN
G 
& 
CU

LT
UR

E
Pa

rks
 &
 G
ard

en
s

CA
P1

01
S

S.
10
6 P

lay
 ar

ea
 re

fur
bis

hm
en
t

De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

50
,00

0
81
,69

4
(31

,69
4)

50
,00

0
50
,00

0

On
go
ing

 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 an

d r
efu

rbi
sh
me

nt 
of 
pla

y a
rea

s t
o 

CA
P1

02
C

Pla
y A

rea
 E
nh
an
ce
me

nt
On

go
ing

 pr
og
ram

me
 of
 m
ain

ten
an
ce
 an

d r
efu

rbi
sh
me

nt 
of 
pla

y a
rea

s t
o 

en
su
re 

the
y i
mp

rov
e a

nd
 m
ee
t s
afe

ty 
sta

nd
ard

s 
80
,00

0
57
,30

0
22
,70

0
80
,00

0
80
,00

0

CA
P1

06
P

Pit
tvi
lle
 G
ate

s
Re

sto
rat

ion
 of
 P
ittv

ille
 G
ate

s -
 P
art

ne
rsh

ip 
Fu

nd
ing

11
8,0

09
(11

8,0
09
)

Sc
he
me

 to
 be

 co
mp

let
ed
 in
 20

13
-14

 an
d t
o b

e 
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Fu

nd
ed

CA
P1

08
S

Kin
g G

eo
rge

 V
 P
lay

ing
 Fi
eld

 C
yc
let
rac

k
De

ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

36
,06

9
(36

,06
9)

Sc
he
me

 to
 be

 co
mp

let
ed
 in
 20

13
-14

 an
d t
o b

e f
un
de
d b

y 
De

ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

Cu
ltu

ral
 Se

rvi
ce
s

CA
P1

21
R/
P

Ar
t G

all
ery

 &
 M
us
eu
m 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 
Sc

he
me

Co
un
cil
's 
co
mm

itm
en
t to

 ne
w 
sc
he
me

 as
 ag

ree
d b

y C
ou
nc
il 2

0th
 Ju

ly 
20
08

6,3
00
,00

0
1,0

13
,44

8
3,8

57
,35

0
3,2

83
,51

6
57
3,8

34
72
9,2

02
1,3

03
,00

0

Th
e m

ain
 co

ntr
ac
tor

s c
om

me
nc
ed
 w
ork

 on
 th
e A

G&
M 

de
ve
lop

me
nt 
in 
Au

gu
st 
20
11
 an

d w
ork

 is
 pr

og
res

sin
g 

we
ll, 
wi
th 
an
 ex

pe
cte

d o
pe
n f
rom

 S
um

me
r 2

01
3. 
Th
e 

rem
ain

ing
 ca

pit
al 
bu
dg
et 
is 
ne
ee
d t
o s

up
po
rt t

he
 

co
mm

itte
d e

xp
en
dit
ure

 in
 20

13
/14

Co
mm

un
ity
 Sa

fet
y

CA
P1

41
C

CC
TV

/To
wn

 C
en
tre

 in
itia

tiv
e

Ex
pa
ns
ion

 of
 on

 st
ree

t C
CT

V 
in 
the

 to
wn

 ce
ntr

e t
o i
nc
rea

se
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 

se
cu
re 

the
 en

vir
on
me

nt
53
,80

0
54
,94

0
(1,

14
0)

50
,00

0
50
,00

0

Pa
ge
 1

Page 141



AP
PE

ND
IX 

11
GE

NE
RA

L F
UN

D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he

me
 

Sc
he

me
 D
es
cri

pt
ion

Or
igi

na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis

ed
Un

de
rsp

en
d/

Ap
pr
ov

ed
Re

vis
ed

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he

me
to

Bu
dg

et
Ou

ttu
rn

(O
ve
rsp

en
d)

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03

/12
20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
13
/14

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
BU

ILT
 EN

VIR
ON

ME
NT

Int
eg
rat

ed
 Tr

an
sp
or
t

CA
P1

05
S

Ga
rdn

ers
 La

ne
 R
ec
on
str
uc
tio
n

A 
pa
rt c

ou
nc
il o

wn
ed
 un

ad
op
ted

 la
ne
 w
hic

h p
rov

ide
s a

cc
es
s t
o t
he
 an

im
al 

sh
elt
er,

 G
ard

ne
rs 
La
ne
 P
rim

ary
 S
ch
oo
l, t
he
 U
niv

ers
ity
's 
pla

yin
g f
iel
d a

nd
 

Mi
dw

int
er 

all
otm

en
ts 
req

uir
ed
 m
ajo

r r
ep
air
 pr

ior
 to
 G
lou

ce
ste

rsh
ire
 C
ou
nty

 
Co

un
cil
 be

ing
 w
illin

g t
o a

do
pt 
it. 
 To

 ne
ga
te 
the

 co
un
cil
's 
on
go
ing

 
ma

int
en
an
ce
 re

sp
on
sib

ilit
y t
he
 ro

ad
 ha

s b
ee
n r

ep
air
ed
 to
 ad

op
tab

le 
sta

nd
ard

s i
n p

art
ne
rsh

ip 
wi
th 
the

 ot
he
r o

rga
nis

ati
on
s u

sin
g t
he
 ac

ce
ss
 

lan
e. 
 Th

e c
ou
nc
il h

as
 re

sp
on
sib

ilit
y f
or 

ma
na
gin

g t
he
 pr

oje
ct 
an
d i
nv
es
tin
g 

the
 pa

rtn
ers

 fu
nd
ing

 co
ntr

ibu
tio
ns
.

18
,12

7
(18

,12
7)

Th
e r

oa
d h

as
 be

en
 re

pa
ire
d b

ut 
fur

the
r p

ay
me

nts
 w
ere

 
req

uir
ed
 in
 20

12
/13

 to
 co

ve
r th

e f
ina

l c
on
tra

cto
r 

pa
ym

en
ts 
an
d r

ete
nti
on
.  T

he
se
 co

sts
 w
ere

 fu
nd
ed
 by

 th
e 

pa
rtn

ers
.

CA
P1

50
C

Ci
vic

 P
rid
e

CB
C 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o E

as
t P

rom
en
ad
e r

ep
av
ing

 by
 G
CC

, p
lus

 st
ree

t 
fur

nit
ure

 co
sts

.
14
5,0

00
13
9,0

00
6,0

00
6,0

00
CA

P1
51

C
Ci
vic

 P
rid
e

CB
C 
co
ntr

ibu
tio
n t
o W

es
t P

rom
en
ad
e r

ep
av
ing

 by
 G
CC

.
10
0,0

00
10
0,0

00

CA
P1

52
C

Ci
vic

 P
rid
e

Up
gra

de
 of
 P
rom

en
ad
e p

ed
es
tria

nis
ed
 ar

ea
 in
clu

din
g r

em
od
ell
ing

 of
 tre

e 
pit
s, 
pro

vid
ing

 se
ati
ng
, re

-po
int
ing

 ex
ist
ing

 Yo
rks

ton
e.

10
0,0

00
10
0,0

00

CA
P1

53
C

Ci
vic

 P
rid
e

Re
mo

de
llin

g o
f S

he
rbo

rne
 P
lac

e C
ar 

Pa
rk 
int
o a

 G
ree

n c
ar 

pa
rk 
for

 sh
ort

 
sta

y b
us
 us

e.
10
0,0

00
10
0,0

00
CA

P1
54

C
Ci
vic

 P
rid
e

Sc
he
me

 fo
r S

t.M
ary

's 
ch
urc

hy
ard

50
,00

0
50
,00

0

CA
P2

04
C

Ci
vic

 P
rid
e

Im
pro

ve
me

nts
 to
 G
ros

ve
no
r T

err
ac
e C

ar 
Pa

rk 
(To

wn
 C
en
tre

 E
as
t) 

inc
lud

ing
 m
ak
ing

 a 
Gr
ee
n c

ar 
pa
rk,
 im

pro
vin

g l
ink

ag
es
 to
 th
e H

igh
 S
tre

et,
 

im
pro

ve
d s

us
tai
na
bil
ity
 - r

ain
wa

ter
 ha

rve
sti
ng
, P

V 
ce
lls
 et
c.

30
,00

0
9,3

50
20
,65

0
12
0,0

00
14
0,6

00

CA
P2

01
C

CC
TV

 in
 C
ar 

Pa
rks

Ad
dit
ion

al 
CC

TV
 in
 or

de
r to

 im
pro

ve
 sh

op
pin

g a
rea

s a
nd
 re

du
ce
 fe
ar 

of 
cri
me

64
,30

0
19
,47

0
44
,83

0
50
,00

0
99
,80

0

CA
P2

02
C

Ca
r p

ark
 m
an
ag
em

en
t te

ch
no
log

y

Th
e u

pg
rad

e o
f th

e c
ar 

pa
rk 
ma

na
ge
me

nt 
tec

hn
olo

gy
 at
 se

lec
ted

 si
tes

 
su
ch
 as

 R
eg
en
t A

rca
de
 is
 es

se
nti
al 
as
 th
e e

xis
tin
g m

an
ag
em

en
t s
ys
tem

s 
an
d h

ard
wa

re 
ha
ve
 no

w 
rea

ch
ed
 th
e e

nd
 of
 th
eir
 lif
e c

yc
le.

25
0,0

00
26
,19

2
12
0,0

00
76
,46

5
43
,53

5
43
,50

0

Ho
us
ing

 
Ma

nd
ato

ry 
Gr
an
t fo

r th
e p

rov
isi
on
 of
 bu

ild
ing

 w
ork

, e
qu
ipm

en
t o
r 

CA
P2

21
C/
SC

G
Di
sa
ble

d F
ac
ilit
ies

 G
ran

ts

Ma
nd
ato

ry 
Gr
an
t fo

r th
e p

rov
isi
on
 of
 bu

ild
ing

 w
ork

, e
qu
ipm

en
t o
r 

mo
dif
yin

g a
 dw

ell
ing

 to
 re

sto
re 

or 
en
ab
le 
ind

ep
en
de
nt 
liv
ing

, p
riv
ac
y, 

co
nfi
de
nc
e a

nd
 di
gn
ity
 fo
r in

div
idu

als
 an

d t
he
ir f
am

ilie
s.

67
1,8

48
48
5,2

02
18
6,6

46
60
0,0

00
78
6,6

00
Ad

dit
ion

al 
Di
sa
ble

d F
ac
ilit
ies

 G
ran

ts 
fun

din
g w

as
 m
ad
e 

av
ail
ab
le 
in 
20
12
/13

CA
P2

22
C

Ad
ap
tat
ion

 S
up
po
rt G

ran
t

Us
ed
 m
os
tly
 w
he
re 

es
se
nti
al 
rep

air
s (
he
alt
h a

nd
 sa

fet
y) 
are

 id
en
tifi
ed
 to
 

en
ab
le 
the

 D
FG

 w
ork

 to
 pr

oc
ee
d (

e.g
. e
lec

tric
al 
wo

rks
).  

26
,00

0
13
,28

8
12
,71

2
26
,00

0
38
,70

0

PS
DH

He
alt
h &

 S
afe

ty 
Gr
an
t / 
Lo
an
s

A 
ne
w 
for

m 
of 
as
sis

tan
ce
 av

ail
ab
le 
un
de
r th

e c
ou
nc
il's
 H
ou
sin

g R
en
ew

al 
Po

lic
y 2

00
3-0

6

CA
P2

23
PS

DH
Va

ca
nt 
Pr
op
ert

y G
ran

t
A 
ne
w 
for

m 
of 
as
sis

tan
ce
 av

ail
ab
le 
un
de
r th

e c
ou
nc
il's
 H
ou
sin

g R
en
ew

al 
Po

lic
y 2

00
3-0

6
30
3,6

74
8,1

72
29
5,5

02
29
5,5

00

PS
DH

Re
no
va
tio
n G

ran
ts

Gr
an
ts 
pro

vid
ed
 un

de
r th

e H
ou
sin

g G
ran

ts,
 C
on
str
uc
tio
n a

nd
 

Re
ge
ne
rat

ion
 A
ct 
19
96

CA
P2

24
LA

A 
/ C

W
arm

 &
 W

ell
A 
Gl
ou
ce
ste

rsh
ire
-w
ide

 pr
oje

ct 
to 
pro

mo
te 
ho
me

 en
erg

y e
ffic

ien
cy
, 

pa
rtic

ula
rly
 ta
rge

ted
 at
 th
os
e w

ith
 he

alt
h p

rob
lem

s
60
,00

0
20
,00

0
40
,00

0
60
,00

0
10
0,0

00

CA
P2

25
C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp
ort

 of
 en

ab
lin
g t
he
 pr

ov
isi
on
 of
 ne

w 
aff

ord
ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 
in 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith
 re

gis
ter

ed
 S
oc
ial
 La

nd
lor
ds
 an

d t
he
 H
ou
sin

g 
Co

rpo
rat

ion
40
0,0

00
40
0,0

00
40
0,0

00

Th
e C

PO
 pr

oc
es
s f
or 

Cr
ab
tre

e P
lac

e h
as
 co

mm
en
ce
d, 

ho
we

ve
r it
 is
 no

t li
ke
ly 
to 
co
mp

let
e u

nti
l 2
01
3/1

4 d
ue
 to
 

the
 tim

efr
am

e f
or 

mo
vin

g t
hro

ug
h t
he
 pr

oc
es
s.

CA
P2

26
C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Tra
ns
for

ma
tio
na
l im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 pr

iva
te 
ho
us
eh
old

s i
n S

t. P
au
l's 

to 
as
sis

t th
em

 in
 ra

isi
ng
 th
e s

tan
da
rd 

of 
the

ir d
we

llin
gs
 in
 lin

e w
ith
 ne

w 
bu
ild
 

co
un
cil
 ho

us
ing

 st
oc
k.

13
0,0

00
12
6,7

10
3,2

90
3,3

00

CA
P2

27
C/
S

Ho
us
ing

 E
na
bli
ng

Ex
pe
nd
itu
re 

in 
su
pp
ort

 of
 en

ab
lin
g t
he
 pr

ov
isi
on
 of
 ne

w 
aff

ord
ab
le 
ho
us
ing

 
in 
pa
rtn

ers
hip

 w
ith
 C
he
lte
nh
am

 B
oro

ug
h H

om
es

2,2
00
,00

0
2,0

00
,00

0
20
0,0

00
1,3

00
,00

0
1,5

00
,00

0

Th
e r

es
ou
rce

 is
 be

ing
 us

ed
 fo
r th

e l
on
g t
erm

 be
ne
fit 
of 

pri
va
te 
se
cto

r h
ou
sin

g, 
foc

us
sin

g o
n t
he
 w
ors

t p
rop

ert
ies

 
an
d m

os
t v
un
era

ble
 in
div

idu
als

.  T
he
re 

ha
s a

lso
 be

en
 a 

ch
an
ge
 in
 ap

pro
ac
h t
o b

rin
gin

g v
ac
an
t p
rop

ert
ies

 ba
ck
 

int
o u

se
 to
 al
low

 fo
r b

ett
er 

lon
g t
erm

 us
e o

f th
is 
lim

ite
d 

fun
din

g. 
 Th

e b
ala

nc
e o

f th
is 
fun

din
g w

ill 
be
 us

ed
 ov

er 
co
mi
ng
 ye

ars
 to
 m
ee
t th

es
e a

im
s.

Pa
ge
 2

Page 142



AP
PE

ND
IX 

11
GE

NE
RA

L F
UN

D 
CA

PIT
AL

 PR
OG

RA
MM

E

Co
de

Fu
nd

Sc
he

me
 

Sc
he

me
 D
es
cri

pt
ion

Or
igi

na
l

Pa
ym

en
ts

Re
vis

ed
Un

de
rsp

en
d/

Ap
pr
ov

ed
Re

vis
ed

Co
mm

en
ts

Sc
he

me
to

Bu
dg

et
Ou

ttu
rn

(O
ve
rsp

en
d)

Bu
dg

et
Bu

dg
et

 
 

 
 

Co
st

31
/03

/12
20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
12
/13

20
13
/14

20
13
/14

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
OP

ER
AT

IO
NS

CA
P3

01
C

Ve
hic

les
 an

d r
ec
yc
lin
g c

ad
die

s
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
ve
hic

les
 an

d r
ec
yc
lin
g e

qu
ipm

en
t 

25
0,0

00
25
0,0

00
25
0,0

00

BU
DG

ET
 PR

OP
OS

AL
S F

UT
UR

E C
AP

ITA
L 

PR
OG

RA
MM

E:
 

CA
P1

11
Gy

m 
Eq

uip
me

nt
To
 re

pla
ce
 w
orn

 ou
t e
qu
ipm

en
t a
nd
 en

su
re 

tha
t w

e r
eta

in 
a s

uc
ce
ss
ful
 an

d 
co
mp

eti
tiv
e p

ub
lic
ly 
ac
ce
ss
ibl
e f
itn
es
s p

rov
isi
on

21
1,0

00
21
1,0

00

CA
P1

23
Ca

fé 
Ar
t G

all
ey
 &
 M
us
eu
m

To
 re

fur
bis

h n
ew

 ca
fé 
are

a a
s p

art
 of
 th
e A

rt G
all
ery

 &
 M
us
eu
m 

red
ev
elo

pm
en
t in

clu
din

g f
itti
ng
 ou

t
17
0,0

00
17
0,0

00

CA
P1

12
Ca

rbo
n r

ed
uc
tio
n s

ch
em

e
Re

pla
ce
me

nt 
of 
Po

ol 
Ha

ll l
igh

tin
g t
o L

ED
s a

t le
isu

re@
 - s

ub
jec

t to
 

bu
sin

es
s c

as
e

30
,00

0
30
,00

0

CA
PIT

AL
 SC

HE
ME

S R
EC

LA
SS

IFI
ED

 A
S 

RE
VE

NU
E:

CA
P0

02
C

Bu
ria
l C

ha
pe
l

Inv
es
t to

 sa
ve
 sc

he
me

 to
 co

nv
ert

 bu
ria
l c
ha
pe
l to

 ha
nd
le 
cre

ma
tio
ns
.

11
0,0

00
10
0,6

42
9,3

00
1,6

92
7,6

08
7,6

00

CA
P0

21
C

W
ork

ing
 Fl
ex
ibl
y I
nfr

as
tru

ctu
re

De
liv
er 

co
un
cil
 se

rvi
ce
s a

t a
 tim

e a
nd
 pl
ac
e w

hic
h s

uit
 th
e c

us
tom

er.
 

Im
ple

me
nta

tio
n o

f C
itri
x e

nv
iro
nm

en
t to

 de
liv
er 

bu
sin

es
s a

pll
ica

tio
ns
 to
 th
e 

ho
me

 / r
em

ote
 us

ers
 de

sk
top

35
,30

0
26
,57

6
8,7

00
1,0

98
7,6

02
7,6

00

CA
P1

04
C

Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill 
Dr
y S

ton
e W

all
Ma

tch
 fu
nd
ed
 w
ith
 N
atu

ral
 E
ng
lan

d t
o c

on
str
uc
t d
ry 
sto

ne
 w
all
ing

 on
 

Le
ck
ha
mp

ton
 H
ill 
sit
e o

f s
pe
cia

l s
cie

nti
fic
 in
ter

es
t (S

SS
)

1,0
30

(1,
03
0)

CA
P2

03
C

Re
-jo
int
ing

 H
igh

 S
tre

et/
Pr
om

en
ad
e p

ed
es
tria

nis
ed
 ar

ea
Re

-jo
int
ing

 w
ork

s r
eq
uir
ed
 to
 im

pro
ve
 sa

fet
y a

nd
 ap

pe
ara

nc
e o

f th
e c

ore
 

co
mm

erc
ial
 ar

ea
60
,00

0
52
,17

1
7,5

00
7,5

00
7,5

00

CA
P4

01
C

La
nd
 &
 P
rop

ert
y p

res
ale

 co
sts

Pr
op
ert

y &
 Le

ga
l c
os
ts 
as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
ts

26
,12

9
(26

,12
9)

CA
P5

01
C

All
otm

en
ts

All
otm

en
t E

nh
an
ce
me

nts
 - n

ew
 to
ile
ts,
 pa

th 
su
rfa

cin
g, 
fen

cin
g, 
sig

na
ge
, 

an
d o

the
r im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 in
fra

-st
ruc

tur
e.

35
3,1

00
34
2,8

43
10
,20

0
10
,20

0
10
,20

0
CA

P5
01

C
All
otm

en
ts

an
d o

the
r im

pro
ve
me

nts
 to
 in
fra

-st
ruc

tur
e.

35
3,1

00
34
2,8

43
10
,20

0
10
,20

0
10
,20

0

CA
P5

02
C

De
po
t R

ati
on
ali
sa
tio
n

Co
sts

 as
so
cia

ted
 w
ith
 in
co
rpo

rat
ing

 Te
wk

es
bu
ry 
Bo

rou
gh
 C
ou
nc
il w

ith
in 

the
 D
ep
ot 
sit
e a

t S
wi
nd
on
 R
oa
d

30
0,0

00
27
4,0

31
25
,90

0
26
,36

5
(46

5)

TO
TA

L C
AP

ITA
L P

RO
GR

AM
ME

8,9
43

,48
7

6,9
39

,07
7

2,0
04

,41
0

4,2
35

,70
2

6,4
55

,50
0

Fu
nd

ed
 by

:
G
Go

ve
rnm

en
t G

ran
ts

35
,00

0
35
,00

0
SC

G
Sp

ec
ifie

d C
ap
ita
l G

ran
t (D

FG
)

37
7,8

48
37
7,8

48
30
6,0

00
30
6,0

00
LA

A
LA

A P
erf
orm

an
ce
 R
ew

ard
 G
ran

t
60
,00

0
20
,00

0
60
,00

0
10
0,0

00
P
Pa

rtn
ers

hip
 Fu

nd
ing

1,2
05
,00

0
1,3

42
,27

8
65
4,8

32
65
4,8

32
PS

DH
Pr
iva

te 
Se

cto
r D

ec
en
t H

om
es
 G
ran

t
30
3,6

74
7,4

45
29
6,2

29
HL

F
He

rita
ge
 Lo

tte
ry 
Fu
nd
ing

75
0,0

00
49
8,8

85
25
1,1

15
HR

A
Ho

us
ing

 R
ev
en
ue
 Ac

co
un
t C

on
trib

uti
on

50
,00

0
50
,00

0
R
Pr
op
ert
y P

lan
ne
d M

ain
ten

an
ce
 R
es
erv

e
13
7,5

00
11
0,1

51
27
,30

0
R
IT 

Re
pa
irs
 an

d R
en
ew

als
 R
es
erv

e
22
1,7

65
22
1,7

65
R
AG

&M
 D
ev
elo

pm
en
t R

es
erv

e
1,9

02
,35

0
1,5

78
,48

9
74
,37

0
39
8,2

31
S
De

ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 S1

06
50
,00

0
11
7,7

63
50
,00

0
50
,00

0
C
Ge

ne
ral
 Ba

lan
ce
s

80
,00

0
65
,26

0
14
,70

0
C
Re

ve
nu
e C

on
trib

uti
on
s

56
,31

4
C
HR

A C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
13
0,0

00
13
0,0

00
C
GF

 C
ap
ita
l R

ec
eip

ts
49
8,5

16
C
HI
P C

ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
40
0,0

00
40
0,0

00
C
Civ

ic 
Pr
ide

 R
es
erv

e
14
5,0

00
13
9,0

00
35
0,0

00
35
6,0

00
C
Pr
ud
en
tia
l B
orr

ow
ing

2,4
59
,41

5
2,0

03
,25

6
1,3

00
,00

0
1,7

56
,10

0
C
GF

 C
ap
ita
l R

es
erv

e
90
7,7

00
12
3,8

72
1,1

68
,73

5
1,4

08
,22

8
8,9

43
,48

7
6,9

39
,07

7
4,2

35
,70

2
6,4

55
,50

0

Pa
ge
 3

Page 143



Page 144
This page is intentionally left blank



AP
PE

ND
IX 

12

Am
ou

nts
Us

ab
le

Re
ce
ipt

s/
Ap

pli
ed

Ap
pli

ed
Am

ou
nts

De
ve
lop

er
Ba

lan
ce
 

Re
fun

ds
to 

fun
d

to 
fun

d
tra

ns
fer

red
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 (S

10
6) 

YE
AR

@ 
1/4

/12
in 

ye
ar

fix
ed
 as

se
ts

RE
FC

US
to 

rev
en
ue

@ 
31
/3/
13

A/
c

De
tai

l
£

£
£

£
£

£

B7
41
0

DE
V4

01
Co

urt
s-K

ing
sd
itc
h-B

on
d S

um
 In
de
xe
d L

ink
ed

06
/0
7

(19
,80

0.0
0)

(19
,80

0.0
0)

B7
41
0

DE
V4

02
St 

Ja
me

s S
ou
th-

Bo
nd
 Su

m 
Ind

ex
ed
 Li
nk
ed

06
/0
7

(63
,00

0.0
0)

(63
,00

0.0
0)

(82
,80

0.0
0)

(82
,80

0.0
0)

B7
42
0

DE
V4

03
Co

ld 
Po

ol 
La
ne
 G
rou

nd
s M

ain
ten

an
ce
 

11
/1
2

(53
,30

3.8
3)

(53
,30

3.8
3)

B7
42
0

DE
V4

04
Gl
os
ca
t P

ark
 G
rou

nd
s M

ain
ten

an
ce
 

11
/1
2

(34
,08

3.0
0)

(34
,08

3.0
0)

B7
42
0

DE
V4

05
Be

nh
all
 G
rou

nd
s M

ain
ten

an
ce
 

11
/1
2

(96
,56

4.0
3)

(96
,56

4.0
3)

(18
3,9

50
.86

)
(18

3,9
50
.86

)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V0
01

Ma
rke

t S
tre

et-
Aff

ord
ab
le 
Ho

us
ing

 07
/08

(17
,62

1.5
0)

(17
,62

1.5
0)

(17
,62

1.5
0)

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

(17
,62

1.5
0)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V1
01

Du
na
lle
y S

t-P
ub
lic 

Ar
t

10
/1
1

(7,
00
0.0

0)
(7,

00
0.0

0)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V1
02

Ro
se
mu

llio
n-P

ub
lic 

Ar
t

07
/0
8

(3,
36
2.3

2)
(27

,74
0.0

0)
(31

,10
2.3

2)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V1
03

75
-79

 R
ow

an
fie
ld 
Ro

ad
-P
ub
lic 

Ar
t

08
/0
9

(5,
34
2.5

0)
(5,

34
2.5

0)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V1
04

Ha
the

rle
y L

an
e (

AS
DA

) - 
Pu

bli
c A

rt
10
/1
1

(25
,00

0.0
0)

(25
,00

0.0
0)

DE
V1

06
12
/13

 H
ath

erl
ey
 La

ne
 (B

&Q
) - 

Pu
bli
c A

rt
12
/1
3

(53
,10

0.0
0)

(53
,10

0.0
0)

DE
V1

09
79
 Th

e P
ark

12
/1
3

(2,
55
7.0

0)
(2,

55
7.0

0)
(40

,70
4.8

2)
(83

,39
7.0

0)
0.0

0
0.0

0
0.0

0
(12

4,1
01
.82

)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
01

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e-A

du
lt/Y

ou
th 

07
/0
8 
- 1

1/
12

(39
,07

5.0
7)

(57
,70

7.0
0)

1,7
80
.86

(95
,00

1.2
1)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
02

Ma
rke

t S
tre

et-
Ad

ult
/Yo

uth
07
/0
8

(15
,87

6.9
4)

15
,87

6.9
4

(0.
00
)

AG
RE

SS
O 
- B

AL
10
1

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
02

Ma
rke

t S
tre

et-
Ad

ult
/Yo

uth
07
/0
8

(15
,87

6.9
4)

15
,87

6.9
4

(0.
00
)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
03

58
-60

 St
 Pa

uls
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

09
/1
0

(3,
75
6.1

3)
(3,

75
6.1

3)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V2
04

Du
na
lle
y S

tre
et-

Ad
ult
/Yo

uth
10
/1
1

(2,
72
0.0

0)
(2,

72
0.0

0)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V2
05

75
-79

 R
ow

an
fie
ld 
Ro

ad
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

08
/0
9 
- 0

9/
10

(3,
52
9.2

6)
3,5

29
.26

0.0
0

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
06

Me
rro

wd
ow

n-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

10
/1
1

(20
1.9

8)
(20

1.9
8)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
07

Ch
arl
ton

 La
ne
-A
du
lt/Y

ou
th

10
/1
1

(1,
84
0.0

0)
(1,

84
0.0

0)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V2
08

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e A

rle
 Fa

rm
11
/1
2

(49
5.0

1)
(49

5.0
1)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
09

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e-B

ee
ch
es

08
/0
9 
+ 
11
/1
2

(47
0.5

0)
(47

0.5
0)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
11

Ma
rke

t S
tre

et-
Elm

fie
ld

07
/0
8

(27
,80

3.0
0)

27
,75

9.6
9

(43
.31

)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V2
12

07
/08

 S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e F

air
vie

w
12
/1
3

(1,
69
0.0

0)
(1,

69
0.0

0)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V2
14

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e-L

an
sd
ow

n C
res

ce
nt

10
/1
1 
+ 
11
/1
2

(1,
34
0.5

0)
(17

8.0
0)

(1,
51
8.5

0)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V2
15

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e-L

ec
kh
am

pto
n L

an
es

08
/0
9

(43
.00

)
(43

.00
)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
17

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e-P

rio
rs 
Fa
rm

10
/1
1

(18
2.0

0)
(7,

03
8.5

0)
(7,

22
0.5

0)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V2
18

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e-W

ha
dd
on
 R
oa
d

Pr
e 
07
/0
8

(5.
49
)

(5.
49
)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
19

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e-P

res
tbu

ry
09
/1
0

(75
9.6

7)
(75

9.6
7)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
20

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e-B

en
ha
ll

10
/1
1

(15
0.5

0)
(15

0.5
0)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
21

75
-79

 R
ow

an
fie
ld 
Ro

ad
-B
en
ha
ll

08
/0
9 
+ 
09
/1
0

(1,
28
4.1

9)
(1,

28
4.1

9)
B8

90
0/2

0
DE

V2
22

S1
06
 Pl

ay
sp
ac
e -

 O
E2

11
/1
2

(18
2.0

0)
(18

2.0
0)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
23

S1
06
 W

ins
ton

 C
hu
rch

ill G
ard

en
s

11
/1
2

(21
6.0

0)
(21

6.0
0)

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V2
24

12
/13

 Ki
ng
 G
eo
rge

 V 
PF

 S1
06

12
/1
3

(54
,20

0.0
0)

36
,06

9.3
4

(18
,13

0.6
6)

(99
,93

1.2
4)

(12
0,8

13
.50

)
85
,01

6.0
9

0.0
0

0.0
0

(13
5,7

28
.65

)

Pa
ge
 1

Page 145



AP
PE

ND
IX 

12

Am
ou

nts
Us

ab
le

Re
ce
ipt

s/
Ap

pli
ed

Ap
pli

ed
Am

ou
nts

De
ve
lop

er
Ba

lan
ce
 

Re
fun

ds
to 

fun
d

to 
fun

d
tra

ns
fer

red
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns

De
ve
lop

er 
Co

ntr
ibu

tio
ns
 (S

10
6) 

YE
AR

@ 
1/4

/12
in 

ye
ar

fix
ed
 as

se
ts

RE
FC

US
to 

rev
en
ue

@ 
31
/3/
13

A/
c

De
tai

l
£

£
£

£
£

£
AG

RE
SS

O 
- B

AL
10
1

B8
90
0/2

0
DE

V3
01

Ba
rbr

idg
e N

urs
ery

-C
om

mu
nit
y F

ac
iliti

es
(32

,74
6.8

6)
32
,74

6.8
6

0.0
0

(32
,74

6.8
6)

0.0
0

32
,74

6.8
6

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

SU
ST

AI
NA

BL
E T

RA
NS

PO
RT

B6
17
0

Me
rro

wd
ow

n-S
us
tai
na
ble

 Tr
an
sp
ort

(99
.34

)
99
.34

0.0
0

B6
17
0

2 D
ev
on
 Av

en
ue
-S
us
tai
na
ble

 Tr
an
sp
ort

(19
,80

3.5
0)

19
,80

3.5
0

0.0
0

B6
17
0

Pr
ior
s R

oa
d S

ain
sb
ury

s-S
us
tai
na
ble

 Tr
an
sp
ort

(17
,77

8.0
0)

17
,77

8.0
0

0.0
0

B6
17
0

GC
C-
Su

sta
ina

ble
 Tr

an
sp
ort

(35
,20

5.1
3)

35
,20

5.1
3

0.0
0

(72
,88

5.9
7)

72
,88

5.9
7

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

0.0
0

TO
TA

L D
EV

EL
OP

ER
S C

ON
TR

IB
UT

IO
NS

(53
0,6

41
.25

)
(13

1,3
24
.53

)
11
7,7

62
.95

0.0
0

0.0
0

(54
4,2

02
.83

)

Pa
ge
 2

Page 146



Co
un

ci
l T

ax
 a
nd

 B
us

in
es
s 
Ra

te
s

Co
lle
ct
io
n 
Ra

te
s 
20
12
 - 
20
13

AP
PE

ND
IX
 1
3

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 C
ha

rg
es

 - 2
01

2/2
01

3
 %

 C
oll

ec
ted

20
12
/20

13
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

12
/20

13
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

As
 at

 31
.03

.13
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

98
.0%

98
.85

%
98
.0%

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
11
/20

12
As

 at
 31

.03
.12

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

98
.8%

N/
A

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
rs
 C
ha

rg
es

 O
uts

tan
din

g i
n C

ur
re
nt 

Ye
ar
 (2

01
2/2

01
3) 

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r D

eb
ts 
Ou

tst
an

din
g

20
12
/20

13
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

12
/20

13
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

As
 at

 31
.03

.13
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

£3
49
,56

7
£2
55
,00

0
£3
50
,00

0

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
11
/20

12
As

 at
 31

.03
.12

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

£2
64
,69

9
N/
A

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 C
ha

rg
es

 - 2
01

2/2
01

3
 %

 C
oll

ec
ted

20
12
/20

13
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

12
/20

13
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

As
 at

 31
.03

.13
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

98
.2%

98
.2%

N/
A

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
11
/20

12
As

 at
 31

.03
.12

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

98
.2%

N/
A

Pr
ev

iou
s Y

ea
rs
 C
ha

rg
es

 O
uts

tan
din

g i
n C

ur
re
nt 

Ye
ar
 (2

01
2/2

01
3) 

 Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r D

eb
ts 
Ou

tst
an

din
g

20
12
/20

13
 Ta

rg
et

Re
vis

ed
 20

12
/20

13
 Ta

rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

As
 at

 31
.03

.13
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

£9
33
,01

5
£7
90
,00

0
£9
30
,00

0

Co
mp

ar
iso

n w
ith

 20
11
/20

12
As

 at
 31

.03
.12

To
p Q

ua
rti
le 

£8
02
,33

0
N/
A

Bu
si
ne

ss
 R
at
es
  2
01
2/
20
13

Co
un

ci
l T

ax
  2
01
2/
20
13

Th
e a

rre
ars

 ar
e s

lig
htl
y h

igh
er 
tha

n t
he
 re
vis

ed
 ta
rge

t. W
e a

re 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 co

un
cil 

tax
 

pa
ye
rs 
ha
vin

g d
iffic

ult
y i
n p

ay
ing

 an
d t
he
 ar
rea

rs 
are

 be
ing

 co
lle
cte

d s
lig
hly

 sl
ow

er 
tha

n a
nti
cip

ate
d.

Th
e e

nd
 of
 ye

ar 
co
lle
cti
on
 ra
te 
is 
low

er 
tha

n l
as
t y
ea
r b

ut 
is 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 th
e r
ev
ise

d 
tar
ge
t a
nd
 it 
is 
ab
ov
e t
he
 na

tio
na
l a
ve
rag

e w
hic

h i
s 9

7.7
%

Th
e a

rre
ars

 ou
tst
an
din

g a
re 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 th
e r
ev
ise

d t
arg

et.
 W

e c
on
tin
ue
 to
 m
on
ito
r th

e 
po
sit
ion

 cl
os
ely

 an
d a

re 
wo

rki
ng
 w
ith
 an

y b
us
ine

ss
es
 ha

vin
g d

iffic
ult
y i
n p

ay
ing

.   

Th
e e

nd
 of
 ye

ar 
co
lle
cti
on
 ra
te 
is 
in 
lin
e w

ith
 th
e t
arg

et 
an
d h

igh
er 
tha

n t
he
 na

tio
na
l 

av
era

ge
 w
hic

h i
s 9

7.4
% 

for
 al
l c
ou
nc
ils 

an
d 9

8.1
% 

for
 sh

ire
 di
str
ict
s

Page 147



Page 148
This page is intentionally left blank



 Su
nd

ry 
De

bto
r In

vo
ice

s
Ou

tst
an
din

g 2
01
2/1

3
AP

PE
ND

IX
 1
4

% 
of
 in

vo
ice

s 
ou

tst
an

din
g m

or
e  

th
an

 on
e m

on
th

 Ta
rg
et

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

As
 at

 31
.03

.13

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 In

vo
ice

s
7,8

77
£1
0,5

27
,37

0
2,4

64
£2
,58

2,2
29

59
6

£5
12
,94

1
24
%

Le
ss
 th
an
 20

%
A 
lar
ge
 nu

mb
er 

of 
inv

oic
es
 ar

e r
ais

ed
 be

tw
ee
n 

Ja
nu
ary

 an
d M

arc
h w

hic
h h

as
 re

su
lte
d i
n 

pro
po
rtio

na
tel
y m

ore
 in
vo
ice

s t
ha
n u

su
al 
be
ing

 
ou
tst
an
din

g f
or 

mo
re 

tha
n a

 m
on
th.
  

HR
A 
Inv

oic
es

1,1
60

£3
88
,17

4
50
4

£1
04
,76

1
36
8

£6
8,1

64
73
%

Le
ss
 th
an
 60

%

Th
e d

ev
elo

pm
en
t o
f th

e A
cc
ou
nts

 R
ec
eiv

ab
le 

Sh
are

d S
erv

ice
 an

d m
ov
e t
o A

gre
ss
o h

as
 ta
ke
n t
im
e 

aw
ay
 fro

m 
de
bt 
rec

ov
ery

 in
 20

12
/13

 - i
t w

as
 

an
tic
ipa

ted
 re

co
ve
ry 
sta

nd
ard

s w
ou
ld 
dro

p a
s a

 
res

ult
.  H

ow
ev
er,

 as
 th
e s

erv
ice

 ha
s n

ow
 be

en
 

es
tab

lish
ed
 th
is 
wil

l b
e r

ec
tifi
ed
 in
 20

13
/14

 an
d 

ren
ew

ed
 fo
cu
s w

ill b
e p

lac
ed
 on

 re
co
ve
ry.

Ta
rg
et 

Co
mm

en
ts

Pe
rio

d
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

Ge
ne

ral
 Fu

nd
 In

vo
ice

s
20
1

£1
11
,41

9
£6
0,0

00
Th

e t
arg

et 
ha
s n

ot 
be
en
 m
et 
du
e t
o r

es
ou
rce

 be
ing

 
foc

us
se
d o

n d
eliv

ery
 of
 th
e A

R 
sh
are

d s
erv

ice
.  A

s 
sta

ted
 ab

ov
e, 
thi
s w

ill b
e a

dd
res

se
d i
n 2

01
3/1

4 w
ith
 

ren
ew

ed
 fo
cu
s a

nd
 co

mm
itm

en
t.

HR
A 
Inv

oic
es

98
8

£3
11
,23

2
£1
70
,00

0

Inv
oic

es
 ou

tst
an

din
g m

or
e 

th
an

 a 
mo

nt
h  

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
  

(E
xc
 In
sta

lm
en

t In
vo
ice

s)

As
 at

 31
.03

.13
As

 at
 31

.03
.13

As
 at

 31
.03

.13

Pr
ev
iou

s Y
ea
r In

vo
ice

s O
uts

tan
din

g i
n 2

01
2/1

3
 Pr

ev
iou

s Y
ea
r In

vo
ice

s 
Ou

tst
an

din
g

As
 at

 31
.03

.13

Su
nd

ry
 D
eb
t  2

01
2/1

3

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar
 In
vo
ice

s -
 20

12
/13

Cu
rre

nt 
Ye

ar 
Inv

oic
es
    
    
    
  

Ra
ise

d 
Cu

rre
nt
 Ye

ar
 In
vo
ice

s 
Ou

tst
an

din
g 

Page 149



Page 150
This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 15 

I9 Write off of unrecoverable Debts 
 
I9.1 The limits on the council to write off individual debts are:- 
 
• The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt for which notice of bankruptcy, 

 Liquidation or any Insolvency Procedure has been received and a claim submitted 
 
• The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt of a deceased person where there are 

insufficient assets in the estate. 
 
• The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt where despite exhaustive enquiries the 

debtor cannot be traced. The debt will be written back should the debtor be found 
 
• The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt where a court has ordered that the amount 

be remitted 
 
• The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt where a company has ceased trading 

leaving no assets 
 
• The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt which cannot be legally enforced eg debtor 

moved abroad 
 
• The Section 151 Officer can write off any debt in respect of which a hardship application 

in respect of business rates has been approved 
 
• The Section 151 Officer can write off any other individual debt to a 

 maximum amount of £5,000, where the amount is unlikely to be 
 recovered or where proceedings are inappropriate or unjustified. This 
 authority cannot be delegated. 
 
• All other individual debts, in excess of £5,000 can only be written off 

 with the approval of Cabinet or other delegated Committee. 

Page 151



Page 152
This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 16

Revised Actual
£ £

EXPENDITURE

General & Special Management 1,817,700 1,724,334
ALMO Management Fee 4,514,500 4,514,500
Rents, Rates, Taxes and Other Charges 34,800 27,524
Repairs and Maintenance 3,844,900 3,776,899
Provision for Bad Debts 225,000 91,235
Interest Payable 1,737,500 1,737,437
Depreciation of Dwellings 5,032,000 5,032,000
Depreciation of Other Assets 94,400 94,442
Impairment of Other Assets 102,376
Debt Management Expenses 46,500 46,500
Rent Rebate Subsidy Limitation 64,200 65,000
Housing Revenue Account Subsidy -5,100 -5,089

TOTAL 17,406,400 17,207,158

INCOME

Dwelling Rents 17,727,900 17,705,732
Non Dwelling Rents 437,200 433,425
Charges for Services and Facilities 735,900 746,054
Supporting People Grant 150,000 144,955

TOTAL 19,051,000 19,030,166

NET INCOME FROM SERVICES -1,644,600 -1,823,008

Amortised Premiums / Discounts 6,200 6,245
Interest Receivable -35,200 -40,516

NET OPERATING INCOME -1,673,600 -1,857,279

Appropriations
Revenue Contributions to Capital 360,000 0
Transfer from Major Repairs Reserve -94,400 0

HRA Surplus / (Deficit) carried to reserve 1,408,000 1,857,279

Revenue Reserve brought forward 3,097,000 3,096,539

Repayment of Debt -1,392,000 -1,392,000

Revenue Reserve carried forward 3,113,000 3,561,818

2012/13

HRA OPERATING ACCOUNTPage 153



APPENDIX 17

Revised Actual
£ £

Balance brought forward 0 0

Depreciation of Dwellings 5,032,000 5,032,000
Depreciation of Other Assets 94,400 94,442

5,126,400 5,126,442

Utilised in Year -5,032,000 -4,727,295
Transfer to HRA re Other Assets -94,400 0
Balance carried forward 0 399,147

Revised Actual
£ £

EXPENDITURE

Property Improvements & Major Repairs (incl fees) 5,032,000 4,411,878

Adaptations for the Disabled 350,000 265,503

Environmental Works (Tenant Selection) 60,000 49,914

Repurchase of Shared Ownership Dwellings 50,000 14,500

5,492,000 4,741,795
FINANCING

Capital Receipts 100,000 14,500
HRA Revenue Contribution 360,000 0
Major Repairs Reserve 5,032,000 4,727,295

5,492,000 4,741,795

HRA CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

2012/13

2012/13

MAJOR REPAIRS RESERVE 

Page 154



   
 Page 1 of 6 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

 

Cheltenham Borough Council 
Cabinet – 16 July 2013 
Council-22 July 2013 

Imperial Gardens – Reinstatement of Historic Railings 
 

Accountable member Cabinet Member Sustainability, Councillor Roger Whyborn 
Accountable officer David Roberts, Head of Property & Asset Management 
Ward(s) affected Lansdown Ward 
Key Decision Yes  
Executive summary The Friends of Imperial Square Heritage and Conservation (FISHAC) have 

started to raise the substantial funds required to restore the historic railings 
to Imperial Gardens. The intention is that Cheltenham Borough Council will 
then procure and subsequently deliver the works, in three phases, each of 
which is a separate stand alone scheme. The proposed elevations, layout 
and phases to be constructed are as shown in Appendices 2-4 of this 
report.  
In order for the project to progress to its construction phases it is a 
requirement that FISHAC enter into a legal agreement with Cheltenham 
Borough Council which will require funding raised by them to be provided to 
the Authority.  
Works will commence at a time to be agreed between the Authority and 
FISHAC . 
The project is likely to cost around £500k. As this is a key decision and is 
one which is outside the current budget and policy framework, it will require 
both Cabinet and Council approval. 

Recommendations That Cabinet approves: 
1. The reinstatement of the historic railings at Imperial Gardens 
2. The authorisation of the Head of Property and Asset Management to 
carry out the procurement to appoint the contractor to carry out the works to 
Imperial Gardens and a project manager to manage the construction project 
3. The Authority entering into an agreement with The Friends of Imperial 
Square Heritage and Conservation for the restoration of the railings, to 
include provision for funding to be transferred to the Authority prior to 
commencement of each stage of the scheme.  
That Council be recommended to: 
4. Allocate the budget for the project and the budget for the external funding 
within the Authority’s capital programme. 

 

Agenda Item 12
Page 155



   
 Page 2 of 6 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Financial implications The Friends of Imperial Gardens will not be able to seek grant funding until 
it has a decision from the council to agree to have the railings reinstated..  
The Authority will be procuring the work to reinstate the railings but there 
will be a contractual commitment from FISHAC to fund the project. The 
Authority will be contractually required to pay the sums under the works 
contracts but there is the potential for this to take place before money is 
received from FISHAC i.e. external grant being paid after various 
conditions are met e.g. works completed etc. and, as such, this  potentially 
places the Authority at risk financially.  
However, FISHAC’s promises of grant funding and statements regarding 
funds raised will be verified to mitigate the risk and the works for each 
phase will not commence until the council are satisfied that FISHAC have 
the necessary funding in place. As FISHAC receive funding they will be 
expected to pay this over to the Authority including funds collected in 
advance of the project starting..  Any overruns / overspends on the project 
will have to be discussed with FISHAC before they are committed to 
ensure sufficient funds can be made available and the Authority is not 
financially liable. 
The project is expected to cost around £500k. The Authority has not 
committed itself to fund a proportion of these works apart from a grant 
allocated through the Cheltenham Environmental Fund and therefore will 
not be budgeting to make a further financial contribution.   
Whilst the project will be funded from external sources, as it is a key 
decision and one which is outside the current budget and policy 
framework, it will require both Cabinet and Council approval. 
Officer time to deliver the project has not been costed and accounted for 
within the project costs. 
Responsibility for the ongoing maintenance of the railings must be 
determined as no specific base budget provision has been made. 
Contact officer: Nina Philippidis, nina.philippidis@cheltenham.gov.uk, 
01242 775221 

Legal implications The Authority’s contract procedure rules must be complied with when 
carrying out the procurement for this project. 
As the Authority will be undertaking the procurement for this project, the 
agreement with The Friends of Imperial Square Heritage and Conservation 
must make provision for the funding raised by FISHAC to be paid to the 
Authority when received.  
Contact officer: Donna Ruck, donna.ruck@tewkesbury.gov.uk,              
01684 272696 
 

Page 156



   
 Page 3 of 6 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

Corporate and 
community plan 
Implications 

 
Cheltenham’s natural and built environment is enhanced and 
protected 

1. The railings were formerly part of the town’s heritage. Historically 
they formed an attractive boundary to Imperial Gardens and 
reinforced the importance of the gardens in the town centre. 
Reinstatement of the railings will further enhance the architecture 
of the surrounding area and bring enjoyment to residents and 
visitors to the town. 

2. The re-instatement of the railings will restore and replace, where 
necessary, the existing  stone plinth, thus protecting it from any 
further deterioration 

3. The railings form an important part of the gardens development 
and their reintroduction will play an important part in helping people 
to understand the gardens as a heritage asset. 

 
Environmental and 
climate change 
implications 

Cheltenham has a clean and well-maintained environment 
The existing stone plinths merely serve to remind people that the original 
railings are missing.  

1. Stone plinths will be renovated and reused where possible and iron 
work leaded in to original holes. 

2. The only remaining section of original railings located next to the 
Town Hall will be used to replicate the accurate metal work detail 
and be renovated 

3. The original alignment of grass and path can be restored to the 
section fronting the garden bar. 

 
The proposed works will have a significant improvement to this historic 
structure and its setting and re-establish clear definition to the edge of the 
gardens. 
 

Page 157



   
 Page 4 of 6 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

2. Background 

2.1 Friends of Imperial Square Heritage and Conservation (FISHAC) was established in 2011 
as a Registered Charity to raise funds to reinstate and repair the heritage and 
conservation assets in Imperial Square and Gardens. The current appeal is raising funds 
to reinstate the railings lost to the war effort. 

2.2 Trustees have so far raised sufficient funds to appoint a specialist consultant to produce 
detailed drawing and make a planning application on their behalf which was successfully 
consented by Cheltenham Borough Council in 2012. An amendment to the application 
reducing the height of the railings from 1.8m to 1.5 metres was subsequently made, again 
successfully, in May 2013. 

2.3 Imperial Square was established, along with the Promenade, in 1817-18 as part of the 
botanical pleasure grounds of the Sherborne Spa. By the time the new Town Hall was 
completed in 1903, Imperial Square and Gardens had become the hub and focus of the 
town’s social scene, and often referred to as ‘the jewel in Cheltenham’s crown’. In June 
1940, the railings surrounding Imperial Gardens were scrapped and recycled as 
armaments for the war effort. 

2.4 The project will reinstate the railings (not gates) to the original boundary to a height of 
1.5m utilising the original stone plinth where it still exists. 

2.5 The project will be managed in partnership with the Authority employing a project 
management company used to heritage projects. In order to achieve improvement to the 
site as soon as possible the project has been divided into three separate phases, so that 
the first phase can begin when funding is available while fundraising continues for the 
later phases. The first phase will involve the replacement of the railings on the western 
(Promenade) edge. 

2.6 The total project costs are anticipated to be in the region of £500,000 
2.7 FISHAC will raise the necessary funds for the restoration works but Cheltenham Borough 

Council will contract with those doing the works and it will be the council’s obligation to 
make the payments.  

2.8 The Friends of Imperial Square Heritage and Conservation will be required to enter into a 
legal agreement prepared by One Legal which will set out the obligations of each party.  

2.9 It is Cheltenham Borough Council’s intention, subject to consultation and formal written 
agreement, for The Friends of Imperial Square Heritage and Conservation to raise funds 
for any future maintenance works. 

3. Reasons for recommendations 
3.1 FISHAC are still at an early stage in fundraising and some way off reaching an amount 

sufficient to trigger the first stage. In order to progress the project though, and give them 
the confidence to continue with their efforts it is recommended that Cabinet agree to enter 
into an agreement with FISHAC. 

3.2 As expenditure on the scheme will exceed  £100,000  it is a key decision which requires 
Cabinet approval. Council approval is required to allocate the budget and funding streams 
since it is outside the current budget and policy framework.  

4. Alternative options considered 
None 

Page 158



   
 Page 5 of 6 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

5. Consultation and feedback 
5.1 The members of FISHAC have obtained planning consent for the project and in doing so 

have demonstrated public support for the scheme 
5.2 Local ward councillors support the project. 
6. Performance management –monitoring and review 
6.1 Contract management, construction activities and expenditure will be monitored by 

Property & Asset Management. 
6.2 Financial monitoring will be carried by Cheltenham Borough Council’s Head of Finance. 
Report author Contact officer:   Tom Mimnagh 

Adam Reynolds 
01242 264151 

Appendices 1. Risk Assessment 
2. Proposed elevation  
3. Proposed elevation illustration 
4. Layout and phasing. 
 

 

Page 159



   
 Page 6 of 6 Last updated 11 July 2013 
 

 

 

Risk Assessment                 Appendix 1  

 
The risk Original risk score 

(impact x likelihood) 
Managing risk 

Risk 
ref. 

Risk description Risk 
Owner 

Date 
raised 

Impact 
1-5 

Likeli- 
hood 
1-6 

Score Control Action Deadline Responsible 
officer 

Transferred to 
risk register 

 
1 

If the current stone plinth, 
whilst not considered 
dangerous, continues to 
weather and deteriorate then it 
could be a potential hazard. 

David 
Roberts 

2013 2 3 6 none Reinstatement of the 
railings and refurbishment 
of the stone plinth will 
eliminate this. 
 
 
 

ongoing David 
Roberts 

 

2 If the council’s project 
managing and approving works 
role fails to deliver then there 
could be contractual/financial 
implications 

David 
Roberts 

2013 2 3 6 none Programme into annual 
staff work programme and 
include finance department 
officer as part of the 
project board 

ongoing David 
Roberts 

 

3 If external funding is not raised 
then the council may be liable 
for the cost of the project  

Mark 
Sheldon 

1/6/13 3 3 9 Reduce The council will ensure 
funding stream is in place 
before committing to 
works. 
 
The project will be 
undertaken in phases only 
when funding is secured. 

ongoing Mark 
Sheldon 

 

 

P
age 160



Ele
va
tio

n  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
 A
pp

en
dix

 2 

 
 

 
 

 

Page 161



Ele
va
tio

n i
llu

str
ati

on
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  
  
  
  
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
3 

M
on

ta
ge

 pr
od

uc
ed

 by
 St

ep
he

n C
lar

ke
, C

ha
irm

an
 Ch

elt
en

ha
m 

Civ
ic 

So
cie

ty 
Mo

nta
ge

 ill
us

tra
tin

g t
he

 ap
pr
ox

im
ate

 sc
ale

.
 

Page 162



La
yo
ut 

an
d p

ha
sin

g 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  
  
  
Ap

pe
nd

ix 
4 

 
    

 

 

Ph
as

e 1
 

Ph
as

e 3
 

Ph
as

e 2
 

Page 163



Page 164
This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the last meeting
	8 The future function, culture and structure of the paid service within Cheltenham Borough Council
	2013_07_22_COU_Appendix 2 - Cheltenham Futures programme outline plan final version
	2013_07_22_COU_Appendix 3 - Role Descriptions final version
	2013_07_22_COU_Appendix 4 - Indicative Restructure Timeline final version
	2013_07_22_COU_Appendix 5 - Financial Analysis final version

	9 Review of Council size and electoral cycle
	Appendix 2 - Terms of Reference, 02/07/2013 Council size and electoral cycle working group
	Appendix 3 - Analysis of Election costs, 02/07/2013 Council size and electoral cycle working group

	10 Scrutiny Annual Report
	Appendix 2 Graphs for Scrutiny Review
	Appendix_3_Scrutiny_annual_report_2013

	11 Financial outturn 2012/13 and quarterly Budget Monitoring report to end of May 2013
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 2
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 3
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 3page4
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 4
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_Outturn_2012_13_Appendix5
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 6
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_Outturn_2012_13_Appendix6
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 7
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_Outturn_2012_13_Appendix8
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 9
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 10
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix 11
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix_12
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix_13
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendix_14
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_MonitoringAppendix 15 Write off of unrecoverable Debts in Financial Rules
	2013_07_22_COU_Financial_outturn_Appendices 16-17 HRA

	12 Imperial Gardens-Reinstatement of Historic Railings
	2013_07_22_COU_Imperial_Gardens_App 2-4


